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INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES—UNAUTHORIZED
STORAGE OF TOXIC AGENTS

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 1975

T.S. SeNaTe,
Sereor Commrrree To Stupy GoveErNMeNTAL OPERATIONS
: ‘Wit ReEspEcT T0 INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES,
Washington, D.C.

The coramittes met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., in room 818,
Russ%l Senate Office Building, Senator Frank Church (chairman)
presiding.

Present: Senators Church, Tower, Mondale, Huddleston, Morgan,
Hart of Colorado, Baker, Goldwater, Mathias, and Schweiker.

Also present: William G. Miller, staff director; Frederick A. O.
Schwarz, JT., chief counsel; Curtis R, Smothers, counsel to the minor-
ity ; and Paul Michel, professional staff member.

The Cmammax. The committee will come to order.

The Senate Select Committee on Intelligence Activities opens its
public hearings today with an inquiry into 2 case in which_direct
orders of the Presi ‘ i evidently disobeyed
by eniployees of_the CIA. Tt is the purpose of this hearing, and those
which shall Tollow for the next 2 months, to illuminate the need to
make certain in the future that Federal law enforcement and intelli-
gence agencies perform their duties in ways which do not infringe
upon the rights of American citizens.

The committee has not held public hearings prior to this time, be-
cause of its concentration on charges that the CIA has been involved

* in assassination plots directed against certain foreign leaders. In that

investigation, the committee has taken over 8,000 pages of testimony,
interrogated nearly 100 witnesses, examined a vast array of documents,
and compiled a record on the assassination issue alone that compares
in size to the entire investigation of the Senate Watergate Committee.

Because of the serious damage that protracted public hearings on
such a subject could do tothe United States in its relations with foreign
governments, the committee chose to conduct these hearings behind
closed doors, but the committee intends to publish a full and detailed
report of its indines within the next few weeks. )

Tt is the right of the American people to know what their Govern-
ment has done—the bad as well as the good—and we have every con-
fidence that the country will benefit by a comprehensive disclosure of
this grim chanter in our recent history.

In examining wrongdoing by such agencies as the FBI and the
CTA, the committee in no way wishes to denigrate the importance of
their legitimate work. I know, firsthand. the wartime worth of intel-
Tizence gathering because T served in the military intelligence as an
Army lieutenant in World War IL.
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Today, as 2 member of the Foreign Relations Committee, I am fully
aware of the great value of good intelligence in times of peace. With-
out it, an informed foreign policy could not be conducted; without
it, nuclear arms controls could not be policed ; without it, the United
States would be left groping in a dangerous world.

At the same time, we must insist that these agencies operate strictly
within the law. They were established to spy on foreign governments
and to fend off foreign spies. We must know to what degree they
have turned their techniques inward to spy on the American people
mstead, If such unlawful and improper conduct is not exposed and
stopped, it could, in time, undermine the very foundations of freedom
in our own land.

So the committee intends to hold public hearings, not only on
domestic abuses of the CIA and the FBI, but on improper activities
of such other Government agencies as the Internal Revenue Service,
the Post Office, and the National Security Agency.

Later in the fall, the committee will hold 2 series of hearings on
proposals for reforming our national intelligence system and for es-
tablishing legislative oversight of its activities. New legislation will
be needed to preserve for the United States an efficient intelligence
apparatus that remains outward reaching, and operates within the
law in the service of our legitimate national security needs.

The particular case under examination today involves the illegal
possession of deadly biological poisons which were retained within the
CIA for 5 years after their destruction was ordered by the President,
and for 5 years after the United States had entered intoa solemn inter-
national commitmént not to maintain stocks of these poisons except
for very limited research purposes.

The main questions before the committee are why the poisons were
developed in such quantities in the first place; why the Presidential
order was disobeyed ; and why such a serious act of insubordination
could remain undetected for so many years.

In exploring these guestions, which go to the very heart of our
work, I wish to acknowledge the cooperation of the White House, the
Defense Department, and those officials who are presently in charge
of the CIA, including its Director, Mr. Colby. Upon the discovery of
the cache of forbidden toxins, the executive branch immediately came
to this committee and indicated that an investigation was underway,
the results of which were later reported to the committee. We then
conducted our own independent inquiry. The outcome of these two
investigations is the matter before the commitiee today.

Now, before we turn to our first witness, Mr. Colby, the Director of
the CTA, T would like to recognize the ranking Republican member of
. this committes, Senator Tower, of Texas, for such opening remarks as
he might care to make.

Senator Tower?

Senator Towrr. Thank you. o

Mr. Chairman, you have alluded to, and I think it is important for
all of us to keep in mind, the comprehensive nature of this committee’s
task as mandated by Senate Resolution 21. Our assignment to conduct
this first full-scale examination of the Nation’s intelligence activities
in more than 25 years must be viewed as a national determination to
come to grips with a wide range of deferred decisions in this vital
area.
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‘Since the end of the Second World War, this Nation has haltingly—
and with no small degree of ambivalence—sought to insure its sur-
vival by recognizing and legitimizing the role of intelligence and
clandestine activity. Our ambivalence has been due, no doubt, to the
inherent conflicts that are created when an open society faces up fo
the need for secrecy in the intelligence arena. But it has been an am-
bivalence sanctioned by decisions of Presidents, Congresses, and our
judicial system.

In the discharge of its responsibilities, this committee has avoided—
and will eontinue to avoid--the temptations of political expediency
which would lay aside historical perspective and simply point the
finger of blame.

‘When the CIA advised the committes of its discovery of the toxins
which are the subject of today’s hearings, the Agency was acknowledg-
ing its responsibility to affirmatively contribute to the solutions that
we all seek.

In making this matter a subject for public hearing, it is my hope
that we will, in an atmosphere free of sensationalism, promote a
greater public understanding of the full and fair nature of the com-
mittee’s process while demonstrating our concern—a, concern shared by
the intelligence community—for the complexity and sensitivity of the
task of recommending changes or refinements in this component of our
national security structure.

In the coming weeks and months we will hear much of the problems
occasioned by such intelligence concepts as compartmentation, limited
access and need-to-know. These principles are an inherent part of the
very fabric of intelligence. They are not, and may never be, fail-safe.
Our task is to examine how weli we have done, and to search for
methods of doing better within the parameters of a democratic
soclety. .

So 1t is in that spirit that we welcome your appearance here today,
Mzr. Colby. :

The Crarmrmaw. Thank you very much, Senator Tower.

Mr. Micaer. Exhibit No. 1 is a draft memorandum, prepared
February 16, 1970, for Director of Central Intelligence. Subject:
“Contingency Plan for Stockpile of Biological Warfare Agents.” The
document consists of three pages, and on the third page is the indica-
tion that it was dictated by N. Gordon.

Exhibit No. 2 is a document, “Inventory of Lethal and Incapaci-
tating Agents Found at a CIA Bailding, Excerpted From CIA
Inventory.” 2

The document consists of six pages and was prepared by the Select
Committee staff, and reviewed by Dr. Sayre Stevens of the CIA.

Exhibit No. 3 consists of two documents, each one page long, dated
February 18, 1970, and titled “Paralytic Shellfish Poison—Working
Fund Investigations.” *

Exhibit No. 4 is a press release from the White House dated Novem-
ber 25, 1969, consisting of two pages.*

" Beep. 189

2 See p. 192,

¥ Hee p. 198.
1 Sae 1. 200.




4

Exhibit sI;T?o. 5is a pressfrelease from the White House dated Feb-
ruary 14, 1970, consisting of two pages.®
Exhibit No. 61s a menllltj)%andu.rn to Chief, TSD, Subject :MEKNAOMI :
Funding, objectives, and accomplishments, dated Qctober 18, 1967,
and consisting of three pages.®

Exhibit No. 7 is a document consisting of three pages, dated Novem-
ber 25, 1969, titled “National Security Couneil Deciston Memorandum,
No. 85.” It 1s addressed to the various parties, including the Director,
Central Intelligence Agency.”

Exhibit No. 8 is a document consisting of one page, dated Feb-
ruary 20, 1970, titled “National Security Gouncil Decision Memoran-
dum 44,” which includes among its addressees, Director, Central
Intelligence.® . .

Exhibit No. 9 is a document consisting of one page, titled “Geneva
Protocol of 1925.” ° )

Exhibit No. 10 is a document consisting of four pages, titled “Con-
vention on the Prohibition of the Development, Production and Stock-
piling of Bacteriological (Biological) and Toxin Weapons and on
Their Destruction.”

Mr. Cmameyan. Now, Mr. Colby, if you would please stand to take
the oath. Mr. Stevens, if you would stand too, in the event that you
have any testimony to offer, I will administer the oath to both of you
at the same time. ) .

Do you both solemnly swear that all of the testimony you will give
in these proceedings, will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing
but the truth, so help you God ?

. Mr. Corex. I do.

Mr. Szrvens. I do. .

The Caamsan. Mr. Colby, I understand you have a short opening
statement, and I invite you to read it at this time.

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM E. COLBY, DIRECTOR OF CENTRAL INTEL-
LIGENCE, ACCOMPANIED BY SAYRE STEVENS, ASSISTANT DEP-
UTY DIRECTOR, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY, CIA; AND MITCHEL
ROGOVIN, SPECIAL COUNSEL, CIA

Mzr. Couny. I do, Mr. Chairman. T have a prepared statement wI_nch
has been distributed. I will omit certain elements of it to save a little
time. I think I can cover the main points. . .

Mr. Chairtan, this hearing typifies the difficulty of modernizing
our approach to intelligence in America. We are resolved that intelli-
gence operations be conducted in America in conformity to our laws
and constitutional procedures. This does not mean that intelligence
can have no secrets. We have many secrets in America, from grand
jury proceedings to the ballot box, where secrecy is essential or the
process will not work. o ) ) )

We are engaged, in these investigations, Mr. Chairman, in resolving
the dilemma between the necessary secrets of intelligence and the
equally necessary exposure of our Government’s workings to our peo-

5 Bee p. 202,
¢ See p. 204.
? See p. 207.
8 See p. 210.
¥ Bee p. 211,
1 Zee p. 212,
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pl.e]l and their representatives to insure that they respond to the people’s o
will. - .

In former times, this contradiction was resolved in favor of almost
total intelligence secrecy, which is at the base of President Eennedy’s
remarks that intelligence failures are trumpeted, while the successes
gounheralded.

As we lift this veil to open intelligence to the kind of public review
and control we Americans want today, we have two problems. One is
how far to go, on which we must jointly develop some guidelines and
understandings, or we risk seriously and unnecessarily injuring our
intelligence.

The other Is to insure that our people have an accurate perception of
what modern intelligence really is. Without this, an individual act is
seen as the norm, in application of Aesop’s fable of each blind man
describing a whole elephant as only an extension of the part he
perceives.

To this committee and its staff to date, we have tried to present the
whole of intelligence today, and not just its parts. I hope this will be
the basis for the decisions we will reach as to the guidelines and su-
pervision we want to establish for intelligence tomorrow.

I thus ask for a suspension. of final judgment until the whole pic-
ture of intelligence can be presented in 1ts true proportions—good and
bad—ywhile we respond to your requirement of public exposure in this
hearing of one portion of it,

‘With other Government functions, like our Army or our welfare
services, the whole is perceived and the individual act and even mistaks
is seen in proportion. In intelligence, we must modernize our perception
of its whole contributioh o our conntry while we insure that it con-
.fog'ms with the standards we Americans expect. I hope we can do both
jobs.

The specific subject today concerns CTA’s involvement ]
opment of bacteriological warfare materials with the Arrmy’s Bi

yat Fort Detrick, O A’s retention of an amount of shell-
A’s use and investigation of various ehemicals and .

d

Tﬁe relationship between the CIA and the Army Biological Labora-
tory at Fort Detrick as an activity requiring further investigation
surfaced in late April of this year. It resulted from information pro-
vided by a CIA officer not directly associated with the project, in
response to my repeated directives that all past activities which might
now be considered questionable be brought to the attention of Agency
mahagement.

Information provided by him, and by two other officers aware of
the project, indicated that the project at Fort Detrick involved the
development, of bacteriological warfare agents-—some lethal-—and
associated delivery systems suitable for clandestine use.

A search was made for any records or other information available
on the project. This search produced information_ahout the basic
agreement between the Army and the CLA relating to the project and
seme limited records covering its activities from its beginning in 1952

tmﬁ,ﬁﬂn_mmm’m-
~ In the course of the investigation, CIA’s laboratory storage facili-
ties were searched, and about 11 grams—a little Jess than half an

fish toxin—sn
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ounce—of shellfish toxin, and 8 milligrams of cobra venom, were dis-
covered in a Iittle-used vaulted storeroom in an Agency building.

The White Fouse was notified as soon as the existence of the ma-
terials became lmown, and was kept informed as the investigation
progressed. The chairmen of CIA’s four oversight committees were
alerted immediately to the discovery of the toxin. Records and reports
were exchanged with the Defense Department as it began its own in-
vestigation of the matter. This committee was notified of our investi-
gation of the program in mid-June, and has been provided all project
files and reports of the investigation.

CIA association with Fort Detrick involved the Special Operations
Division (SOD), of that facility, This division was responsible for de-
veloping special applications for biological warfare agents and toxins.
TIts principal customer was the U.S. Army. Tts concern was with the
development of both suitable agents and delivery mechanisms for use
1 paramilitary situations. Both standard biological warfare agents
and biologically derived toxins were investigated by the division.

The CIA relationship with SOD was formally established in May
1952, through a memorandum of agreement with the Army chief
chemical officer for the performance of certain research and develop-
ment in the laboratory facilities of the Special Operations Division

of the Army Biological Laboratory at Fort Detrick. The initiative for
estab this relstionship was 8 belief that the special capabilities
of etrick group, and its access to biological materials of all

¢ Apoicy access 10 rescarch and development ex-
pertise and capabilifies which were appropriate to its function and
nof_otherwise svailabie, The Teed Tor such capabilities was tied to
em:sﬁ'ﬁ}e;c Services World War II experience, which
included the development of two different types of agent snieide pills
to be in : ture, and a successful operation using
biological warfare materials to incapacitate a Nazi leader temporarily.
I Through the course of years, Agency objectives in the project be-
. came better defined. Thus, 8 project approval memo of 1967 identified
four functional categories of project activity : maintenance of a stock-
pile of temporarily incapacitating and lethal agents in readiness for
operational use; assessment and maintenance of biological and chemi-
cal dissemination systems for operational use; adaptation and testing
of a nondiscernible microbioinoculator—a dart device for clandestine
and imperceptible inoculation with biological warfare or chemical
warfare agents—for use with various materials and to assure that the
microbioinoculator could not be easily detected by later examination
of the target; and providing technical support and consultation on
request for offensive and defensive biological warfare and chemical
warfare.

In the later years, the activities dwindled to the point of simply
maintaining & stockpile of agents and delivery systems for possible
Agency use.

rom its outset, the project was characterized by extreme compart-
mentation, or a high degree of secrecy within CIA itself. Only two or
three Agency officers at any time were cleared for access to Fort
Detrick activities. Though some CIA-originated documents have been
found in the project files, it is clear that only a very limited documen-
tation of activities took place.

7

A major early requirement of the Agency was to find a replacement
for the standard cyanide L-pill issued to agents in hazardous situations
during World War II. This was the basis on which eventually we
discovered the shellfish toxin. The onl icati is toxi
in the U-2 flight over the 1LS SRin-May 1960, during which Gary
Powers carried such a device concealed in a silver dollar.

In thé FPowers case, the grooves of the drill bit were filled with shell-
fish toxin. He obviously did not use it, and was not instructed to do
80; it was offered to him to provide him with the option. The Powers
flight was the only time we are aware that the toxin was provided for

gﬁ)eﬁational use, although the L-pill was made available for earlier
zhts

The.prima,ry Agency int i nt; of dissemina-
tion devices ™o be u; i : hemicals off the shelf. Various

dissemination devices. such as a fanntain pen dart launcher and an

engine head bolt designed to releasea substance when heated, appeared
to be peculiarly suited for clandestine use. Available records do not
indicate that all specific items were developed exclusively for the CIA,
as work on similar devices was also done for the Army.

A large amount of Agency attention was given to the problem of
W&iﬂg@m@gﬂ.ﬁ_’l‘hough most of the dart launchers were
developed for the Army, the Agency did request the development of
a small hand-held dart launcher for its peculiar needs for this purpose.

‘Work was also done on temporary human i acitation techniques
Technical support elements o?‘f U'.i% received continuing requests for
safe, effective, and rapidly acting incapacitating devices.

These related to a desire to incapacitate captives before they could
render themselves Tncapable of falking, or terrorists before they conld
take Tetahatory action,

Work was done 1n trying to develop the dart system for such pur-
poses, but success was never achieved, since a larger amount of an Inca-
pacitating agent is required to safely inactivate a human than of a
lethal agent required to kill him.

Work was also done by or for the Agency in the development of
materials for sabotage of various materials and facilities. This is
clearly related to the Agency’s mission. Qur records indicate that some
of these lethal materials were prepared and furnished for one opera-
tion, but we are aware that that oneration was not, in fact, completed.
Beyond these, however, no record can be found that these materials
or devices were used for lethal operational purposes.

By thelate sixties, 2 variety of biological warfare agents and toxins
were_maintained by the SOD for possible Acency use, Varying
amounts of these materials, ranging from 100 grams (about 3.5
ounces) to 100 milligrams (about three thousandths of an ounce)
were maintained.

Though specific accounting for each agent on the Jist is not on hand,

Department of records_indicate that the materials were, in

f troyed in 1970 by SOD personnel. exm%@fﬁr
a_substance in small medical bottles labeled shellfish toxin. plus

11 miliera venom, which w May 20 of thi
year.

At the time the toxin was found. the officer responsible for the project
in 1970 stated he had no recollection as to how it got there. On the 30th
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of June, discussions were held with the retired Agency officer Who
ha,% 1E)jrov.lded tI}:lle initial lead.

sm ad been

970, stated that
1 hol-SHered JT) he

hl&gtg_%vi‘his was d the basis oI his own decision after con-
versations with the responsible project officer.

He further stated that he made this decision based on the fact that
the cost and difficulty of isolating the shellfish toxin were so great that

it simply made no sense to destroy it, particularly when there would -

be no tuture source of the toxin.

The current branch chief believes this explanation is correct, but still
does not recall the actual act of receiving the materinl from Fort
Detrick. Both of these middle-grade officers agree that no one, includ-
;n;g_their immediate superior, was told of the retention of the shellfish

xin.

The former branch chief recalls that subsequent to the delivery of
the shellfish toxin to CIA, he was told by his chief to inform Fort
Detrick personally that destruction of CIA materials should take place.
He did so, but did not include the shellfish toxin, then in CIA hands,
in his instructions.

Discussions with Mr. Helms, Director of Central Intelligence, and
Mr. Karamessines, the Deputy Director for Plans in 1970, have estab-
lished that both were aware of the requirement that such material be
disposed of. They recall that clear instructions_were given that the
CTA_stockpile 5 e destroyed by the Army, and that, ip accord-
%pce wi tives, the Agency should get out of the

1olagical warfare busginess /

‘With the discovery o hellfish toxin this year, a complete inven-
tory ¢f the vault in which it was foun I e Inventory con-
sisted of a Stock of various materials and delivery systems accumu-
lated over the years, including other lethal materials, incapacitants,
narcotics, hallucinogenic drugs, irritants and riot control agents, herbi-
cides, animal control materials, and many common chemicals.

The small size of the vault (about 8 by 10 feet) and the few shelves
limit the extent of this stockpile. The materials are, for the most part,
the residue of a number of different CIA. programs. These involved
CIA’s effort to keep a close watch on emerging technology—in this case
pharmaceutical technology—to insure that we did not encounter an

- unanticipated threat from hostile intelligence services with which we

could not contend.

We also wished to capitalize on new advances which should substan-
tially assist us in our efforts to collect foreign intelligence or in 2 war-
time situation. The narcotics in storage related to CIA’s overseas efforts
to collect intelligence on the narcotics trade, to help in countering it. We
have also supplied tear gas and mace to our officers overseas for use
in defensive situations where firearms would not be appropriate.

The threat, 45 well as the promise, posed by newer types of drugs,
particularly the hallucinogenic drugs, made at least exploratory re-
search on them essential. 'i@ﬂhecaﬂ_cw%eWSSiblg
role of drugs in the apparent brainwashing of Américan POW’s iri
Korea, and the hauntsd eves of Cardinal Mindzenty.as ne confessed at

& Communist trial,
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I might add that we believe that a drug was administered to one of
our officers overseas by a foreign intelligence officer within the past
year. Those responsible for providing technical support to clandestine
operations felt it necessary that they understand the ways in which
these drugs could be used, their effects and their vulnerabilities to
countermeasures.

In pursuing such concerns as these, many different materials were
obtained and stored for provision to contractors who did the actual
scientific research involved.

One of the major results of these investigations of the CIA has been
to impress upon our employees, and all of us involved in intelligence,
the fact that decisions about our programs must be made in the light
of today’s world. As you are aware, in mid-1973, we tried to identify
all questionable activities. We did so for what I believe to be most
of them, and issued internal directives to insure that the CTA remain
within the bounds of the law.

Repeated emphasis on the importance of this did Jead to the identifi-
cation of our association with Fort Detrick as an activity to be reviewed
before we were aware that one of its products had been improperly
sequestered. The controls involved in the shellfish case seem to have
existed but not to have been applied. The controls that would have
prevented or discovered this act were principally those which are the
kind of management we must have for the intelligence business.

I am confident that proper management will exist as a result of the
changes we are making in our approach to intelligence, to insure its
conformity with American values and standards. These will include
a better public appreciation of modern intelligence, better guidelines
for its proper activities, and better supervision externally to stimulate
better supervision internally. -

With these, T am confident that such episodes as the shellfish toxin
will not be repeated. . )

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The full text of Mr. Colby’s prepared statement follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF WILLIAM E. Colpy, DIRECTOR OF CENTRAYL INTELLIGENCE
AGENCY

Mr. Chairman: This hearing typifies the diffculty of modernizing our approach
to infelligence in America. We are resolved that intelligence operations be con-
ducted in America in conformity to our laws and Constitutional procedures. This
does not mean that iontelligence ¢an have no secrete—we have many secrets in
Ameriea, from grand jury proceedings to the ballot box, where secrecy is essential
or the process will not work. .

We are engaged in these investigations, Mr. Chairman, in resoiving the di-
lemma between the necessary secrets of intelligence, and the equally necessary
exposure of our Government’s workings to our people and their representatives
to ensure that they respond to the people’s will. In former times, this contradie-
tion was resolved in favor of almost total intellizgence secrecy, which is at the
base of President Kennedy's remark that intelligence failures are trumpeted,
while the sueccesses go unheralded.

As we lift this veil to open intelligence to the kind of public review and
control we Americans want today, we have two problems. One iz how far to
£0, on which we must jointly develop some guidelines and understandings, or we
risk seriously and unnecessarily injuring our intellipence. The other is fo engure
thai our people have an accurate percepiion of what modern intelligence really
is. Without this, an individual acf is seen as the norm, in application of Aesop’s
fable of each blind man deseribing a whole elephant as only an extension of the
part he perceives.
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To this committee and its staff to date we have tried to presemt the whole
of intellizence today, and not just its parts. I hope this whole will be the basis
for the decisions we will reack as to the guidelines and supervision we yvant
1o establish for intelligence tomorrow. I thus ask for g suspension of final judg-
ment until the whole picture of intellizence can be presented in its true propor-
tions, good and bad, while we respond to your requirement of public exposure
in this hearing of one portion of it. With other government functions like our
Army or ¢ur welfare services, the whole is perceived and the individual act and
even mistake is seen in proportion. In intelligence, we must modernize our percep-
tion of itz whole contribution to our country while we ensure that it conforms
with the standards we Americans expect. I hope we can do both jobs

The specific subject today concerns CIA’s involvement in the development of
bacteriological warfare materials with the Army’s Biological Laboratory at Fort
Detrick, CIA's retention of an amount of shelifish toxin and CIA’s use and
investigation of various chemieals and drugs.

The relationship between the CIA and the Army Biological Laboratory at Fort
Detrick as an activity requiring further investigation surfaced in late April of
this year. It resulted from information provided by a CIA officer not directly
associated with the project in response fo my repeated directives that all past
activities which might now he considered questionable be brought to the atten-
tion of Agency management. Information provided by him and by two other
officers aware of the project indicated that the project at Fort Detrick involved
the development of bacteriological warfare agents, some lethal, and associated
delivery systems suitable for elandestine nse.

A search was made for any records or other information available on the
project. This search produeed information about the basic agreement beiween
the Army and the CTA relating to the project and some Mmited records covering
its activities from its beginning in 1952 to its termination in 1970

After the discovery of these project records, verification of this disposition of
a stockpile of BW agents and toxins maintained by Fort Detrick for possible
Agency use became a major concern. It was not known whether or not these
materials had been destroyed along with the Army's BW stockpiles in response
to Presidential directives of November 1939 and February 1970. The records
indicated that the question had been raised and it was the impression of those
who were familiar with the project that the material had in faef been destroyed,
aithough no records confirming it could be found. In the course of the investiga-

T tion, CIA’s laboratory storage facilities were searched and about 11 grams (a

Iittle less than half an ounce) of shellfish toxin and 8 milligrams of cobra venom
were discovered in a little-used vaulted storercom in an Agency building.

The White House was notified as soon a3 the existence of the materials
became known and was kept informed ag the investigation progressed. The
chairmen of- CIA’s four oversight committees were briefed immediately after
the discovery of the toxin. Records and reports were exchanged with the De-
fense Department ag it began its own investigation of the matter. This com-
mittee was notifled of our investigation of the prograin in mid-Jane and has been
provided all project files and reports of the investigation.

CIA association with Fort Detrick involved the Special Operations Division
(SOD) of that facility. This Division was responsible for developing special
applications. for BW agents and toxins. Tts principal customer was the US
Army. Its concern was with the development of both suitable agents and delivery
mechanisms for use in paramilitary situations. Both standard BW agents and
bivlogically derived toxins were investigated by the Division, :

The CIA relationship with SOD was formally established in May 1952 throngh
a4 memorandum of agresment with the Army Chief Chemical Officer for the
performance of certain research and development in the laboratory facilities of
the Special Operations Division of the Army Biological Laboratory at Fort
Detrick. The initiative for establishing this relationship was a belief that the
special capabilities of the Fort Detrick group and its access to biological mate-
rials of all sorts provided the Agency access to research and development exper-
tise and eapabilities which were appropriate to its function and not otherwise
available, The -need for such capabilities was tied to earijer Office of Strategic
Services World War II experience, which included the development of fwo dif-
ferent types of agent suicide pills to be used in the eveni of capture and &
successful operation using BW materials to incapacitate a Nazi leader
temporarily.
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Through the course of years, Agency objectives in the project became better
defined. Thus a project approval memo of 1967 identified four funetional cate-
gories of projeet activity.

a. maintenance of a stockpile of temporarily ineapscitating and lethal agents
in readiness for operational use;

b. assessment and maintenance of biological and chemieal disseminating sys-
tems for operational use;

c. adaptation and testing of a non-discernible mierobioinoculator (a dart
device for clandestine and imperceptible inoculation with BW/CW agents) for
use with various materials and to assure that the microbioinoculator could not
be easily detecied by later examination, of the target, and

d. provide technical support and consultation on request for offensive and
defensive BW,/COW.

In the later years the activities dwindled to the point of simply maintaining a
stockpile of agents and delivery systems for possible Agency use.

From its outset the project was characterized by extreme compartmentation
or a high degree of secrecy within CIA itself Only two or three Ageney officers
at any given time were cleared for access to Fort Detrick activities. Though
some CIA-originated documenis have been found in the project files, it is clear
that only a very limited documentation of activities took place.

A major early requirement of the Ageney was to find a replacement for the
standard cyanide L-Pill issued to agents in hazardous situations during World
War I¥. Work on this problem was done at Fort Detrick and ultimately centered
on the coating of a small pin-sized drill with shellfish toxin. In the course of this
work shellfish toxin was stored in our laboratory for the purposes of conducting
stability tests. A considerable amount of work was done in developing conceal-
ment schemes for the drill or pin to be used in the event suicide was necessary.
The only application of this effort was in the U-2 flight over the USSR in
May 1960, during which Gary Powers carried such a device concealed in a
gilver dollar. In the Powers case the grooves of the drill bit were filled with
shellfish toxin. He obviounsly did not use it, and was not instructed to do so;
it was offered to him to provide him with the option. The Powers flight was the
only time we are aware that the toxin was provided for operational use, although
the I—Pill was made available for earlier flights.

The primary Agency interest was in the development of dissemination devices,
to be used with standard chemiecals off the shelf. Such dissemination devices
as a fountain pen dart launcher and an engine head bolt designed to release a
substance when heated appeared to be peculiarly suited for clandestine use.
Available records do not indicate that ail specific items were developed exciu-
sively for the CIA, as work on similar devices was also done for the Army.

A large amount of Agency attention was given to the problem of incapacitating
guard dogs. Though most of the dart launchers were developed for the Army,
the Agency did request the development of a smail hand-held dart launcher for
ite peculiar needs,

‘Work was also done on tempdrary human incapacitation techniques. Technical
support elements of CIA received continuing requests for safe, effective and
rapidly acting, incapacitating devices. These related to a desire to ineapacitate
captives before they could render themselves incapable of talking or terrorists
before they could take retaliatory action. Work was dome in trying to develop
the dart system for such purposes, but suceess was never achieved, since a larger
amount of an incapacitating agent is required to safetly inactivate 2 human than
of a lethal agent required to kill bim.

Work was also done by or for the Agency in the development of materials for
sabotage of various materials and faeilities, This is clearly related to the Agen-
cy’s mission, Discussions with those involved indicate that hand-launchers with .

darts loaded with dog incapacitant were delivered for use in Sou Asia.
o%mmm»wb
gence collection, The compound was guarded by wateh dogs which made entry

ifficult even when it was emply. Darts were delivered for ihe operation bt
wemme some meat treated with dog incapacitant
which was offered by the entry team. Our records indicate that gome of these
materials were prepared for one operation, but we are aware that that operation
was not in fact completed. Beyond these, however, no record can be found that
these materials or devices were used for lethal operational purposes.

By the late 1960s, a variety of BW agents and toxins were ma.intgined by
S0D for possible Agency use. Varying amounts of these materials ranging from
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100 grams (aboyt 3.5 ounces) to 100 milligrams (about 3 thousandths of an
ounce) were maintained. Though specific accounting for each agent on the list
is not on hand, De_partment of Defense records indicate that the materials were
in fact destroyed in 1970 by S0D personnel, except for the 11 grams of a sub-
stance in small medical bottles labelled shellfish toxin, (plus the 8 milligrams of
cobra, venog.n) which were found on 20 May of this year.

At the time the toxin was found the officer responsible for the project in 1970
stated he hagi no recollection as to how it got there. On 30 June, discussions
were held with the retired Agency officer who had provided the initial lead.
This man, who had been the GS-15 branch chief in 1970, stated that the toxin
had in fact been moved from Fort Detrick and stored in the laboratory. This
wag done on the basis of his own decision after conversations with the responsible
project officer. He further stated that he made this decision based on the fact that
the cost and difficulty of isclating the shellfish toxin were so great that it simply
made no sense to destroy it, particularly when there would be no future source
of the toxin. The current branch chief believes this explanation is correct but
still does not regall the actual act of receiving the material from Fort Detrick.
Both _of these middle-grade officers agree that no one, including their immediate
superior, was told of the retention of the shellfish toxin.

'I:he former branch chief recails that subsequent to the delivery of the shellfish
toxin to‘ CIA, he was told by his chief to inform Fort Detrick personaliy that
destruction of CIA materials should take place. He @id so but did not include
the shellfish toxin, then in CIA hands, in his instructions.

Dl'scussgons with Mr. Helms, Director of Central Intelligence and Mr. Thomas
Karamessines, the Deputy Director for Plans in 1970, have established that both
‘were aware of the_ requirement that such material be disposed of. They recail
that c¢lear instructions were given that the CIA stockpile should be destroyed
by the Army and that, in accordance with Presidential directives, the Agency
shou;d get out of the BW business. .

‘With the discovery of the shellfish toxin, a complete inventory of the vault in
wh.uﬂ:x_ it was foqnd wag taken, The inventory consisted of a stock of various
mteqﬂs a‘nd delivery systems accumulated over the years, including other lethal
materials, mcapa‘ei_tant-s, nareoties, hallucinogenic drugs, irritants and riot con-
trol agents, herbicides, animal control materials, and many common chemieals.
The smail size of the vault, about 8 by 10 feet, and the few shelves limit the
extent of tlu_s stockpile, The materials are for the most part the residue of a
number of different CIA programs. These involved CIA’s effort to keep a close
watch on emerging techmology-—in this case pharmaceutical technology—to

. ensure tha]‘: we q,ld not encounter an unanticipated threat from hostile intelli-
gente services with which we could not contend. We also wished to capitalize
on new advances which should substantially assist us in our efforts to coilect
foreign intelligence or in a wartime sitnation. The narcotics in storage related
to ClA’s overseas efforts to collect intelligence in the narcotics trade, to help in
countering it. We have also supplied tear gas and mace to our officers overseas
for uge in defensive situntions where firearms would not be appropriate.

The thrgat as well as the promise posed by newer types of drugs, particularly
the ha.‘}lumnogemc drugs, made at least exploratory research on them essential.
You 13\7111 Tecall our concern over the possible role of drugs in the apparent brain-
washing of American POW’'s in Xorea, and the haunted eyes of Cardinal
Mindzenty as he “confessed” at a Communist trial. I might add that we believe
that a drug ‘was administered to one of our officers overseas by a foreien intelli-
gence service within the past year. Those responsible for providing technical
.suppox:t to clandestine operations felt it necessary that they understand the ways
in which these druge could be used, their effecty and their vulnerabilities to
counterme_sasures. In pursuing such concerns as these, many different materials
were obtained and stored for provision to contractors who did the actual scientific
research involved. This concern also led to the experiments which led to the
onfortenate death in 1953 of Mr. Frank Olson.

. I!J. this regard, €IA does very little in-house research. Our laboratories are
limited and are principally used to test developed equipment and to tailor it
for gpecific operational uses through concealment or special packaging, We do
not have, nor have we had, the facilities to produce or experiment with such
lethal materials as the shellfish toxin. For example, we relied upoh Fort Detrick
incapaditant. similaT 100, we relied on other T ctors

SHP in other fields. Most of the materialy held in storage in the vault
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were kept there for possible issuance to contractors engaged in various kinds
of research.

One of the major results of these investigations of the CIA has been to
jmpress upon our employees and all of us involved in intelligence the fact that
decisions abouf our programs must be made in the light of today’s world. As you
are aware in mid-1973 we tried to identify all questionable activities. We did
so for what I believe to be most of them, and issued internal directives to ensure
that GTA remain within the bounds of l1aw. Repeated emphasis on the importance
of this did lead to the identification of our association with Fort Detrick as an
activity to be reviewed before we were aware that one of its products had been
improperly sequestered.

The controls involved in the shellfish case seem to have existed but not to have
been applied. The controls that would have prevented or discovered this act were
prineipally those which are the kind of management we must have for the intelli-
gence business. T am confident that this management will exist as a result of
the changes we are making in our approach to intelligence, to ensure jts con-
formity with American values and standards. These will include a better public
appreciation of modern intelligence, better guidelines for its proper activities and
better supervision externally to stimulate better supervision internally. With
these, I am confident that such episodes as the shellfish foxin will not be repeated.

The CmamrmaN. Thank you, Mr. Colby. Mr. Schwarz, our chief
counsel, will commenece our questioning. .

Mr. Scewarz. Mr. Chairman, I only have three areas of questioning
that relate to ma,rkin% three documents. .
/' Mz. Colby, at the bottom of page 4 of your statement and running
over to page 5, you refer to a project approval memo of 1967, and state
that that identified the functional categories of project activity. Would
you turn to exhibit 6,* the document dated October 18, 1967 ; subject,
“MERNAOMI, Funding Objectives and Accomplishments.”

Is that the source that you were referring to®

Mr. Corey. Yes, it is. .
Mr. Scawarz. Would you read into the record, Mr. Colby, the four
items “a” through “d” under the heading “Objectives in the Exhibit,”

please?
Mr. Corny. The objectives:
a. To provide for a covert support bage to meet clandestine operational re-

quirements; b. to-atoekpile severely incapacitating and lethal materials for the
specific use of TSD; e. to maintain in operational readiness special and unique
ifgems for the dissemination of biological and chemical materials; and d. to pro-

mw::@ testing, upgrading and evaluation of materials
and items, in order t0 Assure abséncs ol deiects and complete predictability of
results to be expected under operational eonditions.

Mr. Scuwarz. There are some differences between that and what

- you had in your statement; and in particular, Mr. Colby, there is no

mention of defensive purposes, is there?

Mr. Cory. No. But I think the overall purpose was both for offen-
sive and defensive.

Mr. Scawarz. In addition to the shellfish toxin, Mr. Colby, as you
identified in your statement, you found other materials in the lab.
Would you turn to exhibit 22 which is an inventory prepared from
the CIA’s inventory, furnished to us, of all of the lethal and incapaci-
tating agents found in the building. Do you accept it as that?

Mr. Corex. 1 do.

Mr. Scawarz. There are items on it, are there not, in addition to the
shellfish toxin?

Mr. Corey. There are indeed.

1 Sea p. 204.
4 8ea D, 192,
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Mr. Scawarz. And there are lethal items which are in violation of
the Presidential order in addition to the shellfish toxin, are there not?
" Mr. Corey. I think that gets into a technical question about whether
they are technically in violation or not. But they are certainly lethal,
and I think that it is certainly appropriate to say that we have no
need for this type of thing at this time.

Mr. Scawarz. All right,

Now, as the footnote on exhibit 27 indicates, prior to the transfer
of the material from Fort Detrick in February 1970, the CIA had in
its laboratory already half a gram of the material, did it not?

%r. gOLBY. Yes.

1. Scawarz, Finally, Mr. Colby, I would like to rea ou from

the President’s order of February 1@2:’197 0 [exhibit 5 "ie dtoy
o de existing toxin weap-

gseareh program,

ons,..and -of-a. FaYea rac e A K
for defensive purposes only.
You agrw
'ee, d ention g shellfish toxin, and
probably cert. other materials, viglat t order? ’
1. Cony. I think it uantity which certainly is excessive

VIr. SCHWAREZ. , in fact, no research was done on it after it was
delivered to the CTA facilities. Ts that right?

Mr. Corey. Right.
. g;'. ?SCHWARZ. And, in fact, it was not for defensive purposes only,
[4 “—-_—-__-_‘_-—-_—'_—.-‘-”\-—__-____‘
Mr. Corey. Wthjnk you can say it, although some of it
might have been for the 186 6f A agentTora sglci&e ill. g o
%gi %oﬂvéﬂz. I ha.ﬁa nos farther questions, Mr. Chairman. '
nator CeurcH. Mr. Smothers, d h
quﬁestmns? - , do you have any supplemental
r. Smorarrs. Yes. Maybe we could clarify the point that the chief
counsel just raised. Mr. Colby, could you be more clear on the respon-
sibility of the people who are involved with these toxins? Do their
jobs relate to any operational needs of the Agency?
Aﬁréhgofﬁf'i:gﬁné they %Jgﬁcegegi it as a potential operational need.
at one of the ion;
'bhiii is,S-the by xins was used on an actual operation;
AT, SMOTHERS. Were these persons involved in any decisionmaking
with regard to the use and implementation of these ilaterials? °
Mr. Corpy. No. This was a section of a technical support division
which did the research and development of the capahility. It would
then be turned over to one of the other elements of the Agency for
the acttéa,l operation.

MOTHERS. In the course of their duties, would these persons
ga,vga Islt;ad télp opportunity to employ these substances in any Ililanner
: ﬁzge ¢ ?m ividuals or targets, if you will, that they might have

Mr. Corry. I do not quite understand the question.

b Mr. Smormers. The scientists we are talking about—would they
; }?,:eimgl the tgpl()ioztum-_ty in the normal course of their duties with
o . . : .
el ygedﬂ ¥ etermine how thesje materials might in fact be

1Sea p, 192,
3 See p. 202,
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Mr. Cotpy. Oh, they would certainly conduct experiments at Fort
Detrick in various forms, but not on people.

Mr. SyormERs. Would they be responsible for any employment of
these materials beyond experimentation in a laboratory ? )

Mr. Corey. Generally, no, although they would probably participate
to some degree in the detailed planning of an operation. This will vary
from operation to operation. Some operations cannot be established
without a very close relationship between the technical people and the
operational people. In other cases, the technical people can merely
furnish the device, and there is sufficient explanation as to how to use
it that they do not need to be informed of the details of the actual
operation.

Mr. Syorrers. To the best of your knowledge, either during the time
of your tenure of that of previous Directors, was there any effort made
by any of these persons who had knowledge of the toxins either to
urge employment of them or to seek in some manner to use them
against persons, or to use them in nonexperimental manner ?

Mr. Corey. There were various suggestions made over time, yes. As
a matter of fact, I had a job at one time when the idea was proposed to
me, and I turned it down.

Mr. SmoreEers. Yes; but was it proposed by these persons who had
knowledge of the toxins? :

Mr. Cotey. It was proposed by an expert. It was not a toxin in that
case, but it was a very similar chemical. He was offering a capability,
trying to see whether we were interested in using it.

Ii/.[r. SmoruErs. How many people work in this laboratory, Mr.
Colby ¢

Mly Corey. This particular laboratory was really a storeroom in
recent years, and it i1s a very small room. The people who had access
to it were only the chief and deputy chief and the secretary of that

- particular section, except that some additional people would some-

times visit it. But it is in the neighborhood of nine, something like that,
in that particular branch.

Mr. Smoruzrs. Now, in addition to the lethal substances indicated
on the inventory of exhibit 2,* were there not, in fact, other substances
and materials kept in this storage area ? "

Mr. Cousy. Yes, there are a number of other materials, and I tried
to refer to that in my statement.

Mr. SmoreEers. Were some of those other materials such benign
substances as cough syrups and batteries and various kinds of things
that sclentists may indeed have inquired into from time to time for a
variety of Agency purposes?

Mr. Corey. Well, it was a storeroom in which various kinds of things
were there. It was not restricted to the lethal business. There were lots
of different things in there, and a lot of very simple, ordinary prod-
ucts were in there, {oo,

Mr., SmoreErs. You menfioned the capability of the Agency with -
regard to this kind of technical or toxin research. Would this stor-
age facility and the nine people we have talked about here represent
a capability for the conducting or the maintaining of expertise with
regard to lethal substances?

1 8ee p, 192.
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Mr. Cormy, Well, the individuals would obviously be technically
qualified to discuss and advise with respect to the material in question.
But normally, the process by which CIA does its work in technical
flelds is by contract or by arrangement with someone else to do the
actual work, And our officers follow the contract, and receive the results
and evaluate the results, though this was not a working Jaboratory.
It was merely a storeroom which had some facilities in 1t. But these
officers—the actual experimentation, the actual research, was done In
Fort Detrick in this situation.

Mr. SmormERs. Finally, to the best of your knowledge, Mr. Colby,
as indicated by both your investigative eflorts and any other informa-
tion you may have, was any unauthorized use made of these materials
at any time since their storage in the facility in question ?

Mr. Corny. Not to our knowledge.

Mr. Smormers. Thank you. I have nothing further, Mr. Chairman.

The Crammax. Thank you, Mr. Smothers. Mr. Colby, in your tes-
timony, you emphasized that the amount of shellfish toxin, approxi-
mately 11 grams—a, little more than 11 grams—translated, represents
abott half 37 cunce. I think that since it comes in a small container,

we ought to better understand the potency of this particular toxin.

Earlier in the week, we had testimony from Carl Duckett of your
Agency, and he told us that 1mmwﬁmngeﬁ
@%Mﬁ—whie is one of the Jeast efficient ways for admin-
ismm_wmwwﬂl
&Q&&M;%%O,Pﬂ% it were administered wi € sophisticated
equipment that was found in the laboratory, that quentity would be
sufficient to kill a great many more. Estimates vary upward into the

undreds of thousands.
oW St question is, why did the Age ghellfish
towngjere is no particular anti ich attacksthe
nmisgit.eﬂgf_._nrm 1l ickly ? Why did the Agency
prewwmmm@nm
b ousands of people—what was the need for that in the first place,
ofig —before—the—P

residential order came down to destroy this

material ¢
Mr. Corey. I think the first part of the answer to that question,
Mr. Chairman, is the fact that the L-pill, which was developed during

World War 11, does take some timé k, and E_pam.cu]z:hrj%gq-
nizing to the subject who it. Some of the people who would be
nﬁfﬁifﬁl‘u@s@?ﬁ}ﬁ;abiﬁty for their own protection and
the protection of their fellow agents, really do not want to face that

kind of a fate. But if they could be given an instantaneous one, they
would accept that. And that was the thought process behind develop-

ing the capability.

w, I_cannot explain why that quantity was developed, except
that this was a collaboration that we were engaged m with the U.S.
Army, and we did d this parti e wou might or
pogsible use. When 1 unt that 1t did, it obviously

ibigproperly.
The Ceamyan. This quantity, and the various devices for admin-

istering the toxin which were found in the laboratory, certainly make
it clear that purely defensive uses were not what the Agency was lim-

ited to in any way. e were definite offensive uses. In fact, there
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were dart guns. You mentioned suicides. Well, I do not think icide

is usually accomplished with a dart i #—am%

the dart 1n 2 human heart jn such a way that he does not even know
. CoLBY. There is no question about it. It wag also for offensive_

reasons, No question about it.
[Tie CHAIRMAN. Hive you brought with you some of those devices
Wth{l gwould have enabled the CIA to use this poison for killing
people ?

r. Corex. We have, indeed.

The CramrMaw. Does this pistol fire the dart ?

Mr. Corey. Yes, it d@sﬁmm round thing at the top
is obviously the sight, the rest of it is what is practically a normal .45,
although 1t is a special. However, it works by electricity. There is a,
battery in the handle, and it fires a small dart.

The CHamMAN, So that when it fives, it fires silently ¢

Mr. Cousy. Almost silently;

The Caamrmarn, What range does it have ?

I\é[r. Corey. One hundred meters, I believe; about 100 yards, 100
meters.

The Cuammax. About 100 meters range ?

Mer. Corpy. Yes,

The Cramrman. And the dart itself, when it strikes the target, does
the target know that he has been hit and about to die?

Mr. Cousy. That depends, Mr. Chairman, on the particular dart
used. There are different kinds of these flechettes that were used in
various weapons systems, and a special one_was developed which po-
tentially would be able to enter the target W

TheTCaamrymaN. And did you find such darts in the laboratory?

Mr. Corsy. We did.

The Caamman. Is it not true, too, that the effort not only involved
designing a gun that could strike at a human target without knowledge
of the person who had been struck, but also the toxin i

a autopsy ?
r. Corey. We pt——

The Cramraran. Or the dart.

MI‘I;ICOLBY. Yes; so there was no way of perceiving that the targef;
was hit,

The Cramryran. As a murder instrument, that is about as efficient

as ef,isit not¥-
Mr. Corex. IT 1s 8 weapon, a Very serious weapon.

The Caamman. Going back to my earlier question, Mr. Colby, as to
the quantities of this toxin that had been prepared, can you conceive
of s.m%r use that the CIA could make of such quantities of shellfish
toximm ?

Mr. Cozey. I certainly can’t today, Mr. Chairman, in view of our
current policies and directives. .

The Cruamyan. Well, even at the time, certainly, the CIA was never
commissioned or empowered to conduct bacteriological warfare
againgt whole communities; and quantities of poison capable of de-
stroying up to the hundreds of thousands of lives—it seems to me to be
entirely inappropriarte for any possible use to which the CIA might
have put such poison.
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Mr. Covex. I think the ifact that we were jointly doing this with
the Army, Mr. Chairman, probably led into this kind of 2 quantitative
approach to it. But we were talking about a weapons system, and we
developed some of the material.

The Crammman, Well, who paid for the development of this toxin?
Mr. Corey. There wis & great deal of joint activity. particular
thing we paid .
) HARMAN. And is it not true that over the years this-prepara-
tion, which is a costly and lengthy distillation process, from ﬁ%aiai

u and, costs about, [Mion?
Mr. Corey. WeIL, not just this toxin, Mr. Chairman.

The Crareman. Well, development of guns of this kind.

Mr. Corey. The total program, from the years 1952 to 1970.-did
amount to that as a total. But in the later years of the sixties, this
dwindled down, as I indicated, to pretty much the maintenance of a
stockpile, and not any more development activity.

_ The Ceammax. In the later years, it was still costing the Agency
just for, the mai ceof g Kpile, about $(o,000 a year.

Mr. Corey. Yes; in collaboration with Fort Detrick, thas was the
sum that was involved.

The Cramman. Now, there is no question in your mind that Presi-
dential orders were issued directing the CILA to destroy these toxins, in
accordance with the national policy and treaty obligation assumed by
the United States that such substances would not be retained except

" for purely experimental laboratories and experimental purposes.

Mzr. Cowpy. I would like to destroy it. As you know, Mr. Chairman,
I must hold it for possible evidence here. I have also been approached
by some academic centers to have it transferred to some safe handling,
where it can be used in normal research activities, and no longer main-
tained by CIA. But they asked particularly that it not be destroyed,

. because of the difficulty in obtaining it for perfectly proper uses in

medical research. I would be delighted to concede with that, if the
committee agrees with it, and the other people who have a voice in it
agree with it.

The Cramman. But you are not suggesting by that that the CIA
retain poisons in this quantity for experimental purposes, are you?

Mr. Corey. No. But I think this was a little bit the mental processes
of the people who actually did retain it.

The Crarrman. During the 5-year period, no experiments were actu-
ally conducted?

Mr. Cozey. No, none. But I think the sense of it is it is very difficuit
to make, and therefore “let us not destroy it,” typified the mentality of
the people who decided to retain it against the directives given to them.

The Crarrman. And you are not suggesting that the retention of poi-
sons in these quantities did not, in fact, represent a violation of Presi-
dential directive?

Mr. Couny. I do not contest that, no.

The Craryax. Now, the committee will follow a 10-minute rule, so
that all members have fair opportunity to question the witnesses. My
10 minutes have expired, and I will turn now to Senator Tower.

Senator Tower. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Colby, are you cer-
tain that these materials that have been the subject of testimony, spe-
cifically shellfish toxin and the cobra venom, currently retain their orig-
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inal potency? Is there a chance that over the passage of time their
potency has in any way deteriorated ? ]

Mr. Corey. Senator Tower, I am really not enough of a technical ex-
pert to answer that.

Mzr. Stevexns. It is possibie but unlikely.

Mr. Corey. It is possible but unlikely.

Mr. Stevens. That they have lost——

Mr. Covsy. That they have lost some of their potency.

Senator Tower. Mr. Colby, turning to the dart gun, was it ever-em-
ployed for any purpose by the Agency?

Mr. Corey. 1 think merely experiments, Senator Tower. I do not
know of any actual use. There is no record of any actual use.

Senator Towsr. No actual operational use of it at all?

Mr. Corey. No. .

Senator Towsr. Prior to the discovery of the substances this summer,
did anyone in the Agency know of the actual quantities on hand?

Mr. Corey. We did not, even really know that we had any quantities.

Senator Towsr. You did not even know that you had any on hand ?

Mr. Corey. No, although the individual who kept them obviously
knew that there were some there.

Senator Tower. Now have you in fact merely accepted the assertion
that the substances are in fact poison? Have you conducted any test-
ing to really identify these substances to make sure that they are the
substances described here?

Mr. Corer. No, we have not tested them. We have rested upon the
labels on them and the other records indicating that that kind of a
program did exist. _

Senator Towsr. The only thing you have to go by are the labels and
the records?

Mr. Coupy. And the testimony of some of our people.

Senator Towrk. And the testimony. But there has been no test to
make sure, in fact.

Mr. Corey. There has not been, Senator Tower, I did not want to
risk letting the material out of our hands for a while.

Senator Tower. In trying to locate and identify these materials that
have been described, don’t you think discretion would dictate that
you should make sure that you have indeed located these materials?

Mr. Corex. Well, I think we have enough to alert us to the need to
do something about these materials. Whatever they are, they are la-
beled. The people say that they recall having sequestered them as that
kind of material. And I think that we want to make sure that we are
handling this case in the proper form and not being subject to a pos-
sible problem of having destroyed them by mistake or anything of
that nature.

Senator Townr, At the time of the Presidential order in 1970, did
the Agency have responsibility for custody of anything other than
laboratory samples of toxins of various types?

Mr. Corey. Well, we had, as I said, Senator Tower, the actual
need in some of our operations for some kinds of chemicals overseas,
and I think a legitimate need for a lethal substance certainly for de-
fensive, if not for offensive, purposes.

Senator Tower. Were they not in fact stored at Fort Detrick?

Mr. Corny. They were indeed stored at Fort Detrick.
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Senator Towzr. They were not in your actual possession.

Mr. Cozey. I believe first there %as a very ¢P;n:xall amount brought
down to CIA before the 1970 move. But the main depository was
certainly at Fort Detrick.

Senator Towsr, Thank you, Mr. Colby.

Mr. Corey. Thank you, Senator.

The Cramrman. Before I turn to Senator Mondale, I want to observe
that Senator Hart of Michigan, who has been a very valued member
of this committee, cannot be with us today because he is presently
hospitalized. And T just want to express the regrets of the commit-
tee that he cannot be here to participate in this hearing because he
has been of great service. And we hope that he will soon return to
the commitiee table. :

Senator Tower. Mr. Chairman, if you would yield, let me second
your remarks and associate myself with them. Senator Hart has been
a valued member of the committee and we hope he has a speedy
recovery.

The Crarraran. Thank you. Senator Mondale.

Senator Mowpare. Mr. Colby, in your opening statement you ob-
served that the Agency which you head must operate in 2 secret envi-
ronment. I think most of us would accept that fundamental concession
and serious concession in a society which is based upon the theory
that the American people must know what is going on. But what
troubles me is that this record seems to disclose an additional con-
cession, namely, the lack of accountability, so that we not only have

- @ secret agency, but we have an agency about which there is some
-question as to 1ts accountability to the authority of the President or

to the authority of the National Security Council. The record seems
to disclose that there is no Presidential or National Security Council
oi'daalr in the first place directing the CIA to establich this program
atall. .
.. Second, there appears to be no report by the CIA to higher author-
ity of the existence of these toxins or biological weapons.

Th_}rd, !;here seems to be no evidence that those in charge of the
CIA inquired of subordinates as to the existence of toxins or biologi-

cal weapons, or that following the Presidential order decreeing de- -

struction of such toxins, that any formal order went forth within
the CIA to require their destruction.

Moreover, the record seems to support the notion that it was only
by chance that the leadership of the CIA became aware some ¥ears
later of even the existence of these Tethal toxins, which were in viola-
tion of a direct Presidential order.

In short, the record is a mess and we may never know just exactly
what happened. Does it bother you that this kind of record could be
available to us and should exist in something as serious as this?

Mr. Corey. It certainly does, Senator Mondale. And I think we
have taken some steps to try to overcome that problem. I think that the
existence of the program did stem from the World War IT experience
and the fact of the Technical Services Division having a role of sup-
port for our intelligence activities was reported to various super-
visory committees of the time.
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I do not think there is any great detail on that in line with the
standards of those times. But I think there is no indication that the
Agency wanted to defy a Presidential order. There is an indication that
the suggestion was made to the Agency management or to some level
of it that the material be maintained. But there is no indication that
that was approved. There is an indication that the Presidential in-
struction was passed down the line to the various elements of the Agen-
cy- And I think that there are steps that we are taking to prevent this
kind of thing happening.

The reason we found out about this was precisely because of the
reiterated demands and directives that I issued that we be informed of
anything questionable in the Agency’s past, that it is precisely this
kind of detailed supervision and management that we have to have,
and I think that we now have and T think that we will have.

Senator Moxpare. Why would it be that after an exhaustive study
of this matter by the committee and by your own Agency, we cannot
find a single order of any kind inquiring as to the existence of toxins
or biological weapons, any order requiring their destruction follow-
ing the Presidential directive at all? Not a single document exists. Why
would that be?

Mr. Corey. Well, the theory of the intelligence operations in the
fifties—and that gradually has changed—but at that time, clearly those
matters were not made in a great deal of record. There was some severa
compartmentation of semsitive matters, things of this nature. This,
then, reduced the amount of recordkeeping, the amount of involvement
of other people in sensitive activities, and you reduced it down to a
very small group who knew anything about it.

I think this then explains the difficulty today of reconstructing some
of these matters.

Senator Moxpace. But it also apparently created situations whera
the Agency, or someone in the Agency, pursued a course which violated
a fundamental order of the President of the United States and the.
spirit of a solemn international convention against biological and toxic
warfare.

Mr. Corey. There is no question about it that a middle-grade officer
made a decision which was wrong. :

Senator Monpare. The trouble is we have seen this same phenom-
onon with respect to other matters that are not before us today, where,
if something happened, people at the top did not know about it, or
clainy they lnew about it and said it shouldn’ happen. Then someone
lower did it, claiming higher authority, not knowing who, no docu-
mentation. So, as we seek to reach the issue of accountability in a secret
agency, we are left repeatedly with a record which is utterly beyond
understanding. And I wonder if that does not go to questions of man-
agement and control and Presidential authority in a profound way, as
this record discloses.

Mr. Corey. I think it goes to a question of the cultural pattern of
intelligence activities and the traditions, the old traditions of how they
were conducted. And those are being changed in America and I for one
am glad they are.

Senator MowparE. Thank'you very much, Mr: Chairman. ~_

The Cramrman. Thank you, Senator Mondale. Senator Baker.
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Senator Baxer. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much, Before T di-
rect 2 few questions to Mr. Colby, I have a brief statement I would
like to make with respect to these hearings. They will come as Ro sur-
prise to you, Mr. Chairman, nor to you, Mr. Vice Chairman, that 1
think we are making a mistake. I think that we should have started
public hearings at the very outset and gone fully into the question of
assassinations or whatever else might legitimately come before this
comimittes in the scope of its inquiry. I do not think, Mr. Chalrman,
Mr. Vice Chairman, that we ought to have an interim report, for in-
stance, on assassinations, because I think it tends to segregate and to
emphasize a particular area of our inquiry out of perspective to the
totality of the inguiry. )

Having said that, Mr. Chairman, I also want to say that 1 admire
you and Senator Tower for the diligence of your effort in bringing us
to this point. I do not criticize you for the decision that has been made
by a majority of the committee. I simply want to register my
disagreement.

I thirk that particularly on a matter of this sensitivity that has
received this much public attention, that if the country is not fully
informed, if we do not have a public forum from which they can gain
the information they require to make their judgment, that no judg-
ment we malke for them will be adequate,

Therefore, I think, Mr. Chairman, that the committee ought to re-
consider its determination to conduct its inquiry on assassinations or
any other aspect of this matter in secret, in executive session, that we
ought to reconsider the matter of filing an interim report, and instead
we should have public hearings and forebear an interim report so we

have a full report and that the country would then be well served in’

accordance with rights to know. Having said that, Mr. Chairman, I do
have a few questions I would like to put to Mr. Colby.

The CHATRMAN. Very well.

Senator Baxer. Mr, Colby, it is clear fo me from the evidence at hand
that somebody authorized the formulation, the development and the
retention of these toxic materials. Can you tell me who did it#

Mr. Cozey. The development, the research and development, I think,
was begun in the sixties, the early sixties. I cannot tell you specifically
who authorized it.

Senator Bager. Is there a record that would tell us who did it?

Mr. Corey. The records are very incomplete, as you know, sir.

Senator Bager. Why are they incomplete?

Mr. Corny. Some of them apparently have been destroyed.

Senator Baxrr. De yonknow who destroyed them ¢

Mr. Corsx. I do. I have a Teport that one set was destroyed by the
Chief of the Division in question before his retirement.

Senator BaxEr. Do you know who that was?

Mr. Corey. Mr. Gottlieb.

Senator Baxzr. Igthat Mr. Sidney Gottlieb ¢

Mr. Conay. Yes.

Senator Bager. What was his title at the time ¢

Mr. Corey. He was Chief of the Technigal Services Division.

Senator Baxer. Have you interviewed Mr. Gottlieb?

Mr. Corey. I have not.
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Senator Baxzr. Has anyone at the Agency interviewed Mr. Gottlieb
as to why these records were destroyed ? .

Mr. Corry. There is 2 memorandum in the Agency between the Di-
rector and Mr. Gottlieb at that time.

Senator Bagzer. What does that mean ? Does that mean yes they have
or no they haven’t?

Mr. Corry. That they were destroyed explaining—--

Senator Baxer. What I am asking you is, do you know—has anyone
at the Agency interviewed Gottlieb as to why the material was
destroyed ¢

Mr. Corey. We have had one contact with Mr. Gottlieb in recent
days. We have pretty much

Senator Baxer. Is it true that Gottlieb was at the Agency at Lang-
ley just a few days ago, going through his records and other material
out there? ‘

Mr. Cousy. He was.

Senator Baxer. And did somebody at that time say, “What was it you
destroyed, Sidney #” or “how come you did it#”

Mr. Corry. Senator, we have taken the position with this committee,
as we have with the other committees ang with the Rockefeller Com-
mission, that we would not go outside the current employees of the
Agency to try to run down these stories. We did not want to be sub-
jected to a possible charge that we were somehow cooking their testi-
mony. And, as 2 result, we have restricted our connections with these
people to providing them the information that they had while they
were in the Agency.

Senator Baxer. I am not trying to press you, but the way I interpret
the totality of those remarks is that no one has interviewed Gottlieb
as todwhy he destroyed the material or what they contained—ithe
records.

Mr. Corry. No, we have not interviewed him as to the reason.

Senator Baxzr. Do you know what documents he destroyed

Mz. Corey. We are very unsure as to the total. We do not have an
inventory of it.

Senator Baxxr. Do you think they might have said who authorized
the formulation or the retention of this stuff ¢ Do you have any reason.
to think it might or might not contain that information ?

Mr. Cozey. In this case, I doubt it would have very much, because
this case, from the evidence we have at hand

Senator Baxzr. Does it say-anything or have any reason to indicate
that it might say how, if at all, this material was used in an aggressive
way against someone to kill someone?

Mr. Corrx. Well, there may well be some of that in the material.

Senator Baxer. When was the documentation destroyed ?

Mzr. Corsy. Tn 1973, }

Sepator Bagzr. It did not happen to be destroyed at the same time
as those tapes that the CIA destroyed ?

Mr. Corer. Iwi_@.

Senator Baxer. In 1972. When in 1972¢

Mr, Corey. November, I beligve it was,

Serator Bager. In November of 1972. Do you have any idea what
volume of records were destroyed ?

Mr. Corey. I donot know.
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Seﬁa,gor Bagzr. Do you know who authorized the destruction, if
anyone ?

Mr. Corny. AsTsaid, there was a memorandum of agreement between
the Director and Mr. Gottlieb at that time.

Senator BAxER. And the Director at that time was?

Mr. Corex. Mr, Helms.

Senator Bazxer. Mr. Helms is here in this room, I believe, Mr. Chair-
man, and I take it we will have an opportunity to hear from him?

. The Cuamman. Mr. Helms will be our witness at tomorrow morn-
ing’s hearings. I believe he is the leadoff witness.

Senator Baxer. I will not prolong my opportunity to examine
the witness much longer, Mr. Chairman. I understand we are going
to try to operate under the 10-minute rule.

May I ask you only this further question, then, in general, Mr.
Colby? You have heard of the doctrine of plausible deniability

Mr. Corey. Yes, and I have rejected it now, Senator. I say we cannot
degend upon that any more.

enator Baxzr, The guestion I was going te put to you—is that
8 phrase of art in the intelligence community % Does if have a separate
significance that you understand ?

M. Corey. It was a rationale used in earlier years.

Senator Baxer. What does it mean ?

Mr. Coreyx. If the United States could deny something and not be
clearly demonstrated as having said something falsely, then the United
States could do so.

Senator Baxer, In the case of assassinations, In the case of any
other—of domestic surveillance, in the case of the formulation of poi-
sons, under that previous rationale, would the doctrine of plausible de-
niability have led the Ageney to destroy records o conceal evidence or
to compartmentalize to the point that it would be—that a committee
such as this later would have been unable to establish what really
happened ?

\r, Cora. X think the plausible denial concept was used in the sense
of international diplomatic relationships, that our country

Senator Baxer. Are you saying by that it would not have applied
to the formulation of toxic materials?

Mzr. Corry. I would not say it did not have anything to do with it
at all, but I think that the basic rationale for the doctrine of plausible
%ema] was so our Nation could deny something and not be tagged with
it.

Senator Baxur. Senator Mondale pointed out that in another area
which is not being covered here—T take it he meant assassinations—
and an area that I think should be covered here—that we run up
a%;a.mst a stone wall, that we get so far and leads get fuzzy. You know
what we are driving at. You are familiar with our record so far.

Mr. Corzey. I have the same problem.

Senator Baxer. Without going into that, is that an application of
the doctrine of plausible deniability ?

Mr. Couwny. Noj; X do not think so. I do not think that would apply
to internal records. Plansible denial would be to one’s posture vis-a-vis
some foreign nation. That is the basic rationale behind it. It does not
have dznything to do with the keeping or nonkeeping of internal
records.
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Senator Baker, Mr. Chairman, I am a little beyond the scope of this
inquiry here, but not much and not for that primary purpose. You
are familiar, I take it, with the Ynspector General’s report on the
assassination situation ?

Mzr. CoLex. Yes. .

Senator Baxer. As I recall, the first few sentences in that report dealt
with the difficulty of reconstructing, finding records, and dealt gen-
erally with the question of plausible deniability. Are you familiar with
the language 1 am referring to?

Mz, Corey. I believe so.

Senator Baxer. Is that the sort of thing that would prevent us from
finding records of responsibility and causal connection to this matter
of the formulation and retention or the failure to destroy toxic mate-
rials?

Mr. Corpy. The effect of it would, but the purpose of the doctrine was
certainly not to deprive our Government of any knowledge about our
Government’s own activities.

Senator Baxer. But it had that effect?

Mr. Corey. 1t conld have that effect.

Senator Baxer, Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cuamuan. Thank you, Senator Baker. Senator Huddleston.

Senator Huppreston, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Colby, first,
I would like to commend you for the forthright way that you have
dealt with this committee. In my judgment, you have made every
effort to provide us with the information we needed and have adopted
the policy on your own that certainly would tend to eliminate many
of the alleged abuses and apparent abuses that occurred in recent years.

1 would also reiterate what you said in your own statement, that these
particular hearings, this series on biological warfare and toxins, should
not be considered as typical of the operation of the CIA, nor should it
be considered as unique or unusual. It is simply one piece of a giant
jigsaw puzzle that, until we see more of the entire picture, we will have
2 hard time assessing the total operation.

Mr. Coiex, Thank you, Senator. .

Senator Huppreston. I would like to refer you to a memorandum
[exhibit 1], that was purported to have been prepared by Thomas IH.
Karamessines, who at the time was Deputy Director for Plans of the
Central Intelligence Agency, directed to the Director of CIA at that
time. I understand that this memorandum was not signed by Mr.
Karamessines, that the person to whom it was directed indicated that
he did not, in fact, see if.

However, it sets out very specifically the situation at that time, in
1970, following the President’s order to eliminate our activity in bac-
teriological and toxin warfare. As a matter of fact—let us go through
it very briefly.

In the first paragraph it calls sttention to the President’s order in
November 1969, which was to eliminate this program. In the second
paragraph, it points out the President’s clarification in January of
1970, to state very specifically that this order did, in fact, apply to the
CIA. Then, in the third paragraph, it goes on to say, to point out, that
the CIA did have at Fort Detrick certain supplies. It then says that
this stockpile did not appear on the inventory hist.

1 See p. 189,
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Now, does that not indicate to you a specific knowledge on the part
of this individual, at least, that the CTA was in violation of the Presi-
dent’s order?

Mr. Corex. WMeemirﬂaidiuua[t;esr@&tﬁmmmM by CIA
did not. appear-on the Fort Detrick List. 'That is certainly so. In that
respect,ét-cert inly ndi 1éss of President Nixon's directive.

Senator HuppresToN. And that this invenfory should havebeen-in-
cluded so that the Army could proceed with its plan of destruction, as
it had been ordered to do?

Mr. Corsy. I think there is that implication, that it should have
appeared.

Senator Huovoresron. Further, then, in paragraph 5, this memo-
randum suggested that if the Director wishes to continue this special

capability—now, does that not th might
want, : 3 i ?

Mr. Corey. It cerfainly gave an optio that particular order
wo owed, Now, that does not indicate that the Diréctor

would necessarily do that without consunltation with the President.
Senator HupprestoxN. I recognize that. But someone in the Depart-
ment, either Mr. Karamessines or his deputy or someone, was suggest-
g this as an option.
Mr. Cousy. I think the originator of the particular draft memo-
randum is one of your witnesses, and there is no indication of the level
to which the memorandum got beyond him, although it is clear that

Mr, Karamessines id not sign it
Senator Hupprestor. Kxcept that what he suggested did, in fact,

ta, lace.

?%I'.BUBITEY. Yes; thait is right. Tt in fiact took place, according to his
account, by his own decision, in violation of the directives he was
given.

Senator HuppresToN. Qne more sentence in paragraph 5, “Ar-
rangements have been made for this contingency.” Does that indicate
that someone in the Agency had already taken action or had made
arrangements to gpecifically violate the order of the President of the
United States?

Mr. Coury. They had arranged for the possible transfer of the
materials to a research center, a private research center, in Baltimore.
That was what that “Arrangements have been made” referred to.

Senater Huppreston. Buf the memorandum had already indicated
that they recognized that is in violation of the President’s order.

Mr. Corey. A _contingency that, if the Director approved, it would
be done. And it of course Wasno ¢ 10 ephirthe 4

itse]fe

enator Huppreston. Now, that memorandum also lists an inven-
tory, I presume at that time, which differs somewhat from the inven-
tory that you have submitted from the material that has recently
been located. Is that correct ?

Mr. Corexy. Yes, there are some differences in it. I think a number
of those items were actually included in the destruction by Forl
Detrick.

Senator HuooLestoN. Do you know who made the decision and why
he selected certain items to retain illegally and allowed certain items
to be destroyed ?
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Mr. Corey. The only one C ;
violation of { Of the remaining material, some of it was
not included within the directive and some was and was destroyed. So
the story, as we can reconstruct it today, is that this certain officer
wanted to save this material because it was very valuable.

Senator Huopreston. Mr. Colby, it has already been established that
the cost of this research work and development was in the neighbor-
hood of $3 million,

Mr. Corry. I would not apply that only to the shellfish but to the
total activity.

Senator Hooprestor. You indicated that, as far as you know, there
has been only one application, and that was Francis Gary Powers, the
T-2 pilot.

ME Corpy. Well, of course, that wasn’t an application either. There
were certain other sitnations in which clearly some consideration was
given to analogous material, if not this material.

Senator HuppLesToN. Are you saying, for $3 million we supplied
one U-2 pilot with a device with which he might do away with his own

‘life, which he decided not to use, a decision I would say was very wise

on his part, personally. Is that correct ?

Mr. Corex. No. I think that is not quite correct, Senator Huddleston.
The $3 million refers to the whole activity and includes the research
and the stockpiling, not only of this particular material, but of other
materials. And I indicated some of the other materials have been used
on other operations, the guard dogs and things of that nature.

Senator HuppresTon. Now, most of the material there, the toxic
material, was applied by some sort of injection. Consequently, you
developed the dart guns and drill bits that you put in silver dollars
and whatever. Was there also material there that would be admin-
istered in gome other way?

Mr. Corey. Oh, yes; there were various ways you could administer
various of these materials, no question about it, both orally and under
some kind of a guise and so forth.

Senator Huvpreston. And what devices were prepared for that kind
of administration ?

Mr. Corpy. It was really rather the development—to see what the
effect of putting the particular materiai into another substance, what
chemical reactions and stabilities were.

_ Senator Hunprestoxn. Now, the EBWMMM
rials that were held at Fort Detrick included an sgent that. I presume,
wagdesigned to induce tubercnlosis. ‘

Is thaf correct ?

Mr. Corpy. Yes-There is that capability,

. Senator Huobreston. What application would be made of that par-
ticular agent?

Mr. Corsy. It is obviously to induce tuberculosis in a subject that
you want to Induce it in.

Senator Hupprestox. For what purpose ¢

Mr. Corey. We know of no application ever being done with it, but

the idea of gimg%mogmigﬂtimdar disease is obviously the
thought process behind thi
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Senator Huopreston. You mentioned earlier in your testimony that
the primary purpose for collecting this material was to induce a
temporary situation to prevent harm?

Mr. Couny. That certainly does not apply to the lethal agents.

Senator HoooresTton. I would not thank it did.

Mr. Corey. No. .

Senator Hupprpston. What . 3 are trying
to eradicate in Kentucky. It affects cattle. That was also on the mven-
tofy. What wa: nurpose of that?

r. Corey. I think we were talking about an experiment. We were
talking about what its capabilities were, what its properties were, what
the reactions were, and so forth. I do not think anyone had %one down
the trail to a particular use, a particular purpose there. They were
dealing as scientists with the different materials available to them.

Sengtor FupbrestoN. Was this at the direction of the CIA to de-

velop this or for scientists just looking around trying to find out?

Mr. Corey. These were CIA officers who were responsible for keep-
ing up with the state of the art in various kinds of technical and
pharmaceutical areas to see what applications might be appropriate
for intelligence-related purposes. ) .

Senator Huppreston. Thank you, I believe my time has expired,
Mr. Chairman.

The Cmammaw. Thank you, Senator Huddleston. Senator Gold-
water.

Senator Gorpwater. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I only have one
question, Mr. Colby, but I have 2 short statement I would like to make
to you.

riticism and analysis are important ingredients in making our
democracy work, However, we are now a}i roaching the point where
both are being abused to the point of self-destruction. I submit we
must get out of the morass of doubt and pessimism into which we have
sunk. We must not let the quarrels of the past interfere with building
for the future. A tidal wave of criticism has swept over the intelligence
community of our country, much of which is mistaken or unwarranted.
The dama%e is severe. If continued, its survival is uncertain. )

Before this committee have appeared men of the CTA, both on active
duty and retired. All have been impressive because of their dedication
and loyalty. Nothing we have heard detracts from the reputation of
the CIA as a highly competent organization. The men and women of
the CIA are doing a great job under very trying conditions. .

And T say to them, as our Nation gets back on course, I believe there
will be change for the better. T ask you to hold on until that happens.
You were never more needed by this country than right now. And, as
one American, I am proud of you.

To those young people who may be looking for careers and who have
a desire for public service, I can think of no better way to serve your
Nation than as an intelligence officer. Many skills are required to keep
the CIA a useful and productive organization, and continuity is vital
to America. -

Now, Mr. Colby—

Mr. Corey. Senator Goldwater, if T may, on behalf of our employ-
ees, thank you for that statement. They are under a lot of pressure
these days, and they will appreciate that.
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Senator GorpwaTter. The question I have to ask you, have other
countries developed bacteriological warfare ability ¢

Mz, Corsy. Certainly, Senator; that is one aspect of bacteriological
warfare that the President’s directive in 1969 and 1970 tells CIA to
continue, and that is to follow the activities of other nations. We will
ses the capahilities and activities of other nations in this field and we
have some officers who do follow these activities abroad. And they
are quite general, There are some very, very dublous areas where we
are just not sure what the actual capabilities are in some respects, but
we do follow it indeed and there is extensive effort done by other
nations in this line.

Senator GorowaTER. But you are now prevented from—

Mr, Corey. No; we can follow the foreign ones, that’s no problem.

Senator GorowaTer. You can follow them, but can you do anything
to offset them ?

Mr. Corey. I think that the defensive against those possible things
is 9 matter for the Department of Defense.

Senator GoLpwATER, You feel you are safe in that field ?

Mr. Corpy. I think in cooperation with the Department of Defense,
and advising the Department of Defense of foreign developments in
this area, we are giving them the.basis for developing such defense
efforts as we need them. .

Senator Gorpwarer. Thank you, that is all T have, Mr. Chairman.

The Cramman. Thank you, Senator Goldwater. Senator Morgan?

Senator Moreaw, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Colby, since this is the first
public hearing of this committee, I think we should note that we
feel and I certainly feel that the role played by the CIA is a very
vital one, and a very important one. I think the fact that you quoted
from President Kennedy who said that quite often our failures are
trumpeted and our successes go unheralded is appropriate here.

This committee has been told by witnesses that had the CTA existed
prior to World War II, Pear] Harbor might never have happened or
1f it had hag)pened, the loss in deaths and property might have been
much Jess. So I want you to know that we do recognize the role of
the CIA. We recognize the fact that we in this country must be able
to know in advance what our potential adversaries and potential
enemies may be planning so that we can cope with them. So I do
think it is important. '

Mr. Corsy. Thank you, Senator.,

Senator Moreax. I believe, Mr. Colby, that most of the questions
have been asked except that earlier the reference was made to the
Presidential order and we alluded to what was in fact, I think, the
press release concerning the Presidential order. But as I read the
Presidential order, I found this statement. The T.S. bacteriological
and the biological programs will be confined to research and develop-
ment for defensive purposes, immunization, safety measures, et cetera.
This does not preclude research into those offensive aspects of bacterio-
logical, biological agents necessary to determine what defensive meas-
ures are required.

Now earlier you stated you thought it might have been the mentality
of those who made the decision to keep these toxins that they might
be needed in order to develop defensive weapons. Do you think if
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that was their thinking that it would be in keeping with the Presi:
dential order as I just read it to you ?

Mr. Corey. Well, we looked at that. I think that you might be able
to make a case for that, Senator, if you were actively involved-and
had responsibilities for these defensive measures. But, as I think the
chairman pointed out, the quantities maintained by CIA are difficult
to defend under that directive.

Selelator Morean., What was your position with the CIA at that
time?

Mr. Corsy. In 1970 T was on detached service. I was assigned to
the Department of State in Vietnam.

Sena%tor Moreaw. You had nothing to do with retaining these
toxins?

M. Corsy. No; I had nothing.

Senator MoreaN. And you knew nothing about them until you
made the discovery ¢

Mr. Corey. Until we had discovered this in May.

Senator Moreax. I-would commend you, Mr. Colby, again for taking
these steps to determine what has happened. I think most men in the
CIA, as well as those in the IRS and the FBI, are dedicated public
officials that want to do what is right. I'think your method of asking
for any known violations has beert helpful to this committee. I would
commend it, Mr. Chairmam, to the IRS, to the end that they might
ask their field agents if they know of known violations in this area
and I would cornmend it also to the Director of the FBI.

“Senator Goldwater-mentioned, and I believe the Presidential order
directed the CIA to continué to maintain surveillance on the bac-
teriological and biclogical warfare capabilities of other states. You
say you have done that? . -

Mr. Corey, We do so; yes, sir. S

Senator MoreaN. Are you in a poesition: to tell this committee
whether or not other states and especially potential adversaries,
enermies, now have stockpiles of such toxiris ?

Mr. Corbx. I do not think I can say much about stockpiles but I do
know that there are installations which appear to us to be experi-
mental stations of some sort. :

Senator Moreaw. Thank you, Mr. Colby.

Mr. Corey. In the chemical field, certainly there are stockpiles. We
areaware of that also, “

Senator Moreaw. T have no further questions.

The CaarMaN. Thank you, Senator. Senator Mathias?

Senator MataLas. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Colby, some of America’s greatest vietories and some of Amer-
ica’s greatest defeats have represented failures of intelligence. Tren-
ton, Antietam, Pear]l Harbor, T think »ll illustrate the vital necessity
of intelligence. A year ago, almost exactly a year ago, when Senator
Mansfield and I introduced the legislation which has resulted in this
investigation, we had that very much in mind. We wanted to be sure
that we had the best intelligence system that was available. But I
think we also had in mind John A dams’ warning that a frequent recur-
rence to the principles of the Constitution is absolutely necessary to
preserve the advantages of liberty and to maintain a free government.

I think the discovery of this toxin raises some interesting questions
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which are within the purview of this investigation and which, I think,
have to be answered before this committee completes its work and
makes its recommendations to the Congress. For example, I accept
your statement that this toxin was never used except in the one in-
stance that you described. But I then have to ask you this: If you had
used the toxin, what provision in the Constitution would have afforded
authority te doso?

Mr. GCorury. I think CIA’s operations are certainly overseas opera-
tions. They fall under the National Security Act of 1947 and they fall,
consequently, under the provisions of the Constitution that call for
the national defense and the foreign relations of the United States.

Senator MaTermas. The use of a toxin of this sort is, of course, the
use of force.

Mr. Corey. Tt isa weapon ; yes.

. Senator MarHias. It is a weapon, it isa use of force and normally
if a force is to be employed against another nation, congressional
approval is required, is that not true?

Mz. Corry. %Vell, I think we are now in the midst of the War Powers
Act, and this activity of course preceded that.

Senator Marsras. Yes, it did precede it, but what occurs to me here
is that we have an illustration of the use of force in the relations of
the United States to other powers in the world, or at least the potential
use of force. As you say, it has never been used in this instance,
which differs only in degree from covert operations in Laos or other
examples that we could think of. And so it seems to me that the dis-
covery of this toxin raises very fundamental questions about the rela-
tionship to covert activities of any intelligence agencies, be it the CIA,
the FBI, or others, with the constitutional process on which this
Government is conducted.

Now I would think, Mr. Chairman, that there is no responsibility
greater upon us than to define that relationship as accurately as pos-
sible before the close of these hearings. Thank you.

Mr. Corey. It is, of course, contained within the amendment to the
Foreign Assistance Act, passed last December, which now requires
that any activity of CIA, other than intelligence gathering abroad,
shall be found to be important to the national security by the Presi-
dent and shall be reported to the appropriate committees, and that
includes six committees of the Congress at this time. This 1s a statu-
tory provision which we are in compliance with.

Senator Maraiss. Let me say, Mr. Colby, that I agree with you.
Let me say this imposes responsibilities on the Congress that I do not
think have always been discharged very well. I can recall members of
Congress who recoiled from the responsibility of knowing what was
happening, members of Congress who said, “Don’t tell me, I do not
want to know.” I think that is an indictment of the Congress, just as
severe an indictment as those labeled against any of the intelligence
agencies.

Mzr. Cowsy. I would not call it an indictment of the Congress, Sena-
tor. I think it rather reflected the general atmosphere, political atmos-
phere, toward intelligence that was the traditional approach and I
think we Americans are changing that. This act is an example of that
change, as is this committee.
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Senator MaTmias. I think you are more generous than I am inclined
to be. I cannot be that permissive. I do-not think climate will excuse
what is really a dereliction of duty and if there had mnot been that
dereliction of duty, perhaps we would not be here today.

The Cmamman. I must say, Senator Mathias, I agree fully. We
have been victimized by excessive secrecy, not only with respect to
failure of Congress in the past to exercise proper surveillance over
intelligence activities, but also excessive secrecy has created this kind
of mischief within the executive branch. Here we have a case where
the very methods of secrecy concealed for 5 years an act of insub-
ordination within the CIA that came to light only by the happenstance
that Mr. Colby, the present Director, asked the Agency if they please
would tell him what has been going on that is wrong. And as a
result, somebody knowing something about this gave him a tip, as a
result of which he then conducted investigations that led to this dis-
closure. So I believe that the internal workings within the Agency
itself are a maiter that we must look at very closely to be sure that
this kind of thing does not happen again and can be prevented. Ex-
cessive secrecy may have victimized this Agency as well as the
Congress.

Our next Senator in line 15 Senator Hart. )

Senator Harr of Colorado. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Colby, can you be absolutely sure that there are not in other
vaults any poisons in this town or in this country or in our possession
in some part of the world ? )

Mr. Corey. I cannot be absolutely sure, no, Senator. We obviously
are conducting such investigations and releasing such orders as pos-
sible, but I cannot be absolutely sure that some officer somewhere has
not sequestered something. . ]

Senator Harr of Colorado. Could you concisely as possible
state for the committee your understanding of the practice of
compartmentation ? . .

Mr. Corey. Well, the compartmentation process is merely the strict
application of the “need-to-know” principle. If an employee in the in-
telligence business needs to know something in order to do his job, then
he has a right to the information. But if he does not need to know that
particular mformation, he does not have a right to the information.
And if the information is one which is required for large numbers of
employees, then large numbers of employees will be allowed to know it.

If the particular activity is a very sensitive matter and only a very
few employees need to know it, then it will be known to only a very
few employees. We make a particular effort to keep the identities of
our sources and some of our more complicated technical systems re-
stricted very sharply to the people who actually need to work on
them. And many of the rest of the people in the Agency know nothing
about them. o

Senator Hart of Colorado. Does that need-to-know principle apply
in cases of sensitivity to the Director of Central Intelligence?

Mr. Copy. Certainly not. It does not with one exception. I do not
believe I need to know the name of an agent in some foreign country
who is serving us at the risk of his life. I know he is there, I know
what kind of a person he is, but T do not need to know his actual name.
I have kept that out of my knowledge because I travel and I do not
want to know that kind of thing. But that is the only area that 1
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would apply it to. I am responsible for everything that happens in
the Agency, I need to know everything that happens in the Agency.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Based upon this case and other matters
that we have under consideration and past practices in the Agency,
how can you, as the Director of Central Intelligence, be abso utely
sure that activities of this kind are not going on within the Agency,
shielded from your knowledge by the practice of compartmentation ?

Mr. Copy. I think X have an adequate system today, both in our
program review of what the activities of the Agency are, the decisions
made about resource levels, personnel levels, things of this mature,
devoted to different kinds of projects. I look at results from those
commitments to see whether they are compatible with the kind of funds
expended on them. I also have an independent Inspector General and
we have most recently increased the size of his staff in response to
the requirement of the Rockefeller Commission.

We have made certain organizational changes in the Agency to
try to break down the former high degree of compartmentation
which in some cases was not. really based upon a need-to-know prin-
ciple, but became a little bit idenfified with the normal bureaucratic
processes of developing a small wall between different organizations.
This particular office, for instance, was transferred from our opera-
tional directorate to the science and technology directorate.

Senator Harr of Colorado. But in the final analysis, there is no
absolutely certain gnarantee that incidents of this type might not
occur in the future.

Mr. Cowmy. There is a guarantee in the sense that the employees are
shown a statement each year and sign it, a set of standards for their
activities, and included n those is our requirement that if they know
of any questionable activities or activities beyond CIA’ charter, that
they’re instructed to bring it to either me or the Inspector General.

This is a process I have insisted on to my subordinate deputies, that
I be subjected to no surprises; and it is the latest one of these particu-
lar directives that actually instigated this exposure here, that my sub-
ordinates are responsible for bringing to me anything that they find
that is sensitive in any fashion and o keep me advised of any such
matters going on.

As you say, Senator, it is certainly possible that some person some-
place in the world can do an improper thing without my knowledge of
it beforehand.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Mr. Colby, I think your exposure to this
committee is sufficient to know that none of us wishes to question the
loyalty or patriotism of any of your employees. What we are trying
to do, as the chairman and Senator Mathias and others have stated,
is to work with you and your colleagues in preventing the kind of
abuses and misconduct that has gone on in the past. In that connection,
can you suggest any further guidelines in addition to the statement
that you made which would guarantee that this compartmentation,
does not prevent the knowledge of the command and control officers in
the Agency of key activities?

Mr. Corey. Well, I think, as I did say in my statement, Senator, I
believe that intensive external supervision will generate intensive
internal supervision. That is a normal working of bureaucracies and I
think that that kind of supervision I welcome from both the Executive
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and the Congress because I think it will keep our intelligence people
absolutely confident that they do not do things that they should not.

Senator Harr of Colorado. So you do mot find the work of this
committee unwelcome ? .

Mzr. Corey. No; I do not. As I have said to the chairman, I welcome
the chance to try to describe to the American people what intelligence
is really about today. And it is an opportunity to show how we Ameri-
cans have modernized the whole concept of intelligence and I hope
we can do that. )

Senator Harr of Colorado. Mr. Colby, one brief line of inquiry in
connection with the case under study. Are you familiar with a reported
series of so-called vulnerability studies that were conducted probably
sometime in the sixties in connection with this program of toxic
weapons and so forth ¢ )

Mr. Corry. I think this was a Defense Department activity of deter-
mining what possible vulnerabilities our country might have to these
kinds of weapons.

Senator Farr of Colorado. To your knowledge, were CLA. person-
nel involved in this?

Mr. Corey, CIA was aware of some of them because they were con-
ducted with Fort Detrick and sometimes there are lessons to be learned
from it that were picked up. ”

Senator Harr of Colorado. But to your knowledge, your employees
did not participate?

Mr. Corsy. They reported on the activities to us, bub it was my
impllj'fession that they did not actually participate in the experiment
itself.

Senator Harr of Colorado. And y amiliar with the fact that
one of these experiments wags conducted in the Food in-
iszz .

r. CoLEY. I'm aware of a report to that effect; yes, sir.

Senator Harr W

Mr. Corey. There were other installations around the country that
we looked at to determine what possible vulnerabilities large instal-
Iations would have.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Major urban subwa stems_and. so

forth ?
7. Corny. Yes. )

Senator Harr of Colorado. Did any of these studies in any way
jeopardize human life and safety ? .

Mr. Corny. According to my records, they were not conducted with
hazardous substances. imulated rath an real.

Senator Haxrr of Colorado. So, to your knowledge, no actual jeop-
ardy oceurred to any individual during any of these tests?

Mr. Cozry. I do not know of any that were in these studies, I do not

know of any. Obvio we did have the probl of
LSD_on unwitting subjects. That would fall within the category of
yOur question.
Senator Harr of Colorado. I am talking more about the mass——
Mr. Corey. No, the mass ones, it is my impression that they did

not tisk the lives and health of the people involved.
Senator Hart of Colorado. Thank you, and as far as you know,

that one study on the subway system was CMMﬂ{
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Mr. Corey. I have seen a report to that effect. That is all T know
about that particular program.

Senator Harr of Colorado. There was further indication that some
of these toxic elements might have had something to do with the

destruction ofc%g_ggwrt_uf_ihmﬂd. Do you know if that was
ever implemented ?

MI r - 3 . .
~=NIT. i}OLBx,__I_oelieve it was not. I kmow it was considered but if. wag

enmtor HarT of Colorado. That is all T have, Mr. Chairman.
The Cmammaw. Thank you, Senator Hart. And the Chair now

recognizes Senator Schweiker.

Senator Scmwerker. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Colby, you testified in your opening statement that there were
basically 11 grams on the shelf of this toxin, discovered by the CIA
in the storage lab in Washington. I take note of the fact that the
documents the committee has in front of it also indicate that when
the committee, or when the CIA took its own inventory in that
unsigned memo [exhibit 1*] that we were discussing a2 moment ago,
which was dated February 16, it only refers to 5.2 milligrams, so
there is obvious discrepancy of almost 100 and some percent between
the amount that an internal CTA memo said existed and their inven-
tory from the amount that was finally discovered at the CIA lab,
a discrepancy of a very substantial nature. I wonder if you could
account for that?

Mr. Corsy. The difference is the amount the CIA had earlier, which
was the 5 milligrams, and then the 11 grams which it collected from
Fort Detrick. That material was moved from Fort Detrick to CIA,
the additional 11 milligrams, or 11 grams, excuse me.

Senator SceEwerker. I believe For%@%mm&m
so&n‘ehs’_n’ﬁ%lig:amsinr_(}m and I also belteve—I have an inventory
i Té [exhibit 1], unclassified from the Army, when they took
inventory at the same time that the CIA letter [exhibit 1] was written,
February 17, 1970, the Army listed on its inventory 2.8 milligrams.
So the logical question is, @il inn Tact the ATiny also aisobey the Presi-
dential order, and did it end up at the same lab? And I think you
can take the question one step further, since 5.2 and 2.8 only account
for 8 milligrams, did some other person generously cooperate in
supplying an inventory of 3 milligrams, or 3 grams, as opposed to
milligrams? How do we explain this rather obvious discrepancy,
particularly when there was 2.8 grams—I should have said 2,800 milli-
grams, 2.8 grams, in this regard?

Mr. Corey. If I may, Senator, consult?

Senator ScewrrsEr. Yes, sure. You are entitled to that.

Mcr. Couny. Senator, we do not know where those other 5 grams
came from.

Senator Scawerkzer. I think it is important for the record to show
that, Mr. Colby, and I appreciate your frank answer that the CIA-
inventory at Fort Detrick showed very clearly there were only_5.2
grams. The inventory at Fort Detrick, in the same period of
time, showed that Army had 8. There is a pretty obvious

implication here that somebody at the Army decided they were going
to ship th upply up to CLA,
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‘What concerns me more is, we are still unaccountable for 3 grams,
and do we, in fact, have three agencies deciding to circumvent -a
Presidential order: The CIA, the ATmy, and some unknown supplier.
I think that is a very serious question, and X would hope that we
would pursue it.

Do we know who authorized the Fort Detrick, CIA to take away
that supply? Certainly someone from the Army would have had to
aunthorize the removal of that supply.

Mr. Corsy. We have no record of it, Senator. 7 .

Senator Scrwerker. We do not know that, so we could not, possibly
know, then, if the 2.8 grams was also shipped out at that time.

Also, do I understand correctly, Mr. Colby, that in order to locate
this—and I want to make clear that it was a CILA. discovery, I think
that is a significant point, and a fair point to make—but do I under-
stand that In discovering this material, that they had a code name
for this material that was not presently available to you as Director?

Mr. Corex. There was a code name for this particular activity, and
the code name was recorded, but I did not know it. It came to the
memory of one of our officers. One of the problems we have is that
frequently, on sensitive activities, we do not use the real names of the
activities. We use these code names, and the code names become a
form of second Janguage. I’'m sure the code name was available to me,
if I had asked specifically about this particular code name,

Senator Sorwerser. Does not the Director have, really, somewhere
in his command, a roster or a master index of what the ongoing code
names mean, and how relevant they are? How could you exercise any
command and controi? .

Mr. Corey. This is an old code name. We obviously do have a Iist-
ing from which the code names are chosen for particular activities,
and I could have found out about this if I had had the tip. Al 1
needed here was the tip, and we had the tip, and then that led us to
the whole story, to the extent that we have records. o

Senator Scmwerrrr. Does this not also suggest the possibility that
the code name information was in those destroyed records? It seems
to me that is a pretty relevant question about why the Director, even
though he didn’ know the code name, did not have access to the code
name immediately. It seems to me that it would very likely be that
that access or informational sheet might well have been destroyed too.
Do we know that?

Mr. Cousy. The code names are obviously kept in different centers
within the Agency, and it is a matter of going through the different
centers and selecting which ones to ask for for the particular informa-
tion, and what the code names are.

Now, there is a procedure by which we can find out what one of
these code names refers to, or alternatively, to find the code name
applied to a certain activity.

Senator ScEwergEr. A project that would kill many thousands of
people—I would think it would be somewhere immediately at hand,
n the Director’s drawer, to know what had or had not happened.

Mr. Corey. Well, this was a project that had been closed out 5 years
ago, and the matter had been terminated, and the records were in our
records center.
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Senator Scewergrr. Now, on this same inventory list, again, that
the CIA discovered, is another toxin, a fish toxin, and we invento-
ried that at 8 cubic centimeters, and only 1 milligram of this material
apparently is a lethal dose, indicating it is almost as lethal, at least
weight-wise, as the shellfish toxin. Why was this also overlooked, and
why wasn’t the fish toxin destroyed?

Mr. Covpy. Well, the fact here wag that the various materials here
were not destroyed. I believe there is a technical argument about
whether the shellfish toxin is the only one that is directly covered
by the President’s order. But obviouJ , we do not have a need for
the other kinds of toxins, beyond the research into the possibly
defensive uses.

Senator ScEwrrker. Well, the President’s order, Mr. Colby, is very
clear and specific. It said research for defensive purposes only. To
your knowledge, has any research for defensive purposes been going
on with the fish toxin at CIA, or at any other laboratory?

Mr. Corey. No, Senator. This was put on this shelf, and just left
there. It became an old storeroom, and the material was up there and
forgotten.

Senator Sceawerser. Mr. Colby, you said earlier, if T recall your
testimony, that at one point in your career, coming from the covert
side, that you had been approached by 2 technical person about pos-
stble use of this substance, and you had turned it down?

Mzr. Corey. Yes.

Senator Scrwrrkrr. Why did you turn it down?

Mr. Coury. Because I did not think it was a good idea. I do not
believe in that kind of activity.

Senator Scawerker. I gather, then, from that statement that there

- was no policy, or no directive, or no written document indicating that

whoever approached you was operating out of the framework of a
policy of the Agency. Is that not a fair assumption ?

Mr. Corey. I just never got to that question. As far as I was con-
cerned the thought was put, and T turned it down.

Senator Scewerkrr. And I think the obvious question is, what if
the same Technical Service person approached somebody who did not
have your judgement, conscience, and standards, and decided that he
would accept it.? What would have happened then?

Mr. Corey. Well, today, he would run into very specific directives
on that point.

Senator Scawemker. Yes; and I commend you for that.

Finally, I would like to ask 2 question as far as this memorandum
[exhibit 1] is concerned. The memorandum that said they wanted to
transfer this poison, or toxin-—poisons—to a location in Baltimore is
unsigned. Is this the original or the carbon that the CIA found?

Mr. Corey. It is apparently the carbon.

Senator ScuwEIKER. S0, as a matter of speculation, one could specu-
late that the original memorandum, which has never been found, could
well have been signed and could have been destroyed.

Mr. Cormy. Normally not. I think the evidence here—there is no
typed date on it, and there is no mark that the original had been
signed. This is a normal procedure in our machinery that this would
be so indicated.
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Senator ScEweiker. Is it not abnormal that the carbon turns up,
and not the original? It seems to me if Agency records were not
destroyed and kept, the first thing would be the original draft or the
memo, and not the carbon. .

Mr. Corey. Well, I think the fact that there is an indication that it
was not signed made it a bit of a nondocument. Someone may have
destroyed the original, since it had not been signed, and was not really
a document in that sense.

. Seraator Scawerker. Of course all we know is the carbon was not
signed.

Mr. Corry. Yes; that’s right, but as X say, the indications——

Senator Scawerker. We do not know the original was not signed.

Mr. Corey. The indications are that the original was not signed. I
think the originator is going to be one of your witnesses, and I think
you could perhaps get better clarification of that detail there.

Senator gCHWEIKER. That is all the guestions I have, Mr. Chairman.

The Crmamsran. Thank you, Senator Schweiker.

Mr. Colby, going back to the document [exhibit 1*] that Senator
Schweiker has been questioning you about. It purports to be a docu-
ment that carries the name, though not the signature, of Thomas H.
EKaramessines, who was Deputy. Director for Plans in the CIA, and
it purports to have been prepared for the Director himself. .

Now, calling your atteniion to paragraph 5, where the Director is
given, in effect, an option not to comply with the President’s order,
1t reads, “If the Director wishes to continue this special capability”
which the-President had ordered destroyed, “it is recommended that
if the above DOD decision iz made, the existing Agency stoekpile at
SO Division, Fort Detrickbe transferred to the Huntingdon Re-
search Center, Becton-Dickinson Co., Baltimore, Md. Arrangements
have been made for this contingency and assurances have been given

by the potential contractor to store and maintain the Agency’s'stock-:

pile at a cost no greater than $75,000 per annum.” Well, that is a prefty
hefty storage cost, but what is really being suggested there is that the

. Presidént’s order ha circumvented by taking the material out df the

" CIA laboratories and storing it with a private firm. Is that not correct ?
- Mr. Cousx. Out of Fort Detrick? .
The CmatrmAXR. Out of Fort Detriclk. )
Mr. Corpx. And stored at a private firm, which is capable of main-
taining it aceording to the proper standards that you would expect
to handle this. But I do not think there is a concealment from CIA
Involved in. that process. The contracting for the storage of the mate-
rial in a private firm would not necessarily conceal it from CIA,
because some records—— .
The Caamman. No; but the option was being suggested to the Di-
rector of the CTA that the President’s order be cirenmvented by stor-
ing these forbidden toxins at a private firm. Is that not correct?
Mr. Corey. That somehow the President’s directive not be complied
with, as respect to these toxins, for whatever reason the originator
might have thought may be possible. Obviously one of them is a viola-
tion of the President’s order, but also possible is that some permis-
sion:
The Crammax. It is obvious that the shellfish toxin represents a
violation of the President’s order? What about the cobra venom?

1 8eep. 189.
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Mr. Corey. Some of their others are also included, and I believe
there is a technical argument about which ones are and which ones
are not. In effect, they are.

The Cmamman. Well, I am informed that 11 grams of shellfish
toxin—on the surface, it seems to be 2 small quantity—actually rep-
resents about a third of the total amount ever produced in the world.
We have already covered the number of people that could be killed
through the application of such quantities. What I would like to get
at is this: The President declares it to be the national policy of the
United States not to engage in the development of toxins of this kind.
The President announces to the world, as a unilateral initiative, which
was widely publicized as an indicator of our peaceful imtentions,
that we would, indeed, destroy such substances, and that we would
become part of an international convention to this end. Now, that is
rather a major statement of policy, broadcast to the world, and the
good faith of the President of the United States and of the Govern-
ment of the United States is thus on the line. Would you not, agree?

Mr, Corey. L agree.

The Cramman. Now, we find out 5 years later that the Presidential
orders were not, in fact, carried out. Why in a matter of this kind was
no written order given to destroy these toxins, in compliance with
the President’s directive ?

Mr. Corey. I do not know, Mr. Chairman. I think that it is quite
obvious that the suggestion was made that they not be destroyed.
There is an indication that it was not accepted. The President’s direc-
tive was obviously passed down and made known to the people who
had this facility, and the degree to which a specific order 1s required,
Y do not know.

The Cratrman. Why, in a matter of this importance, if no writ-
ten order were used, why did not the Agency follow up in some way to
determine whether or not the President’s order had been obeyed?

Mr. Corey. I think the assumption was that the material was ab
Detrick, and that it would be destroyed up there. The request was sent
to Detrick to destroy the material there. The individusal left out the
material—

The Crammax. But no effort was made to obtain a count, no check
was made to see whether or not the material had, in fact, been
destroyed ¢

Mr. Corey. Apparently not, sir.

The Cramaan. Do you not think that is an exceedingly loose way
to run an agency, particalarly the CIA ¢

Mr. Corey. Well, we are going to try to run it tighter.

The Cmamrman. Now, you have said that in your opinion the manu-
facture of these poisons and delivery devices, as you call them, was
originally authorized by the law. X would like to ask a question or twa
about that. The statute in the National Security Act that gives the
CIA its basic power sets out the various duties of the Agency and
In g well-known catchall provision, which is subsection 5 of section
D of the act—that catchall provision reads, “to perform such other
functions and duties relited to intelligence affecting the national se-
(Cil_lrlt{,, a8 the National Security Council may, from time to time,

irect. )

Now, first of all, poisons do not normally fall under the category
of intelligence, as it is generally uiderstood. That is to say, the gather-
Ing of information. Wonld von acree with that?

T
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Mzr. Corey. Yes. Except to the degree—the tradition of the L-pill,
and things of that nature. .

The Caamman. Except as they might be used purely defensively ¢

Mr. Corex. Yes.

The Cramman. And so that the offensive use of poisons would fall
within the category that we generally refer to as covert operations?

Mz. CoLny. Yes. :

The Cramrman. And based upon all of the testimony and documents
that this committee has received thus far, the CIA bases its authority
to conduct covert operations on this provision of the law?

Mr. Cousy. Correct. :

The Cmamyan. All right. I will reread this provision of the law:
“to perform such other functions and duties related to intelligence
affecting the national security, as the National Security Council may,
from time to time, direct.” My question is, did the National Security
Couneil direct the CIA to develop these quantities of poison?

Mr. Cosy. No; but the National Security Couneil certainly expects ‘

the CIA to be prepared to conduct paramilitary operations tradi-
tionally associated with the covert action area, and in the process of
preparing for those kinds of operations, the CIA has developed dif-
ferent weapons, has maintained different stocks of weapons, and I
think that this incident came from the thought process that is repre-
sented by the development of that capability for the possibility of such
covert operations.

The CeEamMan. But Mr. Colby, you have already testified that
poisons in this quantity exceeded any use that the CIA might con-
template or properly pursue in connection with its covert operations.

Mr. Cormy. In this quantity, yes, Mr. Chairman. But the idea of
developing it—— .

The Cuamymax. Yes; and my question is, since these poisons were
developed in such quantities, and since the National Security Council
gave you no directive to do so, is it not questionable that the CIA
‘was really authorized to develop such quantities of poisons?

Mr. Coury. I think, Mr. Chairman, we have to get back to what this
related to. It was a joint effort between the Army and ourselves about
2 weapons system, biological and chemical warfare, that were ac-
ceptable and accepted up until the time of the President’s directives.
Theref.i)lre, these were weapons which were in the national arsenal, if

ou will.
Y Now, I think the ides of the CIA being interested in these weapons
for possible intelligence related activities is appropriate under that
provision. However, I agree with you that the quantities were exces-
sive.

The Cmarrman. Thank you. Sena,tfor Tower has some further ques-
tions. !

Senator Tower. We have spoken rather extensively here about
apparent lack of clear lines of contrbl and authority running down-
ward and of clear lines of responsibility and accountability running
upward., .

To the best of your knowledge, has there been any pervasive non-
compliance in the matter of orders, diréctives from the President. or
orders from the DT on the part of subordinates? In other words, has
this reached a greater proportion than might even have been revealed
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here, as a result, of our discovery of a very significant instance of in-
subordination ?

If, indeed, it has been pervasive, is there not a need for much tighter
controls at the top ?

Mr, Corey. Senator Tower, I believe that we are really—we have
in CIA a very tight discipline. I’m not saying it is total, obviously.
Tt did not work in this case. I think with people scattered around the
world doing very sensitive work and highly compartmented work,
there has been, indeed, a very high sense of discipline in the organiza-
tion. and a high sense of compliance to the regulations and the rules
and the directives of the organization. And I think that the leadership
of the organization has always felt very much subject to direct Presi-
dentia] control and responsive to it.

Senator Towzr. So you would say, actually, that this instance is an
exception to the rule? Ordinarily, the discipline has been good, that
the control has worked, and the accountability has worked in the way
it should, according to the proper tenets of good administration?

Mr. Corry. In the business which we are in, intelligence and covert
operations, I think there have been very few cases in which the Agency
or its employees has done something they should not have. And in
many of the cases which we now question, we find that those activities
were approved by the appropriate authorities at that time. The sense
of discipline within the organization seems to be quite tight.

Senator Tower. In the absence of a written order, would a sub-
ordinate regard a verbal order as less serious or less emphatic than a
written order, or would he regard 1t just as seriously ¢

Is it the custom In the Agency to give verbal orders on extremely
sensitive matters, where you perhaps may not want something reduced
to writing?

Mr. Corey. Well, T think the effectiveness of an oral order is exactly
what a written order is, that the individual is supposed to comply with
it. It is clear that in the past there was a time in which various subjects
were not written down. The committee has been into one of these, and
we now have another one, where very little was actually written down
because of the belief of high sensitivity of the activity.

Senator Tower. Now, isn’t the Agency expected to maintain the
competence to perforin any operation mandated by the President or the
National Security Council? :

Mr. Corey. Any operation within the law.

Senator Tower. Any operation within the law. So in this connec-
tion, would specific NSC approval or knowledge be required from the
standpoint of experimentation on weapons?

Mr. Corey. On the experimentation, T would say no. I would say
that, if there is an accepted national weapons system, that the intelli-
gence agency can look at it to see if it has intelligence applications,
possible applications,

As to the nse of such a weapon, either this or another weapons sys-
tem, then I think it falls clearly within the provision of the memo-
randum which covers covert operations, which says that I am required
to receive the approval for anything major or politically sensitive—and
I think certainly this would fall into the category of politically
sensitive.

Senator Tower. Thank you, Mr. Colby. No further guestions.
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The Cmamman. Thank you, Senator Tower. Senator Mondale?

Senator Monpare. Thank you very much.

T was wondering if I might ask a few questions of Mr. Stevens.

The CEamyMaN. Mr. Stevens, would you come to the witness table,
please ? Just pull your chair up.

Senator MoxNDALE. Mr. Stevens, as I understand it, you were ordered
by the Director to conduct a study of the matter before the committee
today, namely, the treatment and destruction of toxic materials.

Mr. Stevens. That is correct.

Senator Moxnpare. How long did that study take? .

Mr. StevENS. Well, it has continued from late April until, essentially,
the present timne.

Senator MowpaLe. You were charged to make a thorough study, and
that is what you believe you did ¢ ) o

Mr. StEveNs. A thorough study, within some very important limita-
tions. We investigated the matter to the extent that we wanted to
really establish that it was an area that deserved further review, that
it was an area apt to be questioned, and so on. But it was not a thorough
investigation in the sense that the committee, for example, would
conduct. o o

Mr. Cornx. One thing, for instance, is this rule against interviewing
extensively former employees, although in this case we did make con-
tact with one to find something about it. .

Senator Mowparz. In other words, one way in which it was inade-
quate is that former employees were not interviewed

Mr. Stevens. Several former employees were interviewed, but only
at their volition, and they were under no compulsion to go into
anything.

Senator Mowxpare. Did you interview Gottlieb, Gordon,
Karamessines?

Mr. Stevexs. I interviewed Dr. Gordon.

Senator Monpare. Karamessines?

Mr. SteveEns, No, sir.

Senator MoxparLe. Is there any doubt in your mind that the top
leadership in the CIA. was aware of the President’s order to destroy
these toxins?

Mr. Stevens. No; I think there is clear evidence that they were
aware.

Senator Moxpare. That they understood that. Is there any doubt
that the persons in the department dealing with these toxins, Mr. Gor-
don, Dr. Gottlieb, and so on, also were aware of the Presidential order
directing the destruction of these toxins?

Mzr. Strvens. They were aware of them.

Senator Moxpare. So there is no question of knowledge here? Then,
if they knew the President had ordered the destruction of these toxins,
yet the foxins were not destroyed, what happened ?

Mr. Stevexs. Well, I think that the question as to what must be done
with the Agency stockpile, how it was to be destroyed and so on, was
addressed. And T think that the memorandum that you have referred
to earlier is the representation of that question being raised. Quite
apart from that, the shellfish toxin was brought back on the part of an
individual decision.
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Senator Mowoare. Yes. But there was no question, as I gather from
your response, that anybody in command, from the top to the bottom,
was in doubt about the Presidential order divecting the destruction of
toxin. Your answer to that was, yes, there was no doubt. Yet they were
not. destroyed.

‘What happened? Let me ask you about the three options I can think
of: (1}, somebody deliberately disregarded an order of the President;
(2}, negligence or inadvertence; (3), a back-channel order that does
not show up anywhere, in which higher authority said something else
prjlvately to these officials, which wag different from the official public
order.

Which of these possibilities, or another if you can think of it, is the
likely explanation for what was obviously a policy which was different
from that recommended or ordered by the President?

Mr. Stevexns. X think, really, none of those. I think what happened
was, the Instructions were given that the material that washeld for the
Agency at Fort Detrick, that that be destroyed. Before that was done,
some of the shellfish toxin was returned or brought to the CTA and
stored there. That was done, I think, by people who were completely
enmeshed with the fechnical aspects of the problem, and were so im-
pressed with the value, the difficulty of extracting that stuff, and so on,
they simply could not bear to have it destroyed.

Senator Moxpare. So what you are saying is that, though the Presi-
dent ordered its destruction, people lower in the Agency felt it was of
such value that they did not doit?

Mzr. Stevens. That is apparently the case.

(?en;a,tor Monpare. So that they deliberately disobeyed a Presidential
order?

Mr. Stevexs. And apparently disobeyed orders within the Agency.

Senator MoxpaLe. So that, in your judgment, based upon your
study, there was a decision at a low level to disobey higher orders?

Mr. Stevexs. So far as I could see, that was about it.

Senator Moxpaze. Was there any evidence of back-channel orders
that was different from the public order?

Mr. Srevens. I have no evidence whatsoever that that was the case.

Senator Monpare. Maybe the Director would like to respond to these
questions, too.

_ Mr. Corsy. No. I accept fully Dr. Stevens’ answers, and I think that
it is quite clear that there was a decision not to destroy it, and various
people knew it.

Senator Monpare. We are not arguing that the President has the
duty to find out who had this, and call him personally and plead with
him, or anything like that. This was an order that was known, and
someone decided to disregard it.

Mr. Corry. No doubt about its application, T think, or the order. I
do not think that not only that there is no indication of any back chan-
nel advice not to do it, and don’t say anything about it. I think there is
an indication in our interviews that no such thing occurred, because T
suspect we would have heard about it in the interviews with Dr.
Gordon, for example.

Senator Moxpare. Would you say that the proposed memorandum
prepared by Dr. Gordon clearly shows that he understood the serious-
ness of thismatter?
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Mr. Coxer. I think it clearly indicates that some decision had to be
made as to whether to destroy the material in compliance with the
President’s orders, or not to destroy it, either in violation of the Presi-
dent’s order or under some other justification not expressed.

“Senator Monvare. But it is clear in that memo he understood that
the President ordered its destruction, and these toxins were included.

Mr. Stevexs. Yes; I think so.

Senator Moxpare, And he went on further to suggest that they there-
fore be transferred to another private warchouse, but at puglic ex-
pense. So I think it is quite clear from that memo that he knew the
serlousness of what he was doing.

This, in my opinion, is the point, Mr. Chairman. I very much believe
we need g strong CIA, and we need a strong intelligence capability.
There is no doubt about it. I think it has to operate in secret. But

.what bothers me, based on this evidence—the evidence we have had in
other hearings—is this whole issue, not of secrecy, I grant that,
but of accountability, this difficulty of finding out what happened,
and this gnawing fear that I have that things are occurring in
deliberate contravention and disregard of official orders.

That is what bothers me, and T know it bothers you, Mr. Director.
.. The Cramrmaw. Senator, in that connection, would you inquire—
if you do not, I will—would you inquire whether any of those who
Tailed to obey the President’s order are still with the Agency? The
Agency has made a careful investigation on its own.

AAH mgght, I will put the question. Are any of them still with the

gency .

Mr. CoLny, Apparently, yes. At least one still is.

The Cratryan. What disciplinary action hasbeen taken ?

_Mr. Corny. I have not yet taken any. I have that under advisement
right now, and I am coming to a decision.

The CraRMAN. Would you be sure to report to the committee what
action the A gency takes?

Mbr. Corey. I certainly will, Mr. Chairman.

The Crarryvaw. If it is determined that this individual willfully
disobeyed the President’s order.

Mr. Corey. Whatever action I take, I will report.

The Cmamman. Sometimes such people get promoted in our
bureaucracy, and we will be interested in knowing what action is taken
n this case.

Mr. Covmy. Certainly.

The Caammmax. Yes. Senator Mathias.

Senator Marazas. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Colby, in response to Senator Mondale just 2 minute ago, you
said that your investigation had indicated that there was no evidence
of any back-channel order in violation of the Presidential command ;
isthat not right ?

Mr. Corsy. Right. '

Senator Marmas. Is it not more than that; did you not find evidence
that the official order had been to comply with the Presidential
directive ?

Mpr. Corsy. Yes. There is indication that the instruction was to
have material destroyed at Fort Detrick. There was a gap there as
to what was to be destroyed at Fort Detrick, and as to what was
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physically in the CIA, and that gap was not covered by a specific
directive. But also, there is no indication that that gap was covered
by any back-channel arrangements.

Senator Matmzas. I think it is important that the record show that
you answer affirmatively if that is the case, that there was a good
Taith attempt to comply with the Presidential order, if that was your
understanding.

Mr. Corgy. I think there washy the Agency itself; yes.

Senator Marmias. Now, the chairman has raised the question about
the volume, the amount and quality of shellfish toxin. As X under-
stand it, this was not—it seems a prosaic phrase to use for it but it
was not an operational supply.

Mr. Corpy. I think it was beyond that quantity, it appears, from
what you can see.

Senator MareIas. Well, let us establish this in the first place. Fort
Detrick was the national biological warfare center?

Mr. Corey. Yes.

Senator Mavm1as. And CIA had a continuing relationship st Fort
Detrick which, in fact, supported the SOD division at Detrick. Is
that not true?

Mr. Corey. Yes.

Senator MaTmzas. And that this was the facility in which experi-
ments were carried out, in which research was done?

Mr. CoLnx. Yes. It was not solely supported by CIA. It was also
supported by the Army.

Senator Marruas. But CIA was one of the principal customers?

Mr. Corey. Principal participants, yes. Xt wasn’t the principal,
but, it was a substantial customer.

Senator Marezas. It was a principal customer ? All right.

Now, when the idea of the sheilfish toxin arose, you just do not
2o tcg) the Boston Cookbook and look up how to make it; is that not
true?

Mzr. Corex. Noj; you do not.

Senator MaTtmias. You have to find out, and that was the job of the
SOD division.

Mr. Corzy. Yes. -

Senator Mararas. And it was a costly, time-consuming process.

Mr. Corey. Yes, and a very difficult one, I guess. _

Senator Matmias. And one that probably no one could predict the
volumes which would be produced by a given mass of shellfish.

Mr. Corey. Well, 'm not sure of that. T think that after we found
ouf enough about it, we could probably predict at some point where
our quantities would result from a certain quantity of shellfish.

Mr. Stevens. Production eapability, as T understand it, was devel-
oped by Fort Detrick. Tt was produced.

Mr. Cousy. Some of this was of course produced by other Govern-
ment agencies as well.

Senator Mataras. Fort Detrick was not normally a production
facility, though, was it ?

Mr. Cowsy. No. I think this particular material—it is indicated it
did come from elsewhere. It was actually produced somewhere ¢lse.

Senator MararAs: Which was a normal procedure.

Mr. Corey. Which was, in other words——
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Senator Marmras, After the techniques were developed at Fort
Detrick ?

Mr. Corey. Fort Detrick contracted for the production of this
quantity.

Senator MaTmias. Well, could that explain the discrepancy raised
by Senator Schweiker, the fact that Detrick had a certain amount oi
toxin on hand as a result of experimentation, and that production was
then implemented, as in the case of other biological agents?

Mr. Corpy. Well, I think here the inventories indicate that Fort
Detrick had a certain quantity available, but we ended up with consid-
erably more. It may have been that there was more derived from else-
where to make up the total that we finally found.

Senator Marmias. Thank you. )

The Crammax. Senator Huddleston ?

Senator Huppresrox. I just have one question. It has been suggested
that one of the reasons for retaining this quantity of toxin was because
of its value and its potential research value. During the 5-year period
1t was stored, is there any evidence that any request from any source,
either outside of the Agency or within the Agency, that it be used in
any way for experimentation ¢

Mr. Covrsx. No. No, there was none. It was just put away on the shel,
or in the freezer, and eventually was found. There was no indication
of any consideration for any purposes.

Senator ITuppresTon. Whoever was so interested in it as a potential
research tool promptly forgot it, or made no suggestion it be used for
that purpose?

Mr. Corny. Yes, although I did say I have a request now from a
quite proper research interest not to destroy it, but to make it available
to medical research.

Senator Hupprestox. But that has come since the public revelation
of its existence?

Mzr. Corey. Yes.

Senatot Hupprestor. Thank you.

The Crarrmax. Senator Schweiker?

Senator Scawerger. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Colby, there was a news account, when Gary Powers was shot
down, the silver dollar that contained this drill with the shellfish toxin
on. 1t was opened by the Russians immediately, and was tested on a dog,
and the dog died in 10 seconds. Is that correct?

Mr. Cowey. I have heard that account. I cannot testify to that
specifically. T just do not know. Gary Powers might know. It is my
impression that he separated the pin from the silver dollar and threw
the silver dollar away on his way down, hoping to keep the pin as 2 less
obvious device, and then was captured with the pin on his person.

Senator Scawerker. I understand one of your people did verify
that account. T realize you may not know.

Mr. Corey. Then I accept that. The shellfish toxin is very
quick-acting,

Senator Scewemker. That would not be inconsistent with the lethal
effect of the shellfish toxin?

M. Cousy. It’s certainly possible, yes.

Senator Scawerker. The second is that the materials that were in
the vault in the storage facility in Washington, T believe some 15
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people 2had access to that vault during this period of time. Is that
correct ?

Mr. Corsy. Over the years, with the changes in personnel, I think
that is a fair total.

Senator Scawrmer. Would that not strike you, being as compart-
mentalized as you are, and limiting things to two and three people—
and sometimes one, as we have seen in the case of that unsigned memo-
randum—would that not be an excessively large number to have access
to those deadly toxins?

Mr. Corny. I do not think it was 15 at any one time. These reflected
replacements and so forth, as I recall, and it is just adding up every-
body who had access to it over that time, including the secretary, who
had the combination to the vault and things like that. No, it is not an
excessive number for a highly compartmented thing, because you
do need that many people to be involved in a particular activity. Some-
times, you have to have thousands involved in & highly compartmented
activity.

Seng;:or Scawerker. Would you have some kind of fail-safe mecha-
nism to make sure that one person could not just go on his own and do
it ? It seems to me you would have to have some check and balance here.

Mz, Corny. Well, in this case——

Senator ScawrIkEer. Just like the person that came to you and of-
fered the opportunity for you to use it.

Mr. Corey. Well, I think in this case, the material was in a locked
vault, a safe with a combination lock, three-numbered combination
lock. The combination was known to only specific people. It was con-
trolled, in a guarded building. It was quite a safe situation, except
from those people who had access to it. Now there, you depend then
on the discipline of the people involved, and as you know in this case,
it did break down at one point.

Senator Scawerksr. Mr. Chairman, I just had a point. I do not
know if this is the time to raise it, but X think we should at some point
inquire from the Army as to whether they can account for the 6 grams
of unknown toxin.

The Cmammaw. I agree, Senator, and we will do that. And I think,
in connection with your question, it ought to be observed that after
Mr. Colby and the present management of the CIA discovered these
poisons in the laboratory, that a 24-hour special guard was placed on
them, which would indicate that previous security arrangements were
not thought to be sufficient. And T think that speaks for tself.’

Senator Morgan? : :

Senator Morcax. Mr. Colby, we have referred to Presidents’ orders
to destroy these stockpiles. The only two orders that I have before me
simply renounce the use of the toxins, and also direct the Secretary of
Defense to make recommendations about the disposal of existing stocks.
Did the Secretary of Defense ever make-such recommendations?

Mr. Corgy. I do not know the answer to that. T believe the point that
the directive refers to is that the United States will renounce the pro-
duction or the stockpiling—and we are & part of the United States, as
far as T am concerned.

Senator Morean. And the next paragraph says, the Secretary of
Defense will submit recommendations. And my question is that this
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would break down the claim of authority, it seems. Did he ever make
any recommendations?

Mr. Corex. Well, obviously, Fort Dietrick was under instructions to
destroy the toxins it had.

Senator Moreaw. Have you seen any recommendations from the
Secrefary of Defense?

Mzr. Corex. I have not seen them.

Senator Morean. Do you have any in your files? :

Mr. Coupy. We may, and I will certainly make a search for them
and see if I can find them.

Senator Moreaw, Thank you.

The Caamraar, Senator Hart?

Senator Harr of Colorado. Mr. Colby, you stated in your opening
statement that your awareness of the existence of these materials came
after I think what you referred to as repeated directives. Would you
describe for the committee what kind of difficulty you encountered in
finding out about these toxins yourself?

Mr. Corry, Well, after we had the suggestion that there was an area
that needed to be looked at that was a questionable area, then Dr.
Stevens began to look for it. And eventually it was discovered. He did
not run into any attempt to conceal or hide at that point, after he
began to ask the right questions. The difficulty was that, for a couple
of years, starting with Dr. Schlesinger’s instruction, and then repeated
additional ones, to inform the management of anything questionable,
and individual items would keep coming to someone’s mind. Then we
could follow them up and find the details.

u Ser;ator Harr of Colorado. What if you did not ask the right ques-
1013 &

Mr. Corey. If you do not ask the right questions, you have to depend
ugon a record search. And sometimes, this then gets into the difficulty
of the available records and the cryptonyms, and that sort of thing.
Tha;: has been a problem. It is a problem we are going to have to
resolve.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Dr. Stevens, it is my understanding,
based upon Mr. Duekett’s testimony, that in your efforts to piece all
of this together, you inquired of people in the Agency who should have
Imown about this who discounted in 1963 the Inspector General’s re-
port about the existence of this capability, and said that it was not
really as serious as that report migﬁt have indicated. Is that, in fact,
what happened the first go-round?

Mr. Stevens. Generally, yes. X think they were not being untruthful,
but they put emphasis on aspects of the program that were not really
pertinent, and T think that’s really the reason why I failed to follow
up on that with more vigor at that time.

Senator Hart of Colorado. Mr. Director, you are satisfied that as
you pursued the other questions that I asked, that you found out all
of the so-called questionable activities? That is, you have asked all of
the right questions?

. Mr. Corey. No, I cannot say for absolutely certain. We are still ask-
ing the same questions to all of our people, and will continue to do so
frequently. And of course, an incident like this then reiterates the
necessity of getting our people to come forward. We are dealing some-
times In an area where there is nobody currently in the Agency who
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knows anything about it, and we are dealing with people who left the
Agency, and we do not have access to them. ) .

Senator Harr of Colorado. One final question in regard to vulner-
ability studies that we discussed earlier. I believe you testified that
these experiments or studies were conducted purely for defensive pur-
poses. To your knowledge, was there any indication or any thought in
the minds of those conducting the studies that we would malke them
operational or offensive at sore time?

Mr. Corny. I think the vulperability studies conducted by the De-
partment of Defense were basically defensive in their thought process.
I think the intelligence people were observing them and watching
them. I am not sure that they had a totally defensive approach toward
the possibility of clandestine implementation of some such idea some
day under some circumstances which might warrant it.

Senator Harr of Colorado. I think in the memorandum of Octo-
ber 18, 1967 [exhibit 6 1], identified as MEKNAOMI, clearly states that
anticipated future use of some of these capabilities were certainly
intended to be offensive. .

Mr. Corey. We are talking about a weapons system that the United
States was developing, and potential applications for it, and through
regular military force or through secret methods and during times
of war, and some such thing,

Senator Harrt of Colorado. So it was not purely defensive?

Mr. Covey. No, X do not think it was purely defensive. I think par-
ticularly the intelligence people who were observing it were thinking
of possible positive applications when appropriate.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Thank you. 'Iglank you, Mr, Chajrman.

The Cizamman. Senator Mondale has one final question, and Senator
Mathias has a final question.

Senator Monparr. Mr. Colby, we have a photograph, which I think
you have seen, of the containers in which the shellfish toxin was found.
On the top of each of these gallon cans is a label which says, “Dry
Muscle Poisons”; and it says, “Do not use unless directed by P600.”
‘(‘)];1 the second can, in large handwritten fiber pen letters, it says

600.”

Can you tell me who or what P600 is?

Mr. Corey. I am afraid I cannot at the moment, Senator. Really,
we are trying to find out, but we do not kmow.

Senator Moxpare. Mr. Stevens, you conducted a study for several
months as to what the chain of command and other responsibilities
are. Did you look into this question sbout who P600 is?

Mr. Stevens. Yes, sir, and we have been unable to find out what
that refers to.

The Cramrmaw. You do not know ¢

Senator Mowpare. You cannot find out who P600 was?

Mr. Stevens. My impression is that it is a designation used at Fort
Detrick. No one at the Agency is aware of what that refers to, no one
with whom I have talked.

Senator Moxpare. Did you check with Fort Detrick to see what
P600 meant ? °

Mr. Stevens. No, sir,we didn’t.

The Cmarmeman, I think this committee should follow up on that
question and see if we can get some information.

13ee p. 204.
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Senator Moxpare. Can you find out who or what P600 is for us?

Mr. Steverns. We will endeavor to do it, but the Defense Depart-
ment is in a much better position to talk to former Fort Detrick people
than we are,

The Crarrmax. We can talk to the Defense Department, I think,
and these photographs, of course, will be made public as part of the
public hearing today, and now Senator Mathias has the final question.

Senator MaTmias. Mr. Chairman, your last statement just suggests
one other very brief question. So we do not mislead anybody, could
you tell us in terms of some simple measure, how much of this toxie
substance was involved in teaspoons or tablespoons, for example.

Mr. Corey. Well, about 2 half an ounce is what the total is of the
11 grams.

Senator Maraias. It would be = couple of tablespoons!?

Mr. Corny. A couple of teaspoons, probably, 2 couple of teaspoons.

Mr. StevENs. A couple of teaspoons of sugar would constitute about
the same,

Senator Matrras. About 2 teaspoons of sugar because these pic-
tures would indicate sornething much more, because of the bulk of the
contamers.

Mr. Corey. Well, each of those bottles is about 4 inches high and,
of course, the substance is at the bottom. There’s a very small amount
of the substance at the bottom of each of these botiles.

Senator Matmras. We are dealing with such a highly lethal sub-
stance that 2 tablespoons is really what is involved here.

Mr. Corey. Yes; but it is highly potent.

. Senator Marmiss. Now, what T really began to ask, Mr, Chairman,
is this. It is my understanding that the Department of Defense estab-
lished very, very elaborate procedures for destruction of toxic ma-
terials at Fort Detrick, so elaborate, in fact, that they were considered
redundant by many scientists. Having destroyed all of the agents
once, they went back and did it three or four more times, and much of
this was done publicly to impress both the American people and other
nations that we had, in fact, renounced this form of warfare.

Did you have any such procedures within CIA or, first of all, were
You aware of the Department of Defense procedures ?

Mr. Coury. Well, most of our material is at Fort Detrick, so all the
?ﬁatena] except for what was pulled away from it, was destroyed up

ere.

Senator Matmias. Now, you were aware of those procedures ab
that time? ’

. Mr. Corex. The procedures up there, I cannot say that for sure. I
just do not know.

Mr. Srevexns. We have no capability to destroy that kind of material.

M. Corey. We cannot destroy it ourselves.

Senator Marmias. Were you aware of the DOD procedures that
were established ?

Mr. Stevexs. I am sure that the people working in this area were;
yes.
Senator MaTatas. At that time ?

Mr. Cory. At that time.

Senator MaTa1as. But you did not attempt to establish any parallel
procedures?
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Mr. Corey. No.

Mr. StevENs. We would never have destroyed it ourselves, but would
have relied on Fort Detrick,

" Mr. Corey. We would have gone to somebody who could destroy
it.

Senator MaTr1As. Just as you contracted with Detrick to produce it,
you would have contracted with Detrick to destroy it.

Mr. StevENs, That, in fact, is what happened with most of if.

The Caatrman. You must have been aware because the whole world
was made aware by the most elaborate television programs that were
intended to inform the world that these substances were, in fact,
being destroyed.

Senator Monpare. I was just going to suggest that if Mr. Stevens
could be around this affernoon, I would like to explore some things
with him. '

The Crarrmax. We have a problem I would like to explain at this
time which will affect the schedule. Tomorrow morning we will meet
again here-in this room to continue the public hearings, and our first
witness will be Mr, Richard Helms, who was the Director of the CTA
during the time in question, and other witnesses whose names have
already been made available will then be called as time permits.’

The public hearings will be held as they were today between the
hours of 10 in the morning and approximately 12:30. We are staying
pretty close to schedule, but this afterncon, owing to the fact, that one
of our scheduled witnesses has invoked a committee rule which Trwould -
like now to read, it will be necessary to hold a public hearing, but one
that will not be covered by live radio or television, by virtue of rule:
6.7 (b) of the committee, which reads as follows: )

No witness suzbpenaed by the Committee shall be required against his will to
be photographed at any hearing or to -give evidence or testimony- while the
broadeasting of that hearing by radio or television is being conducted. ‘At the
request of any twitness who does not 'wish to be subjected to radio, television,
or still photography coverage, all lens shall be covered and all microphones used
for coverage turned off. So far as practicable, & witness desiring to make such
2 request shall so inform the Chief Counsel of the Commiitee at least 24 hours
prior fo the time that that witness is scheduled to testify. o - :

Now, Dr. Nathan Gordon has so advised the chief counsel yesterday
and has invoked this rule. The committee, of course, respects the rule
and, for that reason, Dr. Gordon will be the witness this afternoon,
and for purposes of this afternoon’s session only live television, radio,
and photographic coverage will be prohibited. For that reason, I
think we should waif to bring back Mr. Stevens, if you wish to bring
him back, until tomorrow, but the first witness tomorrow will be
Richard Helms, and the committee will now stand adjourned until
2 this afternoon.

[Whereupon, at 12:45 p.m., the comimittee recessed, to reconvene at
2 p.m. thesame day.]

AFTERNOON SESSION

The Cramrman. The hour of 2 o’clock has arrived. The hearing
will come to order.

Pursuant to rule 6.7(b) the lights will be turned off ; let there be no
light. The live microphones and the television cameras will be turned
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off for the testimony that now will be taken by the witn
ess I am about
to call, Dr. Nathan Gordon. Dr. Gordon, will gou please come forward
and take the stand ? If you will please stand and take the oath. Would
tye(;l;i;?;?gy- };001:11' r;gh% ha;l;l, p.lease.‘i?% you solemnly swear that all the
s are about to give will be the truth, th
nothing but the truth, so hel%lyou God ? ith the whole trath, and
%%‘. gORDON. Sexijator Church, I do.
e CearrMAN, Doctor Gordon, do you b
yoild-_vvlsél " makg rptiahag s 40 you have any prepared statement
r. GorboN. Senator Church, X do h i
W?:I[‘Ill’ld Iéke to make at this time. ~ © e an opening statement 1
e CHarMaN. I have not seen your statement. Before you begin
to read it, I think that you should know of the committee rujie in c%zﬁ-
nection with opening statements, which is they should be limited to 10

minutes. If your written statement is longer than that, you may submit -

your written statement for the record. We would appreciate it if you
will then summarize it so that the 10-minute rule is observed.
Mr. Goroow. Thank you very mueh, sir. T would also request per-
ml':s[‘s}lloncto give you ‘;. conohﬁiing statement.
e Cmarrman. Very well; again subject i -
Spest o e . ¥ V ; ag ject to the same rule with re
Mr. Gorpon. X understand, sir.

TESTIMONY OF NATHAN GORDON, FORMER CHIEF, CHEMISTRY
BRANCH, TECHNICAL SERVICES DIVISION, CENTRAL INTELLI-
GENCE AGENCY

Mr. Gorpox. Gentlemen, I am appearing before this select committee
freely and willingly. I am here, not as a mystery witness or a secret wit-
ness. I acknowledge that I have heen served technically with a subpena,
but the record will show that I indicated to stafl that I did not neces-
sarily need a subpena; I would be happy to appear before the closed
session and the public testimony of my own free willL

I would like to dispel the myth that has been circulating around with
respect to a mysterious or secret witness.

The Caatrman. May I say, Dr. Gordon, that 2 subpena was issued
by the committee with the understanding that it was necessary.
Sug.‘;m rule that has been invoked is based upon the issuance of the

ena.

Do I understand you to say that you are here as a result of the issu-
ance of the subpena, or are you here on some other basis¢ I want you to
I;tt)low your rights under the rule, and I think I should read the rule to

.

Mr. Goroox. Please do.

The Crammax, The rule is rule 6.7. It has to do with lights and
broadeasting. It reads as follows:

A witness may ;eque_st on grounds of distraction, harrassment or physical dis-
coqurt, that during his ’gestimony television, motion picture and other cameras
and lights shall not be directed at him. Such reguest to be ruled on in aceord-
ance with Rule 2.4.

Part (b) of the rule reads:

b No witness subpoenaed by the Committee shall be required, against his will, to
e photographed at any hearing, or to give evidence or testimony while the broad-
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casting of that hearing by radio or television is being conducted. At the request of
any witness who does not wish to be subjected to radio and television or still
photography coverage, all lenses shall be covered and all microphones used for
coverage turned off. As far as practicable, 2 witness desiring to make such 2 re-
quest shall so inform the Chief Counsel for the Committee at least 24 hours prior
fo the time that the witness is scheduled to testify. i

So, the rule that we have invoked has to do with a witness subpenaed
by the committee.

Now you have been subpenaed by the committee?

Mir. Gorpon. Yes, I have, sir.

The Cratraran. Do you stand on that subpena ?

Mr. Goroox. I accept the subpena.

The Cuarrman. You accept the subpena ?

Mzr. Gorpon. Yes.

The Cuamryan. You accept your rights as a subpenaed witness, sir?

Mr. Goroox. Yes.

The Caatrman, All right.

Mr. Gorooxn. May I continue?

The CaatrMax. Now you may continue.

Mr. Gorpow. Let me start from the beginning, please, 1f I may.

I am appearing before this select committee freely and willingly, to
deseribe Tiy involvement in & classified project known as MKNAOMI.

I wish to state that I was a CIA employes, specifically, a chemist,
charged with the function of supporting and servicing operational re-
quirerments of the DDP—Deputy Director for Plans. Currently, I
believe the designated title, since the date of my retirement from the
Agency, September 80, 1972, it is the DDO-—Deputy Director for
Operations.

Tt was, and is, my belief that the Agency’s policy in this field of
behavioral materials was to maintain a potential capability—I empha-

- size, gentlemen, the phrase “potential cepability”’—in the event

the nced should arise to use these materials, biological and/or
chemical, operationally.

I shall also attempt to explain, in the course of this testimony, our
interpretation of the White House announcements on the subject of
renouncing all offensive preparations for, and any use by the United
States of biclogical or bacteriological agents and weapons, to include
toxins in war. I would emphasize the word *war.”

I shall also attempt to explain why we, in TSD/CIA—TSD being
Technical Services Division—made the decision to accept the shellfish
toxin in. February 1970 from the Special Operations Division of the
U.S. Army Biological Laboratories at Fort Detrick, Md.

T would also like to emphasize that to the best of my knowledge
there was never a, CIA directive, or any directive to my knowledge, that
impinged on the CLA to destroy biological agents or toxins.

This coneludes my opening statement, gentlemen.

The Cramumax. Very well, Mr. Gordon. T will ask our counsel, Mr.
Schwarz, to commence the questioning.

a Mre Scawarz. Mr. Gordon, as of 1970, what was your job at the

TA?

Mr. Goroow. I would like to counter that, if I may, by telling you a
little bit about the history of my employment with the CIA if the
committee would indulge me. .
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The Cramman. Can you answer the question and then tell us?

Mzr. Goroox. It would be a little more logical, Senator Church, if
you will allow me to give the history of my employment with the CIA.

The Cmamwman. Very well, if in doing so you will answer the
questions.

Mz, Gornow. Of course.

I joined the TSD/CIA in October 1967, as the Deputy Chief of
the Biology Branch of TSD. A few months later, in February 1968,
when my predecessor retired from the Agency, I assumed the function.
of the Chief of the Biology Branch of TSD.

In February of 1968, then, as Chief of the Biology Branch—I con-
tinued in that capacity through February of 1969, 1 year later. In my
judgment, and in my Division Chief’s judgment, we decided that the
Biological Branch—which was a two-man operation, myseli and Mr.
David Boston, a project officer, plus a technical consultant, Dr. Alex
Batlin, who would consult with us roughly once a week on all matters
pertaining to our interests in the Biological and Chemistry Branches,
because in February 1969, we merged the Biology Branch into the then
existing Chemistry Branch. And as of that particular day, February
1969, T assumed the function of Chief, Chemistry Branch.

I held that position until April 1970. At all times T also wore another
hat; that was entitled program manager of the behavioral activities
program.

In April of 1970 T reverted to the full-time occupation of wearing a
single hat; that of program manager for behavioral activities. I held
that particular position within the Chemistry Branch until the date of
my retirement from the Agency, which was September 30, 1972.

Now I hope that I have not neglected to come back to the point that
Mr. Schwarz made, and I will now be ready to answer it.

First, I would appreciate, after the few minutes of my discussion,
would you repeat your question, sir.

Mr. Scewarz. What was your job in 1970 with the CIA.?

Mr. Gorpox. What part of 19707

Mr. Scrwarz, Let us take February 1970.

Mr. Goroow. February 1970 I wag Chief of Chemistry Branch and
program manager of behavioral activities.

Mr. Scawarz. At that time was the chain of command running from
yourself to a Deputy Director of the TSD, then to Dr. Gottlieb, then
to Mr. Thomas Karamessines, who was the Deputy Director for
IfE_’Ilaj,[ns, Bthen from him to the Director of the Agency, Mr. Richard

elms? '

Mr. Goroow. That is correct, sir.

Mr. Scawarz. Do you remember being examined under oath by
deposition by the stafl on Saturday ?

Mr. Gornow, Yes, sir.

Mr. Scawarz. I am just going to read a couple of answers to you,
and ask whether they are your testimony. You were asked this ques-
tion : “Were you ever told that either the Director of the Central In-
telligence Agency, or the Deputy Director for Plans, instructed that
2111\? (’;,‘IA stock of biological warfare agents be destroyed?” Answer:

0.

Is that your testimony ?

Mr. Gorpoxn. That is correct, sir.
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Mr. Scawarz. Did you further testify in the afternoon session as
follows, from page 1—excuse me, page 2, of the afternoon session, as
follows: “There was never, to my knowledge, a CIA directive, or any
other directive that impinged upon the é%A. to destroy biological
agents or toxins.”

A further question, “When you say a CIA directive, what do you
mean?” Answer: “A directive prepared from the Director of the
CIA to the troops.” That is also your testimony ¢

Mr. Gorvox. That is correct, sir.

Mr. Scawarz., I would like to follow with you a moment, very
briefly, two problems. Some material that was in the laboratory be-
fore transferring material to Fort Detrick, and the other material that
came down from Fort Detrick. -

Starting with the laboratory material—that is, the material that
was already there. T will read to you from the morning session, your
answer with respect to your knowledge—I am not going to use the pre-
cise name of the laboratory : I am just going to call 1t “the laboratory,”
Dr. Gordon, if that is acceptable to you?

Mr., Gorpon, Surely.

Mr. ScEwaRZ.

Question. You did not know the speeific materials. You did know the general
nature of what was in the laboratory, is that not what you said?

Mr. GorpoN. Yes.

Question. The general nature included materials that-had been of interest as
incapacitants or lethal agents.

Mr. Gorpon. At one time or another.

Isthat right?

Mr. Goroon., I would address at this particular moment in time
the part relating to incapacitants as being the query to which I have
replied. I see in the record it says, “one time or another,” which includes
both incapacitants and lethal.

Subsequent in the testimony, I believe we will find that I was not
knowledgeable, to the best of my knowledge, prior to the time of
recelving the shellfish toxin of lethal agents, chemical agents in a
lethal category, our G agents—these are nerve gases—V agents, also
nerve gases. The mode of action differs in that G agents are being
volatile when inhaled cause death, and 'V agents are systemic, absorbed,
to the same effect. These are categories of chemical warfare agents.
There was never, to my knowledge, any of these kinds of materials in
the laboratory during my 5 years.

Biological agents, I am not aware of the existence of any lethal
biological agents in the laboratory during my particular tenure up
until the time I accepted the Agency’s stockpile of five grams in
February of 1970,

The Cramman. Five grams of shellfish toxin.

Mr. Gorpox. Let me explain thaf, Senator Church. T would welcome
a few minutes time, if T may—if the Chief Counsel would indulge
me—to dwell o few minutes on what I feel is apparently a critical
point in this particular testimony—— ‘

Mr. ScEwaRz. Are you going to turn to the transfer from Fort
Detrick? Because I would like to ask you one more question on the
laboratory before we get to that.

Mr. Goroox. Surely. .

Mr. Scawarz. You testified, and T take it it is still your testimony,
that vou did not search the laboratorvin 1970%
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Mr. Goroon. In 1970, sir, T did not search the laboratory. I might
also add that in my capacity as Chief of the Chemistry Branch in
1970, up through April of 1970, I relied upon Mr. Boston and the
project officer to carry on with the everyday, if you will, details of any
particular matters pertaining to that particular laboratory. )

I again repeat, I am not aware of any lethal agents, either chemical
or biological, in the laboratory prior to the time that we accepted the
CIA Agency stockpile of 5 grams of shelifish toxin.

Mr. Scawarz By the Jaboratory—by those answers, you mean the
CIA facilities here in Washington, D.C.?

Mzr. Gorpon, Yes.

Mr. Scuwarz. You testified this afternoon, as you testified on Sat-
urday, that you did not receive an order from the Director of Central
Intelligence, or anyone else, to search out and destroy the CIA’s
stocks of biological agents.

Mzr. Goroox. That is correct.

Mr. Somwarz, T am going to read to you now, Mr. Gordon, from
page 20 of the p.m. session, commencing on line 21, a question directed
to you-—of what you would have done with respect to the south
Iaboratory if there had been an order from the Director of Central
Intelligence, and the question and answer read as follows:

Question: “Had there been from the Director of the CIA an order that said
search out and destroy any biological agents, would you, under those circum-
stanees, have searched the south laboratory ?” Answer: “Very likely, very likely.
Yes; I would héve been g darned fool if I did not.”

And then you went on to give your explanation for the interpreta.-
tion of the order which we are going to come to.

But your testimony is, Dr. Gordon, is it not, that first, there was no
order transmitted to you from higher authority to search out and
destroy CIA stock of biological agents. Second, had there been so, you
would have searched the laboratory because you would have, as you
said, been a darned fool if you did not. )

Mr. Gorpow. To answer the first part of your question, it appears
to me—one moment pleage.

[Panse.] .

To the best of my knowledge, T never was aware of any CIA direc-
tive to search out and destroy any biological agents and/or chemical
agents at that particular laboratory.

On the second part of your question, I would repeat that if such an
order had been brought to my attention by the chain of command, I
would have been—I have been too long, T feel, 2 devoted team player,
civil servant, if you will, dedicated to my responsibilities and work.
I would never, never have ignored such a directive. .

Mr. Scawarz. Mr. Chairman and members, as you know, exhibit 2
is a CIA inventory which indicates that, in fact, in the laboratory there
were several lethal subsiances, including some of the shellfish toxin,
before the transfer from Fort Detrick occurred.

Now you did know that there was some kind of a Presidential order;
did you not, Dr. Gordon ?

Mr. Gorpon. May T be given, if the chief counsel and Senator Church
would indulge me, a 5-minute period to develop on that:particular
subject of the White House announcements in my own way?

BESNENNSESSNNNSNNSS__————————— S -
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The Crarraax. Yes; of course, Dr. Gordon. Just proceed, and then
we will follow your explanation with further questions.

Mr. Goroow. Thank you. I appreciate that, Senator Church.

On November 25, 1969, the White House Press Secretary released
actually two releases. I have copies of both here, and they are, I be-
lieve, exhibits 4 and 5 among your papers. 1 became aware of the sub-
stance of those announcements by reading an editorial in the Washing-
ton Post which expressed, in essence, the gist of exhibits 4 and 5, Both
appeared on the same day.

They pertained to the remarks of the President—the President
meaning President Nixon at that time—on announcing the chemical
and biological defense policies and programs. The other release of the
same date [exhibit 5] is simply entitled “A White House Statement
by the President.” In that particular sheet or announcement or instruec-
tion, under the category biological research program, it specifically
states that DOD—Department of Defense—has been asked to make
recommendations asto the disposal of existing stocks of bacteriological
Weapons.

It also, on the back page, indicated—and I think very properly—
the sentence, “Our intelligence community will continue to watch care-
fully the nature and extent of the biological programs of others.” I
particularly relate to that particular statement because of my previous
15 years’ experience in Army intelligence as Chief of the Chemical
Corps Intelligence Agency, first as Director of Technical Operations,
subsequently as Chief of the Atomic, Biological, and Chemical Division
when the Army was reorganized. In 1962, it became a part of the U.S.
Army Foreign Science and Technology Center.

So I had a keen, particular and satisfying feeling when I read that
statement in that sentence. Because it showed that, even though-—and
obviously, we saw the handwriting on the wall here—our country saw
fit, unilaterally as they did, to give up the biological warfare weapons

. System, military system, there was an element at the White House,

hopefully in Congress, that felt that certainly the intelligence capa-
bilities and/or intentions of any potential enemy in the field of bio-
logical warfare weapons systems should be followed and never stopped.

On February 14, 1970, a few short months after that particular an-
nouncement, an addendumn to the original November 25 announcement
was prepared by the White House. And in this particular announce-
ment, they referred to the November 25, 1969, announcement wherein,
the President renounced all offensive preparations for and any use by
the United States of biological or bacteriological agents and weapons
in war—and I emphasize again the phrase, in war—since that decision
at the direction of the President, the comprehensive review of the 11.S.
policy on military programs—I emphasize the phrase, military pro-
grams—concerning toxins has been in progress.

It goes on to describe what toxins are, and here we enter a gray area
which I will get back to in a moment, if X may. Within the remaining
parts of the text, snch phrases as method of warfare, military pro-
grams, biological methods of warfare, are used throughout the tenure
of the second, or February 14, announcement.

I urge strongly that this select committee please consider the Febru-
ary 14, 1970, announcement as a direct appendage to the Novem-

1 Heo p. 202.




R T e e 1
A T I s,

P S

P peatiur S el

ey o

e

s P it 4t a5
= latirarr—rasd £

58

ber 25, 1969, announcement. Because if this is not done—repeat—if this
isnot done, it is simply looking at the subject of toxins out, if you will,
in Jeft field, without any direct bearing or relationship to the original
announcements on biological or bacteriological agents and weapons.

Toxins are indeed a controversial subject. I am sure, in the course
of this public testimony, you will deem fit—T feel I do not know—to
call in an expert, certainly with far more expertise scientifically in
the f?&ld of toxins than myself. Those of us who are chemists, and
myself——
boThe Crammax. T might say, Dr. Gordon, we will have an expert on

xins,

Mzr. Goroon. Very good, sir. T applaud you for that.

The Chemistry Branch, sir, comprised of myself—a chemist—my
project officer, a chemist, and a technical consultant, also a microbi-
ologist/biochemist, all in discussions which I am sure will shortly
come out by chief counsel, looked upon specifically the shellfish toxin
as a chemical entity, a chemical substance, not of bacterial origin.
Toxins, indeed, are chemical substances, not living organisms, and are
so regarded by the Secretary General of the World Health Organiza-
tion. That is a statement right in the February 14, 1970 announcement.

This is a crucial point T make in this particular testimony. Because
of their consideration, we felt—myself, my project officer and techni-
cal consultant—that we were, indeed, considering g chemical substance,
not a biological agent, not a biological toxin, when the offer of retain-
ing and obtaining, and storing in a secure vault area, our own Agency
stockpile of 5 grams of shellfish toxin was made to us during the Jatter
part of February of 1970.

Parenthetically, may T please get into the record that everything T
am talking about is relying on no notes, but 514 years ago, hitting my
né:'ltnory banks {o the fullest extent, and it has been agonizing. I will
rest. )

The Cramvan. Mr. Schwarz, will you take up the questioning?

Mr. Scarwarz, I am not quite sure where we are. Let us talk about
MENAOMI quickly, and the decisior: to move the stuff down to CTA
facilities. You were aware, were you not, that Fort Detrick was a
center involved in biological warfare, right?

Mr. Goroox. Yes, sir.

Mr. Scawarz. Not chemical

Mr. Gornow. Its mission was not chemical—essentially biclogical
warfare. I parenthetically add, they were doing experimentation in
what I personally consider, my project officer and technical consultant,
to be considered gray areas. These are the shellfish toxins.

I m],%ht also take this opportunity to indicate that at the Edgewood
Arsenal, the chemical laboratory, a substance kmown as polytoxin
Wwas being researched, and they are still in research at this time, T am
aware, though ¥ am away from the field for a 3-year period. Polytoxin
and its insidious properties were being looked at; were derived, not
from o bacteria or a virus or a fungi, but 2 little sea animal known as
the seq anemone, that clings to the coral rock. And it is in fact collected,
extracted, and isolated.

An attempt at purification is made to get out and isolate an active
component, chemical component ; extremely complex protein chemistry
1s involved here. Again, I am sure—X will rest on that one. You will
hear at some future time in the next 2 days, 3 days, from an expert who
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I am sure will know fully and much more about it than myself, about
the intricacies of this type of research. )

Mr. Scmwarz. After you read about the President’s Initial order in
the newspapers, did you go and talk to Dr. Gottlieb? )

Mr. Goroox. November 25, 1969, after I obtained, by requesting a
copy of the White House press release from our administrative people,
I did go and talk to Dr. Gottlieb, to indicate to him that, in my opinion,
we were seeing the beginning of the demise of the military biological
warfare weapons systern.

Mr. Scawarz. Did he tell you, in effect, to wait and see what
happens? .

Mr. Goroox. To the best of my knowledge, that is an agreement
that we both had ; yes, sir.

Mr. Scawarz. After you read about the President’s order of Febru-
ary 14, 1970, also in the newspapers, did you again go and see Dr.
Gottlieb : .

Mr. Gorpoxw. After I read about that particular addendum in the
newspapers, if you will, I then proceeded to follow the same route,
and requested an actual copy that I have here as eshibit 5% which
I describe in this testimony on the subject of toxins, and went to
see Dr. Gottlieb to indicate to him—now, as a result of conversations
back between my project officer, technical consultant and wyself. I
might add parenthetically that this was a very small, closely held
technical group, and I must say, over the years, we had a fine working
relationship among each other.. While we would disagree among each
other, eventually a consensus would be beaten out, and we would
act accordingly on some technical matter. Coming back to Dr. Gottlieb,
in our discussion after that particular announcement, I proposed—

. and T suspect we collectively proposed and came up with the same

concept—that we betier study some options as to what we want done
with that particular classified project, MENAOMI. Because this
indicated to us, really, deepening the handwriting on the wall for
the demise of all biological agents and biclogical toxin research at
the U.8. Army Biological Laboratories at Fort Detrick, Md.

We then determined—and I did—that I would prepare a memo
for Dr. Gottlieb, and that is, I believe, exhibit 2. -

Mr. Scawarz. The exhibit numbers have been changed. Let me
help you out on that. You prepared & memo for Dr. Gottlieb himself,
but that no longer exists. Is that right, as far as you know?

Mr. Gorpon. Fine. Let me develop that; you are right.

I prepared a memo for Dr. Gottlieb, and indicated to him, upon
showing it to him, that this was a suggested option to consider.

Mr. Scuwarz. By this, you mean the transfer? I think I can
help you 2long, Dr. Gordon. By this as an option, do you mean trans-
ferring the material from Fort Deirick to a private company thaf
would hold it for the account of the CIA ? Is that correct?

Mzr. Goroox. Correct. ‘

Mr. Scawarz. Did Dr. Gottlieb ask you, after you discussed that
matter with him, to prepare a memorandum to that effect from Mr.
Karamessines to Mr. Helms?

Mr. Goroon. That is correct.

Mr. Scewarz, Did you doso ?

1 See p. 202.




—___—_“
E

60

Mr. Goroox. That T proceeded to do. As I indicated to you the other
day after the closed session, working my memory banks over the
weekend, I indicated to both you and Mr. James Johnston of your
staff that a piece of the memory bank seemed to have fallen rather
heavily, as I thought this thing through very carefully subsequent
to our conversation. Now it appears to me—and I may be wrong—
but it really sincerely appears to me that after Dr. Gottlieb received
the memos now prepared for Mr. Karamessines' signature to the
Director of the CIA, then Mr. Helms, that a day latér—to the hest
of my recollections, now—Dr. Gottlieb indicated that he would not
elect to send that memo forward for Tom Karamessines’ signature.
But instead, he right then and there—probably the next day, Febru-
ary 19—is making the decision that we would not go for the option of
transferring those materials to a private laboratory.

But instead, we would—and I concurred at that particular point—

get out of the classified project known as MENAOMI. Which meant,
a day or two later, I proceeded to go up to the—

Mr. Scawarz. Before we get to that, could we put in the record as
exhibit 1,* the draft Jetter from Karamessines to Helms. This }ncludes
the paralytic shellfish poison as an item that you were covering, and
that you knew that the Army was about to destroy.

Mr, Gorpow. Yes.

Mr. Scawarz. Did you then go there? ]

Mr. Goroox. I obtained approval to go up there in a day or so—¥
do not remember—but shortly thereafter, and met with the Command-
ing Officer of the U.8. Army Biological Laboratories and the chain
of command, fo include the Chief of the Special Operations Division,
the project officer for MKNAOMI at the Army, and inform the people
gathered on that particular day that it was our desire to cease operat-
ing the classified project MKNAOMI as of that particular day; which
meant that we would terminate the project that day, and all hold-
ings that they were holding for us as our Agency stockpile would
revert to the Special Operations Division or the Biological Warfare
Laboratories, to do with whatever they saw fit at their particular
discretion. R

Mr. Scawarz. Did someone from that laboratory—and if someone
did, please give his name-thereafter telephone you on the subject
of the shelifish toxin ? ) .

Mr. Gorpon. Yes. Some days later, I did receive a call-—again, to
the best of my recollection—from the project officer, Mr. Charles Sen-
seney, who indicated that they were making the following offer before
listing our stockpile for destruction, which was now a mandatory
DOD requirement, implemented as a result of the White House an-
nouncements to the Department of Defense, to destroy biclogical
stocks and biological toxins. The offer was made to us, would we want
to retain for our own potential agency use, whether it be suicide pills
or any other particular application of shellfish toxin, the § grams of
the agency stockpile? I indicated at that particular time that I thanked

them for the offer, I would be consulting with my small staff, and get.

back to them.
Mr. Scewarz. Did you get back to them and accept the offer?

% Sea p. 189.
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Mr. Goroow, After the consultation with my project office and
technical consultant, we agreed that the offer was valid for a number
of factors. We knew that many years of hard, costly research had
gone into the development of shellfish toxin and that those particular
quantities, 5 grams or more, were realistic quantities for purposes of
experiment, research and development, because if one had to.really, in
effect, study immunization methods for diseases vis-a-vis—who knows,
cancer, anything of that particular ilk, it would take a considerable
amount of this particular antigenic material to develop immunization.
So that we know that was a reasonable quantity for that kind of
purpose.

It certainly was not a reasonable quantity for, as it turned out in
my tenure, any operational requirements or needs during my tenure
with the agency. However, I might add that that particular quantity
of 5 grams of shellfish toxin had been on a list of material held for
us at Special Operations Division in Fort Detrick for many years be-
fore I ever entered the picture. And in retrospect, I can see clearly
now that our project officer just continued, ineluding myself, to con-
tinue the listing, shellfish toxin being one of the listing of about a
dozen or more different materials, never questioning the quantities that
were being held.

Mr., Scawarz. Did you do any research after it was brought down
to the CIA laboratory?

Mr. Gorpox, No, sir.

Mr. Scawarz. Did you do any research before it was brought down
to the CIA laboratory?

Mr. Gorpon. No, sit, I never opened-—1I am speaking for myself now.
Let me go back a minute. T did not quite finish,

I believe the agreement was made among my small staff that, con-
sidering that we were looking at a chemical substance or entity, and
since we did, in our considered judgment, make that judgment that
shellfish toxin was s chemical, we elected {o say yes to the offer. And
subsequently, it was hand-carried down to our laboratory.

We did not feel at that particular time, we did not feel the necessity,
because we were thinking in terms of a chemical substance, not a bio-
logical warfare agent or bacterial toxin. We did not feel the necessity
or need to inform our higher chain of command individual. We simply
had it placed in our secure vaulted laboratory, in a freezer, in the
original containers that were brought down to us, thinking, in all geod
faith, at the particular time of delivery that we would be given our
Agency stockpile quantity of 5 grams of shellfish toxin. At that point,
I might add, we did not have any idea as to the purity of that par-
ticular material, except comments like, “It is good stuff.”

Mr. Scawarz. You in fact not only got your material but more than

* 5 additional grams that belonged to someone else. Is that correct?

Mr. Gorvox. That is right. I learned of that in May or early June
of this particular year.

Mr. Scawarz. Did thev belong to the Army ?

Mz, Gorpox. The additional grams, by deduction, belonged to the
Special Operations Division of Fort Detrick Army Biological Labora-
tories.

Mr. Scawarz. Did you tell any of your superiors within the Agency
that you had retained this material ?
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Mz Gorvow. No, sir. .

Mr. Scewarz. I have nothing further, Mr. Chairman.

Mz, Gorpon. Because of the explanations I hope I amplified and
clarified.

The Crammrax. Mr. Smothers, do you have any supplementary ques-
tions before we go to the members?

Mr. Smormers. Yes, Mr. Chairman. Dr. Gordon, to the best of your
Imowledge, what kinds of substances were kept in this laboratory we
have talked about, the laboratory you worked in ?

Mr. Goroon. My predecessors—I suspect, Mr. Smothers, we are
going bdck about 10 years prior to my joining, so roughly, we are
talking, maybe, in the middle or late fifties—I suspect had 2 pen-
chant of a person who could be considered as a collector.

Mr. Smormzrs. When you are speaking of your predecessor, are you
speaking of Dr. Treichler?

Mr. Gorvon. Treichler was my immediate predecessor. And to the
best of my knowledge, it could have involved others also. But to get
back to your question, Mr. Smothers, the kinds of materials were, in
my opinion, considered as interesting samples of candidate chemical
substances that had been experimented with for some years at the
U.S. Army Chemical Warfare Laboratory at Edgewood, Md., things
of an incapacitant nature or some behavioral aspects. Some of the
things that interested us in the nature of incapacitating agents would
be, in effect, under the broad category of behavioral effects,

‘What were the physiological reactions? There are certain substances
that can give you a real severe case of the “tummy’s,” as we know it.
This has & potential application in the field. Tf we want to, in effect,
put an individual, shall we say, indisposed at a particular evening, at
a particular place, and any other scenario that you want to mention
along those lines. -

Essentially, these were the kind of materials, to my recollection and
knowledge. I never called for an inventory of the materials at the
laboratory. Frankly, I assumed that responsibility, or laid it on, if you
will, to the project officer. This was not carried out, because this was
not a research or testing laboratory. This was a storeroom, a secure, safe
vault storeroom. All substances behind glass containers, sliding door
panels were under lock and key. We were the custodians of the key.

Mr. Smorazsrs, You never inventoried the vault?

Mr. Gorvon. That is correct, sir.

Mzr. SyoraErs. Did you have any reason to believe that there were
lethal substances in the vault?

Mr. Gorpow. No, sir.

Mr. SymormERs. Was there any information in the transfer of control
to you from Dr. Treichler that should have put you on notice ag to
the presence of lethal substances?

Mr. Gorpox. None to my recollection, sir.

Mr. SmoTHEERS. Are you saying that you would not have any reason
to tell your superiors 1n the Agency that this would be a likely place
for the presence of lethal substances?

Mr. Goroox. May I have that question again, please?

Mr. SporaERs. Are you saying that you would have had no reason
to tell your superiors in the Agency, even after knowledge of the
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Presidential order, that this would be a likely place to search for
lethal substances?

Mr. Goroox. For lethal substances? Considering what I just indi-
cated to you, to the best of my knowledge that there were no lethal
substances, I would not indicate any point in searching for a lethal
substance, on the basis of my knowledge at that time.

However, if such an order came down, I would be possibly a little
bit foolish if I did not go through at least the steps of opening that
door, myself and my project officer, of taking a good hard Yook at what
was in that laboratory, something that X had never done and, I sus-
pect in retrospect, my project officer had never done.

Mr. SmormzERs. Did you from time to time receive substances from
Fort Detrick? Were they transported from Fort Detrick to your
facility?

Mr. Gorpox. Is that g general question. !

Mr. SmoTrers Any substances?

Mr. Gorpow. Yes. My project officer at the time had a project which
pertained to a dart tranquilizer for animals, specifically dogs. There
were certain substances of a temporary paralyzing nature, a chemical.
(S 4640, for example, has this kind of an effect. .

Prior to my joining, a very simplified, if you will, field dart dis-
seminating device had been developed, the purpose of which was to use
along with such a physical incapacitant chemical substance. And I sus-
pect some tests—and I am not sure of this, and I believe it did happen
before 1967—some tests had been conducted under controlled conditions
on dogs, and, I believe, successfully.

‘This s parallel to the kinds of military efforts that were going on at
the Chemical Warfare Laboratories. I might add that our own interest,
being charged with the responsibility of maintaining at all times a
technical interest, from the point of view of services support for any
future possible operational needs within the Agency, our interests
were parallel to what was going on at chemical warfare and hiological
warfare laboratories af all times.

The liaison had been established and maintained. We were invited
in to attend classified briefings from time to time. In effect, Mr. Smoth-
ers, what I am indicating to you is that we were making every sincere
attempt to stay abreast technically of the state of the art.

Mr. Smorarrs. Dr. Gordon, you knew of the existence of lethal sub-
stances, did you not? You knew of the existence and the development
of lethal biological and chemical agents?

Mr. Gorpown. To an extent, certainly. To a full extent, possibly not.

Mr. Ssormers. Did you have any knowledge of where these agents
were being kept, stockpiled or stored

Mr. g}om)oN. ‘We are talling about chemical agents and biological
agents?

Mr. SmoreERs. Yes; we are.

Mr. Gorpor. Tomy knowledge, during the tenure that T served with
Army Intelligence in chemical and biological warfare, yes, sir, I was
aware of locations, classified locations of military and hiological agents
and chemical agents.

Mr. Smorezrrs. Were these materials being stored by the Army or
the Department of Defense ?

Mr. Goroox. These materials were being stored by the Army/DOD.
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Mr. Syroraers. Did you have any reason to believe that stockpiles
were belng stored by the CLA ?

M. Gorpon. No, sir,

Mr. Smorrers. The laboratory we alluded to or elsewhere ¢

M. Gorpox. Lethal agents?

Mr. SmormzErs. Yes. .

Mr. Gorpox. There were no lethal agents going into the laboratory
until we agreed to accept our own Agency’s stockpile of 5 grams or
subsequently, now, it turns out to be 11 grams of shellfish toxm, in our
judgment, again, a chemical entity, a chemical substance.

Mr. SyorrErs. Was it your belief, then, that if the Department of
Defense had complied with its own directive, that, with the exception
of the shellfish toxin you received, all other stockpiles of lethal agents,
even those belonging to the CIA, would have been destroyed?

Mr. Goroon. I think T did not get your question, could you repeat it ¢
Are you making a statement or a question, sir?

Mr. SmoraERS. I can do either one. It was your testimony that you
believe that all the lethal agents being held for the CIA were being
held by the Department of the Army or DO, as you said. My ques-
tion then, was it your belief at the time that, with the exception of the
shellfish toxin which you received from Fort Detrick, all other stock-
piles of lethal agents would be destroyed ?

Mr. Goroon. Lethal biological agents.

Mr. Smorrers. Or a chemical ?

Mr. Gorpox. No, sir, lethal biological agents.

Mr. Smorrrrs, Lethal biological agents? -

Mr. Goroow. There is nothing in the record indicating destruction
of chemical agents.

Mr. Smoreers, All lethal biological agents would be destroyed as a
result of the Executive order. .

Mr. Gorooxn. Yes, sir.

Mr. SmormERS. At the time that you had agreed or you proposed
the retaining of this material, did you have occasion to indicate to
anyone higher than your laboratory that there had been some discus-
sion with the Army regarding CTA retaining the Armv stockpiles?

Mr. Gorpox. Mr. Smothers, because we consider shellfish toxin as a
chemical material and not as a biological material and/or bacterial
toxin we felt we are simply looking at a highly lethal chemical agent
which would be secured in 2 maximum security vault.

The Cmamrman. Dr. Gordon, I find your testimony rather astound-
ing. You say that you and your fellow scientists decided to retain the
shellfish toxin and indeed to accept additional quantities of 1t from
the Army.

Mzr. Goroow. Unbeknownst to me, sir. That is a fact, it happened.

The Caarmrmarw. It isa fact, it happened ¢

Mr. Goroow. Correct.

The CraAmMAN. You and your associates decided to retain this toxin
although you knew that it might very well have been a violation of the
President’s order because by your own testimonv you have just told
us that you asked, you discussed with Mr. Gottlieb and Mr. Gotilieb
was going to prepare for Mr. Karamessines 2 memorandum to the Di-
rector in which this very question was raised and an option was given
to the Director to store it with a private firm. So it must have been in
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your mind that this toxin was highly questionable in view of the order
that the President had given.

Mr. Gorpox. That is not correct in my interpretation, sir.

The CuamrMan. If it is not correct, why raise the question and sug-

- grest the option to the Director ?

Mr. Gorvoxn. At that particular time, we had considered the option
of whether we wanted to keep all of the agency’s stockpile, including
the shellfish toxin. There were a dozen or so biological agents and a
few other kinds of toxins. We wanted to consider the option as to
whether or not we should retain our own materials which were not
going to be placed on a Department of Defense destruction list. They
were being held for us. If the decision was made by higher authorities,
and eventually Sid Gottlieb elected to make the decision, that he would
not go for the option if a decision had been made by higher authorities
to move that stockpile, I would have had no compunction to have done
80

The Crarrman. According to your testimony, you did not give au-
thorities a chance to make that decigion because Mr. Gottlieb and you
and your associates decided to do it on your own.

Mr. Goroon. Senator Chureh, I have prepared and you have a copy
of the memorandum [exhibit 12] with Dr. Gottlieb’s approval for
that memorandum to be signed by Mr, Karamessines to the Director.
And Dr. Gottlieb’s judgment—to the best of my recollection, he de-
termined that it did not need to go forward. He would make a de- .
cision and he elected not to take that option and indeed that we would
once and for all get out of the classified project at the Special Opera-
tions Division at Fort Detrick.

The CramryMaN. You would retain the poisons and tell no one?

Mr. Goroox. Negative, That particular sequence, Senator Church,
with all respect, is a consequence which occurred after the fact. At that
particular time it was our intention simply to have Fort Detrick, as
I indicated, terminate that project and take all the materials that they
wanted. When the phone call——

The Crairmaw, Let us not get into a discussion of points in time
because before this proceeding was over you got a phone call from
the Army. They made suggestions and you finally decided to keep the
stuff and not tell higher authorities about it. Is that not true?

Mr. Goroox. Because it was not considered, in our judgment at the
branch level, anything but a chemieal poison.

The Cmamman. That is very curious because everybody else we
have talked to including the experts are of the opinion that it clearly
was of a kind of biological poison or toxin that came within the Presi-
dential order.

Mr. Goroon. Do you know where the material that was used for
Gary Powers’ suicide weapon-came from? It came from Edgewood
Arsenal.

The Caammax. What does that have to do with the question?

Mr. GorooN. It means that it is a chemical considered substance that
was utilized and obtained from a chemical warfare laboratory. This
1s the kind of thing—excuse me Senator Church—this is the kind of
thinking that chernists have used. I indicated earlier in testimony that
we are getting into a gray area. Admittedly, it is a gray area.

18eep. 189,
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The Caamyawn. Ifit isa gray area?

Mr. Gorpon. Yes, sir. o

The Crarmax. If you, by your own admission, say it is a gray area,
why then, in view of the Presidential order, did you take it upon your-
selves to decide to set this poison aside? Lo

Mr. Goroow. The Presidential order, Senator Church, as I indicated
earlier, In our judgment, did not pertain to the CTA. It pertained to the
Department of Defense. .

‘The CrarMan. That is not the judgment of the Directors of CIA.

Mr. Goroow. T understand that, sir, but we are talking in terms of
February of 1970. . .

The CrarMaN. Is it not true, Dr. Gordon, that you disagree with
Mr. Nixon’s order?

Mr. Gorpox. No, sir.

The Cramaan, Well— .

M. Gorpox. I was not a Department of Defense employee. I did not
fecl under the obligation, Senator Church, to be responsible for the
DOD directive, indicating destruction of bacteriological agents or
bacteriological toxins. . .

The Cramrmax. I call your attention to your testimony given under
oath on Saturday, page 50 of that testimony from the morning record,
if you would go to line 24 on page 50. Qur counsel, Mr. Schwarz, asked
you the following question. . .

“Let us be clear what we are talking about. President Nixon had
decided that the United States should destroy biological toxins.
Right #”?

ﬁnd you answered, “right.” Then Mr. Schwarz said, “The matter
you discuss that some new President or administration official might
come along and say, we would like to have such stuff in order to kill
people. Isthat right ?”

And you answered, “that is right.” . .

“But again, this is conversation in the philosophical category, that
iz all?

Mr. Gornon. I do not see anything wrong with a group of people
like myself, my project officer and technical consultant—by the way,
Senator Church, I would appreciate if you do not already have the
testimony of my technical consultant, Dr. Alex Battin, you should get
in the record his viewpoint as to whether shellfish toxin is considered
a chemical substance. I think he considers it such. In our discussions
we are certainly—— ) ]

The Cmamman. Senator Mondale has 2 point to raise on that very
question.

Senator Mownpare. T would like to point out that the whole reason for
the February 14 memo from the President was to solve the issue that
you continue o raise. I quote from the President’s announcement [ex-
hibit 5] of February 14, he said, “Moreover though toxins of this
type useful for military purposes could conceivably be produced by

chemical synthesis in the future the end products would be the same
and their effects would be indistinguishable from toxins produced by
bacteriological or other biological substances.” .

Tt continues, “the President has further directed the destruction of
all existing toxins.” Moreover, by the National Security memorandum

3 See p. 202.
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44, the Secretary of Defense will submit recommendations concerning
the disposal of existing stocks of toxins, weapons, and agents.

_No, 1, “the United States will renounce the production, for opera-
tional purposes, stockpiling, and the use in retaliation of toxins pro-
duced either by bacteriological or biological processes or by chemical
synthesis.” In other words, the whole reason for the February 14 memo
was fo settle the dispute which you continually raised as a defense and
that memo was directed, among others, to the CIA. That is the whole
Teason.

Mr. Goroox. I have never been aware of that memo. The only thing
I alluded to——

Senator Moxpate. What about the public statement? Were you
aware of that?

Mr. Goroox. No, sir. The only thing I am alluding to is what I have
indicated to you and the testimony, both in closed session and publie,
and I have it in front of me and furthermore it says in that same Febru-
ary 14, 1970, directive that the United States will confine its military
programs for toxins.

I think that really the point is being pushed in my humble opinion
to include the CIA in this particular category of a Department of
Defense responsibility.

The Cmamuman. Well, Dr. Gordon, if you viewed it as merely a
Department of Defense responsibility, why did you accept from the
Department of Defense toxins that clearly should have been destroyed?

Mr. Gorpon. The toxins that we accepted at that particular time,
thinking that it was our own Agency stockpile, 5 grams to be held all
those years for us, was considered as a chemical substance, Senator
Church, in our judgment. And that is the reason.

The (gHA]:RM.‘AN. You knew the Army was going to destroy it, did
you not ?

Mzr. Goroon. The Army has still retained for experimental purposes,
Iread, a little bit over 4 grams.

The Caamrman. You know they gave you this toxin so it would not
be destroyed. If they had not given it to you, they would have de-
stroyed it pursuant to Presidential order. You knew that.

Mr. Goroox. I could not speak for what they would have done or
not. They asked if we wanted our particular stockpile, and after care-
ful deliberation and consideration among our staff and T indicated this
to you, this is the particular rationale that we opted for in taking it
%nd_ considering it as an ordinarily highly lethal chemical agent. And

wish—

The Cramuan. This is the other outstanding part of your testimony.
When a second Presidential order was issued just to clear up any
question about the inclusion of this shellfish toxin in the directive
that none of these directives were passed down through the Agency
to you and that you testified about your knowledge of the Presidential
directive on the basis of what you read in the newspaper. That is your
testimony, is it not ?

Mr. Gornow. That is my testimony and I repeat that I never saw——

‘The Cmamman. I did not say that is your fault, but that is an
astounding thing.

Mr. Goroow. That is so.

The Caamrmax. That is so. Senator Tower ?
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Senator Tower. You received no direct order to destroy the sub-
stance. Is that a fact or is it not ?

Mr. Goroow. That isa fact, sir. ]

Senator Tower. In fact, you asked the DCI for permission to retain
and store these substances.

Mr. Gorpox. I did not seek additional guidance or consent from any
of the chain of command higher than myself as chief of the chemistry
branch to obtain and store the highly lethal shellfish toxin, which we in
our technical judgment, considered as a chemical agent, sir.

Senator Tower. What about Gottlieb? Did anyone propose to the
DCI that this material be retained ?

Mr. Gorpox. Dr. Gottlieb was not informed, Senator Tower, that the
lethal shellfish toxin was being offered, received and stored in a secure
vault in the laboratory, since we in the branch, myself, project officer
and technical consultant made the judgment that we were considering
shellfish toxin as a chemical agent, highly lethal, but a chemical agent.

Senator Tower. Are you saying that you never had any indication of
Helms rejecting the notion of retaining the substance ?

Mr. Gorpox. This specific substance ?

Senator Tower. Yes.

Mr. Goroon. He could not in my humble opinion have made that
kind of a statement because of the fact, as T indicated, Senator Tower,
we did not, considering we were talking in terms of a lethal chemical,
we did not in our judgment feel that we, we were in need of inform-
ing anyone.

Senator Tower. You were aware that you were not to retain lethal

chemicals?

Mr. Goroow. I am not aware of any directives indicating that a
lethal chemical could not be retained or stored. .

Senator Tower. Do we not normally classify a chemical and a bio-
lo%éfal agent together ?

r. Gornow. No, sir. That is a separate and distinct entity. There is
a chemical warfare laboratory which still today does research in chemi-
cal agents. There is a munitions system still under development for
chemical agents. There is a stockpile in the military for chemical
agents, both incapacitating and lethal.

Senator Towzr. Were you not aware that the order category in-

cluded both chemical and biological agents?
_ Mr. Gorpon. No, sir. We made a distinct distinction, if I may put
it that way, between the fact that in our judgment this shellfish toxin
was a lethal, highly lethal, chemical agent. And we took the proper
steps to put it in our freezer, secure it, store it. I must say, over the
years, Senator Tower, we have never had to my knowledge, in the
period 1967 through 1972, any call for those kinds of materials.

That was in essence an example of maintaining to the best of our
technical ability, maintaining the technical capability in behavioral
mate&rials in the event that the need should arise to use these materials
one day. )

Senator Tower. Let me ask you whether a substance is classified as
generically chemical or generically biological, can they not be applied
to achieve the same kind of results. They are both a specific means to a
common end, are they not?
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Mr. Goroon. Senator Tower, I have to say yes; and I have to qual-
ify it. T must say I still feel the sharpness somehow of some of the
questions, and properly so, of Senator Church, and, Senator Tower,
may I indicate to you that technically that we always make a distinc-
tion between chemical and bioJogical agents. Now there are gray areas
and this toxin, this particular substance, in our judgment, falls into 2
gray area, depending on who you will be talking to in the public tes-
timony in the next 3 days, depending on his viewpoint, I fee] certain
that you will find the testimony being given to indicate both sides of
the question.

Senator Tower. If indeed this falls into a gray area or could be con-
strued as falling into a gray area, was there not a certain responsibility
on your part to Inquire as to whether or not that was included within
the purview of the order to destroy these chemieal substances?

Mr. Gorpox. Again, relying upon discussions with my project officer
and technical consultant, both tec]inical peopie in the field of biological,
chemical warfare, including my own knowledge and judgment, we
made the decision at that particular level. Senator Church has asked
who made the decision. We made the decision at the particular branch
level that we were indeed considering and looking at = letha] chemical
agent. We were not aware of any particular ban on lethal chemical
agents and in all good conscience, in all good conscience and judgment
we elected to retain that particular kind of material as a lethal agent
in our laboratory in a secure vault condition at all times. In the event
that one day we would be cailed upon to prepare supplies of suicide
pills and/or any other uses that could be considereg from a higher
level of authority than my own, certainly, for operational use of thege
materials.

Senator Towzrr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cramman. Senator Mondale.

Senator Monpare. Dr. Gordon, the National Security Decision
Memorandum No. 44 [exhibit 8 1], dated February 20, 1970, says:

The President has decided that: the U.S. will renounce the production for
operational purposes, stockpiling end use in retaliation of toxins produced either
by bacteriological or biological processes or by chemical synthesis.

The public anrouncement on February 14 entitled “U.S. Policy on
Toxins™ says among other things:

The President has decided that the TUnited States will confine its military
programs for toxing, whether produced by bacteriological or other biological
methods or by chemical synthesis, to research for defense purposes ounly, such as
to improve techniques of immunization and medical technology. The President
has directed destruction of all existing toxin weapons.

In light of that National Security memo——

Mzr. Goroon. Excuse me, Senator Mondale, I have a question in that
particular last paragraph, sir, where the words—1Is that the same para-
graph that I am looking at, sir, if you will indulge me. Does it read the
United States will confine its military programs for toxins?

Senator Morspare. Right.

Mr. Gorpor. Military programs, sir.

Senator Mowpare. That 1s right. Had you ever heard of either one
of those paragraphs, either in the National Security memo or the Presi-
dent’s public announcements?

1 See p. 210.
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Mr. Goroow. T have & copy. :

Senator Moxnpare. Did you at the time? Were you aware of the
formulation of the President’s orders which specifically settled the
issue of chemical or nonchemical basis for toxins?

2 MI‘; Gorpon. Are you referring to the National Security Memoran-
urn ?

Senator Mownavre. Either one. Both say the same thing. The toxins
would be defined as toxins whether created biologically or chemically.
Were you aware that that policy decision settled the question that you
seem to be raising?

Mr. (Gorbox. In our interpretation, we did not put the emphasis that
you have just placed on that particular paragraph, sir.

Senator MoxpaLe. What emphasis?

Mr. Gorooxn. In our judgment, we put consideration for that the
shellfish toxin was indeed to be considered in the category of a chemical
substance or a chemical entity, regardless of how it was derived.

Senator MoxpALE. So you would say that because you did so, it did
not come within the meaning of either the National Security memo or
the President’s announcement.

M. Gorooxw. T felt it did not come in the purview of the President’s
announcement of February 1970 and I cannot address myself to that
National Security memo. I have never seen it.

Senator Moxpare. Since the President had decided to reduce the
programs, both biological and chemical, how do you arrive at the posi-
tion that the shellfish toxin does not come in that definition ?

Mr. Goroow. Senator Mondale, we were not in a military pro-
gram——

Senator Monpare. T understand the chemical thing. We were taling
your second defense, the military. I want to know whether you are still
sticking with the chemical defense, even though the Presidential direc-
tives clearly settled that issue? If so, how?

Mr. Goroon. All T can say to respond to that particular query is
that we saw, in our own judgment this particular substance as a chemi-
cal lethal agent.

- Senator Mowparz, Did you further decide that because you saw it in
that light, that it does come within this order, even though the order
says, toxins produced by chemical synthesis. Tf so, how could you con-
clude that

Mr. Goroon. Because we tied it in with the previous statement that
the United States will confine its military program for toxins.

Senator Moxpare. All right, We will set aside our chemical argu-
ment, because really you are basing your defense on the grounds that
1t 1s not a military program. Is that right ’

Mr. Goroon. This was a part of our consideration.

Senator Moxpare. Can we then set the chemical argument aside?

Mr. Goroox. No, sir.

Senator MoxpaLe. Why?

Mzr. Gorpox. Because we feli strongly, and continue to feel, that this
was a chemical substance.

Senator Mownpane. I know that is what they said, by biological or
chemical synthesis.

Mr. Goroow. Shellfish toxin is not, in the truest sense of the term, a
synthesis. It is a complicated process, starting with an algae and clams.
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Senator Moxpare. When you say it is a chemical substance——

Mr. Gorpon. A chemical substance, sir. o i

Senator Mowpare. The second paragraph of the Presidential public
announcement says, “Toxins are chemical substances, not living orga-
nisms and are so regarded by the T.N. Secretary General of the
World Health Organization” That being true, is it not clear that the
President intended it to mean such things as shellfish toxins derived
from a chemiecal synthesis or substance ¢ .

Mr. Goroox. I would have to say, in listening to your detailed ex-
planation, Senator Mondale, that that is true. I also have to say
that—and it has been some time, as you know, since we examined this
particular thing—I am trying to restructure it at some length, and
m detail. Qur thinking here—we were swayed, it would appear to
me, by the phrase, military programs. .

Senator Moxparx. Let us turn to that defense, and I will not go into
this, but I think the reading of the proposed Karamessines memo
clearly reflects—and I believe that was prepared by you; was it not?

Mr. Gorpox. Yes, sir. .

Senator Moxpare. Clearly reflects that you understood this toxin
to be included in the Presidential order. In any event, another defense
you have for not destroying the toxin is that it was not a military
program ; is that correct

Mz. Gorpox. That is correct, siv.

Senator Moxpars, What is it, then ¢

Mr. Goroox. It was a substance which we felt being in the category
of a chemical could be used at some future time for whatever opera-
tional need or desire on the part of higher authorities within the
CIA, and we know that it had an application in the preparation of
previously prepared suicide weapons or devices.

Senator Moxparg. It says it can only be retained for research or
defensive purposes, such as improving techniques in immunization
and medical therapy.

Mr. Gorpox. Again, applied to military programs.

Senator MonparE. So it does not come within that exception. It
comes within the military exception; is that right?

Mr. Goroox. In our opinion, Senator Mondale. .

Senator Moxpare. So what the CIA was involved in was not
military?

Mr. Gorpox. The CIA is not a military organization. It is not,
nor has never been charged with the functions of the Department of
Defense. Yes; it is not: a military organization.

Senator Moxpare. Would you say that your memorandum proposed
for Mr. Karamessines reflects this viewpoint that you are not covered?

Mr. Gornon. At the particular time of that memorandum, a dis-
cussion on this particular point had never taken place. That particu-
lar memorandum was described as an option which we had considered
between Dr. Gottlieb and myself as one for consideration. And as I
indicated earlier, that option was decided against, and at a subsequent
point in time, the offer was made to receive the shelifish toxin.

Senator Mowxpare. That means something, and it indicates thab
you had a hot item that you did not want to destroy. The National
Security memo——

Mr. Goroon. That is not my opinion, sir.
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tor Mowpare. I recognize that. It was directed to the CIA, as
we?fnf&s far as I'm concerned, based dpon your testimony, the only
conceivable way that the Pres&dvint d?ou'lt(}il have his order executed was

over for dinner and plead with you. .

toll\lﬁ".ngglllnorr. If there was a CI?IA directize that did not exist at that
particular time, implementing the White House directive for the De-
partment of Defense, I have no doubt, at that Partmula,r mstanc]x:i,
the proper steps would have been taken, and this day, there Wou1
not be 3 discussion of the subject of shellfish toxins, Senator Mondale.

Senator Mowpare. Thank you, Mr. Chalrman. .

The Crammax. In effect, you say it was a failure of higher au-
thority within the CIA to properly direct you that led you to the
decision ? .

Mr. Goroox. I cannot place the blame on Mr. Helms® shoulder.

The Cmairman. Where does the blame lie? You say it does not lie
with you? If you say it does not lie with Mr. Helms, where does the
blame lie ? ) ) .

Mr. Goroox. You asked the question, who in the CIA made the
decision, Now you know that it was the Chemisiry Branch Chief, the
project director, and his technical consultant.

The Cramman. The blame lies with you? . .

Mz. Goroox. The blame lies with the group I have just specified.

The CHaTRMAN. Ver_g Wé]’:il. Senhaitoré\hf[agzhms.

Senator Maruiss. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .

Dr. Gordon, I think you tmiﬁed that you had been to Fort Detrick?

Mr. Gorpox. Yes, sir.

Senator Marmias. Did you go there frequently?

Mr. Goroox. I would sy, Senator Mathias, during the course of a
year—and this is somewhat tenuous—certainly less than a dozen times
a year. ‘

ySena:tor Marmzas. Did you know Dr. Housewright, for example?

Mr. Goroow. Yes; I did, sir. . .

Senator MaTrras. Did you have occasion to talk with the Detrick
staff by telephone on occasion, in addition to your visits?

Mr. Gorpow. At times, sir. . . .

Senator MaTmzas. In other words, you had a working relationship
with the Detrick organization ¢ . .

Mr. GorooxN. My project officer more than T, sir, at that particular
point in time. I am sorry to overuse that particnlar phrase. .

Senator MaTaras. Were you aware that, following President Nixon’s
decision of November 25, 1969, an interagency group was assembled to
consider the very question of the definition of toxins?

Mr. Gornox, No; T was not, sir. .

Senator Maru1as. That this Valentine’s Day memorandum did not
issue just out of the goodness of President Nixon’s heart on Valen-
tine’s Day, but it was the considered judgment of a number of scien-
tists in the Federal establishment? )

Mr. Goroox. T will agrec to that, sir. Yes,sir.

Senator Mara1as. You did not know that at the time ?

Mcr. Gornon. I did not know that at the time. )

Senator Marrzas. Even with your relationship with the people af
Fort Detrick, this never came to your attention ?
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Mr. Gornox. No, sir. Again, Senator Mathias, T would Jike to repeat,
hopefully not ad nauseum, that in our judgment we considered this
particular announcement directed only at the Department of Defense.

Senator Martrias. Again, I do not think either of us gain anything
by repeating arguments already made. As Senator Mondale pointed
out, this was a decision that was lifted from your shoulders. This was
a decision that had been made Government-wide, after an interagency
study by Presidential order.

Mr. éORDON. May I point out something, Senator Mathias? I think
that it is somewhat unfair to take this February 14 announcement in
and by itself without always looking back to the November 25, 1969,
announcement, because the February 14 announcement, as you put it,
sir, the Valentine’s Day announcement, is a natural extension of the
November 25 announcement, which includes the sentence “I have or-
dered the Defense Department to make recommendations about the
disposal of existing stocks of bacteriological weapons.”

This, I think, is, again to our judgment, a clear mandate, and again,
the other version of the November 25 announcement—that the DOD has
been asked to make recommendations as to the disposal of existing
stocks of bacteriological weapons. The toxins, again, in our judgment,
despite Senator Mondale’s explicit pointing out to me the statement
about the chemical synthesis, and so on—I think these have to be put
into a package for any discussion and consideration, because, again,
this 1s the only way we make a judgment, by putting these papers
together, examining them carefully, agonizing over them, disagreeing,
agreeing, and finally, making the conclusion that, indeed, we were
looking at a lethal chemical agent, no different than any of the other
highly toxics, but certainly, to be respected as a V agent, or a ( agent.
. Senator Mareras. You see, Dr. Gordon, this is exactly what I think
1s concerning the members of the cormittee. We do put the Valentine’s
Day announcement in context with the November 25 announcement.
‘We take into consideration the fact that there is an interagency study,
created by order of the President of the United States. We take into
consideration the high office that you held, as one of the prineipal of-
ficers of the CIA, charged with kmowledge and responsibility in this
area, and you come to us, and you tell us that you have not even heard
of the existence of the interagency group.

Just let me finish. You will have plenty of time. T want to make this
point, because this may not reflect on you, giving the thing the best
gloss you can give it. T have spent 2 good many years in the Navy,and T
know there is always somebody who does not get the word, and ap-
parently you were that guy in this instance. That is the best gloss we
can put on it. That is enormously concerning to us.

Let us leave Dr. Gordon out of it as an individual, Let us talk about
people. When somebody does not get the word, serious problems can
arise, in the course of any operation, and one of the objects of this
committee is to try to find out where these short circuits were, why
they occurred, how we can prevent them occurring again. Because
obviously, when they occur at the high level of responsibility that you
occupy at this time, they can have serious national consequences.

Mr. Gorpow. Thank you, Senator Mathias. I would like to state, with
all due respect to the description that you have placed upon my par-
ticular function, at that particular time that I was a chief of a branch,
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a chemist, who had the technical responsibility of performing a sup-
port end service function for the Technical Services Division, in
tesponse to any possible future use, operational requirements, if you
will, of the DDIg. Certainly, I agree, I was not in a pelicy position.
Certainly I would agree—and I do not think that you would expect
me to be privy to a National Security memorandum, or any other
possible highly placed documents of that particular sort. .

Senator MaTHIAs. Just to refresh your recollection, the Valentine’s
Day press release from the White House, which was issued at 6 p.mn.
that day from the press office at Key Biscayne said in part, the
President has further directed the destruction of all existing toxin
weapons.” . )

Mr. Goroon. Within the DOD-—ves, sir, that is correct. Asa——-

Senator Mazmtas. It was not so limited. We have been over that.

Mr. Gorpon. Right, sir. Exactly. .

Senator MaTazas. Let me ask you this question——

Mr. Goroox. Yes, sir. ) . )

Senator Marnias. Was the transfer an idea that originated with

ou, or did the Army suggest it to you? o
Y Mr. Goxvor. Thg Sf),gcial Opgr'a,tions Division of the Biological
Laboratories, Fort Detrick, Md., suggested it, sir.

Senator MaTHras. What did they actually say to you, to the best of
your recollection ? . . )

Mr. Grorpox. Would we consider taking, in effect, in the repository
of our own, the CIA stockpile of, as I understood it, b grams Irom our
old listings, of the shellfish toxin, and the reason being because—and
1 think it was generally agreed—we all had a keen agprecmplon of
the extreme cost, resources, material, personnel that had gone m over
2 10-year period for these materials. o

I would like to add that since this has become publicized, I have
read in the newspapers Dr. Ritchie’s comment from Yale University.
I suspect that it was in the nature of a plea to this committee In con-
sidering the final disposition of these materials whether or not it could
be considered—and that is a considerable quanfity, now, 11 grams, to
goback into the medical science research.

Senator MaTm1as. I am aware of that. )

One further question, Dr. Gordon. I want to be fair to you. I want
you to understand that T am trying to put myself into your shoes and
into your mind and try to understand the motivations which caused
you to take the acts that you did. But I did say earlier, and I meant it,
that this is a problem that could have arisen bhecause we used to say,
someone did not get the word.

The other possibility which is not as happy 2 one was suggested by
a statement that you made earlier this afternoon, when you described
your reaction to learning of the November 25, 1969, decision of Presi-
dent Nixon, when you, as I recali your words, you said, you turned to
Mr. Gottlieb and vou said, you realize that this is the beginning of the
demise of the military biological warfare system. i .

Mr. Goroow. From the pomt of view of any parallel interests, sir,
that we might have in the field, there was nowhere to go to, {o stay
abreast of a BW capability. Fort Detrick, as you know, Senator
Mathias, subsequently was closed down and converted to the National
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Cancer Institute, This, I believe, if my memory serves me correctly,
was 1971-72, or thereabouts,

. Senator Marruas. It took that long to get done. That is something
else.

Mr, Gorpox. Again, as I recall, it was over a year from the time
that they said it would be done, and then, finally, 1t did get done. Let
me rest there.

Senator Marruas. Having recalled to you your words, the only
question that I raise is whether or not you had, in fact, a visceral
reaction which perhaps clouded your judgment in order to preserve
from disruption at least one small corner of this area of enterprise ?

Mr. Gorpow. Senator Mathias, I appreciate the way you put that.
T really do. T want to use this opportunity for my response, to repeat
once sgain—please bear with me, Senator Church—that our judgment
was collectively made, and we considered it as a lethal chemical
agent. If that was not the decision at that particular time, we
never would have gone back to accept and say yes to the offer of our
own stockpile of 5 grams, sir.

Senator Matuias. My time is up, and I will only say that I cannot
anderstand why your decision which was so agonizingly made—and
I accept that it was agonizingly made, as you described it, why a
decision so agonizingly made, and in the full conscicusness of the diffi-
culties under which you were operating was not referred to higher
authority within the Agency for some confirmation, before you went
through with it.

That is all, Mr, Chairman.

Mr. Gorvox. Thank you, Senator Mathias.

The Caatruan. Senator Huddleston.

Senator Huppresron. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I do not: wish to belabor the point, but X do think it is quite important,
as to what your understanding was at the time, back in February of
1970 on why this decision was made. I find it very difficult to reconcile
what you are saying now about the concern that you had at that time
as to the true nature of shellfish toxin.

hg;h%ellﬁsh toxin is a toxin, is it not? There is no question about
that?

Mr. Gorpox. That is correct, sir.

Senator Huoprestow. It is also a weapon., You mentioned a mo-
ment ago it could be used as a weapon, against oneself as a suicide
weapon, or against somebody else.

Mr. Gorpon. We would consider it, I think, certainly, as a weapon,
but the tactical description for that, Senator Huddleston, would be
as an agent in a weapons system, our weapons system being any
means. :

Senator Huppreston. It is a poténtial weapon or a part of & weapon.

Mr. Goroow. Exactly.

Senator HuppLestoN. In the first paragraph of the memorandum
which you prepared for Mr. Karamessines, you point out that in the
November 26 memorandum of the President or the order of the Presi-
dent and then you put in parentheses that on February 14, 1970, the
Valentine’s order, he included all toxic weapons. Thers seems to me
go doubt that at that time you understood precisely what the Presi-

ent said.
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Mr. GorooN. As it applied to the Department of Defense that is
correct, Senator. i o .

Senator Hupprestox. If you felt at this time that this just applied
to the Department of Defense, I am wondering why you felt it neces-
sary that Mr. Karamessines make a determination as to whether or
not the CIA should move to protect its supply. It seems to me 1t
would be perfectly clear that he would not have to take any action
if it were perfectly clear that this would apply only to Department
of Defense. ) )

Mr. Gorpow. This was tied in with the relationship that we had
with the Special Operations Division and, for that matter, the rest
of the Army Biological Warfare Laboratory with respect to staying
abreast of the state of the art. ) ]

Again, intuition indicated to us at that particular time that before
too long, as Senator Mathias said, if it took too long the Biological
‘Warfare Research Laboratories would no longer exist. There would
be no sense in continuing to support a project, and I might add—and
this has not been brought out by me—I have never had a question
with that respect. We were, in effect, piggybacking or giving some

additional dollar technical support to Special Operations Division, -

who were being funded by the Army component, namely, the Special
Forces, for purposes which interested us and we wanted to stay with
the developments as time proceeded. .

Senator Huoprestox. I do not see that there is anything that would
have clouded your perception based on your own words and recom-
mendations here that this toxin was, indeed, part of the order that the
President had issued. Let me make one other point, again relying on
your own. memorandum dated February 1970, when you list for the
Director those items that would be in jeopardy if some action were
not taken by the President’s order. You do, in fact, list paralytic
shellfish poison. . .

Mr. Goroox. Which was part of the inventory being held, yes, sir.
At that particular time, the other option, which is what we exercised
a day or two later, Febrnary 19 or 20, was to, as T indicated, let the
Special Operations Division of the Army Biological Laboratories
know that we no longer would support them and terminate the project
and for them to do with what they saw fit with all the stocks.

It was subsequent, and only subsequent, that we rethought the mat-
ter of the shellfish toxin. When the telephone call came down to us
with respect to the offer of retaining and considering for retaining
the shellfish stocks, at that time after careful deliberation we deter-
mined that in our judgment, knowing we were in a gray area, going
through the same testimony, and deciding it was a chemical agent.

Senator HuppLesTon. You have changed your perception then from
what it originally had been, which seems to be crystal clear here, to
raise the question as to whether or not there might be a slight loophole
through which you might-——

Mr. Goroox. We rethought the question of shellfish toxin.

Senator Huppreston. That was subsequent to this memorandum,
which, at that time, seemed very clear and precise?

Mr. Gorpox. Right, that is correct, Senator.

Senator ITgppLEsTON. A to what the problem was and how it might
be avoided by the Director, if he wanted to take this action ¢

-
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Mr. Gorpon. That is correct.

Senator HuppLesToN. Just one other question. As I mentioned this
morning to Mr. Colby, included in that inventory, were agents that
were designed to induce tuberculosis in an individual. Were you in-
volved in that experimentation ?

Mz, Goroow. No, sir.

Senator Huppresrox. What about the one for brucellosis?

‘Mr. Gorooxn. We were not involved in any experimentation.

‘Senator HuooLeston, Do you have any knowledge of these agents
and what they were used for?

Mr. Goroox. From the nomenclature of those particular ones you
described, they would be the causative agents to produce that kind of
a disease. Those are biological agents.

Senator HupprLesron. Did you ever have instructions from your
superiors to develop this kind of capability ¢

Mr. Gorpox. No, sir; not during my tenure.

Senator Huporesrox, How do you propose they were included in the
CIA inventory?

Mr. GorooN. I surmise that my predecessor or predecessors, that
over the years in their wisdom and judgment and with the expertise
of the people at the laboratories that determined in the event of some
need or use of these kinds of materials it would be technically feasible
to be considered and uwsed. Hence, certain quantities were attributed
as grams or whatever they may be in their listing to those particular
organisms and toxins. That is the way the list, I suspect, was de-
veloped and simply transferred from year to year to year.

Senator Huppreston. From your personal knowledge and experi-
ence, you had no contact with these agents.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

The Cpammax. Thank you, Senator Huddleston. Senator
Schweiker.

Senator Scowerker, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Dr. Gordon, can
you shed any light on the designation of P600 that appeared on the
cans he received in the lab?

Mr. GornoN. No; T cannot, sir.’ As of this moment, I do not recollect
any of the information that appeared on the cans. Are you referring,
?Oen.-até)r Schweiker, to the cans of the shellfish—containers of shellfish

xin ¢

Senator Scawgrker. Yes. The ones in this picture, T assume.

Mr. Goroon. No, sir, I cannot. What does P600 mean ?

Senator Scawerker. That is what I am trying to find out.

Mr. Goroow. I think I could suggest who might give you the
answer, sir.

Senator Scewrerser. I thought you would be in a good position to
tell us. Tt says, “Do not use unless directed by P600.” How can you
store a quantity of poison in your lab in a vault and lock it up, when
it says do not open unless you have permission of so and so, and you
do not even know so and so?

Mr. Gorpox. Is “P600” a person ?

Senator Scuwriger. It is your code.

. Mr. Goroon. That particular label—we are on the subject of label-
ng, Senator Schweiker, was prepared at the Special Operations Divi-
sion, Biological Laboratories.
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Senator Sonwerker. At Fort Detrick ?

Mr. Goroox. They would be in 2 position to give you that answer.
T°d like to know it myself. ..

Senator Scrwemxer. The second part of my question is, you keep
mentioning 5 grams in your testimony here with the other Senators.
Yet it is clear from Director Colby’s testimony that, in fact, there
were 11 grams. The picture shows 11 grams. Can you account for the
G-gram discrepancy ¢ )

Mr. Goroox. When I received, or we received, the containers of the
shellfish toxin, it was our best understanding that we received what
was the Agency stockpile of shellfish toxin in the amount of 5 grams,
and we put it away in the freezer, and never, at Jeast during my tenure,
had occasion to ever open those containers, did not want to open those
containers unless there was a need, and that is the way it sat and got
forgotten about over the years, because no queries—obviously, no
applications——-— . ] )

If I may continue, in May or June of this year—and I am told this
by my project officer at that time, Mr. David Boston—he was asked
by the present Director, Mr. Colby of the CTA, as part of an agency-
wide query, to look into particular matters or things that he, Mr.
Colby, should know about. This is secondhand information. My under-
standing is, as a result of that particular memo, directive—eall it what
you will—Mr. Boston then proceeded to then very carefully look info
that particular freezer, and he called me. and a:sked, did T remember
that there was shellfish toxin and I most certainly remembered that
there was shellfish toxin containers. Then he proceeded to open it, the
containers, laid the vials out, as I understand, added up the figures,
and then informed me that there was not 5 grams, but close to it. T do
not know the exact figures. It is 3 in decimal points, but 11 grams.

The inference, the only inference in my mind is that the Special
Operations Division, in their wisdom, or lack of it, decided to send
along the 6 grams that were in their particular repository.

Senator Scuwerker. Dr. Gordon, the part I have trouble compre-
hending, in view of vour testimony is that labels on these cans are
stuck on the top of the cans. You could not possibly pick a can up
and put it in a file, without reading the label. One label says very
clearly 5 grams of stockpile, manufactured in QOhio, which is probably
very directly the 5 grams we have been talking about, The interesting
Iabel on the other can—this may clear up the 6 gram mystery—it says
paralvtic shellfish toxin, working fund investigation Northeast Shell-
fish Sanitation Center. Then it says, USPHS—you do not have to be
James Bond to figure out that means U.S. Public Health Service,
Narragansett, R.I. And my question is why the U.8. Public Health
Service iy producing 4 deadly poison for this country, and who is
paying for it, and you could see that by just reading the label on the
can, so why all the mystery about where these 6 grams came from?

Mr. Gorpox. Senator Schweiker, I do not recollect—and I saw what
you are referring to in closed {estimony as two exhibits—and I was
asked in closed testimony, closed session, that, did I recall seeing those
particular exhibits that you are referring to. I honestly do not remem-
ber seeing those. )

Insofar as the Public Health Service or—as being a source of the
shellfish toxin material, this reflects a program that had been going
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on for some years. This is part of the cost in resources and value
intrinsic in the quantity of shellfish toxin that was expended by those
two particular Government agencies for many years for the pur-
poses of developing possibly—again, I am summarizing this, an im-
munization therapy or technique against this very deadly shellfish
toxin.

Senator Scawerzer. If it was developed for that purpose, why did
they not keep it for that purpose, instead of giving it to you?

Mr. Goroon. They gave it to the Special Operations Division at
Fort Detrick Biological Laboratories. How that was obtained, the
mechanism, the purchase, acquisition, I have no knowledge about. I
can only reflect that they were holding for us year after year, from
the time that I entered the TSD, 5 grams of paralytic shelifish toxin,
1t was on the Agency’s stockpile list.

Senator Scuwrrker. Your testimony is that we have, in fact, been
recelying deadly poison manufactured by the U.S. Public Health
Service and delivered, indirectly at least, to Fort Detrick. It came to
your hands, but first of all to Fort Detrick. And I am wondering
whether our House subcommittee that appropriates money for health
research is really aware that that is exactly where our health funds
have been going.

Mr. Gorvow. I understand your question, Senator., T do not have a
response to it,

Senator ScEwekER. I have a great deal of difficulty understanding
why you could not size up the two cans, one being the stockpile from
the CIA and Fort Detrick and the other coming from Narragansett,
R.I. Thero’s a discrepancy. Does this not ring any bell, or do you not
recollect a thing?

Mr. Goroox. I honestly have to say no, sir. I do not understand. In
trying to reconstruct events, I just do not remember seeing those par-
ticular listings. A1l T can indicate to you, the materials—by the way,
are you saying those listings were attached to the labels?

Senator Scawerkes. They were not only attached ; they were on top
of the can. You could not possibly pick a can up withous seeing the
text, that is, 5 grams and 6 grams, and the manu acturer, U.S. Publie
Health Service.

Mzr. Goroox. T admit, Senator, I do not have any recollection of that
particular photograph or object.

Senator ScawErsEr. You testified earlier, Dr. Gordon, that some-
one called from Fort Detrick asking if you would receive or accept
these toxins; is that correct, in essence ¢

Mr. Gorpox. Shellfish toxin ?

Senator Scawrrker. Shellfish toxin.

Mr. Goroox. Yes.

Senator ScuwersEr. What was the rationale or reason by which he
said you should accept it? Why was he not reporting ? Because he did
report, Fort Defrick did report some 3 grams, as was testified to, that
they inventoried and got approval from the National Security Coun-
cil. I am sure you are well aware of that procedure, yet you elect not
to go the accountability route. You elected to follow his suggestion to
go the other route?

Mr. Goroon. The Agency’s stockpile of all those materials was not
on a reported destruction list at Fort Detrick. They were being held
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separate and apart, to the best of my understanding. They were being
held separate and apart from their own military or Army holdings.

Senator Scrwzrxxr. The memo we have from the Army indicates
that they reported through official channels, and apparently received
National Security Council approval o keep the 3 grams for research

urposes.

P II\E.)SGORDON. May T make a surmise, sir? I do not believe—I may
be wrong, but I do not believe, that that was the Special Operations
Division, or the Biological Laboratories that made that request. I
believe that it was another component, research component, separate
and apart from the Speecial Operations Division of the Biological
Taboratories that made that request to retain the quantities—that is
what I read myself in the newspapers the other day—and apparently
received the approval for experimental and R & I) purposes, a very
legitimate request, in my opinion. .

Senator Scawerger. There are two things that I think this commit-
tee has to ascertain. First, after the order was issued, did someone
make a decision at Fort Detrick to send back your 5 grams. Also, did
someone make a decision to include the U.S. Public Health Service
quantity that probably momentarily was up in Narraganseit, R.I.,
and throw that in.

Mr. Chairman, I have here a number of requests. As well as the
Army, we are going to have to call the Public Health Service to find
out why they were producing deadly poison, why they were a part of
this whole thing.

Mr. Goroon. I believe, sir, Senator Schweiker, if I could have a
moment——

Senator Scawerxzr. Yes,

Mr. Gorpox. I can surmise, sir, for what it is worth. T believe the
U.S. Public Health Service—I cannot address myself to the mechanism
of how it arrived from the Public Health Service to Fort Detrick,
specifically the Special Operations Division.

Senator Scewriker. That is what we want to know, and that is our
job to find out, Dr. Gordon.

Mr, Gorpow, I believe the Public Health Service—and T say this
sincerely-—I think, it is injustice, if I may say this, that the Public
Health Service was raising or cultivating or making shellfish toxin
for the purpose of a poison, per se; in my humble opinion, they were
making these auantities to study defensively immunization techniques
against the shellfish toxin.

Senator Scwerker. If they had kept it there, Dr. Gordon, and used
1t for that purpose, I would not be questioning that either. Tt looked
like they were producing & supply of far more than they needed at
somebody’s expense.

Mr. Gornox. I follow your rationale.

Senator Scewrrker. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Crammax, I follow your view that there is a suggestion here
that the commitiee will have to fully inquire into whether other de-
partments of the Government in addition to the CTA undertook to
circumvent the Presidential order by depositing this toxin in this par-
ticular cache. And we will look into that, because we want to really get
to the root of the whole question presented here. Senator Morgan.
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Senator Moreaw. Dr. Gordon, as I understand your testimony, you
take responsibility, along with the two of your colleagues for retaining
the toxins that we are talking about.

Mr. Goroox. Because of the rationale that I indicated earlier.

Senator Morgan. That rationale was first, that the National Se-
curity Decision Memorandum of February 20 [exhibit 8 *j—and I be-
lieve you refer to also the 1969 order——

QMISTGORDON. The press releases of November 25, 1969, and February
14, 1970,

Senator Morean. You referred to military programs, wherein since
t?la F;brua,ry 20 order, which is actually the National Security Coun-
cil order

Mr. Gorpon. Which T have not seen. )

Senator Morcan. The memorandum that you bave been referring
to, or the document that you have been referring to is February 14,
was actually the press release—that the memorandum itself was dated
February 20,

Mzr. Gorpox. I understand that.

Senator Morean. That reads, following the review of the United
States military programs for toxins, the President has decided—so
that, part of your rationale was, it applied to military programs?

Mcr., Gorpox. That is correct.

Senator Morean. And you contended that shellfish toxin was not a
biological weapon ¢

Mr. Gorpow. In a frue sense of the definition, sir—and again, pax-
enthetically, we recognized and admit to a gray area here. Also paren-
thetically, that both chemical warfare laboratories and biological
warfare laboratories, both groups worked on this particular substance,
sir. T would like to throw in that there is 2 chemical, or was a chemical

agent program, polytoxin, at, and only at the chemical warfare
laboratories.

Senator Morean. Dr. Gordon, I see some faults with your rationale,
especially with regard to the toxin part. I must say I do not attribute
any bad faith or motives at your having arrived at that decision, but let
me ask you further—you say you have never seen any memorandum
from the President or from the Director of the CIA, with regard to
disposal of these toxins ¢

Mr. Gorpox. That is correct, Senator Morgan.

Senator Morean. Your decision not to destroy these was based on
your rationale, without any guidelines from the Department of De-
fense, the National Security Council, or anyone else ¢

Mr. Gorpon. That is correct, based on the announcements that Y al-
Inded to in this testimony.

Senator Morean. Since you originally made that decision, have you,
at any time, ever seen a memorandum, even since this matter came up,
which later set forth any guidelines for the destruction of biological
or bacteriological toxins?

Mr. Gorpor. Within the Department of Defense?

Senator Moreax. The Department of Defense, or the CTA ?

Mr. GorooN. I have never seen anything along those lines in the
CIA, because in my judgment, again, I am repeating myself, I know—
because, in my judgment, these particular press releases, and including
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the National Security memorandum, referred to military programs,
and was directed only to the Department of Defense.

Senator Moreaxn. Dr. Gordon, as I read the memorandum of No-
vember of 1969 and February 20, 1970, or the press release of February
14, the President instructed the Secretary of Defense to make recom-
mendations concerning the disposal of existing stocks of toxins, weap-
ons, or agents. To my knowledge I will state to you, Dr. Gordon, that
these recommendations have not been promulgated. I have not been
shown a copy of them.

Asa maggar of fact, I refer to a document dated January 25, 1973,
a memorandum for the President, made by a committee of the Na-
tional Security Council, and has been classified Top Secret. I under-
stand, Mr. Chairman, I would have to have permission from the White
House to quote from it. )

The CramMmaxN. Very well; I am told by staff that that is correct.

Senator Moraax. In this memorandum, Dr. Gordon, dated J anu-
ary 25, 1973, the Committee reports to the President as follows: “No
procurement or production of offensive weapons was undertaken dur-
ing the period under review. Within the framework of applicable envi-
ronmental legislation, disposal or demilitarization of unneeded stock-
piles of chemical weapons has continued.” )

‘Then, let’s get down to the second paragraph, the main part, and
still classified, “All research and development of biological weapons
has been terminated. Programs for disposal of stocks of these weapons
is now virtually complete.” Does that not indicate to you—that as of
January 25, 1973, the program for the disposal of biological weapons
had not been promulgated ?

Mr. Gornox. Within the Department of Defense, Senator?

Senator Moreax. This is a memorandum from 2 committee of the
National Security Council to the President. .

Mr. Gorpor. In my judgment, I construe that as pertaining to the
Department of Defense only. .

Senator Morcax. It goes on to say, “The laboratory quantities o,f’
agents (not weapons) will be retained to support defensive research.
Does this not indicate that as late as January 25, 1973, the President
knew that biclogical weapons still existed and that some biological
weapons would be retained for research? Is that not a logical conclu-
sion to you ? )

Mr. Goroon. Within, again, the Department of Defense; yes, sir.

Senator MorGan. Referring to the Department of Defense——

Mr. Goroon. I agree. I put it in the context of my judgment, Senafor
Morgan, that it applies to the Secretary of Defense, and the Defense
Department. T keep repeating that.

Senator Moreaw. If the Secretary of Defense had promulgated regu-
lations at the request of the President for the destruction of biological
weapons, do you not think it would have applied fo 21l of them, all
agencies? . .

Mr. GorooN. In my opinion, this is the directive promulgated by the
Secretary of Defense for his particular responsibilities, echelons within
the Defense Department, ultimately.

Senator Moreaw. I am not reading a document of the Department of
Defense. What I am saying, Dr. Gordon—you may not understand
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me—T think the President understood that there would be some prob-
lems in the disposal of biological and bacteriological weapons, and I
think he must have understood that there would be some need to retain
some for research, and I think this is why he asked the Secretary of
Defense, who is on the National Security Council, to promulgate some
guidelines for doing this very thing.

And according to this memorandum to the President, it appears to
me that as of as late as J anuary 25, 1973, these guidelines had not been
promulgated. I think what I am saying, Dr. Gordon, is that somebody
is trying to tree you, and I think we are treeing the wrong one. I think
the fault lies at a higher level.

Mr. Gorpon. Senator Morgan, I would appreciate some clarification
as to how you see the Agency’s role in that particular directive, sir.

Senator Morean. I think the Agency role would have been to follow
whatever guidelines the President and National Security Council may
have set up after receiving recommendations from the DOD. I thinis
you exercised your judgment, perhaps wrongly, but exercised it, based
on the fact of what you understood it to mean—from what I read,
what I have here, something else may turn up later on. The way I read
this, as late as 3 years after the original order there had been Ho pro-
gram devised or prepared or promulgated for the disposal of these bac-
teriological or biological drugs, and it was the responsibility of the
President to enunciate this program.

I have 1 minute left. If T could ask you one question. What quantity
of shellfish toxin was considered to be adequate for laboratory
purposes®

Mr. Gorvox. For experimental laboratory purposes, from the point
of view of immunization, serving, defense, I am informed—and it is
not too unreasonable—by my technieal consultant, Dr. Batlin, that the
2, 3,4 gram—that range 15 not unreasonable.

Senator Moreax. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Gorpox. Thank you, sir.

The Cratraax. Senator Baker.

Senator Baxer. Mr. Chairman, T was necessarily absent from the
hearing room. Therefore, I will relinquish my rights at this time for
questioning.

The CuamryMax. Senator Hart. '

Senator Harr of Colorado. Mr. Gordon, if you had been the Presi-
dent of the United States in 1970, and you had wanted to order the
destruction of highly toxic material that the CTA had had produced
by the Department of the Army, what kind of language would you
have used ?

Mr. Gorpon. Wow. Senator Hart, with all due respect, I do not think
I could possibly put myself into the position of the President of the
United States. T do not know how to answer that question, Senator.

Senator Hawr of Colorado. Was there no language, as far as you
were concerned as an operating officer in the CIA, that would have
conveyed to you the proper meaning, that you and Dr. Gottlieh should

have destroyed that material? You could not devise that language in
your mind, other than to say “Now, Dr. Gordon, Dr. Gottlieb, I under-
stand you have some material over there. I want it destroyed, along
with everything else.”

Mr. Gorooxn. Senator Hart, with all due regpect, if we are going to
build this scenario, T would be happy to participate in a scenario that
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follows. If I were the President of the United States, and it bothers
me to say this—in what way, it appears to me possibly that the Na-
tional Security Council representatives—the Director of the CTA. being
one of them, might have been asked in some manner whether or not
these kinds of materials were materials that were of interest at any
one time, current interest—if so, 2 report on that whole subject matter,
pursuant to the White House announcement possibly could have been
requested from the CIA. If such a report had been requested, I think
ix_mch of this would have surfaced undoubtedly, in my mind, at that
ime.

Senator Haxr of Colorado. Following up on that point, if the Direc-
tor of the CTA had asked you whether to your kmowledge the CIA
possessed, either in its own facilities, or someplace else, materials fall-
ing under the Presidential order, would you have responded affirma-
tively or negatively?

Mr. Gornon. Affirmatively.

Senator Haxr of Colorado. Is that with hindsight ?

Mr. Goroox. Let me think this thing through, Senator Hart. If at
that particular time, the Director, throngh the chain of command had
indicated by memo or by some indication of s request which reached
me, to search and report and inventory—for that matter, [ suspect
any behavioral materials, whether they be lethal, incapacitating, of a
biological and/or chemical nature, or in the case of toxins, the grey
area of both, that would have immediately been complied with.

Senator Haxrr of Colorado. If you had used the language that the
Ii’resident had used, would you have printed these materials on the

ist

- Mr. Goroow. The President’s language in the public announcements?

Senator Haxr of Colorado. Would you please put these materials on
your list, if the Director of the CIA, Mr, Helms, had asked you to list
all of the materials that you kmew of that fall within the description
of the statement of the President ?

Mr. Gorpox. Yes; I would have so indicated that a stockpile of these
particular materials were being held at the Specia] Operations Divi-
sion of the Army Biological Warfare Laboratories, Fort Detrick.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Contrary to what opinions you may have
formed this afternoon, this committee is not prosecutorial. Our fune-
tion is remedial and not one to find out who was wrong in the past but
prevent any wrongdoing from happening in the future. Based on the
hindsight that you now possess, what linds of guidelines would you
suggest that this committee recommend or would you recommend
directly to the CTA to prevent misunderstanding of this kind arising
in the future ? .

Mz, Giorpon. I do not see how this kind of a thing could ever occur
again within the Agency. .

Senator Haxrr of Colorado. Why is that ? )

"Mr. Goroox. Because of the fact of the discussions, testimony that
you have heard here from myself and will hear from others that there
was a loose control existing, established by my predecessors and con-
tinued to be established because of the nature of that particular vault,
that of a storeroom. In hindsight and I am not at all sure on hind-
sight, T do not kmow whether or not a storeroom is really ever inven-
toried because there is no in or out traffic, Senator Hart.

T
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Senator Hart of Colorado. I am talking about the breakdown of
communications between mid-level and higher level officials, not just
this particular vault. :

Mr. Gorpox. If, in your judgment, Senator, of the policy of the
highest level, if they felt that these particular directives were appli-
cable to Agency policies and actions I suspect that there is a case
to be made, Senator Hart, that some implementation for Agency con-
sideration and interest should then have come down as a directive
through channels.

Senator Hart of Colorado, You are suggesting as a remedial step,
that under circumstances such as this, not identical but such as ths,
that the Director and his deputies send down orders spelling out
what the CIA’s obligations are.

Mr. Gornox. I think that is a reasonable statement, sir.

Senator Harr of Colorado. How about information flowing up?
What if they have no idea that this kind of capability exists; how
are they supposed to find out?

Mr. Goroon. Correct. I think that it is a two-way street. T think
periodically and I suspect to some degree at the time, I do not know
the depth because I cannot speak past my particular position, con-
versations were held. I am not aware of anything in writing, but X
suspect that conversations were periodically held; to what depth I
have no idea, sir.

Senator FHagr of Colorado. In your career in the CIA, were you
ever aware of events or facts that you thought the Director or his
immediate staff did not want to be aware of or did not want to know?

Mr. Gornox. Could I have that question again, sir?

Senator Harr of Colorado. In your career in the CTA were you
ever aware of a set of facts or a set of circumstances that you thought
that the Director did not want to know about and it was made clear
to you that you were not to convey up ?

Mzr. Gorpon. No, sir.

Senator Harr of Colorado. That is all. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cramman, Senator Hart has suggested, Dr. Gordon, that per-
haps you are overly generous in assuming for you and your immediate
associates the blame for what has happened here. I would like to put
this one question to you and then Senator Mathias has a final question,

If you had been shown the memorandum of the National Security
Council, dated February 20, 1970, and had read it, and had been told
that it applied to the CIA and had read the first paragraph of the
memorandum, which reads: “The United States will renounce the
production for operational purposes, stockpiling and use in retaliation
of toxins produced either by bacteriological or biological processes or
by chemieal synthesis;” would you have read that and wunderstood
that to mean the shellfish toxin?

Mr. Gorpow. Senator Church, if T had seen such a directive from
the top management levels of the CIA, T seriously doubt whether I
or my little staff would have moved—in our judgment—I seriously
doubt whether we would have not been triggered by such an announce-
ment and certainly would have had a different kind of discussion which
would have rendered a different kind of a decision.

The Cuarrmax. What you are saying is, had you been told of such
a directive and had it come down properly through channels to you,
that you would not have taken the action that you did in fact take?
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Mr. Goroox. I believe that is correct, sir.

The Crarrmax. Senator Mathias? )

Senator Maraias. Mr. Chairman, it seems to me that this phone
eall that Dr. Gordon received from Fort Detrick raising the question
of retention of the shellfish toxin may be of some importance in our
investigation, as apparently it was in his thinking, because he testified
that is really where the idea originated. Dr. Gordon, were you aware
of Whatgwas happening at Fort Detrick at about the time you received
the call ?

Mr. Gorvox. With respect to?

Senator Mararas. Let me be more specific: Were you aware that the
Army had set up an elaborate system of procedures, a very complicated
and dramatic procedure by which they were destroying the existing
biological warfare stockpiles? .

Mr. Goroorwx. That this was to oceur, Senator, yes indeed.

Senator MaTaTas. You were aware of that at the time of the call?

Mr. Goroox, As of the DOD directive and program, hence the two
announcements,

Senator Mataras. I do not believe you told me from whom the call
came.

Mr. Goroon. T believe I did, sir. I believe, to my recollection, it was
from the project officer, 2 Mr. Senseney, in the Special Operations
Division of Fort Detrick, Md., Army Biological Warfare Laboratories.

Senator Marz1as. On whose payroll was he? .

Mr. Goroon. Biological Laboratories payroll, the Army project
officer, to my recollection.

Senator Marsaras. He was a Detrick employee and not an Agency
employee ?

Mr. Goroox. That is correct, sir. .

Senator Marwias. Now, since he was a Detrick employee, and since
he was presumably speaking for the Army, did you read anything
special into his message? ] ) )

Mr. Goroon. No, sir, because I suspected his consideration for sal-
vaging the shellfish toxin was no different than the considerations that
we had expressed earlier of the extreme amount of time, money, and
resources that have gone into getting the shellfish toxin in those quan-
tities to the particular component. ) ]

Senator Matmias. You recounted the conversation. You said he
merely called up and said, “If you want to, come get it.”

Mr. Goroox. That is correct.

Senator Matezas. Did he imply that this procedure had been con-
sidered or discussed by anyone 1n the Army or was this just his own
idea? :

Mr. Gorvon. Procedure meaning the offering %

Senator MaTuias. Yes; the offering.

Mzr. Goroox. I have to simply indicate in retrospect that he was rep-
resenting the feelings of the Special Operations Division to offer—
Mr. Senseney being, in my opinion, the spokesman, for I suspect some
conversation had taken place at the Special Operations Division.

Senator Mataiss. The conversation did not reflect either that the
retention of the toxin would or would not be violative of the Presi-
dent’s order or that it would or would not be within the exceptions
that might have been created for research purposes.

e —
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Mr. Gornox. No, sir.

Senator Mataias. Thank you.

The Cramman. Senator Mondale?

Senator Monpare. I believe that you just testified that Mr. Senseney
of the Department of Defense in his conversation with you suggested
a transfer of their stocks to CIA. Did I understand that correctly?

Mr. Goroon. Our stocks, the Ageney’s holdings.

Senator Moxpare. Let me unﬁerstand, would it be that you would
accept control of the DOD toxin, shellfish toxin £

Mr. Goroon. All these years they had been holding in their reposi-
tory, Senator Mondale, the Agency’s stockpile—is all that was being
offered, and again for the record, to the best of my recollectionr—and I
indicated this earlier in closed session—I use the name of Mr. Senseney
as the project officer. I do not have any documentation. The phone call
could have been made by his superior but it was the Special Opera-
tions Division representative—but it was our particular Xgency stock-
pile, Senator Mondale, that was being offered back to us. We never
had it as a repository. Now, it is being offered back to us to maintain
in our secure safe vault,

Senator Monpark. As T understand it, in the same vault there were
some CIA stocks of shellfish toxin at the Fort Detrick facility and
there were also some DOD-owned stocks.

Mr, Goroox. It appears that way.

Senator Moxpare. Both the DOD- and the CIA-owned stocks were
returned to Washington and placed in the warehouse here, is that
correct ?

Mr. Gorpox. In a secure safe.

Senator MonpaLe. Were you aware that these stocks which were
transferred then to the warehouse in Washington contained toxins
formerly owned by the DOD?

Mer, Goroon. No, sir.

Senator Monpare. You did not know that ¢

Mr. Gorpow. No, sir. I thought in all good faith I was to be given
the Agency stockpile of five grams. I read, of course—I just do not
recall the exhibit shown to me with the specific listings of the contents
of those cans.

Senator Moxparge. As I understand it, as the testimony developed
today, your final judgment was that the order to destroy shellfish toxin
was directed at the Department of Defense and not CIA?

Mcr. Goroon. That is correct, sir.

Senator Moxpare. All right. That decision was made by you, Dr.
Gottlieb, and who else ¢

Mr. Goroown. Let me, if I may, refer back to the conversation that
I indicated here, where after the memorandum outlining the options,
the possibility of transferring our stocks to the private laboratory was
turned down. I was informed by Dr. Gottlieb and I hastened to com-
Ply and I went up to Fort Detrick to terminate our particular project
and told them that all the Agency holdings were to revert to their
own particular repository, to do whatever they pleased with. That
was the extent, to the best of my recollection, of the conversation.

Senator Monparze. The decision was that the CIA stocks need not
be destroyed because they were owned by the CIA and not the mili-
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tary and that the order was directed to the military, not the CIA;
is that correct?

Mr. Goroon. Senator Mondale, after that conversation from Fort
Detrick subsequent to going up there, the particular stockpile wasto be
theirs for their use in the disposition. The only subject that then became
a topic for conversation was shellfish toxin, not anything else.

Senator Mowxpare. Right. Listening to your testimony today I
thought what you were telling us was this: that the reason that it was
fundamentally determined that you need not destroy the toxin was
that the order ran to the Defense Department, not the CIA.

Mr. Goroox. That, plus the consideration that we, in our judgment,
considered this as a chemical entity.

Senator Moxpare. All right. In urging that considerstion, you,

Dr. Gottlieb, and who else decided it?

Mr. Gorpon. Dr. Gottlieb was not informed at the time that a small
group made the decision to receive the shellfish toxin. Dr. Gottlieb
was not in the picture, Senator Mondale.

Senator MonpaLE. It was you and others in your shop who made the
decision that because you were not in the military, the order of
destruction did not apply to you.

M. Gorpox. That is correct.

Senator Moxpare. You are all technicians, chemists, biologists, and
so on. What led you to believe that you had the authority to make
what is essentially a legal judgment?

Mr. Gorpon. We did not look at it in that light. We looked upon it
ag a technical consideration.

Senator Monpare. How could you do that? This is a consideration
of the order as to whether you were technically in the reach of the
Pregidential decree to destroy these toxins. You decided that you were
not because you were not in the military. Did you assume that you had
the authority to make that legal judgment ¢ -

Mr. Gorvoxn. I can only repeat that I never, in our conversations
among ourselves, ever considered or talked about, not being lawyers,
any legal considerations or implications, sir. We worked on the sub-
ject matter strictly from the point of view of a chemist. Was this
substance something that had definite, interesting, highly lethal qual-
ities as a chemical agent? The answer collectively after much discus-
sion apparently was yes, and we made the decision on that basis.
Because the decision was rendered as, in our judgment, as a chemical
agent, we felt that this was an ordinary, highly lethal agent o be kept
in a safe, secure storage area, and proceeded to do so. :

Senator Moxpare. We have gone far enough.

The Cramrman. It never even occurred to you to raise the question
with legal counsel as to the scope or direction of the Presidential order,
and how it would apply to you? Do you think that is a judgment that
scientists are competent to make?

Mr. Gorpox. I have to answer candidly. It did not oceur to us at
that particular time that we were in violation of a particular directive
that we had referred to the White House announcements and again,
in our judgment, based upon earlier consideration, the course of events
was made and followed, sir.

Senator Monpare. It seems to me that when we press the defense
that this was not practicable within the meaning of the order because
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it was a chemical, we hear the military defense and when we press
the military, we get a chemical defense. There is no way to get an
answer.

The CramrMaxr. Senator Schweiker has asked for a final question and
Senator Hart will follow.

Senator ScEuwerrer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Gordon, when you received these two cans of material, did you
log them in in any way ?

Mr. GorooN. No; we did not, sir. We did not have a practice of
logging. We did not have a practice in that small, secure laboratory
of logging in material because the degree of activity was practlcallly
nil. We did not look at it as a use laboratory, Senator Schweiker. It
was essentially, in effect, a storage, secure storage area—in the event
that it would ever be needed for an operational need, pill, or any
other application.

Senator Scawerger. Here is a foxin that could il thousands of
people. If you walk into the CLA building you have to be logged in. I
dj{f) not know why we do not log a toxin that could kill many thousands
0 Je.

BII?? IE}ORDON. I would like to make a comment with respect to what
has been in the press a number of times. The only way admittedly, and
unequivocally, that is a large amount of material for any purposes of
applying it m a lethal form to people—the only way that you could
kill those large numbers of people as related to the quantity of stock-
pile, is, in my humble opinjon, to put some of them in one long line
and inoculate each and every one.

Senator Scewremker. My next question is, did you take periodic in-
ventories of your laboratory?

M. Goroon., We did not, sir. I indicated, we did not ever take in-
ventory during my stay. I relied upon my project officer for that kind
of thing and I myself did not take inventory.

Senator Scawerker. Is it true throughout the whole CIA that you
do not take inventory of the assets you have, the investment you have
made, and the materials on hand? Is that 2 normal policy throughout
the organization ?

Mr. Goroon. I do not understand that,

Senator Scmwerker. It is hard for me to understand. That is, T
thought the CYA pretty much had to OX everything that went in or
out or had any money attached to it whatsoever. Do I understand we
had no policy for this, none at all, no recordkeeping at all?

Mr. GGorbox. I can only address myself to the specific laboratory or
secure vault area. We did not, in my particular period, even run an
Inventory on those materials. They were simply there as they would be
In storage. If one were to inquire whether compound A was in. the fa-
cility, T would simply ask my project officer to go down and inspect the
holdings and tell me or tell someone whether that substance existed.
In retrospect, and I concur, we should have had an inventory.

Senator Scawrrker. The other question T had—basically you testi-
fied earlier that you asked a scientific colleague of yours whether the
directive issued by the President covered shellfish toxin; is that cor-
rect? You asked someone their opinion ?

Mr. Gorpox. My project officer and technical consultant and myself
were the people concerned in the discussion.
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Senator Scawrker. Did you ask the General Counsel of CIA for
his legal opinion about the order? .

Mr. Gorooxn. No; I did not, Senator. We did not ever in our discus-
sions, not being lawyers, think in those particular terms—of legal coun-
sel or legal opinion, sir.

Senator Scuwrrrer. Not being a lawyer, Doctor, it seems the first
person to call is a lawyer to find out what the legal parameters are of
the problem.

Mr. Gorpox. We looked upon this as a technical consideration only.
Hence, I have to indicate to you, Senator, that we did not think—or as
a result of not thinking—we did not ask for any legal opinion or
counsel.

Senator Scerwerger. That is all T have, thank you.

The Crammsr. Senator Hart? )

Senator Harr of Colorado. One final question, Dr. Gorden. Is it your
view that, had you to do it all over again, you would have swallowed
these poisons?

M. Goroon. No, sir.

The Cratraman. Senator Huddleston ?

Senator Hunpreston. One question. You said that Dr. Gottlieb was
not. a party to this decision. Is that correct?

Mr. Gorpox. That is correct.

Senator HupprLesTon. Was he subsequently advised ¢

Mr. Gorpox. No; he was not.

Senator HuppLeston. Was any person higher than you ¢

Mr. Goroown. No; the only people informed among our own low
group wasmyself, my project officer, and technical consultant.

Senator HuppLestoN. For what purpose did you conceive that you
were storing this and retaining it.? ‘

Mr. Gorpox. I will answer that and then before I close this session,
Senators, I would appreciate if I could have the opportunity of a con-
<luding statement?

The Crammax. Yes; of course.

Mzr. Goroox. We felt that we would retain this material first of all
because of an extremely high cost in resources that had gone into it as
we knew it at that time-—into the preparation and accumulation of this
kind of material in that amount.

Second, we knew that this was information that I became aware of
following discussion with my technical consultant, that this material
was o kind of material that was used in the suicide device that was
issued to U-2 pilots. '

Senator Hupprestow. How did you perceive that this might be uti-
lized for this purpose and that the individuals who had a responsibil-
ity for making that decision did not know that it existed ?

Mr. Goroox. If we were asked from the highest level on down what
substances we would recommend for the kind of purpose to super-
cede the cyanide pill which was the state of the art. I would then
undoubtedly, after informing my colleagues, my project officer, and
technical consultant, making our decision—this js hindsight—that we
would have informed those who had a need, that we had these mate-
rials and we could service their requirement.

Senator Hupprzstox. You just kept it ag a hedge against a possible
order or instruction?
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Mr. Goroon. Operational need.

Senator Hoporesrox. Thank you.

The Cmairman. You would then be in the position to say, “We have
good news. In a little corner here, we have some of these poisons, and
we have not said anything about them until now, and you have asked
us. We just happen to have a supply available.”

Mr. Gorvox. One of the things T indicated, Senator Church, over
the years, my predecessor—or predecessors, if you will—aceumulated
many chemical agents that have been experimented with for a variety
of purposes in the physically incapacitating or mentally incapacitat-
ing area. These are the things that became physical objects, if you will,
in those particular areas.

The Cmatrman. That was before the President issued his order di-
recting the elimination?

Mr. Gorooxn. Much before,

The Caarracan. All right.

You have asked to make a concluding statement, Dr. Gordon. Would
you please proceed ?

Mr. Goroow. Thank you, Senator Church. I appreciate the opportu-
nity to make this concluding statement,

X thank the committee and staff for the close attention they have
given me during the course of this public testimony. Finally, T believe
sincerely that our action at the Technical Services Division was in the
interest of the Agency’s policy in the field of behavioral materials,
both biological and/or chemical, to maintain a potential capability—
I emphasize potential capability—in the event that the need should
arise to use these materials operationally one day. Thank you, sir.

The Cuammanw. Thank you very much, Dr. Gordon.

The committee will meet at 10 o’¢lock tomorrow morning. Qur first
witness will be Ambassador Richard Helms, who was Director of the
Agency at the time under examination this week.

‘This hearing is adjourned until 10 o’clock tomorrow morning.

ereupon, at 4:40 p.m., the committee recessed, to reconvene at
10 a.m., Wednesday, September 17, 1975.]
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‘WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 1975

TU.S. Sevare,
Serecr CoMmrrres To STupY GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS
‘Witz RESPECT 10 INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES,
Washingion, D.C.

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10 a.m. in room 318, Rus-
sell Senate Office Building, Senator Frapk Church (chairman)
presiding.

Present: Senators Church, Tower, Mondale, Huddleston, Morgan,
Hart of Colorado, Baker, Mathias, and Schweiker.

Also present: William (. Miller, staff director; Frederick A. O.
Schwarz, Jr., chief counsel; Curtis R. Smothers, counsel to the
minority.

The Cuamaran. The hearing will please come to order.

Our first witnesses appearing today are Mr. Richard Helms, who
was the Director of the CIA during the period in question, and Mr.
Thomas Karamessines, who was the Deputy Director for Plans {oper-
ations) during that period.

They are appearing together at the witness table, and gentlemen, I
ask you to stand now to take the oath. Do you solemnly swear that all
the testimony you will give in this proceeding will be the truth, the
whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God ?

Ambassador Heums. I do.

Mr. Karamresves. Ido.

The Crammmax. Before I ask counsel to commence with the ques-
tions, since I understand that you do not have an opening state-
ment——

TESTIMONY OF AMBASSADOR RICHARD HELMS, FORMER DIRECTOR
0F CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY, ACCOMPANIED BY THOMAS
KARAMESSINES, FORMER DEPUTY DIRECTOR FOR PLAKS, CEN-
TRAYL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY

Ambassador Herms. That is correct, Mr. Chairman.

The Cmammaxw. 1 have a letter I would like to read that came to me
this morning from Mr. Colby, the present Director of the CIA. It
reads as follows:

Dear Mr. Chairman: At the proceedings of your Committee on the morning of
16 Beptember 1975, I may have conveyed an impression which I did not intend.
If by chance you, or other members of the Committee, got a similar impression,
it is important that I ¢larify the record now, since it might affect your line of
questioning of future witnesses,

When I was being questioned as to the destruction of certain OIA records I
was thinking of the question in its broadest eonfext; namely, drugs, bacterio-
logical agents and chemieal agents. X thus answered that there were indications
of record destruction in November 1972,
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I realize that most listeners might have inferred that I was indicating that
records relating to the CIA-Fort Detrick relationship—in particular, records
relating to Project MENAOMI—were destroyed.

The facts are these: records relating to CIA’s drug program in general were
destroyed in January 1973, but there is no evidence that records of Project
MENAOMI or of the CIA-Tort Detrick relationship were destroyed, other than
possibly as inecluded in the general group in January 1973. I would appreciate
it if you would advise the other members of the commitiee to this effect.

I also referred mistakenly to a memorandum between former DCI Helms and
Dr. Gottlieb regarding the destruction of records. This was based on a mis
understanding which occurred during my hurried consultation with Dr. Stevens.
We have no knowledge of any such memorandum.

And itissigned by William E. Colby.

Now Mr. Schwarz, would you please commence the questioning?

Mr. Scawarz. Mr. Helms, without going through your pedigree in
the CIA, is it correct to say that you started at the 0SSt You were
with the CIA from its beginning?

You were at the covert side. You became head of the Deputy Direc-
torate of Plans. You stayed in that position until approximately 1966
when you became Deputy Director of the Agency. You became Director
of the Agency in 1967 until you left in 1973.

Ambassador Heras. No, sir, that is not quite correct. The positions
are correct, but I became Deputy Director in 1965, and Director, I be-
lieve around June 30, 1966.

Mr. Scewarz. All right.

And Mr. Karamessines, you were at the Agency in the covert side
for your entire career, is that correct?

Mr. Karammssives, That is correct, sir.

Mr. Scawarz. And in 1970 you were Deputy Director for Plans?

Mr. EaramEssings. Yes, I was,

Mr. Scawarz. Mr. Felns, were you aware that the CIA had a
capability to use bacteriological and chemical weapons offensively ¢

Ambassador Herare. Yes, I was aware of that. If one has in one’s
possession or under one’s control bacteriological or chemical weapons,
they can be used both defensively and offensively.

Mr. Scawarz. And Mr. Karamessines, you also were aware of that
as of 1970 and before, were you not?

Mr. Karamessives., Yes.

Mr. Scuwarz. And by use offensively, we mean to include killing
people, is that right?

Ambassador Heras. Well, they have the capacity to kill people, if
they were used in that way. _

Mr. Scawarz. Did you connect the CIA’s biological capability with
the Fort Detrick Army facility ?

Ambassador Hrrms. I’'m not certain I know what you mean by the
word “connect,” but the biological weapons, as you refer to them,
which the Agency was experimenting with were kept at Fort Detrick.
This was a joint program between the two organizations—the U.S.
Army facility at Fort Detrick and the CIA. I believe we paid Fort
Detrick for that part of the facility and that part of the materials
which we used.

Mr. Scawarz. Did you know, Mr. Helms, one way or the other,
whether the Agency also had in its possession and in its own facilities
certain quantities of lethal biological or chemical materials?
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Ambassador Herus. It was always my impression that the bacterio-
logical warfare agents and things of that kind were kept at Fort
Detrick. I realize that the Agency had in its possession in Washington,
and In some cases at overseas stations, things like L. tablets and K
tablets which certainly were lethal, but which had limited uses.

Mr. Scawarz. Recognizing it is difficult to be sure of a negative,
let me ask you the question, nevertheless.

Did you know that the only location of CIA biological weapons was
at Fort Detrick, or was the possibility in your mind that there were
such weapons located within CIA facilities themselves?

Ambassador Herms. I thought they were all at Fort Detrick.

Mg SC;—IWARZ. Mr. Karamessines, did you have any different under-
stan i.ng 4

Mr. Karamessings. I also understood that they were at Fort Detrick
with the modification that there might be a small amount of some of
these chemicals within the custody of the Technical Services Division.

Mr. Scuwarz. In a CTA facility?

Mr. KARAMESSINES. Yes.

Mr. Scawarz. Ambassador Helms, at some point did you learn that
President Nixon had concluded that the United States should renounce
biological warfare and should destroy stocks of biclogical weapons?

Ambassador Herys. Yes, I was aware of this, In fact, I was aware
that the matter was under study from the early days of President
Nixon’s administration, because I attended a National Security Coun-
cil meeting at which he announced that he intended to have this study
made.

Mr. Scawarz. And Mr. Karamessines, did you at some point become
aware that President Nizon wished to have such materials destroyed

Mr. KARAMESSINES. Y es.

Mr. Scrrwarz, What did either one of you do, if anything, to make
sure that such material in the possession of the CIA—Mr. Karames-
sines—or in the possession of Fort Detrick—Mr. Helms--should be
destroyed ?

Ambassador Herms. Are you directing the first question to Mr.
Karamessines and the second one to me, or——

Mr. Scawarz. Why don’t you take the first, Mr. Ambassador, and
Mr. Karamessines the second ?

Ambassador Hrrms. My recollection is that, when the order was
issued to do away with these bacteriological agents and toxins, that
Mr. Karamessines and I agreed that we had no choice but to comply-
And, in fact, when I say no choice, I do not mean to indicate that we
wanted any other choice, I just meant that we had understood that
this was an instruction that we were to abide by, and we agreed to
terminate the program.

Mr. Scuwarz. And by terminate the program, you mean terminate
the program with Fort Detrick?

Ambassador HeLms. At Forf Detrick, ves.

Mr. Scawarz. What was your understanding of what was done,
Mr. Karamessines?

Mr. Karamzssives. Precisely the same.

Mr. Scawarz. Now, Mr. Karamessines, with respect to your answer
that you did know that TSD had in its own possession certain bio-
logical agents, did you do anything to have those destroyed?
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. KaramEessings. Yes. It was my understanding with Dr. Gottlieb
thgifrnot only would our program be terminated, but whatever mate-
rials of this nature that might be in the custody of the Agency, or lzvgre
in the custody of the Agency, would be returned to Fort Detrick for
de%&?cglggwm. Did you instruct Dr. Gottlieb to accomplish that ¢

Mr. Karanmessives. Yes, I did; but I want to elaborate on that com-
ment, lest I leave the impression that there was some r'eserva.tlontin
the part of Dr. Gottlieb. There 1s no guestion 1n my mind about & (—é
fact that Dr. Gottlieb, Mr. Helms, and I were of one mind as to wha
we should do with the program and the materials—they should be got-
ten rid of—and instructions were accordingly issued to Dr. Gottlieb.

Mr. Scewarz. In that conversation, was Mr. Helms made aware og
the fact that there were materialsuin the possession of the CIA. itself?

. MEssINES. 1 can’t recall. .

%. %g;AWARZ. Would you both look at the document previously
marked as exhibit 1,* which purports to be a draft memorandum from
Mr. Karamessines to the Dicrlector of Central Irllttzlhgence?

th seen that document previously 4 ]

Iﬁ::,..vemyou ll?agzssmxcs. Yes;and I Wapuld like to make a comment with
respect to that document if I may, Mr. Schwarz. The comment relsgcei
to a story in the Evening Star yesterday. It was a mistaken story, bu
it does say that the committee provided the Star—or made available—
a copy of this memorandum, “written by me.” Now, 1 did not write

um.
tha%hxgeéng%m I might say, Mr. Karamessines, that that memo-
randum was made available to all newspapers 23 a result of the public
hearing which was featured yesterday.

Mr. Karamessiwes. I’m sure it was. Thank you, Senator.

I never saw this memorandum; I never wrote the memorandum; I
never signed such 2 memorandum; and I was unaware of the contents

emorandum. ,
Ofl%xf? néOHWm. And, Ambassador Helms, you never saw such a
memoz}')andu&n? Herms. No, Mr. Sch
or 8. No, Mr. Schwarz. .

ff[lxr'f gscsﬂawm. All right:. Now, Mr. Ambassador, I want to follow
one line with you and then my questioning will be finished.

Relating to your comment that you heard early that the Pre_slder;t;-i
that is, President Nixon—was interested in getting rid of biologle

ong—— . ‘

Wegfnbassador Herys. Biological weapons in war. I think we oughit tﬁ
appear pretty precise about this, because he was trying to do away w}11t
the use of bactericlogical and chemical agents in wartime. In ot 33‘
words, to destroy populations and so forth, and this was the gener
thrust of this whole—of that whole investigation. .

Mr. Scewagz. Are you trying to take the same position that Dr.
Gordon did yesterday ! That the President’s order did not apply to the
CIA? : . )

Ambassador Hrrms. No; I was just trying to correct what you were
saying. You were far too general in your statement of what President
Nixon had in mind, that is all.

1 See p. 189.
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Mr. Scawarz. Is it your understanding that the President’s order
did apply to the CIA ¢

Ambassador Herms. Certainly.

Mr. Scuwarz, After the subject was first raised by President Nixzon,
was there a study group formed up by the National Security Council

Ambassador Herums. I would have assumed so because when matters
were taken under advisement at the National Security Council, some
staif mechanism went into effect to draft the papers and the options
and so forth so that the President could make a final decision.

Mr. Scmwarz. Did you, yourself, disclose to such s body, such a
group, tl;e fact that the CIA had, and had had, stocks of biological
weapons ?

A?nbassa,dor Hzrms. I do not recall having divulged to this group—
in fact, I do not think that under normal circumstances we would have
divulged a secret activity of this kind to this particular study group.

Mr. Scawarz. Did you divulge such activity to Mr. Kissinger, who
was then the Secretary of the NSC ¢

Ambassador Herws. I do not recall having discussed it with Dr.
Kissinger,

Mr. Scawarz. Did you disclose such activity to President Nixon? -

Ambassador Herms. Well, the existence of the activity in the
Agency, and similar activities, I am sure were known to proper au-
thorities over a period of time.

In the particular context of this event that you are speaking about—
in other words, that the President decided to make a study of this, I do
not recall mentioning this to him, or conveying the information to him
in that context.

Mr. Scawarz. Let’s be quite precise in connection with that answer,
Mr. Ambassador. Did you disclose to President Nixon, from the time
he took office and thereafter, the fact that the CIA. had a program

which included the offensive use, capability to use offensively, biological
devices in order to kill people?

Ambassador Hrzms. I don’t recall having briefed President Nixon
on that, or several other programs, but you will recall, Mr. Schwarz,
that he was once Vice President for 8§ years and was privy to a lot of
things that were going on in the Agency then which he carried over to
the Presidency. So that the degree to which he was aware of this pro-
gram, I simply do not know.

Mr. Scrwarz. But that is the point. You do not know, do you, Mr.
Helms, based upon his prior service as Vice President, whether or not
he was aware of the Agency’s program ¢

Ambassador HeLms. No; I don’t.

Mr. Scwarz. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.

The Crammax, Mr. Smothers, do you have any supplementary ques-
tions at this time?

Mzr. SmrorsEers. I have none at this time, Mr. Chairman.,

The Cuamman. Mr. Helms, T am puzzled somewhat. It has been
established by your testimony that the CIA had in its possession bio-

logical toxins that were subject to the President’s order that they should

be destroyed.
You have testified that a special study group was set up by the NSC
pursuant to that order, and that that study group was not notified of



N

98

the possession of these materials, And you have said that you did not
think it was appropriate to give them that kind of information.

Since this was a study group of the NSC, and since, under the
statute you sre to take your directions from NSC in covert oper-
ations, why wasn’ it appropriate to tell this study group of that
particular capability? )

Ambassador Hrrms. Yes, sir, it is true that the statute reads that
the Director of Central Intelligence reports to the National Security
Council, which, in effect, is reporting to the President when they report
National Security Council. They do not necessarily report to the
National Security Council staff. . )

Many of these study groups that were put together on & whole vari-
ety of matters over the years would not have been made privy to
secret intelligence information unless there was some specific request
on the part of Dr. Kissinger, or someone, that they should be so
briefed. So this was the custom, not an exception to the rule.

The CramrMAaN. Was it also the custom not to inform the Secretary
of State or the President who indicated his interest that these
materials should be destroyed? ) . .

Ambassador Herms. Well, sir, you know, I think that, in fairness,
when the President indicated that he wanted this matter studied, he
had not, at that time, made the decision. This National Security
Council stafl group studied the matter and then made a recommenda-
tion to him, and it was after that that he made the decision that they
should be destroyed. He had not made it before.

The Cmamman. Well when he made the decision that they should

be destroyed, it was given great publicity. And then 2 memorandum,’

which. appears in your notebook—would you please locate it¢

Ambassador Hzrms. This National Security Council Decision
Memorandum. . .

The Crammax. Right. I call your attention to this Decision Memo-
randum 44, [exhibit 8] which is dated February 20, 1970. It is
directed to you, the Director of the Central Intelligence A gency, along
with the others—the Vice President, Secretary of State, and the
Secretary of Defense. The subject of the memorandum is U.S. Policy
on Toxins. I read the first part to you: .

Following a review of U.8. Military programs for toxins, the President has
decided that, one, the United States will renounce the production for oper-
ational purposes, stockpiling and use in retaliation of toxins, produced either
by bacteriological or biological processes, or by chemical synthesis.

Now, yesterday, when Dr. Gordon testified, he said that he had
never received, at any time, any instructions from you or from Mr.
Karamessines, or from any one of his superiors in the CIA, to carry
out this order. He also testified that he had never seen the order, and,
that had he been shown the order, he would have destroyed the toxins.
I think that is a fair summation of his testimony. )

He further testified that he read about the President’s policy in
the newspapers, and attempted to interpret the meaning of £hat policy
from the way it was carried in the newspapers. o

Now why wasn* this order given to him in the form of a directive
to make certain that the President’s policy was implemented?

18ee p.210.
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Ambassador Herms. Well in the first place X was under the impres-
sion that when I had asked to have the program termingted and the
President’s instructions abided by, that Dr. Gottlieb would have issued
the necessary orders to his people to see that this was done.

In the second place, since it was my understanding that these toxins
and so forth were at Fort Detrick, that is the place they would have
been destroyed.

And, third, as far as this document itself is concerned, I noticed
that it is classified secret. And, under the requests of the White House
at that time, top secret and secret documents were restricted in their
dissemination in the Agency quite rigidly. These documents came
to me in the first instance. This one T am sure I would have passed
to Mr, Karamessines. Whether the document itself would have gone
further than that I do not know, but I would not. think so. So that
explains the fact that Dr. Gordon never physically saw the document.

The Caammaw. Certainly you are not testifying that a document of
this character cannot go to the very people to whom it is directed,
in effect, the people who had custody of the very toxins that the
President had ordered destroyed?

Ambassador Heims. Well, sir, T am sorry——

The CmamMAN. Some directive to implement the President’s order
based upon this memorandum——

Ambassador HeLwms. Yes, sir, I agree.

The Cmarryan [continuing]. Should have been sent down to the
people who had charge of the toxins.

Ambassador Hrrus. And I thought Dr. Gottlieb had done this.

The Cramman. Did you follow up, since this was national policy
that had been given worldwide publicity; to see that your order
was complied with?

Ambassador Herms. I never went and searched facilities, but I had
been given to understand the program had been terminated, so T ac-
cepted that. These were employees with whom I had been associated
with for many years. I had no reason to believe that they would mis-
lead me or misguide me.

The CramRMAN. Who told you that the toxins had been destroyed?

Ambassador Heras, I read about it in the newspapers, in addition
to everything else. [Greneral laughter.]

Mr. Karamessines. May I make & comment on that Senator?

The CHatrMaN. Yes, Mr. Karamessines.

Mr. Karamessings. After the instructions were given to Dr. Gott-
lieb, instructions with which he was in full accord, he went off to carry
them out. As T testified a week ago, he came back and reported to me
that the instructions had been carried out and he was happy to be
able to tell me further that, because Fort Detrick was going to be
permitted to continue to do defensive research in these areas, he had
established an arrangement with one of the scientists at Fort Detrick
who would keep the Agency posted on the state of knowledge and
developments in the defensive area. He was happy to tell me this and
I was happy to hear it. And, that, as far as T was concerned—and I
am sure as far as Mr. Helms was concerned, to whom I reported
this—put a period to it.

The Cramuan. Then aren’t you shocked to discover 5 years later
that your orders were not carried out and that not only were 5 grams
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of shellfish foxin retained, but also additional quantities have been
discovered in a CIA laboratory?

Mr. Karamessives. Not shocked, no, sir. Disappointed, perhaps,
but not shocked. .

The Cramman. Disappointed that your orders were not carried out
and that national policy was not implemented ?

Mr. Karamessines. That is correct.

The Cramyan. But not shocked?

Mr. Earamessrves. No, not shocked.

The Cramman. Why not shocked ? .

Mr. Karamessings. I think Dr. Gordon answered that in his testi-
mony as I read it in the newspapers.

The Cuatrmax. Well, Dr. Gordon’s testimony was that he had great
difficulty with the order and that he and his associates decided not
to comply with it.

Mr. Karamessives. Well, sir, you use the word shocked and it has
been used many times in connection with many of the activities of
the Agency and X think it is conveying a misleading impression and
I would rather say that my own reaction when I heard of this was
surprise and disappointment. But to tell you, since I am under oath,
that I was shocked, I do not shock easily, sir.

The Crarrman. Apparently not.

Senator Tower.

Senator Tower. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Helms, it has been established that although you became aware
of a Presidential directive to destroy biological and chemical weap-
ons stockpiles, you did not issue & written directive to Agency person-
nel transmitting such instructions to subordinates. It has been shown,
however, that compliance was directed orally and may have taken the
form of a direction to Mr. Karamessines to veto suggestions for CIA
maintenance of chemical and biological weapons affer issuance of the
order. Now, what is unclear is whether your order would have of
could have been applicable to such substances stored for the CTA at
Fort Detrick or other locations by the DOD, as well as any quantities,
however small, of such agents, which may have been in possession of the
CIA itself. Now, what should a reasonably prudent Director of the
CIA have done under the circumstances?

Ambassador Hzrrums. Well, Senator Tower, I must say that I always
regarded myself as a reasonably prudent Director of the CIA, at least
I tried to behave in that regard and in that way.

Senator Towrr. T did nof intend to infer otherwise. ’

Ambassador Herms. I understand, but I had to start my statement
somewhere.

Senator Towzr. Perhaps a little reconstruction would help you.

Ambassador Hrrms. I was dealing here with Mr. Karamessines, and
Dr. Gottlieb, both gentlemen. and officers that I had known in the
Agency for many years. I do not know of any more trustworthy indi-
viduals in the United States than these two individuals, at least based
on my long experience with them, patriotic, trustworthy, and loyal,
so when we had a discussion about this, this was as good as writing it in
letters of blood as far as I was concerned. I have never known Mr.
Karamessines to fail to do what I asked him to do or to come back and
report to me why he was unable to do it. And I think that when the
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Chairman a moment ago was referring to our surprise that these toxins
showed up in a vault many years Iater, I share with Mr. Karames-
sines my own disappointment. Because, frankly, Senator Tower, we
always regard the Agency as a very well disciplined group of people.

I remember that when Vice Admiral Rufus Taylor, who was my
depiity for 2 or 3 years, left the Agency, he wrote a Jetter to President
Johnson. And I remember in that letter he had words to the effect that
he had never seen a more disciplined outfit in his life, including the
Urited States Navy. After all, Admiral Taylor was a Naval Academy
graduate and a career member of the Naval Service and once Director
of Naval Intelligence. So, I felt that that was s compliment from an
oﬁ).tsider, if you Iike, one who had not spent his life or his career with
the Agency.

So,gwshely; we learned about this, or when I learned about it, I really
was frankly surprised because it was one of the few instances I knew of
in my 25 years where an order was disobeyed.

Senator Tower. Was it the usual practice for you to give oral orders
or instructions to your subordinates?

Ambassador Hernms. Constantly.

Senator Towgr. On extremely important matters or perhaps espe-
cially on very sensitive matters, is it policy not to transmit these things
in writing?

Ambassador Herms. Sir, when the day comes that in an intelligence
organization, particularly a secret organization, everything has to be
put in writing, it is going to come to a resounding halt, I am afraid.

Senator Tower. Now, yesterday there was evidence produced re-
garding both the toxins and the delivery systems. And we were shown a

evice resembling a GI .45 pistol. In a staff interview on September 10,
you were asked about these dart guns. I would like to read from your
testimony of September 10, where we find the following comment.
Mr. Michel asked the question:

‘Were you aware of something that could be fairly characterized as heing a

dart gun as having been among the devices developed in stockpiling in this
program?

Mr. Herus. I think over the years I have heard of dart guns in a variety of.

contexts. T do not recall particularly in connection with the toxins. I have heard
of dart guns with poison on the end, you know. The natives use them in Latin
America. I believe the Agency had things of that sort, you know, You fire them
with rubber bands or something of this kind. I have no doubt you know, there
was quite an arsenal of peculiar things developed by TSD over the years for use
in one context or another.

Now, during your tenure as Director, did you ever consider em-
ploying this dart gun or similar weapons against a human target?

Ambassador Herms. No, sir, I do not recall ever having considered
it, let alone authorize it. It might interest you, Senator Tower, to
kmow that when that gun was put on the table in front of the chair-
man yesterday, that was the first time T had ever seen it.

Senator Tower. So these kinds of things actually remained within
TSD and were not something that you were familiar with in detail.

Ambassador Hrrms. I certainly could have seen them if I had chosen
at any time. I never chose and they were never brought to me and
so I simply state the simple fact that by chance I had never seen
that dart gun until yesterday.

Senator Towsr. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.

T
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The CaamRMAN. Senator Mondale. .

Senator Moxpare. Mr. Helms, yesterday I believe you sat through
the hearings at which Mr. Gordon and Mr. Colby iestified and heard
Mr., Gordon, in effect, defend the actions of his office in not destroy-
ing the toxins on two grounds. One, that they were not chemical or
biological toxins, within the meaning of the Presidential order requir-
ing destruction. And, two, in any event the order for destrnction
ran to the Department of Defense and not to the CIA. In your judg-
ment, are either justifications valid?

Ambassador Herms. Well, sir, I do not want to characterize Dr.
Gordon’s perceptions of things at the time and which was proper and
which was improper. I did Iisten to him yesterday afternoon and I
thought that he made a very articulate case of what he had in his
mind at the time and I have no interest whatever in criticizing him.

I just simply want to say, in order to clarify this matter a little bit,
that as I was listening to him yesterday, I realized that not being
either a chemist or a biologist and having no competence in either of
these areas, I would not have known how to write a directive that would
have encompassed everything that he was talking about yesterday.

So, I simply cannot contribute to this except to say that it was my
impression, and I say impression because I am not an expert, that we
were supposed to get rid of those things and that is why I ordered
the program terminated and these things were everything that I
thought you could draw a circle around as applying to the President’s
directive. But when a scientist comes to draw in the circle, he would
probably draw it differently than I would.

Senator Monpase. In other words you are testifying that in your
judgment there is doubt as to whether these were toxins within the
meaning of the Presidential order.

Ambassador Herms. Like I say, I do not know, sir.

Senator MoxnpaLe. Even today do you have doubts?

Ambassador Herms. I have heard no expert witness except Dr.
Gordon. I do not know whether some other witness would support
him or not. I understand that you have a distinguished witness here
who developed these things in the first place and who is going to
testify before you. And whatever he would say, I would be prepared
to accept. That is the way I have had to do these things.

Senator Mowpare. What of the defense that the order to destroy
toxins, if included within the order, did not run to the CIA?

Ambassador Herus. Well, Senator Mondale, I do not think that
I want to take refuge in that kind of an argument. My understanding
of what the President wanted was that he wanted these things got
rid of and whether they were in the Army or the CIA, he wanted
them disposed of. I was not, in other words, taking 2 legalistic position
on this, 1 was just trying to abide by what I thought were his wishes.

Senator Moxpare. But the other day when we had our off-the-
record discussions, you indicated that what had happened was “a very
serious breach of their instructions.” Would you still stand with, that
description ?

Ambassador Herms. That is the way I felt, sir. But I had not, at
the time I made that statement, heard Dr. Gordon’s explanation. I
have not communicated with Dr. Gordon in many, many years, if ever,
so that I did not know what he had on his mind. I simply made that
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statement because that is based on the facts as I knew them at that
time. That was what I thought this was.

Senator Moxpare. In any event, at the time, it is your clear recol-
lection that it was your understanding that the toxins within the con-
trol of the CIA were to be destroyed. You ordered, orally, their de-
struction through Mr. Karamessines, and later you were surprised
to find out that they had not been destroyed.

Ambassador Heras. Not only later, some 5 years later.

Senator Monpare. That is correct. But in any event, this was 2
breach of your instructions to destroy the toxins.

Ambassador Herms. It seems so to me.

-Senator Moxpars. What authority does the CIA have for develop-
ing this chemical and toxic capability ? I am now asking the question
in the context of the pre-Presidential order. Where do you draw your
authority to develop such a capability?

Ambassador HeLms. Sir, these activities, as I recall it, Senator Mon-
dale, started back in the early fifties. I do not remember whether they
started when General Smith was the Director or when Allen Dulles
was the Director. Nor do I recall under what rubric at that time they
made the decision to go ahead with these things. I must confess that
when I became Director I do not recall going back into the legislative
or legal history of it. I simply had accepted the fact over the years that
the Agency was expected to maintain defensive capabilities and be in
the vanguard of these exotic things for the simple reason that a good
intelligence organization would be expected to know what his adver-
saries were doing and to be in a position to protect himself against the
offensive acts of his adversaries.

During the fifties and sixties, there were occasional incidents which

reminded us that we must be very careful and stay involved in this
kind of activity. For example, I think it was in the year 1957, and I
want to say here that I have been trying to refresh my memory in the
last 24 hours about these events and, so if I get some dates wrong or
some names wrong, I hope the committee will forgive me. I am not in-
tending to mislead or falsify, but I think it was some time around 1957
& Russian KGB agent, named Stachinsky, came to Munich. And, using
some kind of a poison spray or dart or weapon of this kind, killed one
of the leaders of a Ukranian dissident movement that was located at
Munich, Germany, by the name of Leo Rebet. A couple of years later
the leader of that Ukranian movement, Bandera, was killed by = stmi-
lar agsault by the same man using poison materials, as T recall it.
If it wasn’t poison materials and there was a dart with poison on
it, I am sure that the records of the West German Government will
show this,
. But, in any event, there were two people that were murdered. And
1t 1s not that we assume this. Mr. Stachinsky subsequently defected to
the West German Government and confessed these things and I believe
was convicted and served some kind of a sentence or other. So, it is in
the public record that this occurred.

In the sixties, a West German Government technician, an audio
technician, was sweeping. And for the benefit of those who are not
techmicians, there is a device whereby one can go over a room to find
out 1f there are any listening or audio devices having been planted
In the room. Having swept the West German Embassy in Moscow,
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he came across various microphones and other sudio installations in
the Embassy and obviously they were pulled out and the work of the
KGB or whoever put them in was obviously brought to naught.

This poor fellow one Sunday went on a train ride up to some mon-
astery outside of Moscow and in the process of this holiday of his he
was sprayed with mustard gas or some similar poison substance on the
legs, the result of which he lost the use of his legs for the rest of his life.

These exotic matters are seldom in the hands of the ordinary citi-
z%p, so one would have to assume that this was a KGB or GRU oper-
ation.

With these things recurring constantly in life, the Agency obviously
felt it had to keep up to speed on these, not only to protect our own
People against such attacks, but, if worst came to worst, and we were
ever asked by the proper authority to do something in this field, we
would be prepared to do so.

Senator Mowpare. Mr. Karamessines, could you tell us what you
think ha%pened which resulted in the countermanding of your order to
destroy the toxins?

Mr. Karamessines. Sir, of my own knowledpe, I do not know what
happened which resulted in the countermanding of the order. I do
not think there was a countermanding of the order, Senator Mondale.
I think there was a failure on the part of someone to carry out an
instruction that he had been given. At least that is the impression T
get from what I have read in the newspapers of some of the testimony.

Senator Monpace. However, it is defined, you issued an order to
destroy the toxins, and in fact, they were not destroyed.

Mr. Karamessines. Mr. Helms, T, and Dr. Gottlieb jointly agreed
that this program had to come to an end, and Dr. Gottlieb took off
with that instruction.

Senator Monpare, And were you surprised, then, to find out that the .

toxins had not, in fact, been destroyed ¢

Mr. Karanmrssings. Yes, sir.

Senator MoxDALE. One final question—who or what is P600 ¢

Mr. Karamessives. I never heard of it before.

Senator Moxpave. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. "

The Cramman. Thank you, Senator Mondale.

Senator Baker.

Senator Baxgr. Thank you, Mr. Chairmanu.

Mr. Helms, I have rercad now the letter from Director Colby fo
the chairman dated September 16, ih which he indicates that he may
have misspoken of the situation with respect to the destruction of
records. It s my summary of Mr. Colby’s letter that he says that when
he was being questioned—and I assume that was my question to Mr.
Colby—about the destruction of certain CLA records, he was think-
ing of the question in its broadest context, namely, drugs, bacteriologic
agents, and chemical agents. “I thus answered that there were indica-
tions of record destruction in 1972.” To me, that sentence says that there
was a destruction in November of 1972, but it was not the records that
you think, or that may have been inferred from my testimony.

ﬁou were Director of Central Intelligence at that time; were you
not ?

Ambassador Heras. In 1972 ; yes, sir.
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Senator Baxer. Yes, sir; in November of 1972. Can you give us any
further information in that respect? What records might Mr. Colby
be speaking of that were destroyed in November of 19722

Ambassador Heums. I do not know of any records that were
destroyed in November of 1972. There were some records on the
drug testing program, which have nothing to do with bacteriological
or chemical agents. It was an entirely different thing, I think, in 1973,
just before I left the Agency.

Se};g%or Baxer. But there were none destroyed, that you know of,
in 1972¢

Ambassador Hrms. No, sir.

Senator Baxer. Mr. Chairman, T would ask either that Mr, Colby
return or that he give us a further supplement to his letter in that
respect, because the second paragraph of the letter would suggest to
me that something was destroyed in November of 1972, and 1t is not
clear from the record, what; and in view of this witness’ testimony, I
think that becomes important.

The Cramyan, I think the commiftee will follow up in an appro-
priate way.

Senator Baxgr. Thank you, sir.

In the third paragraph, Mr. Helms, Mr. Colby says that “TI realize
that most listeners might have inferred that I was indicating that
records relating to the CIA-Fort Detrick relationship, in particular
records relating to Project MENAOMI, were destroyed,” MKNAOMI
being the code word for chemical, bacteriological warfare agents.

Ambassador Herms. At Fort Detrick, that whole project.

Senator Baxzr. Mr. Colby continues, “The facts are these : Records
relating to CIA’s drug program in general were destroyed in Jan-
uary of 1973, but there is no evidence that records of Project
MENAOMLI or of the CIA-Fort Detrick relationship were destroyed,
other than possibly as included in the general group in January of
1978.” During the Watergate hearings, you and 1 jousted 2 little about
what was destroyed in January of 1973, I’'m sure you recall, as I do.

Ambassador Herms. Yes; I do, Senator Baker.

Senator Baxzr. I will not belabor that point, except to say that I
would appreciate any further information you could give me about the
documents that might have been destroyed relating in general to the
drug program in January of 1973.

Ambassador Heums, Sir, I do not understand Mr. Colby’s wording
there, quite frankly. I have testified before the committee members
this week about what X understood has been destroyed in connection
with an entirely separate drug testing program. I wish you would
read my testimony. But as far as MKNAQOMTI is concerned, and this
bacteriological and chemical business, I know of no destruction.

Senator Baxzsr. I think that probably is where we are going to end up
in this line of questioning. Would you now testify, or do you now
testify, Mr. Helms, that you have no knowledge of the destruction of
any records at any time about MKNAOMI ¢

Ambassador Herwms, That is correct, Senator Baker. I have no
recollection of any such.

Senator Baxer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I do not mean to press
the point. In view of the implications of the letter, I do respectfully
request that we ask for a further clarification of the point: that is to
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say, what, if any records were destroyed by the CIA relating to their
drug program, relating to MENAOMI, with respect to the January
1978 destruction, and with respect to the November 1972 destruction.
What I am after is to find out what records were destroyed, why, and
on whose authority. ]

Ambassador Herus. Senator Baker, may I ask your indulgence that
when this information is acquired from the Agency, if there is any-
thing about it that runs countar to my recollection, would you be kind
enough to adviseme?

Senator Baxzr. I will, indeed, Mr. Helms, and I fully understand the
difficulties that you have, not only in trying to recall with specificity
the events of that period, but also to travel back and forth between
here and Iran, where you are our Ambassador. I remarked to the
chairman previously, it seems like every time we run out of something
to do, we call Dick Helms back from Iran to testify. But if there is any
conflict, most certainly I will see that you have an opportunity to
elaborate on it.

Ambassador Herms, Thank you very much, sir.

Senator Bager. Thank you, sir.

The CaarrMAN. Senator Baker, your request is a matter of record,
and T instruct the staff of this committee to pursue this matter, so that
the necessary answers and information is received by the committee.

Senator Baxer. Thank you. .

The Cratrman. I agree with you that that question of the destruction
of records needs to be cleared up.

Senator Baxer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. T do not allege that there
was a destruction of records, but it seems to me that, in view of the
testimony yesterday, the letter today, and the testimony of this witness,
that the whole question needs to be clarified, and it can be done in a
number of ways, and T appreciate your help in that respect.

The Cmamyman. Very well.

Senator Huddleston.

Ambassador Herms. Good morning, Senator Huddleston.

Senator HuppLeston. Good morning, Ambassador; Mr. Karames-
sines; Mr. Chairman. .

In reference to Senator Mondale’s question to Mr. Karamessines
about P600, Mr. Helms did not have an opportunity to respond to that.
Have you ever heard of, or do you have any knowledge about P600?

Ambassador Herms. No, Senator Fluddieston, I do not. And when
I was listening to the questioning of Dr. Gordon, I obviously was won-
dering about this, and then, suddenly, I realized—am T not correct,
that label was written by somebody at Fort Detrick? In other words,
by an employee of the U.S. Army, and not by an employee of the
Agency, and therefore, it possibly did not have to do with the fricky
words, rubrics, code words, and so forth that we use. But in any event, I
have never heard of it.

Senator Huoprestox. It is quite possible. I do not believe we have
established yet just who did place that label on this merchandise.

You said you were surprised, or that you had never before seen, the
dart gun that was displayed here yesterday. You were surprised, but
not shocked to find that this material had been retained, contrary to the
President’s order. Would you be surprised or shocked to learn that that
gun, or one Iike it, had been used by agents against either watchdogs or
human beings?
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Ambassador Herums. I would be surprised if it had been nsed against
human beings, but I’'m not surprised it would have been used against
watchdogs. I believe there were various experiments conducted in an
effort to find out how one could either tranquilize or kill guard dogs in
foreign countries. That does not surprise me at all.

Senator Hupprestox. Do you know whether or not it was used, in
fact, against watchdogs?

Ambassador Herms. I believe there were experiments conducted
against dogs. Whether it was ever used in a live operational situation
against dogs, I do not recall.

Senator Hoooresron. Mr. Karamessines, what is your Iknowledge?

Mr. Karanmessines. T have no recollection of the actual use of any
of the materials we have been discussing, sir, operational use, T mean.
I was never asked to approve an operational use of any of these ma-
terials, to my very best recollection.

I want to add this. In fairness, T am not sure I would have been
asked, if it were a question of putting out a watchdog in connection
with a border-crossing operation in Southeast Asia or somewhere.
I am not sure I woulg have been asked, but in any case, T have no
recollection of having been asked, and I have no knowledge whatever
of the actual use of any of these materials against 2 human being.

Senator Hupprestox. Let me put it this way, then. How low in the
echelon of command within the CTA would an individual be that
would have the ability to give permission for use of any of these
weapons in any kind of circumstance

Mr. KaranmessiNes. They would have to come to me, and needless to
say, I would not feel justified in giving a yes or a no on my own au-
thority. I would take it to Mr. Helms.

You are speaking now ahout using one of these operationally
against a human being—is that correct, Senator ?

Senator Huppreston. That is correct; yes, sir.

Mr. Karamessives. Well, T would take it, without any question,
to Mr. Helms, if I entertained it at all. T would recommend against
it. And my guess is that Mr. Helms would take it further, but that is
a guess.

I want to add one thing. Mr. Helms and my other associates at
the Agency have known—my close associates have known for years
that I would not continue in'the Agency if there were a requirement
for the killing of a human being.

Senator HuppLesTon. Just to set the record straight, was there
ever, at any time, a discussion between you two gentlemen, or be-
tween you, either of you with Dr. Gottlieb, or any other person in the
organization, a question of whether or not shellfish toxin did, in fact,
come under the jurisdiction of the President’s order ?

Ambassador Herms. Sir, if I may answer the question first. X do
ot remember any discussion of shellfish toxin, as such, and I certainly
do not remember a discussion of whether or not it came under the Pres-
1dent’s order. And as I, Senator Huddleston, was saying when I was
addressing myself to Senator Mondale’s question, I am not a techniclan,
so I Woulg not have even been able to debate the matter.

Senator HuppLesToN. But you never discussed it 2

Ambassador HErms. No, not that I vecall.

Senator HupbLestow. Mr. Karamessines.
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Mr. Karanzssives. Well, sir, if diseussion—if you are including
in. the word discussion the fact that we agreed to get rid of this pro-
gram—if that is what you mean by discussion, well, we agreed to get
1d of the program., .

Senator HovpresTox. But in that agreement, arriving at that agree-
ment, did you ever consider whether or not shellfish toxin, or any other
material that you had, might not be included in the order?

Mr. Karawessrnes. No material was identified to me by that name,
sir. It was a question, really, of dangerous chemicals. )

Senator Huporeston. Now, we have had a great deal of testimony
from you gentlemen and from others in the organization that referred
“to my understanding that certain orders were given”, or “my under-
standing that the orders were carried out,” or “I had an understanding
that we had approval from higher authority to do certain things.”
This has come up & number of times, in other phases of our ingwmry.
Mr. Helms, you said that it was not unusual for you to give verbal
orders, presumably to be transmitted on down the line. Are we to infer
that that not only is not unusual but that was a standard operating
procedure, regardless of the nature of the order ¢

Ambassador Herms. Well, it was certainly, Senator TIuddleston, a
standard operating procedure to give oral instructions. The question
of the sensitivity of the matter might have something to do with it.
If it was inordinately sensitive, there was every chance that the dis-
cussion would have been entirely oral.

Senator Hunprestoxn. Looking at this particular matter—and I rec-
ognize we are looking at it in hindsight~—does it not have a certain
sensitivity in reverse? That is to say that, recognizing that this was a
policy of the U.S. Government, which was being enunciated by the
President for consumption around the world, and that at some future
date, when some foreign country might have cause to question whether
or not the United States was sincere in this order, and whether it did,
in fact, carry it out, would it not be very helpful under those cireum-
stances, to have written instructions from an agency such as the CIA
a.néi a%l of the Government agencies that did, in fact, implement that
order?

Ambassador Herms. Yes, I think it would have been helpful, sir.
As a matter of fact, I noticed in this National Security Council De-
sion Memorandum that the Secretary of Defense was given the charge
of carrying out this affair. I do not recall any correspondence from
him with regard to it. .

I think that maybe several other memorandums from various people
might have been helpful in this situation, including a definition of
exactly what a toxin was, if Dr. Gordon wd& as bothered about it as
he indicated yesterday.

Senator Huppreston. Let me say.that also in our inquiry there have
been at least indications that in other instances in which the CTA was
involved, and in which the various embassies of various countries were
very much concerned, and also our National Security Council, grea$
pains have been taken to prepare minutes and instructions in writing,
and that those minutes and instructions be very carefully devised so
that they would indicate precisely what the actions were, what the
American position was—now, why, in a matter this important, that
involved a change in policy of the U.S. Government, was it not felt
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that here, again, it would be important to have incontrovertible evi-
dence——that can only be done in writing, and even then, there is often
some question—that your Agency did, in fact, implement the instrue-
tions of the President of the United States?

Ambassador Herms. Senator Huddleston, I cannot help saying that
if T had various things to do over again, I would have done them dif-
ferently, and I think in light of what has transpired here, if I had
known then what I know now, I certainly would have issued a directive
in writing.

Senator Hopprrston. In light, too, sir, of your present position as
Ambassador to Iran, how serious would you judge this kind of action
if it were discovered that an agency of the Federal Government had,
in fact, contravened, or failed to carry out, an instruction of the Presi-
dent on & matter of international concern ?

Ambassador Heras. Well, sir, I agree that when it is isolated as a
particular instance in time, that it can be made to assume large and
significant proportions. I would like to remind you that the Agency
activity was a very modest one. It had nothing to do with vast bac-
teriological and chemical substances, large in quantity and large in
scope. In addition, I have to say that all of us in the Federal Govern-
ment, for better or for worse, have many decisions on many things
that we are obliged to do every day, and I cannot say at the £ime that
this particular Presidential order, of which there were many every
week, loomed as large as you make it seem to loom., That is all T can
say.

Senator Hupprestox. But the President went to great lengths, this
country went to great lengths, if I recall correctly, to make quite a pub-
lie relations display of this fact, and even to the extent of publicizing
the destruction of some of this material.

Ambassador Herms. I realize that, sir. And I testified earlier, I
thought the material had been destroyed, and did not give it another
thought. And I must say that when it showed up, as I understand it,
some days later, its existence in the Agency vault was unknown to me,
ggufii;i(:i is & little bit hard to look for something that Jou do not expect
. Senator HuobLesToN, Just one more question. In the matter of oral
instructions versus written instructions, was it assumed that when an
oral instruction was given by you as head of the Agency to Mr.
Karamessines, who in turn would give the instruction, in this case,
presumably to Dr, Gottlieb, that this would prevail all the way down
the line; that all of the communication would be simply by words?

Ambassador Hrrwms. Yes, sir, and this happened constantly.

Senator HuppLestox. And it was always carried out, but'in spite of
this discipline that the organization has—and I have no reason to
question 1t—Dr. Gordon testified yesterday that he had never seen any
mstructions within the CIA for him to dispose of these lethal weapons.

Ambassador Hrrms. T believe that was his testimony.

Senator HuppLesrox. That is correct. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cratrman. Thank you, Senator Huddleston. Senator Mathiss?

Senator MaTm1as. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

A few minutes ago, Senator Baker commented on the very heavy
demands that we have put on Mr. Helms; the number of times we
have asked him to come back from Iran, and I think that is cerfainly
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true. And the committee owes him a debt for the cooperative way In
which he has attempted to assist us. But I might offer him, in consola-
tion, what we might call a Bicentennial thought on that subject.

James Madison, in contemplating the kind of structure of Govern-
ment that was set up 200 years ago, said of these hearings that the
right of freely examining public characters and measures 1s the only
eﬁgeetive guardian of every other right. And I think that puts the testi-
mony which Ambassador Helms gives this morning, and that which
Mz, Colby and others gave yesterday, in the kind of context in which
it ought to be. This is a very important process of Government, and
I think it underscores the suggestion made by Senator Baker yester-
day that we need to have more public hearings which help to inform
the public as to exactly what this is all about. This is no secret rite
which iz conducted by high priests behind the screen. This is every-
body’s business, and I think it is important that everybody understand
exactly what it is all about.

Mr. Helms, you know, I think, that I feel that the case that we
are considering is an illustrative one. I think it is more important in
what it tells us about how the CIA works than perhaps on its own
merits. With that thought in mind, I wonder if you could tell us
exactly how, in a mechanical way——just a pedestrian, mechanical way—
orders from the President of the United States are received by the
CIA and how they are carried out by the CTA.

Ambagsador Herms. Well, sir, T will do my best.

Formalistically, Presidential orders are sometimes received in the
form of National Security Decision Memoranda. . )

Senator Matnias. These would come from the National Security
Council?

Ambassador Herms. That's right, and they would be signed by the
Executive Secretary of the National Security Council. I would like to
point out that the terminology I’m using is the terminology that
derives from President Nixon’s administration. These were not called
National Security Council Decision Memorandum in President John-
son or President Kennedy’s administration. They were called some-
thing else. But it 15 a written directive promulgating, if you like, the
deciston of the National Security Council. ) )

Those normally came to me, particularly if they were highly classi-
fied, in my capacity as the Director. And I made a decision as to
which ones of my colleagues should be informed about the contents of
the decision. There were times when we met together to decide how
the decisions ought to be carried out. . i

There was another kind of Presidential order, and that is the kind
that would be issued via his Assistant for National Security Affairs, be
it Dr. Kissinger or be it MeGeorge Bundy, or whoever was acting in
that capacity. He might call on the telephone, on the secure phone, and
give an mstruction that the President wanted carried out, a request for
information. )

Obviously, I would then do whatever I thought was appropriate to
either get the answer to the question or to pass the order down the line.

Obviously, there was & third kind, in which the President himself
might request something. He might call on the telephone himself, or
he might call one into his office, and he would decide upon what you
were supposed to do. And then, the Director would go back to the
Agency and sttempt to carry it out.
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Senator Marmias. Would that third kind of category be in the crisis
situation, the Cuban missile crisis, that kind of—-—

Ambassador Herus. It might be in a erisis situation, or interestingly
enough, it mi%ht be in a dead calm situation. I do not think that the
President, at least in my experience, particularly caleulated whether
they were putting the request in writing, or whether they were making
it orally. 1t just was the fact that on a certain day, they wanted some-
thing done, and took whatever measure there might be to see that it
was done.

I want to say that generally, at least Presidents Kennedy, Johnson
and Nixon, for whom I worked most closely, usually left it to me as to
how the order was to be carried out within the Agency. I do not think
that any of them have ever gone to the pains to find out exactly what
the Agency hierarchy was, or who would be the next fellow to learn
about 1t. So they left that judgment to me. But these did come in at
least these three ways.

Senator Marmias. And then what would you do to transmit these
orders into action within the Agency ¢

Ambassador Herms. Well, I like to think that I was an orderly
executive, and I would normally call in the Deputy Director who was
in charge of the particular activity, where I thought this request fitted.
If 1t involved two of the Deputy Directors, I would call the two of
them in. In other words, T would get into my office all of those individ-
uals that, it scemed to me, would be helpful in carrying out whatever
instruction we had been given. “

Senator MaTm1As. Now, you say you would call in the ones who
were involved in the execution of the policy that the President had
directed ?

Ambassador Heras, Senator Mathias, may T-——maybe not for your
benefit, certainly, because I realize you know these things, but maybe
for the benefit of others—the Agency was divided into directorates,
and there were four of them, and they had rather specific functions.
There was a support directorate which had within it the various ele-
ments that supported the operations and the existence of the adminis-
tration of the Agency.

There was a Dircctorate for Intelligence, which did the collation
and analysis on the various intelligence studies, current and otherwise.
There was a Deputy Director for Plans in my time, who was in charge
of covert operations, and there was a Deputy Director for Science and
Technology who had both operational and analytic capabilities in the
science and technology fleld. So, I would have to judge exactly into
which one of these categories the instruction fell, or under which two
or three categories it fell.

Senator Marmias, Now, were these Directorates segregated very
gﬁrefgﬂy from each other, or was there intercommunication between

em?

Ambassador Herms. The Deputy Director of Plans is segregated in
the building from other Directorates. In fact, there are signs in the
halls indicating when you got into that part of the building. As for
the rest of it, they were not so particularly segregated. There was a lot
of visiting back and forth.

Senator MaTHias. So that that was a watertight compartment. But
there might be intercommunication elsewhere.
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Ambassador Hurms. In Navy terms, sir, far from watertight Inte-
grity, X want to tell you. But nevertheless, there was effort made to
segregate it. ) )

Senator Matmias. Well, if there was this compartmentation, did
that inhibit understanding of a Presidential directive which came
down through you, through whoever was Director? Was it desirable
that knowledge of a Presidential directive or direction was wide-
spread throughout the Agency, or wag it desirable to have it only
known by the people who were immediately involved in executing it?

Ambassador Herys. Well, it was generally, sir, the latter, partic-
ularly if it was on a sensitive matter. But I do not think in this partic-
ular case that would have entered our minds. I think that in the case of
the toxins and the bacteriological weapons that we would have gone to
the man who had this under his aegis, in this case Dr. Gottlieb, and ask
him to carry out the instruction. .

I must say that, in hindsight—T say even in hindsight—this looks
like a fairly simple matter. And the fact that it has been so complicated
with the passage of time is a great surprise to me. )

Senator Marmzas. How did you normally carry out the oversight
in the execution of a Presidential order ?

Ambassador Heums. I suppose that there is no good, clear-cut answer
to that, because Presidential orders and instructions were of such
variety. If the instruction, for example, were to produce some evi-
dence or a document, then that was the answer, and that was the follow-
through. In certain other categories of things, we had an inspeetor
general system that ran various checks through all elements of the
Agency, or almost all elements of the Agency, periodically, in an
effort to find out if there was compliance with directives, and arrange-
ments for covert agents and all kinds of things of that sort.

In other words, we thought it was what was an orderly procedure;
to make sure, in these farflung field stations, for example, people
Wg;al doing what they were supposed to be doing in keeping with the
regulations.

I want to say that, in this particular case, I realize that there was
no followup that found these toxins. But I have been scratching my
head ever since T heard about this as to what would have been 2 normal
practice in a sitnation where you did not know that something existed.
I mean, T had genuinely thought these things had been destroyed at
Fort Detrick. .

Senator Marmtas. If, just as a matter of organization, and I am
thinking now of the kind of recommendations this committee will
ultimately have to make—if, as a matter of organization, there had
been less compartmentation, more sharing of mmformation, might a
situation of this sort have come to light

Ambassador Herms. I do not want to seek refuge in that, Senator
Mathias. T do not think so. I do not think that compartmentation
in this case was at fault. Maybe human communication was at fault,
but not compartmentation. .

Senator Marmzas. Of course, if there is greater communieation, then
you have a wider participation, wider knowledge, wider sharing of an
oversight capacity, rather than falling into the kind of trap that is
described by the old saw: Who is taking care of the caretaker’s
daughter when the caretaker is busy taking care?
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Craatrman., All right, Senator Mathias. Thank you.

Senator Hart ?

Senator Harr of Colorado. Gentlemen, you both testified that you
were generally aware that the CIA had some relationship with ¥ort
Detrick’s Special Operations Division to investigate toxic capabilities.
Isthat correct ?

Ambassador Herms. Well, T knew that we had an arrangement with
Fort Detrick in this general field, yes, sir.

Senator Harr of Colorado. That is my question.

In connection with this investigation, I would like to cite three
experiments or studies that were conducted, to see or to test your
recoliection and knowledge of those experiments. First of all, I will
quote from a June 1, 1969, study report done by Fort Detrick on this
tOXidG exgc%rimentation. Quoting from that veport, one study that was
conducted :

The General Services Administration and Fort Detrick entered into a ¢o-
operative project to investigate the vulmerability of drinking water in Federal
buildings to covert biologieal attack. After consuliation with the design engi-
neers in the GSA, the Food and Drug Administration Building in Washington,
D.C., was selected for investigation. The engineers assured us that the drinking
water system is typical of that installed in modern multistory buildings.

{They then proceeded to conduct two tests, one to eliminate chlorine in the
water. The second test was a simulated covert test. A colipheed was introduced
into the system by back pressure . . .”

Ambassador Herms., A what ? .

Senator Harr of Colorado. C-o0-1-i-p-h-e-e-d. I think it is & non-toxic
chemical of some kind. I am just laying out the background so you
will understand the nature of the question.

.. . Was introduced into the system by & back pressure technigue at a drinking
fountain. This iz a technique a saboteur might use. Neither the building oc-
cupants nor operating personnel were advised that such a test was planned. 'We
were not challenged, and apparently undetected.

The final guotation from the study:

From limited consultation with design engineers, it shonld be possible to de-
velop simple guidelines for planning an attack on a group of people that work
in a building construeted with the eireulsating chilled drinking water system.

The question to hoth of you is, were you aware of this experiment ¢

Ambassador Hrerms. Senator Hart, I was not.

Mr, KaraMEssings. I never heard of it, This is the Department of
Defense and GS A, did you say, sir?

Senator Harr of Colorado. That is right, at Detrick; Special
Operations.

Mr. Karamessives. Well, whoever it was, I never heard of it.

Senator Hazr of Colorado. Do you know whether or not CIA. per-
sonnel were involved in ¢his study ¢

Ambassador Herms. I did not hear of the study, sir, so I do not
know whether they were involved.

Senator Harr of Colorado. But you have no knowledge as to this
experiment or vulnerability study that your personnel were involved ¢

Ambassador Heums. Not that particular one.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Let me cite another, with the same ques~
tions. This is quoting from an internal CIA docament, which is dated
October 18,1967, Technical Services Division.
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In anticipation of a future need for information, and to establish a capability,
a study on the vulnerability of subway systems to covert attack and develop-
ment of & method to carry out such an attack was conducted. The suitability
of the system was assessed and evaluated covertly, utilizing the New York City
subways as the trial model. The result provided imformation om distribution
and concentrations of organisms which are obtained. I do not know what that
me'la‘t]?g-data provided the means of assessing the threat of infection to subway
passengers. The study provided a threat model and information on ease of dis-
semination and methods of delivery which could be used offensively.

Now, because of the fact that this is-a memorandum originating in
the CIA, I would ask if either of you were aware of this vulnerability
study for the development of this defensive capability.

Ambassador Herms., Excuse me, Senator Hart. Did you say who
had written the memorandum to whom ?

Senator Harr of Colorado. It is my understanding we have been
requested by the CIA not to divulge the name of the individual. It
was a middle-level officer in the Technical Services Division of the
CIA, and the date was Qctober 18, 1967.

Ambassador Herms. T do not recall the study.

The Cramman. I would suggest, Mr. Helms, that you take a look
at this memorandum. It might be placed before you.

Ambassador Herms. That would be helpful.

The Caamman. It is exhibit 6. So you can examine the document
itself before replying.

Ambassador Herms. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Now, to repeat the question, were either
or both of you aware that this study or experiment was conducted ?

Ambassador HeLmg. T was not, sir.

Mr. KaramessIvEs, I was not.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Would it be your assumption, based upon
this memorandum, that CIA. personnel were involved in this study ¢

Ambassador Herms. T cannot tell from the wording of the memo-
randum whether these CLA people were involved, or whether it was
other people involved, and we were riding piggyback. ’

Senator Hart of Colorado. Quoting from the same document, page
2, paragraph 7:

Three methods and systems for carrying out & covert attack against erops
and causing severe crop loss have been developed and evaluated under field
conditions. This was accomplished in anticipation of a requirement which later
developed but was subsequently scrubbed just prior to putting into action.

‘Were you aware of this study or experimentation ¢

Ambassador Herams. Well, I do not know whether I was aware of
this particular one, Senator Hart. But I know that at one time in this
Government—and it was not only in the CIA; it was other places as
well-—there was a great deal of attention given to what wheat rust
or rice rust would do to crops in various parts of the world. And I
know there were studies undertaken by someone to try to ascertain how
destructive this particular disease was.

It is my distinct recollection that nothing was ever done about it,
but T know there were studies being conducted. and I would not have
been at all surprised if the Agency was involved in those studies.

1See p. 204.
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Senator Hart of Colorado. Would you accept that answer, Mr.
Karamessines?

Mr. KaramessiNgs. Yes. 1 am not sure we were involved in the
studies, but it would be my guess that we received the benefit of such
studies. In other words, we were kept posted through the liaison that
is reflected in this memorandum.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Now, gentlemen, I apologize for pursu-
ing this at some length, but the record we have developed so far has
to do largely with a defensive capability. That is, a lot of this toxic
experimentation was going on so that we could be prepared to counter
any threat posed by any other country and that we had to conduct
these experiments just to be on the safe side, to know whatever we
could find out about them. But in each of the cases T have cited, there
is strong reason to believe—in fact, the language in two of the passages
that I have cited specifically states that we were preparing in these
areas offensive capabilities.

Now, my question, to conclude this line of interrogation, is, if we
were preparing that kind of offensive capability, why did not individ-
uals of your stature in the Agency know about this?

Ambassador Herms. Well, Senator Hart, I would have said, in con-
nection with the Fort Detrick study, there was no reason why we
should have known about it. And in connection with the other matters,
the ongoing responsibilities of these various elements were to make
such studies.

The question that I think is most important, however, is that we
never gave any authorization for any offensive use of these things.
And T think that, in the end, is the important question.

Mr. Karamessoves. I would simply add, Senator Hart, that one of
these is described, in part at least, as a vulnerability study. That would
suggest that the idea here was to—from those who are conducting
the experiments or studies, their purpose, at least in part, was to see
what effect the use of these methods against us would have and how
we could counter the use of such methods.

Senator Hagr of Colorado. I understand that.

Mr. Karamessines. And this is a recurring theme, as a matter of
fact, throughout all of the work of the Technical Services Directorate.
When letter bombs became fashionable 3 or 4 years ago and were
popping off in various offices here and abroad, it was the TSD and
the kind of work that is reflected in the matters we have been discuss-
ing, that was in a position to provide the rest of the Government, in-
cluding the FBI, with the solution of the proper defusing of letter
bombs. It was they who analyzed the letter bombs and found how to
deal with it. This 1s the kind of work we expected TSD to be carrying
on constantly, to be in a position to use the method to counter it if
called upon.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Was it alse within their mandate, and
would you expect it to be within their mandate, to go ahead and pro-
duce offensive operating eapabilities without instructions from above?

Mr. Karamessoves. Well, that depends on what you mean by offen-
sive operating capabilities.

Senator Harr of Colorado. I think the language in the passages that
I have cited clearly indicate that we were preparing, in the case of
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sahotaging the drinking supply of buildings, of subway systems, and
crops, to be able to do this to somebody else.

r. Karamesstwes., Yes; I think it would have been within TSD’s
purview to be in a position to do this if they were directed to do so
by proper authority, and I would assume that could only be the Presi-
dent. And I cannot describe the circumstances under which that would
happen, because I do not know.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Well, both of you gentlemen have al-
ready testified thbat you were surprised, although not shocked, that
your understanding and direction was not followed in the matter of
the destruction of the toxic materials. Is it a possibility that those
same midlevel people who disobeyed the understanding of the highest

levels in the Agency might also have taken it upon themselves to imple-
ment these operating capabilities under some circumstances ?

Ambassador Herms. Do you know of any case, Senator Hart ?

Senator Harr of Colorado. We have been studying that subject for
8 months.

Ambassador Herus. I think you are drawing a very long bow and,
may I say,an unfair one.

Senator Harr of Colorado. I am asking a question. I am asking a
question.

Ambagsador HErams. Would you rephrase the question ¢

Senator Harr of Colorado. The question is, based upon your sur-
prise that your understanding and what you thought were your orders
were not carried out as to destruction of these toxic materials, what
guarantees would you have that the capabilities being developed in
the studies and experiments that X have described might not be carried
out by some people without proper authorization?

Ambassador Herus. T think in human life it is always possible that
something may happen that one does not expect, but I know of ne
cases in this category.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The CEARMAN. Thank you Senator Hart.

Senator Schweiker.

Senator Scawerser. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Karainessines, when you were at the Agency and running your
operation and critical or dangerous ma.teriafé came to your charge,
either directly or through one of your subordinates, would it have
been normal procedure under your administrative procedures to log
them in? =

_ Mr. Karamessines. To log them in.
" ~Senator Scaweiker. Yes. In other words, if you received critical or
dangerous materials——

Mr. Karamesstves. I did not receive critical or dangerous materials.
A component under my overall jurisdiction, one component out of a
considerable number, would have received these dangerous materials,
and that was the Technical Services Division.

Senator Scrwerser. Would it have been normal procedure, forget-
tine this particniar case now. to logthem in ?

Mr. KARAMESSINES. Probably, but T am not sure they did. T do not
know that thev did, how thev handled them. Thev were the best judges.
T could not try to tell a technician, & specialist in a certain field, how
to do his job.
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Senator Scuwerssk. How about taking inventory ¢ Did you periodi-
cally take inventory of whatever assets you had under your control
and command ?

Mr. Karamessines. No; I did not.

Senator ScEWEIKER. You did not?

Mr. Karamessines. I personally did not, sir. I assumed, however,
that this was in the records of the Technical Services Division.

_ Senator Scrwrerker. Did you sign spending vouchers or authoriza-
tions for money spent through you ¢

Mr. Karamessines. I would either sign—JX might have signed. I more
probably recommended the signature, but I might have signed, too. I
do not recall that. '

Senator Scawerker. I was under the impression that, lacking over-
sight, by Congress, that there was a very tight internal auditing pro-
cedure where each department head and agency head within CIA had
to put his name on the line, because we lacked these controls. Is that
not correct ?

Mr. KaraMEssINEs. It is correct. :

Senator Scewerser. Well, then, in terms of spending money for
shellfish toxin, this normally would have come under your purview
as the job you held, even though it might have been two or three lovels
below you. Is that not correct ?

Mr. KaramessiNgs. Yes; that is correct.

Senator Scrweiser. Now, we were trying to identify yesterday
from where some 6 grams, which was 60 percent of the whole supply
that was found there, came. Can you shed any light on this at all?

Mr. KaramMESSINES. No, sir, noneat all.

Senator ScawmgEr, Overnight, I found out that instead of being
one Public Health Service laboratory involved, which, at that point,
was Narragansett, R.I., the other can also come from a Public Health
Service lab, which name was not clear on the can but was clear on the
label itself, the Taft Center at Cincinnati, Ohio. Were you aware that
money was going from your department to the Public Health Service
in both cases for shellfish toxin research ?

Mr. Kararvussives. I am not aware of that; no, sir, as T sit here
today. That is not to say that I was not aware of it at the time in
recommending approval or signing off on expenditures for these
activities.

Senator Scawerker. But somebody did have to sign for it. Normally,
it would have been you. You are just saying you do not recollect that
it occurred ? ,

Mr. Karamessings. Well, these approvals for expenditures of funds
were based on the written record.

Ambassador Herms. Senator Schweiker, may I——

Mr. Karamessizes. And the written record should show what the
story is. You are asking me something now that my memory simply
cannot throw light on. .

Ambassador Herms. Senator Schweiker, may I interrupt to ask a
question of fact? Has it been agcertained that the Agency paid for the
research that was going on in the Public Health Service at Narragan-
sett and Cincinnati? :

Senator Scrwersrr. You are anticipating my next question, Mr.
Helms. That is exactly my next question. I was going to direct it to
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either one of you, whether In fact the Public Health research labs were
paid from the CIA directly, or whether contracts were issued from the
Army to the Public Health Service stations involved. .

Mr. Karamessines. The only one I was aware of was the Fort Detrick
arrangement. I did not know about the others that you have mentioned.

Senator SCHWEIKER. So you are not certain whether or not the CIA
contracted directly or whether only indirectly, with the Army being the
prime contractor?

Mr. Karampssings. That is correct.

Senator ScEwmgER. I do have knowledge now that there was a
$194,000 contract on at least one of the instances between the Army and
the Taft Center at Cincinnati, Qhio. :

Mr. Karamressinges. How does that relate to the CTA, sir ? .

Senator Scawrrer. Well, because that produced some of the toxin
that you ended up with at the CIA laboratory. So that was the point
I was making yesterday; that somewhere along the line, we used the
Public Health Service to produce deadly biological toxins and weapons.

Mr. Karammssizes. Are they biological or chemical, sir?

* Senator Sczwemker. They are toxins. You can argue it either way.

Mr. Karamessives. Biological sounds so terrible. Chemical sounds a
little better.

Senator Scawerker. Would you think that is a normal—-

The Ceamman. No matter how you describe shellfish toxin, it does
not sound good. )

Mz. Karamessives. It’s deadly, no question about it, sir.

Senator ScawEerker. As it came up the other day, 10 seconds and the
dog is dead. I do not think it is much of a question whether it is a
chemical or a biological weapon, sir. .

Mr. KaramEessiNes, It is not as bad as the atom bomb, sir, and we
have quite a few of those around here.

Senator Scawererr. Going back to the issue at hand, you are com-
pletely unaware, then——

The CramrmaN. Mr. Karamessines—excuse me, Senator.

Senator ScHwEIKER. Yes. .

The Cramman. I just think we ought not to begin to get flippant in
this hearing. Obviously, we have atom bombs. Qbviously, the President
has not ordered them destroyed. We are discussing a failure to carry
out a Presidential order on a matter of national policy that was widely
publicized to the world. So let us not get off the subject.

Senator ScEwemer. I think it means an evasion, obviously, of the
question at hand, and it fo me indicates a little bit of the attitude in
this situation.

Going back to the case at hand, the slips that were on top of the
two cans that came into the CIA lab indicated that they were both
stored in the same safe at Fort Detrick. in room 202. So both cans, the
5-gram can, which corresponds to the CIA inventory, and the 6-gram
can, of which we do not know the origin, were both stored in the same
safe at Fort Detrick. During the course of your discussions about
destroying materials and about the question of whether you would
retain stocks, was any mention made at all of additional material, pos-
siblv, that was in this same safe up at Fort Detrick ?

Mr. Karamessives. No, sir.
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Senator Scawrrker. You had no discussion at all about Army sur-
plus stocks or other surplus stocks that might be commingled with
yours in the same safe up at Fort Detrick ?

Mr. Karamzssives. No, sir.

Senator Scuweirer, Would you think, Mr. Karamessines, that this
is a proper and appropriate use of the Public Health Service, as far
as the CTA and Army are concerned? What is your professional
opinion, as a vetired CIA officer, whether in fact the Public Health
Service should be utilized for this kind of chemical research, if you
want to call it that, but deadly toxin research?

Mr. Karamessives, I would asume, sir, that the Public Health
Service would have a very vital interest in keeping abreast of devel-
opments in the field of toxins. And if the Public Health Service was
participating in such an activity, I would not find that unusual, because
1t is part of their job to protect the country, isn’t it, against this type
of thing? So I would not find that unusual.

Senator Scawrrker. Well, it is part of their job, certainly, to pro-
tect the people. T am not sure that making poison that kilis tens of
thousands of people is protecting anybody, and I think, really, that
may be a normal judgment of yours, but I happen to think this is a
perversion of the 7.5, Public Health Service to use it for this pur-
pose. And T guess that is what this hearing is all about; is it not, the
difference of opinion here ?

Ambassador Heras, Senator Schweiler, may T interrupt just a mo-
ment, please? I am not aware of any relationship between the CIA
and the Public Health Service in this matter. If you say it is so, I
will accept your word, but I have never been told before this morning.

And, second, I believe that I have read in the paper that a scien-

 tist had said that shellfish toxin has & very real value in development

of Immunization and possibly in the treatment of disesse. So I
think that it is rather difficult for me to accept the fact that we are
being cavalier and that the Public Health Service is being cavalier
and various people are being subverted and suborned here, when 1
do not think that is the case at all. And I am sorry, but I just feel I
must speak this way.

Senator ScEwerkEer. I think there are two points, Mr. Helms, to
keep in mind, No. 1, we do now know there was a contract, at least
from the Army, to the Taft Center in Cincinnati, Ohio. That is a very
direct, specific relationship with the biological arm of our infelligence
agencies to the Public Health Service.

Ambassador Herms. T believe the biological arm belongs to the
Department of Defense, not to the Central Intelligence Agency.

Senator ScHWERER. By the same token, you folks financed it. You
know, whether the money went from A to B to C or A to C is im-
material. You were financing that program, so I think it is a very——

Ambassador Hrrms. We were financing a part of that program
which applied to the Agency, but not the enfire program.

Senator ScewrrsEr. And the second thing I question is that this is
a normal occurrence for the U.S. Public Health Service to spend $3
million of Government money to get all of these toxins. Obviously,
1t was not just an offshoot or byproduct of research going on at Public
Health Service’s Iaboratories or you would not have iad to spend
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$3 million. You had to distill it, you had to compile it, you had to sep-
arate it, and the Public Health Service was doing this. )

And T think it gets to the heart of the question of whose service
some of the Government services are serving. And I think it is a
very direct issue, and I realize that you differ with me on it. But that
is what this is all about. That is why we are here, that is why we
got to this state of debate between the intelligence community and
the rest of the Government and the people.

That is all Thave, Mr. Chairman. : i

The Cmamnmax. Thank you, Senator Schweiker. I believe Senator
Morgan is now to get a chance to agk questions.

Ambassador Herus. Good morning, Senator Morgan.,

Senator Moreaw. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Helms, I apologize for not
being here earlier but T had & hearing on a bill that I had introduced
that was in the Banking Committee.

Mr. Helms, yesterday I asked Mr. Colby whether or not the CTA
had ever recelved any instructions from the President or the National
Security Council with regard to disposing of the toxins in carrying
out the President’s announced orders on February 1970 and in No-
vember, I believe, 1969. Do you recall ever recelving any instructions
from the National Security Council or the President with regard to
the toxins? .

Ambassador HrLms. Sir, we received the National Security Coun-
¢il Decision Memorandum on the subject of toxins and the Presidential
policy to include those in the ban that he had issued earlier in
November, .

Senator Morcan, You say now you received those memorandums.
Is that the memorandum of February 20%

Ambassador Herms. May I check, sir, to see?

Senator Morgax. Yes. ]

Ambassador Herus, February 20, yes. sir.

Senator Morcax. Alsothe one on November 5,1969%

Ambassador Hernms. Yes, sir, T believe that is the one just in front,

es, Sir.

7 Senator Moreax. Now, in both those memorandums, the Secretary
of Defense was instructed to submit recommendations concerning the
disposal of existing stocks of toxin weapons and/or agents. Now, as of
vesterday, I have not been able to find any report to the Nafional
Security Council that that had been done. As a matter of fact, I in-
troduced into the record yesterday parts of a memorandum from a
committee of the National Security Council to the President, dated
January 25, 1973, in which it was reported that the destrucfion of
chemical weapons was being carried out and fthen it made this
statement,

ATl research and development on biological weapons has been terminated.
Programs for disposing of stocks of these weapons are now virtually complete.

Now this clearly indicates to me that they were reporting to the
President as late as January of 1973, that they were still working on
the program for how to go sbout disposing of the toxins. And the
next sentence is, “laboratory quantities of agents will be retained to
support defensive research.” ]

Now, to your knowledge, was the CIA ever requested to give an
inventory to the National Security Couneil of any toxins that it held?
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Ambassador Heums. No, sir, and I do not recall, Sepator Morgan,
ever having received any communication from the Secretary of De-
Tense as such or the Department of Defense on this subject.

Senator Morcan. It is clear to me, Mx. Helms, from the memoran-
dum of the National Security Council that it was intended that the
Department of Defense would devise methods and ways of destroy-
ing these toxins and also to determine the amounts to be retained for
laboratory purpases. And I find no evidence that it was ever promul-
gated to any agency other than interdepartmental agencies.

This morning I have been handed a memorandum from the Sec-
retary of Defense addressed to the Deputy Secretaries and to the
Chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff, to various other officials with-
in the Defense Department on the subject of implementation of the
President’s decision on chemical warfare and the biological research
programs. It was not addressed fo the CIA or any other agency out-
side of the Defense Department. Did you ever have any knowledge of
this having come up in the National Security Couneil ¢

Ambassador Heras. I have no recollection of this memorandum
and I do not think I have ever seen it, Senator Morgan. It is not
familiar to me as I sit here now.

Senator Morgax. Well, in all fairness to you, Mr. Helms, I find no
reason why you should have seen it. It was not addressed or directed
to you. Now, in this same package of materials, and I quite frankly
have not had the time to go through all of them, at varlous places it
designates the amount or quantities that are to be retained or deemed
necessary to complefe current research in support of public health re-
quirements and for future work in the defensive research department.
There they list 1.53 milligrams of shellfish toxin. Under another section
that lists, for commodity development and engineering laboratory,
2 grams of shellfish toxin : shellfish toxin A redried, 1 gram; shellfish
toxin A clam, 1 gram; and in another place I have noticed or observed
where the Secretary of Defense apparently was saying what was
deemed necessary. You never had any indication whatsoever with re-
gard to any shellfish toxin you may have had ?

Ambassador Hrums. Not that T recall, Senator Morgan. May I, sir,
ask you a question since you seem to be most familiar with this whole
problem ? T read somewhers recently that the end of this year wag the
terminal date for the destruction of all of these materials. Is that cor-
rect? In other words, was there a period of 5 years during which they
were all o be got rid of ¢ .

Senator Morcan. Mr. Helms, T do not know and I am quite frankly
afraid and T doubt that we have——

The Cramrman. May I just respond to that, Senator Morgan ?

Our next witness js Ambassador James Leonard and he will describe
for the committee the particular provisions of the convention and I
believe that that will answer the point that you have raised.

Ambassador Hrrms. Thank you, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator MonpaLe. I think the situation is this. The President ordered
the immediate destruction of our toxins, but under the international
agreement, all countries, including the United States, must have de-
stroyed their toxins by the end of this year.

Ambassador HeLms, I see. thank vou, Senator Mondale,

The Cramman. Yes; I believe that is the situation.
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Senatot Morean. I think, Mr. Helms, as I read the President’s
memorandum to the National Security Council of February 20, 1970,
it looks to a further directive as to how to destroy these and I think
any logical reading of it would lead to that interpretation. And quite
frankly, Thave found no followup. It seems to me somewhere along the
way someone did not follow up and surely from this National Security
Council memorandum to the President, or from a committee to the
President, as late as January 25, 1973, the President himself was ad-
vised or should have been advised that programs for the disposal had
not then been completed.

Ambassador Herms. Yes, sir.

The CrammMAN. Any further questions?

Senator Mondale?

Senator Mowpare. Mr. Helms, you have spent your whole life vir-
tually, all of your adult life, in OSS intelligence services. There is
absolutely no one, I think, who is better equipped by experience 2t all
levels to help this committee understand what this evidence means and
what policy implications it might have for the Congress and for future
command and control directions, restrictions, and the rest affecting
these kinds of matters.

As T try to piece together what we have heard, it seems to me the
evidence is somewhat as follows. First, in late 1963 we had a Presi-
dential decree ordering the destruction of biclogical weapons and sub-
stances, Then, because there was confuston as to whether toxins of all
kinds were included within that order, a followup order was issued
on February 14, 1970, specifically directing the destruction of ail forms
of toxins, whether biologically or chemically created. And that order
was issued on February 4. There seems to be no evidence to contradict
what you and Mr. Karamessines have said; namely, that the two of
you orally ordered the destruction of those toxins in pursuance of the
President’s order.

But what seems to have happened is that once that February 14
order came out, there was a good deal of activity and discussion af
the lower level whera these toxins wers held and controlled. ong
other things, a proposed memorandum was developed for Mr. Kara-
messines which he apparently never saw, suggesting that these toxins
should not be destroyed, but in effect, what you might call lateralled
into 2 private warehouse to be leased. As a result of the need for public
funds, that was turned down. Then the fact of what happened was
that these toxins were transferred, both those owned by the CIA
at Fort Detrick and those owned by the Department of Defense at
Fort Detrick, except for a modest amount retained for research. They
were all transferred to a warehouse in Washington under the control
of the.CIA. And higher authorities were not alerted to this transfer
because the day they were transferred or thereabout, an inventory was
prepared that went up, that did not list the toxins, as Senator Morgan
has pointed out.

I would not say that that inventory is a fraud, but X think it comes
close to it becanse they waited until the toxins were gone and then
they prepared an inventory which said they were not there. So, on
the basis of that, these memorandums were then prepared to the Pres-
ident, to the National Security Council, for the head of the CIA, and
the rest, saying we have done our job. When in fact, all he did was
hide the stuff.
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So we are at this point where a formal and profound, much debated
public policy was determined by the President of the United Stafes
and by the National Security Council to get rid of poisonous toxins,
except for modest amounts needed for research, but instead, lower level
employees in the Department of Defense, possibly the CIA or both,
decided to keep them.

Now I suppose we could get personal about it, but I had some sym-~
pathy for Dr. Gordon because he seemed to be saying he spent his
whole life developing these things. He had spent all of this money on
it, He thought we mmght need it sometime later and therefore, because
of his interest in serving this country, kept them anyway. Now, what
do we do about it ?

Ambassador Herys. Senator Mondale, I do not know. I think that
your understanding of Dr. Gordon’s position is very decent because,
as I listened yesterday afternoon, it seemed clear that not only Dr.
Gordon but several other scientists who had been familiar with the
work on shellfish toxin had rather conspired, if you like, or colluded
or whatever the most pleasant legal word is, to find someplace that
they could put this material where it would be safe, secure, would not
hurt anybody but would be there in case it were ever needed. T can
only assume that the reason that they came to this conclusion was
that they had enormous difficulty acquiring the clams, or whatever it
is in the first place, and that the process of extracting the toxin is
extraordinarily difficult and that maybe some of them had thoughts
about immunization and other things, or treatment of disease where
it might be useful.

And T think that they were yielding to that human impulse of the
greater good. That is the only way I can explain this because, as I
listened to Dr. Gordon yesterday, 1 did not listen to a man, it seemed
to me, who was doing something criminal or dirty or anything else.
He seemed to be inspired by perfectly decent motives.

Senator Moxpave. And we can understand that. But in fact, what
he was doing was deliberately disobeying 2 serious Pregidential order
which had profound implications in terms of international relations
and which raises questions about the whole process of command and
control in an institution which, I think, must be gecret but which,
T think, cannot be unaccountable. So, what do you believe are the
public policy implications of this record?

Ambassador Herms. Sir, I find it enormously difficult to suggest a
solution to an aberration, something that happened once to my knowl-
edge and I realize that the point you malke about the command and

. the control over the employees and so forth. T have a,ttexggted to say

that I thought we were an extraordinarily well disciplined organiza-
tion and I just do not know how you legislate against the odd mistake
or the odd disobeying of orders or the odd aberration.

Senator MowpaLe. We have been through many other issues, not in
public, and we always seem to end up with the same kind of fuzzy
record. Something happened and nobody did it. And T want to see a
secret agency. But, in order to have one that is accountable to the
public and to the President, it must be an agency that first of all obeys
orders, whether oral or writ{en, and second, that is accountable in case
ﬁe want to find out what happened. And that is what bothers me,

r. Helms.
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Ambassador Hrrus, Senator Mondale, I have no problem with your
statement. I think you state the case accurately and I think in 1975
there are new national perceptions of these matters, if I may say so,
at least they are different than they were 10 years ago or 20 years ago.
I do not know how different. I am not here enough to know what ex-
actly all the shifts have been, but I would certainly agree that in view
of the statements made by all of you distinguished gentlemen, that
some result from this has got to bring about a system of accountabil-
ity that is going to be satisfactory to the U.S. Congress and to the
American people. .

Now, exactly how you work out that accountability in a secret
intelligence organization, I think, is obviously going to take a good
deal of thought and a good deal of work and I do not have any easy
ready answer to it because I assure you it is not an easy answer. In
other words, there is no quick fix. )

Senator Moxoare. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cmammax. Senator Morgan has a final question. )

Senator Moreax. Mr. Chairman, I would like to make this observa-
tion that I think this very clearly points up the dilemma in which we
find ourselves, as Senator Mondale has pointed out, and that is the
unaccountability of anyone in the CTA. Now, as X heard Dr. Gordon
yesterday afternoon, I heard him distinctly say that had he had an
order from the Director to destroy the toxins, he would have carried
that order out. And I think I heard him say he did not have an order
and as I understand it this morning, you have testified and so has Mr.
Karamessines that both of you orally directed him to destroy if.

The dilemma in which we find ourselves is that the manner in which
the Agency has been conducted is such that we cannot find the truth.
We have conflicting testimony. Senator Mondale is perfectly reason-
able in drawing the conclusion that he drew. I could draw the same
conclusion. I could draw another conclusion that Dr. Gordon did not
Imow and would have carried out the orders had they been given him.
X6 seems to me that this points out very clearly an area which should
be looked into so that in the future there will be an area of accounta-
bility or a degree of accountability and it seems to me, Mr. Chairman,
this may be another area where we find plausible denial coming in.

The Cratryran. Senator Morgan, I concur in your observations and
in those that Senator Mondale has made. And I simply want to under-
score the fact that this is not the first time that this dilemma has faced
the committee. We have faced it again and again in the course of our
deliberations, investigations of the whole assassination issue. And
that. will become clear when the committee issues its report in which
the evidence taken will be laid out in careful detail. But it goes to the
heart of the reason for this investigation and I hope that we conduct
it in such a way that by the time we are finished we will have found
S0me answers.

Are there any further questions of these two witnesses ?

Senator Monpare. I have a comment. I think we found out what
P600 is.

Ambassador Herms. Good.

The Caatrmaw. If you found out, let us hear it.

Senator Moxpare. We are told by Robert Andrews, a Defense De-
partment official, who is with us today, that he thinks it is a working
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fund number, work relating to CIA funds, and he thinks it is a ref-
erence to an account number,

The Crsmmarn. We will pursue that further because, as I recall
the labels on the containers, “Do not use, unless directed by P600.”
That does not sound like a system of accounts or an account ledger.

Senator Monpats. I know 1t but—— :

The Crammar. Well, we will track that down.

Senator Movpare. Could we ask them to give a full report ?

The Cruamman. Yes; of course we will track it down. If there are
no further questions of these two witnesses I would like to move on to
Ambassador Leonard.

Thanlk you, gentlemen.

Ambassador Herus. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, gentle-
men.

Mr. KaramessiNes. Thank you.

The Cmamrwman. Ambassador Leonard, if you would please come
forward at this time. Because of the confusion here, we will take a
5 minute recess so we can get back to order. Mr. Ambassador, if you
would come forward and take your place at the witness stand during
the recess I would appreciate it.

[A brief recess was taken.]

The Cuarraaw. The hearing will please come back to order.

Mr. Ambassador, would you stand and take the oath, please.

- Do you solemnly swear that all the testimony you will give in this
proceeding will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth, so help you God ?

Mr. Lowarn. I do.

The Cratkmax. Thank you.

I understand that you have some opening remarks you would like
to make, and I invite you to make them now.

TESTIMONY OF JAMES LEONARD, PRESIDENT, U.S. UNITED
NATIONS ASSOCIATION

Mr, Lrowarp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

This is not a prepared statement; I simply would like to state
briefly for the record, my relationship to this question which you are
looking at.

My name is James Leonard. I am, at the present time, the President
of the United Nations Association in New York. I left the U.S. Gov-
ernment in 1978, after 25 years in the State Department, and for the
last 4 of those years, I was on loan from the State Department fo the
Arms Control and Disarmament Agency as an Assistant Director, and
I'wore a second hat during that period.

I was also the head of the U.S. delegation to the Disarmament
Conference in Geneva, known as the CCD—the Conference of Com-
mittee on Disarmament. That was in 1969, 1970, and 1971. And in 1971,
basically between March and September, we negotiated at that con-
ference, the Treaty on Biological Weapons.

That convention was then discussed in the General Assembly in the
fall of 1971, and it was commended by the General Assembly by a
vote of 110 to nothing. There was one delegation that abstained, and
one that did not participate in the votine.
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And the treaty was then opened for signature in April of 1972.
It was ratified by the United States after appropriate advice and
consent of the Senate, and brought into force only in March of this
year—March 25, 1975. So that treaty became binding on us only in

arch. )

MThe treaty has been signed by something over 100 nations, and
the last count Thad, had been ratified by 40 to 50. )

This question of chemical and biological warfare had gotten a high
place on the international agenda along in 1967 and 1968, and there
had been a proposal in 1968 from the United Kingdom that the two
questions of biological warfare and chemical warfare should T:ie
separated. And that the question of biological warfare should be dealt
with first as a more simple, and in some vespects, though not all
respects, a more urgent question. . )

'I.Ehe matter was %lacéol:l under study very early in 1969—early in the
Nixon administration—in the spring and summer of 1969. I did not
participate actively in the process within the U.S. Government in
Washington here, since I left for Geneva in July of 1969 and gvaﬁ
there in Geneva during the principal part of the period during whic
these decisions were being taken. ) .

The decisions were, of%ourse, reached and reflected in the Premden,t’s
press conference on November of 1969. The subsequent year—-—'.g[nll:
sorry. When I came back from Geneva in the latter part of 196(i :
found that the process of weighing what sort of a decision shoul de
made about chemical and biologieal weapons was really very far ad-
vanced, and my memory is not precise on this, but just about the time
I got back in November, a memorandum was sent from the Defer}i:
Department—~from the Secretary of Defense, Mr. Laird, to the ‘ig%\
House suggesting a course of action with regard to chemical an 10{-;
logical weapons. And that memorandum from the Defense Deparj;mend
essentially hecame the decision which Mr. Nixon approved and issue
late in November. )

at’f‘lllg gﬁimmn. In other words, Mr. Ambassador, the action taken
by President Nizon was a unilateral action.

Mr. Lrowarp. That is correct.

The Cramsan. That preceded the treaty.

Mr., Leoxarp. That is correct. »

As a part of that, he decided that we would support the British pro-
posal that there be a separate treaty on biological weapons.

The Crammax. So that the President took a position which was a
kind of initiative, ﬁvas_ it not.? .

. That 1s correct. .
%{Ill‘e I(‘}EHOANIRMARDAE. You wanted to say to the world, the United States
not only favors this, but we are going to do it unilaterally before a
itself is negotiated. . .
tr%\aitr}.? Li(}lNARD.e%hat is correct. That was the ?:s(sient_:e_ of his decision
wag publicly announced. Tt was not a secref decision.
thaTthe CSHPiamMAg. It was a gesture for decency and a gesture for peace.
. Leoxarp. That is correct. ) .

I];{[:sicaﬂy, the President decided on Mr. Laird’s recommendz;tllcin
that it was in our interests to get out of the BW business—to get to % %
out of it—whether other people did so or not. We were better off out o
that business. This country was safer, in fact, without biological weap-
ons than with them.
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And having taken that position, the President then directed that the
State Department and the Arms Control Agency attempt to persuade
others of that and put this in treaty form.

The Crmatresan. And that decision that we get out of this business
for the reasons that you stated was s decision that was concurred in by
the Defense Department.

. Mr. Lronarn. Mr. Laird, in fact, advanced the original—took the
mitiative.

The Cramman. In fact, the recommendation that we get ouf of this
business was one that came from the Secretary of Defense,

Mz, Leowarp. That is correct.

Now that decision taken in November of 1969 did not clearly deal
with the problem of toxins, and it became necessary, as you know from
your 1mvestigations, to have a further quick study of the toxin prob-
lem, which then produced a further National Security Decision Memo-
randum in February of 1970, and which did, in fact, include toxins
within the scope of the renunciation—the unilateral renunciation—
that we had taken on ourselves and proclaimed.

As a consequence of that, we also suggested to the British—and, of
course, they agreed—that toxins should also be included in the treaty
which was to be negotiated.

The proposal that we negotiate a treaty on this really did not go
anywhere in particular during 1970. We were engaged in negotiating
a different treaty at that time, known as the Sea Bed Treaty, and we
were a,ttemptinf to persuade other governments that our approach to
this question of chemical and biological Weapons was a correct one;
that we should separate the two categories of weapons and deal with
biologieals first.

And that was not readily accepted by other governments. It was not
accepted by the Soviet Union, nor was it accepted, in general, by other
I_lonahgnecl:l countries. It was accepted by our allies—our NATO allies,
in_general.

evertheless, during 1970, the President’s order to get out of this
business unilaterally was moved forward and the process of destrue-
tion was planned—carefully planned—and it is my understanding,
was actually begun in 1970; certainly production of these was halted
during 1970.

There was no question in my mind—the question was never rajsed
as to whether CIA was in the business of producing or dealin% with,
these matters. That simply was not, from our point, something that we
even thought about to the best of my recollection at this time.

Well, we finished up this Sea Bed Treaty, and it became clear that
chemicals and biologicals was the next thing on the agenda. And
we went back to Geneva in early 1971 and did, at that point, succeed in
scoring a breakthrough, so to speak.

We persuaded the Soviet Union to alter its position and to join us
in agreeing to take care of the biological question first, and deal with
chemicals Iater. And that was done, then, during the spring and sum-
mer of 1971. The treaty was drafted and broug%t back to New York
and agreed upon in its final form, as it stands today.

Just one comment on this whole diplomatic effort. I think it is clear
that what we were doing was basically a British-American way of
handling the chemical and biclogical problem. Tt was very much
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criticized by most other countries. They felt it was bmproper to sef-
arate biologicals because then nothing would be done about chemicals,
which they were far more concerned about, really.

And they tended to downplay the importance of biological weapons.
‘We argued the other way, of course. When they did agree to this, it was
basically as a concession to us because they wanted to move the whole
question of disarmament forward, and if this was the way we preferred
to do it, well and good, Jet's do it that way. Then we would turn to
chemicals. So it is particularly unfortunate that this event—a treaty
of which we were the principal sponsors—should have been handled in
the way that it evidently has been handled in this particular
eircumsiance.

The Cmarraan. Let me ask you a question on that very point.

From what you have said, the President, acting unilaterally, and
n an attempt to make a gesture of decency and peace, and in com-
pliance with a recommendation that came to him from the Defense
Department itself, snnounced to the world that we would not stock-
pile, or use, bacteriological weapons.

Then, on the——-

Mr. Lzowarp. Could I, Senator, just on that point.

‘We had already renounced the use of chemical and biological weap-
ons, not in treaty form, but by our repeated assertion in international
forums, that we would abide by the principles and objectives of the
Geneva Protocol which deals with the question of use.

We later, as you know, have ratified that and become a formal
party to that agreement. But use was not really in question. We al-
ready had excluded the use of biological weapons before Mr. Nixon
even anpounced it.

The Cratrsran. But the President went further in his announce-
ment. He said we would not stockpile them, and further, we would
destroy them. )

Mr. Lroxarp. That is correct. Absolutely. But that we would simply
not possess these weapons. . .

The Crammax. Then we initiated a treaty to secure an international
agreement that other countries would do it likewise.

Mr. Leowaro. That is correct. o

The Cuamreran. And now we find that toxins were preserved in vio-
lation of the President’s orders. And it has taken us 5 years to make
that discovery.

Now what do you think went wrong? . .

‘What do you think should be done about 1t to protect against failures
of this kind in the future? )

M}f. Lzowarp, Well I would like to offer a few thoughts if T could
on that.

Iet me just say first, however, that in terms of the international
implications of this I would not want to exaggerate the impact that
I think this particular discovery will have on the attitudes of other
governments. ..

I think that it will not discourage them from entering into further
arms control agreements with us, and that sort of thing, for reasons
which I believe are quite obvious—that this was not a deliberate eva-
sion of the treaty by the highest levels of the T.S. Government at all.

The Cramuman. And we have assumed throughout that the Presi-
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dential order was honestly given and that there was no back-channel
communication by the President, or anyone in a policymaking posi-
tion, to disregard the public announcement. The public 2znnouncement
did, in fact, represent national policy.

Mr. Leoxarp. I believe that to be the case, and I think others will
believe that to be the case.

I think there will be something troublesome in all of this, in that in
the future when assertions are made that it is not necessary to write
particularly complicated provisions for oversight and enforcement in
the treatics, other governments may be somewhat more exigent, more
demanding, of us than has been the case in the past when our simple
assertion that you would know we will comply with that, you conld
not be in any doubt about that, would generally have sufficed.” And that
1s a disadvantage, but I think it is a secondary one in this whole
context.

On the question of what might be done to prevent analogous diff-
cultles in the future, T would think there are a couple of what one
might speak of as administrative measures that would he abviously
appropriate. And several of you Senators have, in fact, veferred to
them this morning and perhaps yesterday, although I was not here
yesterday,

Tt seems to me that in & matter of this sort it is very desirable to
have a clear written record; a written record that runs from the top
down, and that then comes from the—I will not say the very bottom,
but at least the middle levels of the Government back up, so that the
order comes down in a written, unambignous form, which no one
could possibly misinterpret, and it has attached fo it some sort of a
certificate, if you like, that the official has read and understood this
instruction, and that he, to the best of his knowledge, he, and every-
one in his office, and everyone—every office of which he has any direct
knowledge, is in compliance with this obligation.

I am told—I cannot say this is my own knowledge, but I have been
told that something of this sort was done in the Defense Department
in connection with quite 2 different treaty—the Treaty Against Pro-
hibiting Antiballistic Missiles, or limiting them. And that they did,
in the Army, in the area concerned with antiballistic missile
defense——

The Cramman. There has been so much testimony about secrecy and
the highly secret nature of these compounds and toxins, yet there wasg
nothing secret about this at all, was there ?

In fact, the President gave great publicity to the order. It was
known gt the time that he gave the order that the Government was in
possession of certain toxins of this kind, and he ordered them
destroyed.

M. Leonarp. That is correct.

The CEAIRMAN. So that there was no reason whatever in view of the
circumstances that a direct written order shouldn’t have gone right
through any agency of the Government that may have possessed such
forbidden substances.

Mz. Leonarp. That is correet, Mr. Chairman. And an unclassified,
written order. I see no reagon it should have been classified.

The Cmarrmax. Yes. There was no need to classify it in any sense.
That should have been a public order and a written order in order to
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make certain that the Government itself was in compliance with the
President’s directive. . :

Mr. Leowarp. I think that should go, obviously, not simply to the
top levels who have this supervisory bureaucratic responsibility, but
down far enough in an organization so that one can be sure that the
people who really know what is being done are aware of what their
guidance is; that it comes from the top. )

The second thing, I would think, Is of a somewhat different charac-
ter that might be done. It seems to me that there is a debate that goes
on within the Government of & morve philosophical character which 1t
would be well to clarify. And that is, what sort of things are legitimate
and what sort of things are not legitimate. . .

And this is quite a confused area. There are many people in this
country who feel that if somebody else, some other government is
doing certain things, then that means it is legitimate for us to do those
things. And, in fact, there is a general rule, I believe, in international
law that something that is not prohibited is permitted. o

It is not an invariable rule, but it is a general sort of prineiple that
one goes by. I would think it very desirable for the President of this
country at least to lay down some more unilateral rules as to what we
are constrained not to do and what officials of this Government are
constrained not to do. That can get rather philosophical, bat I think
we have a President whose character, whose ability to distinguish be-
tween right and wrong, is very widely respected. And I would like to
see him take stands on these issues and make it perfectiy clear where
he stands and where he expects other officials to stand on what is per-
mitted and what is prohibited to agents of the U7.8. Government, in the
broad sense in which all of us, who at one time or another, draw a
Government salary, are agents. . .

And then there is a third area which is obviously much more com-
plicated, it seems to me, than simply issuing directives. And that is
this question of what I might call the span of control in an organiza-
tion of the sort that we are dealing with here. o

And bere it does seem to me that a very real question is raised, and
it has been rather differently illustrated by the testimony of Mr. Helms
and Mr. Karamessines. . i )

These are very large organizations in which the senior officials are
dealing with an enormous number of totally diverse problems, and it
is difficult for them to really be confident that they know what is going
on. down in one or another small part of an organization that is as large
as that.

And it seems to me that there is, therefore, since not everything could
be reduced to writing, not everything could be put—the guidance can-
not always be laid out in categorical and legal form. It certainly could
have been here, but the question of dividing an agency as large as the
CIA is really a legitimate area of discussion. ]

It _seemns to me that the functions there are quite disparate; for
any large agency performing a wide variety of functions. .

The Cmatrman. When you say dividing it, you mean takimg an
agency of this size and breaking it up?

Mr. Leonarp. Breaking it up.

I would certainly not want to see the CIA abolished. Asa person who
spent & good deal of time in arms control, T am very conscious of the

131

contributions that the CYA. has made to arms control. We just simply
could not have the kind of arms control we have got today, the kind of
agreements on strategic weapons that we have with the Soviet Union
if it were not for the intelligence that the CIA provides. And X cer-
tainly would not want to see that capability impaired in any way. But
T do not think that is necessarily inherent in the present structure of
the Agency. I do not think it necessarily would be impaired, and I
can even imagine that, in fact, command and control might be some-
what improved if these were less ponderous, less huge, organizations
than the one we presently have.

The Crarrman, Well, it is certainly true that the organization has
grown very large, and that may complicate the question of command
and control. Your suggestion is it might be broken into several com-
ponent parts, over which more effective command could be established
by virtue of their

Mr. Leonaro. More compact and more homogeneous nature.

The Crammax. Of a more compact, more homogenous nature.

Mr. LEoxarp. Precisely, Mr, Chairman.

The Cpatrman. Have you anything further to say in the way of
opening remarks, Mr. Ambassador?

Mr. Leowarp. No. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cmammax. All right. I think we can go to questions, then. X
would turn first to Senator Mondale.

Senator Mowpare. Mr. Teonard, you spent, I think, over 20 years
in the Foreign Service and were assigned in a whole range of assign-
ments in a host of countries where you could see the operation of the
CIA, particularly covert operations, in action. It has been my belief
as we have gone through these hearings, most of them in private, that
one of the problems with covert activities is that they are usually de-
cided and determined in 2 way that does not fully appreciate the pos-
sible damage and cost to this country should it fail or should it become
known, and that the failure to consider that part of CIA. covert activi-
ties often encourages our operatives to undertake projects which are
very foolish, very costly, and often bear a cost far disproportionate
to any kind of return that we could conceive. Is that a fair conclusion

Mr. Lrowaro. I think it is o fair conclusion, Senator, although T
would not want to seem to be levying some sort of a blanket charge
against the CIA and its people abroad of general irresponsibility or
being out of control in some fashion or another, becanse my experience
with them is precisely to the contrary. They are not. But there is, as
you suggest, this possibility there, in the covert character of some of
the things they have to carry out, and in the problems of insuring and
oversight of those activities that is not somehow involved or com-
mitted to the activity that is being contemplated.

Senator Mownpave. I understood that you were of the impression that
one step which might be taken is to separate the covert action side
of the CIA. from the receiving or collecting of information and intel-
hgeng:—ggathering side, separate them into separate institutions. Is that
correct ?

Mr. Limowaro. There seems to me two kinds of covert action, and the
covert gathering of intelligence, simply finding out what is going on,
I think, sometimes does have to be done in 2 covert fashion. It cannot
be earried out in public. I think the need for that sort of intelligence
can be exagoerated.
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Basieally, most of what the U.S. Government needs to know about
foreign countries comes to it either through the press or through State
Department channels. The contribution from CIA intelligence, in
many situations, is really quite marginal. But there are situations m
which it is extremely important, and I would not want to see that
thrown away. o

But I would distinguish that sort of covert activity from covert ac-
tion that is directed at some sort of having an effect on the political
life of another country, whether it is by removing individuals or pro-
viding money to individuals, or in some fashion or other warping or
skewing or diverting the course of political life in that country from
the direction it’s going to take on its own, so to speak. )

Senator MonpaLe. You think it males sense to take that functior
out of the CIA and put it into some other institution

Mr. Lrowarp. I would renounce it totally, Senator. I would not take
it out of the CIA and put it somewhere else. T do not think we have
any business being in this, if T may call it, covert action, operational
action, whether one labels it offensive or whatever. I just do not think
the United States needs that capability. I think we can give 1t up
unilaterally, just as securely and safely and benefit from giving it up.
the way we benefited from giving up biological warfare, biological
weapons.

Senator Moxpace. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The CrarMaN. Senator Mathias. )

Senator Matmzas. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. .

I would like to ask a hypothetical question relating to our commit-
ment to destroy the biological weapons that we had created a.n(’i stock-
piled. The Department of Defense, in response to the President’s order
did, as T understand it, develop very elaborate procedures for the de-
struction of these toxic substances. Would it have complied with our
international commitment had these substances, instead of physically
being destroyed, had been destroyed as far as purpose was concerned,
by making them available for scientific purposes to medical schools
and research laboratories in this or any other countrv? )

Mr. Leoxarn. Well, it would not, strictly speaking, have been in
compliance with the treaty to do that, if the quantities involved were
larger than wasnecessary for the purposes involved : the treaty is quite
clear on that. And at the time, both in its negotiation, we made that
quite clear on the record, and I believe in the document transmitted to
the Senate for advice and consent that was also made quite clear.

There is a paragraph in this small publication which underlines
that point.:

The treaty allows the Government to retain only quantities that have a justi-
flcation for prophylactic, protective, br other peaceful purposes, and not quan-
tities in excess of that, even if the intent eventually may be to direct them in that
fashion.

Senator MaTr1as. My thinking is not directed only at this shellfish
toxin that we are considering today. but really on the whole biological
arsenal 2t Fort Detrick, in which the American people have invested
hundreds of millions of dollars, which may have been of some im-
portance to the scientific community in view of the fact that medical
schools all over the country very actively participated in the creation
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of that facility and in the continuation of its work. But that hypo-
thetical question does have some practical impact at the moment, be-
cause as has been testified here, there has been a Tequest made by vari-
ous medical schools for this toxin that is in point, for research purposes.
Now, would it be possible for the appropriate authorities, without vio-
lating any international commitment, to make this toxin available for
medical research ?

Mr. Leoxarn. It would be quite legitimate to do so, if the quantities
?re_ a:pprt%priate. If the quantities are clearly in excess, then it is not

egrhimate.

Senator Marmras. It might be in excess for a single medical school,
but if it were divided up for research purposes among several, would
that be within your interpretation of what is permissable?

Mr. Leoxarp. Oh, yes; there is no question.

Senator MatHiAs. As long as no single agent received more than was
actually physically required for its research work?

Mzr. Teovsrn. Well, the question really is one of intent, Senator. If
the intent is honestly and clearly to use these for these research prophy-
lactic purposes, then there is no question the quantitity such as is ap-
propriate to that. But if the intent is otherwise, if the intent is to hold
them as a contingency reserved for some other possible use, then that
is not legitimate.

Senator Maruis. But if they were exposed, and the whole world
knew where they went and in what quantities, and for what purposes,
you would find no objection ?

Mr. LeoxNarn. I would not. I cannot really imagine that a foreign
government would charge us for a violation for that sort of action.

Senator Mara1as. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cmamwmax, This is'a very important subject that Senator
Mathias raises, because when this committee was first established Sena-
tor Mansfield, the majority leader, and Senator Scott, the minority
leader, advised the CIA and other agencies that we will be Investigat-
ing, not to destroy anything for obvious reasons, and when this cache of
toxins was discovered, the Agency quite properly came to us to ask for
a release, because it may very well be that the executive branch will
now want to destroy these toxins.

- One possibility for using them for proper purposes is the point of
Senator Mathias’ inquiry, though. clearly, other testimonv has shown
that the quantities that have been found in this particular cache go far
beyond the experimental and legitimate needs to which this particular
poison could be put.

But if there is a purpose that can be served that comes within the
treaty, so that the United States does not violate its commitment, then
it is important for us to know that, it is important for the executive
branch to know that, in determining what disposition to make of this
particular cache.

Senator Huddleston.

Senator HuppLesrox. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Amplifying somewhat on the need for information from the CIA,
particularly foreign infelligence, and expanding somewhat on the
statement that you have already made, would you say that it would
be virtually impossible, or at least somewhat unwise, for this country
to enter into agreements involving armaments decreases or many other
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subjects without information that is gathered and supplied by the
CIA® )

Mr. Lzonarn. Senator, there are clearly agreements that it would
be very unwise to enter into without knowing what is being done on
the other side. There are others, such as the biological treaty, where
in fact we entered into it knowing that we could not know and be
reconciled to the fact that we could not know, as illustrated, of course,
we could not know about our own situation, much less about some
foreign government.

Senator HuppLeston. But it would not be prudent for us to set
our country on a particular course without having information upon
which we can totally rely or information that has been gained by
our own devices, rather than relying on what might be supplied to
us by another country ¢

Mr. Leoxarp. That, Senator, would degend, really on the weapons
that we are talking about controlling or disarming. Some, obviously,
one needs a high degree of certainty with, and others, one can male
do with a good deal Tess accurate detailed, current information. It
depends, really, on the risks that this Government would run, as a
consequence of a violation unknown to us of the agreement that we
had entered into. ) )

Senator Hupprestow. Another example, and somewhat in a_ dif-
ferent area is the joint space venture between this country and the
Soviet Union. Would you say that would be highly improbable or
pethaps imprudent for us to engage in that kind of an operation
without information that would be supplied by the CIA relative to the
Soviet Union’s real capability in that field ? .

Mr. Leoxarp. I honestly cannot see the relevance to t_ha_t enterprise
of information the GTA would supply. It seems to me it is up to the
Soviets themselves to supply us with the information that we need
to be confident of the safety of our astronauts, or whatever is involved.

Senator HuppresTon. ATe you suggesting that we should rely upon
the information that they supply, or should we rely on information
that we may have gathered ourselves? . .

Mr. Lronarp. I think we would rely upon the information they
would supply, because they would supply it in a form that would
be utterly unambiguous. Our technicians would be looking at the
Soviet instruments, satisfying themselves that they work the way they
are supposed to. I just do not think the CIA capability is relevant.

Senator HupoLesron. Back to the particular treaty and our involve-
ment with the toxins and biological warfare agents, subsequent to
this agreement, did other countries, to your knowledge, undertake a
destruction program of their biological weapons and toxins?

Mr. Leonaro. To my knowledge, I do not know of any, to my own
knowledge. No other country acknowledged publicly and formally.
to the best of my memory, that they had any stockpiles of biological
weapons, and therefore, there was no acknowledgment by them that
they had an obligation in conformity with article 2 to carry out any
destruction procedures. .

Senator HuopresToN. But there was no effort by anyone to verify
whether other countries in fact did have a stockpile? )

Mz. Lronarp. Quite the contrary, Senator. The intelligence services
of this Government have been trying for many years to gain informa-
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tion about the stockpiles of other countries, but given the nature of
the weapons, it is just extremely difficult and I think one of the
clearest lessons from all of the study of chemical and biological wea-~
pons that went on, 1967, 1968, on through the present time, is that it
15 extremely difficult to know what another country is doing, especially
a large country:

Senator Huppreston. Do you know whether or not any question
bas been raised in any international forum subsequent to this treaty,
as to whether or not the various countries’ signatures were complied.

Mr. Leonarp. I do not, Senator. I've been out of the Government
during this period.

Senator HuppLeston, Would you say that in a matter of an interna-
tional treaty and the question of whether or not this eountry complies
to it, that it would be a reasonable standard operating procedure
emanating perhaps from the White House or at least from the De-
partment of State, that any agency of this Federal Government that
has any responsibility for implementing any part of an international
agreement should have a written record of all actions taken which
were taken for the purpose of implementing that treaty?

Mr. Lzoxarp. I think the general principle is a sound one, but to
make it abhsolutely categorical, applying to all treaties, all situations,
all agencies, could get one, I think, info very complicated problems
which I honestly have not thought through. 1 think in the case of an
arms control treaty of this sort, it is important that the agencies that

-might possibly have something which is prohibited should be required

to make it clear that they do not, but we have an enormous range of
treaties with other countries, economic character, consular character,
all sorts of things, and that is another matter, I think.

Senator Hupprestox. There could hardly be any harm, in the case
of international treaties, which are seldom secret in nature to start
with, in having some tangible proof that this country did, in good
faith, attempt to implement that treaty, and did issue whatever neces-
sary instructions or orders might be to implement that treaty.

Mr. Leoxaro. That is very desirable, yes.

Senator HuppresTon. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cramrman. Thank you, Senator Huddleston.

Senator MaTaias. Mr. Chairman, I am wondering if the next Sen-
ator would yield for just one observation at this point.

The Cramrman, Would you ask him ¢

Senator Scawrzser. I would be delighted to.

Senator Marrias. Thank you.

I do not think the record ought to remain in the state in which I
now perceive it to be. We are i a state of innoeence and ignorance
about the activities of other nations in this field. There is a great deal
that is known about what other countries are doing in biological and
chemical warfare and paradoxically, some of that information comes
from the cooperative efforts of scientists.

When Fort Detrick was in full bloom, they had some difficulty in de-
veloping strains of Tuberine and they obtained strains from the Soviet
Union, and that kind of scientific exchange went on during the depths
of a cold war, so that a great deal is known, and I do not think the
record should reflect that we are in complete ignorance of what is hap-
pening on the international scene.
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Mr. Leoxarp. Could I just comment on that, if you please, Mr.
Chairman. I did not want to imply that I was addressing myself sim-
ply to the question of stockpiles, stockpiles in the chemical and biolog-
1cal area. Those are particularly difficult to gain knowledge of, whether
it is overtly or covertly.

The Caamman. But having made a very careful study of the ques-
tion, the Department of Defense evidently decided that for purposes
of protecting the United States, it was not necessary for us to stock-
pile such weapons, regardless of what other countries did.

Mzr. Leowarp. That 1s correct, Mr. Chalrman.

The Cramrmax. And therefore, that decision became a unilateral
decision, made in advance of the treaty, which we then advocated
and initiated ; is that correct ¢

Mr. Leowaro. That is correct, that we are best protected by defen-
sive measures, prophylactic measures against this, not by the threat
to retaliate in kind. If you hit us with biological weapons, we will hit
you—that was not the way to go, and that was what Mr. Laird and
Mr. Nixon saw very clearly and decided in terms of. )

Senator Maruras. I think one of the elements of that decision is,
of course, the availability of these weapons to any primitive society.
Any society that has the capability of brewing beer has the capability
of creating a biological weapon. So the dangers involved are very, very
great.

Mr. Leowarp. Senator Mathias® point, I think, is very valid. I
think we have learned more through peaceful cooperation with other
countries than we have by attempting to spy on their defense
laboratories.

The CramrMAaN. Perhaps we have already placed the shellfish mar-
ket in jeopardy. I don’t know whether we should extend that to heer.
I do think, though, that when our expert witness comes on he will
make clear that this particular toxin takes a great deal of synthesis
and concentration and that ordinary shellfish are very healthy and can
be eaten without serious dangers to anyone’s health. We have got
problems enough in this committee without beginning to affect the
markets for various products.

Senator Schweiker.

Senator Scowemker. Mr. Chairman, T have no questions.

The CHARMAN. Very well.

Senator Hart ?

_ Senator Harr of Colorado. Mr. Leonard, I have three factual ques-
tions. Based upon the President’s statement of November 25, 1969, it is
my understanding that the CTA or its representatives participated in
the working groups or study groups that led up to the U.S. position
with regard to biological warfare. I's that correet ?

Mr. Leonarp. That is correct.

Senator Hart of Colorado. During those working sessions or study
groups did the CIA representatives ever indicate, to your recollection,
the need to stockpile a supply of toxic materials for experimentation
or whatever?

Mr. Lroxarp. Senator, T honestly do not think I can testify on that.
I was not personally involved in those discussions.

. Another officer of the Arms Control Agency was our representative
in the meetings and I simply was not involved. I had only second- or
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third-hand knowledge of the discussions that went forward and saw
really what came out of them.

Senator Harr of Colorado. So, based upon the discussions and the
record with which you are familiar, you do not know whether this sub-
ject ever arose in those discussions?

Mr. Leonar. I really donot know, Senator.

Senator Hart of Colorado. Mr. Chairman, those are the only ques-
tions I have.

With the indulgence of my colleagues and with reference to a com-
ment I made to you at the break, I make an observation out of context
and outside the scope of the work of this committee.

We got into the question of the purity of Dr. Gordon’s motives and
the good intentions that he may have had in disobeying orders. It
occurred to me in that connection that if purity of motives were a
sufficient reason to disobey orders and rules, thousands of young
American men would now be walking the streets who, out of conscience,
disobeyed draft orders for Vietnam.

The Cramuarx. Thank yvou, Senator.

Mr, Leowarp. May I just make a brief comment on that question of
motives. And it gets back to this area of what is permitted and what is
prohibited. It seerns to me this illustrates the desirability of some sort
of categorical ruling-out of whole areas of activity, so that a person
like Dr. Gordon, whose testimony I did not hear, could not be in any
doubt that so-called offensive uses of the material that he had was not
legitimate, was not within the permitted ares of 1J.S. Government ac-
tivities. It seems to me that it has got to be a very broad prohibition.
But it is only in that fashion that these various complex doubts and
questions can really be resolved in a categorical fashion.

The Caamrmax. Well, T might say to yon, Mr. Ambassador, that
we have found in our investigation to date that ambiguity seems to
plague the CIA. and when you suggested, as you did a few minutes
ag0, that it would be well for Presidents to begin to get very precise
about what agencies must not do, it was a very good suggestion indeed.
If previous Presidents had been a great deal more precise about what
the CIA. must not do it is possible that we would not now be investi-
gating the Agency.

Al of that will come out in due course, but, nevertheless, I want to
say that this recommendation I take to be a very good one. And I hope
that Presidents in the future deal with the Agency and all departments
of the Government in such a way as to make it very clear the kinds of
activities that they are not to engage in.

Mr. Leowarp. I think, Mr. Chairman, it should be clear that the
kind of activities that we are talking about is not prohibited. Tt is
prohibited to kill people with toxins today because of the {reaty. But
it is not prohibited to entertain the idea of killing people. There is no,
to my knowledge, directive. I am very pleased to hear Mr. Karames-
sines say that he personally would never, that he would resign from
the Agency sooner than approve that. But that washis personal policy.
That was a matter of his individual moral character. It was not a
national policy and to the best of my kmowledge it is not a national
policy today.

The Caamman. That depends upon how national policy is defined.
Today there are directives, two directives, that have been issued by
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the Director, one by Mr. Helms, when he was Director, and one by M.
Colby, which do, for the first time clearly declare that no one in the
Agency is to be involved in assassination plots or assassination at-
tempts or any other activity related to assassination.

However, I agree with you that 2 matter of this seriousness should
not be left to the Director of the Agency or to an administrative order
that can be changed as Directors are changed, but ought to be 2 matter
of law. And this committee will have recommendations to make when
1t completes its investigation of that particular issue.

If there are no more questions of this witness, thank you very much,
Mr. Ambassador.

We will complete our hearings on this subject tomorrow morning
when our first witness will be Dr. Edward Schantz, who is an expert
on these toxins and was at Fort Detrick. Qur second witness will be
Mr. Charles Senseney, who was a Fort Detrick official to whom Dr.
Gordon referred yesterday afternoon and to whom Dr. Gordon said
that he had offered the toxins.

Perhaps some of the unanswered guestions can be cleared up in to-
morrow’s testimony. That will complete the public hearings on this
particular subject.

The hearing is adjourned until 10 o’clock tomorrow morning.

[ Whereupon, at 12:50 p.n. the hearing recessed to reconvene the
following morning at 10 a.m.]

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 1975

U.S. SENATE,
Serect CosimrrTee To Stupy GOvVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS
Wirte RespecT 70 INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES,
Washington, D.C.

The committee met pursuant to notice at 10:05 a.m. in room 318,
Russell Senate Office Building, Senator Frank Church (chairman)
presiding,.

Present: Senators Church, Tower, Mondale, Huddleston, Hart of
Colorado, Baker, Mathias and Schweiker.

Also present: William G. Miller, staff director; Frederick A. O.
Schwarz, Jr., chief counsel; and Curtis R. Smothers, counsel to the
minority.

The Crairman. The hearing will please come to order.

This is the third and final day that the committee will devote to the
puzzlement of the poisons, and our first witness this morning is Dr.
Edward Schantz. Dr. Schantz, would you please come to the witness
table. And Dr. Schantz, if you would just remain standing for a
moment for the oath, please.

Do you swear that all of the testimony you will give in this proceed-
ing will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so
help you God ?

r. ScEaxTz. I do.

The Cuammaw. Thank you, Dr. Schantz. Please be seated.

Dog you have any opening remarks you would care to make at this
time?

STATEMENT OF DR. EDWARD SCHANTZ, PROFESSOR, UNIVERSITY
OF WISCONSIN

Dr. Scmantz. None, other than to say that I am now a professor at
the University of Wisconsin, and I am in the Department of Food
Microbiclogy and Toxicology.

I have spent about 30 years of my professional life studying the
microbiological toxins, mainly those that are problems in food poison-
ing, such as shellfish poisoning, the poison itself, clostridium botalinum
toxins, the staphylococcal enterotoxins and the like.

The Cuamyaw. You are one of the foremost experts on this subject,
are you not ?

Dr. Scrantz. Well, that’s what people tell me. I don’t know.

The Cuammar. Well, I want to congratulate you on the brevity of
your opening statement. Let us go directly to questions. First, I will
turn to our chief counsel, Mr, Schwarz.
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Mr. Scawarz. Doctor, prior to going to the University of Wisconsin,
were you at Fort Detrick ¢

Dr. ScHanTz. Yes; I was. .

Mr. Scmwarz. And for how long a period of time were you there?

Dr. ScaanTz. Twenty-eight years.

Mr. Scewarz. And during that time, you did research, as you say, on
a number of mafters, including shellfish toxin. Is that right?

Dr. Scmantz. That is correct.

Mr. Scewarz. While you were there, Doctor, were you aware that
the CIA had a relationship with Fort Detrick?

Dr. ScraxTz. Well, 1 did not know that directly. Now, there would
be good reason to guess that, but I did not know it at the time.

Mr. SceEwarz. So you were working on the shellfish toxin, but you
did not know that the CTA. also had an interest in shelifish toxin ¢

Dr. ScEawTZ. That is correct.

Mr. Scawarz. All right. Would you turn to exhibit 8,! which is Na-
tional Security Decision Memorandum No. 44,

Dr. ScEaNTzZ. Yes.

Mr. Scewarz. The document dated February 20, 1970.

Dr. ScranTz. I have it.

Mzr. Scuwarz. You heard Mr, Helms say yesterday that such a docu-
ment was so secref that it could not be shown to lower level employees
in the-CTA,, including the very persons who were involved in biological
warfare matters. Were you shown this document at the Defense
Department ?

Dr. Scmaxrz. 1 can’t say that I saw this actual document. 1 saw,
spelled out for us, essentially this very same statement.

Mré Scrwarz. Did you hear Dr. Gordon’s testimony the other after-
noon ?

Dr. ScuanTz. Yes; I did.

Mr. Scawarz. Do you read this order as covering shellfish toxin ?

Dr. Scrantz. Yes; I do.

Mr. Scirwarz. There is no doubt about that, is there ?

Dr. Scrantz. That’s correct; there’s no question whatsoever.

Mr. SceEwarz. What proportion of the amount of shellfish toxin
ever produced in the history of the world is 11 grams?

Dr. Sciantz. My estimate would be about one-third.

Mr. Scawarz. How lethal is shellfish toxin ?

Dr. ScraxTz. It is considered an extremely lethal substance.

Mr. Scrwarz. If it 15 administered intramuscularly, such as with a
dart, how much does it take to kill a person ?

Dr. Scraaxtz. The answer to that question can only come from ani-
mal experimentation, extrapolated to humans. I would estimate that
probably two-tenths of 2 milligram wonld be sufficient.

Mr. Scixwarz. Three-tenths of a milligram ?

Dr. Sceaxtz. Two- or three-tenths.

Mr. Scawarz. Two- or three-tenths of a milligram ?

Dr, Scranyz. That is correet.

1 Seep. 210.
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Mr. Scuwarz. Could you translate that into the number of people
killed per gram?

Dr. Scrtanrz. Well, if it was two-tenths of a milligram, it would be
sufficient for 5,000 people.

Mr. Scuwarz. Per gram. And if you had 11 grams, that would be
55,000 people?

Dr. ScrranTz. Yes; that is correct.

Mr. Scuwarz. In addition to the ability to kill people, are there
more benign uses for shellfish toxin, such as 1n hospitals?

Dr. Scuantz. Well, in Public Health there is; yes.

Mr. Scrrwarz. And what are those uses?

_Dr. Scmaxtz. There are—well Public Health has several applica-
tions for this. One is the standardization of the bioassay to control
shipments of shellfish poison or shellfish in commerce that may con-
tain poison, and that was an important point, and still is, with the
Foed and Drug Administration.,

Mr. Scriwarz. And are there other benign uses?

. Dr. Somantz. Yes. We anticipate that there are many applications
in medicine where the knowledge of the structure of shellfish poison
could be applied. One is development of an antidote for shellfish
poison, which we do not have at the present time. And the medical
profession would need this, or needs this for cases that might occur
along the coast, where they most generally have shellfish poisoning
probiems.

Mr. Scrwarz. All right. Now, whatever benign uses there are, ob-
viously they cannot be realized if 1t is sitting in a CIA vault?

Dr. Scaantz. Well, that is true; yes.

Mr. Scuwarz. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.

The Crasrmax. Mr. Smothers, do you have questions?

Mr. Syormers. Yes, Mr. Chairman. Dr. Schantz, during the period
of your employment at Fort Detrick, did you work primarily in the
Public Health aspects of this toxin

Dr. Scuantz. A lot of my work was with the Public Health Service;
yes.

Mr. SmorHERs. Were you not, in fact, retained for the purpose of
assuring the purity of the shellfish toxin for Public Health purposes?

Dr. Scmantz. Yes. That was one application.

Mr, Swmormers. Did you, during the period of your tenure, receive
from a separate branch, other than the one you worked for, requests
for this toxin? Did you receive such requests specifically from the
Special Operations Division ¢

Dr. Scaantz. If T understand your question properly, I furnished
to SO Division, that was Special Operations Division, toxin as I had
purified it, and as they asked for it.

Mr. SmoraERs. Approximately how much of this toxin did you fur-
nish to the Special Operations Division

Dr. Scuaxtz. I cannot answer that accurately. but I would assume
that over the years from—as it was prepared, I furnished them prob-
ably 10 or 15 grams.

Mr. Sarorizers. T'o the best of your knowledge, did the Special Opera-
tions Division receive shellfish toxin from other sources, other than
that which you furnished them directly ?

Dr. Scuawrz. There was some prepared, of course. foo, by the
Public Health Service, which was supplied to the SO Division.
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Mr. Sxoreers. When you say prepared by the Public Health Serv-
ice, are you referring to the Public Health Service facilities at Taft
and at Narragansett ?

Dr. Scaaxtz. That's correct. . L

Mr. Smorerers. Did these facilities provide toxin directly to the
Special Operations Division ¢

Dr., SceanTz, Yes; they did. ) ) .

The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Smothers, just for clarification, Special Opera-
tions Division was located at Fort Detrick. It was the Army Bac-
teriological Warfare Division. o .

Dr. Scuantz. Yes; it was one of the divisions at Fort Detrick.

The Cuamuax. Thank you. ) .

Mr. Smoruers. Dr. Schantz, during your tenure at Fort Detrick,
did you also supply shellfish toxin to persons outside the Government?

Dr. Scuantz. Yes; I did. And after the project was cleared by the
Army for this purpose, I sent toxin to many laboratories throughout
the country, and to other countries, except to those behind the Iron
Curtain, which I was not allowed to send to. And the poison was for
physiological studies, and it was soon learned what the mechanism of
action was from these studies, and also it was a very valuable tool for
the study of nerve transmission in medical work.

Mr. SatormErs. How were these poisons physically transferred from
Fort Detrick to the recipients? . ]

Dr. Scmantz. At SO Division it was mainly directly. They came
and got it from me, or I took it to them. oo

Mr. Smorsess. How was it transferred to the scientists and other
organizations that received it ? ) .

Dr. Scrantz. When it was sent off from Fort Detrick to laboratories,
we conferred with the Post Office Department how to safely do this.
They suggested we put. it in a glass vial, pack it in cotton, put it in a
metal contalner which was sealed. The metal contamer went mto a
cardboard mailing carton, and it was sent in that form.

The Cramymax. Did it survive the Post Office treatment? [General
laughter. ] o

Dr. ScmanTz. Yes; it did. I have no reports of broken vials.

Mr. SmormeEss. Dr. Schantz, was there further Government control
of this substance after it was transferred to the recipients outside of
Fort Detrick?

Dr. Scizantz. Well, Public Health had their interest, and they also
had some control of this. There was an arrangement made between
the Chemical Corps Chief, and the Surgeon General of the Public
Health Service, for a cooperative study, and of course, there was
some control there, too. . )

Mr. Smormers. As a final inquirv. going back again to the time
mentioned by the chief counsel earlier, after the Presidential order
had come down on destrnction of these materials. did there come a
time when you requested of Special Operations Division that they
return to yon any shellfish toxin which they had on hand? .

Dr. Soxaxtz. Yes. That. i correct. When SO Division was closing
out, T went to Chief of SO Division and asked if I could have, for
Public Health work, the poison that they did not use in their research.

Mr. Ssrorrers. And how much did they indicate to you they had
on hand at that time ?
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Dr. Scmantz. Well, they did not tell me, but a short time later,
they gave me 100 milligrams, and I assumed that this was it.

Mr. SmorsErs. Based on the supplies that you had turned over
to SO Division, would it have been, or was it at the time, your expecta-
tion that they would have had more than 100 milligrams on hand?

Dr. Scmaxtz. Well, Thad no way to know, because, although I had a
top secret clearance, I did not know all of the things that they were
using the poison for.

Mr. Sarormers. But you did transfer to them, over a period of time,
more than 15 grams, or approximately 15 grams, of the substance

Dr. Somantz. It could have been that much.

p Mr. Smoraers. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no further gues-
ions.

'The Cuamuan. Thank you, Mr. Smothers.

Dr. Schantz, how is this shellfish toxin manufactured or created ?

Dr. Scmanrz. Well, it is created by marine dinoflagellate. And shell-
fish become poisonous only when the marine—~this poisonous marine
dinoflagellate hapi;ens to grow out in the water. Shelifish consume, all
the time, the dinoflagellates and other microorganisms in the water for
food, Now, when a poisonous dinoflagellate happens to grow out which
1s very often or usually a rare circumstance, the mussels, clams, and
other plankton-consuming shellfish bind that poison in the body and
they become very poisonous, and when the dinoflagellate has run its
course in the ocean and other dinoflagellates come in, usually not poi-
sonous, the shelifish excrete this poison within 2 matter of a fow weeks.
So then they are safe to eat again, and this is often a sporadic occur-
rence. You cannot predict it, and so that is the reason so many people
get poisoned, and so on.

The CratrRMAN. Tn order to develop the toxin, does that take a great
many infected shellfish ? Is it a long and difficult process to develop this
highly potent toxin ¢

Dr. Scwantz. The purification procedure, that is, getting the poison
out of the shellfish and purifying it, was a difficult procedure to work
out, and it took us several years study in order to do this. And much
of the poison, as we were purifying it, went back into research to im-
prove the method of purification. But it was not an easy matter to do
this. It is easy now, of course. It is not so difficult.

And I worked out with my co-workers and various well-known
chemists throughout the country—we developed this procedure, and
it is published in the Journsal of the American Chemical Society.

The Caamman. I suppose what 1 am driving at is that our discus-
sion of this particular toxin and the way that it has been developed
ought not to be misunderstood by the public as meaning that people
should be wary of eating shellfish.

Dr. Sceantz. That is an important point. I think that everyone
should understand that shellfish going on the commercial market is
going carefully screened by the Food and Drug Administration and
this poison, now, the purified poison, has established an accurate assay
and has helped the Food and Drug Administration greatly in controi-
ling the commercial fisheries, so that none of this, no poisonous shellfish
get on the market. And I would like to make that very clear.

The Ceamyan. Thank you.
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Once you had developed the toxin itself, how long does it remain
potent ? ] £ and
Dr. Scrrantz. I have—well, the material that we have purl_ﬁe. , A1
I had Public Health back in 1954 or 1955, I have assayed within the
ast year, and it is every bit as potent as it was the day I prepared it.

d I would imagine that it will last 100 years, and so on.

The Cramman. It has lost no potency at all in 20 years?

Dr. Sogantz. That is correct. ) ) .

The Cramman. So there is no question in your mind that this cache
that has been discovered, about which we are conducting this particu-
lar hearing, consisting of about 11 grams, which you say represents
about one-third of all the toxin ever manufactured, stiil 18 as potent as
it was when it was developed ¢ . .

Dr. Scrrantz. T would expect it to be every bit as potent today as it
was the day it was made. . .

The GHXIRMAN. Just one final question, Dr. Schantz. I think, since
you have been present at the earlier hearings that you know that this
committee has been asked to 1ift a ban that applies generally to all the
agencies we are investigating against the destruction of any mgtema{
that they may have in their possession. In order that a proper disposa
can be made of the 11 grams of this shellfish toxin that have been dis-
covered, I would like some guidance from you.

‘We have entered into a treaty in which we have undertaken to de-
stroy substances of this kind, except in such amounts as may be use-
fully used in laboratories for benign and decent purposes. Would it be
your recommendation that part of this particular cache of shellfish
toxin be distributed to medical schools and laboratories that are en-
gaged in this work, within the limits of the treaty, or is there any
special need to consider that use? I have in mind possible medical uses
that might help us in solving some of the problems of disease and any
other good and decent purpose. . . .

Dr. Scmantz. At the present time, we have in the biochemistry
department at Madison, a NIH grant to study shelifish poison. Within
the past year, we have determined the chemical structure of it, and
this is now published in the Journal of the American Chemical Society.

‘We are now,-in the process of altering the molecule to determine
whether wecan produce substances of medical interest. i

One such example might be the possibility of developing local
anesthetics from this molecule, and we are much in need of toxin
for this purpose. There are many physiologists thronghout the country
and one, of course, we are working with is Dr. Ritchie, at Yale Uni-
versity. And I know Iaboratories Tike his and others would appreciate
very much getting material. . o

I have usually kept the supply of toxin and have supplied it to
many laboratories throughout the world, as I have mentioned before. T
would continue to do that, if T had the supply. And T must assure
everyone that we are putting it to good medical use, and are not
doing anything else with it, other than medical applications.

The Cmamrmax. Thank you, Dr. Schantz. Senator Tower?

Senator Tower. Dr. Schantz, did you serve as the custodian of the
Phvsical Sciences Division stockpile of toxin?

Dr. Scmantz. Yes; I did.
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Senator Tower. Were you also custodian for the amounts that were
transfered to SOD? ° .

Dr. Scraxtz. No; I was not.

Senator Tower. To the best of your knowledge, did anyone keep
an_accounting of the toxin that was kept on hand by SOD?

Dr. ScuanTz. I do not know, but after.it was transferred to SOD,
Thad nothing more to do with it.

Senator Tower. What was the formal procedure for the acquisition
of shellfish toxin ¢

Dr. ScHanTz. By whom ?

Senator Towzr. By anyone.

Dr. Scrantz. By anyone?

Senator Tower. Yes,

Dr., Scuantz. Well, it was in the Army. We passed it just back and
forth, and T do not know as there was any formal——

Senator Tower. No written requests or anything hke that? No
formal éjrocedures atall?

Dr. Scumantz. No. If they needed it, we gave it to them. But any
material that was sent outside of the Army was done by permission
of headquarters at Fort Detrick. And whenever I had 2 request for
poison—Ilet us say from a physiological laboratory that wanted to
investigate the mechanism of action—I first would make sure that this
man was a competent investigator, and that the university wanted
the poison used in their laboratory.

If that were ascertained, then T filled out a little form designed by
Fort Detrick stating who it was to go to, how much they wanted, and
whether or not I recommended that they get it. This went to head-
quarters; it would come back to me, usua Iy approved. And then I
would send out some material packaged as mentioned hefore.

Senator Towzr. Did you keep records of the amount of toxin that
You gaveto the Special Operations Division ?

Dr. ScuaNTz. No; I did not really.

Senator Tower. What accounting records were kept by you, or by
your office ?

Dr. Scmantz. Well, I must say this about turning it over to SO Di-
vision, that when I first prepared toxin-—and I think it was in 1954—
we had about 20 grams then, and this was passed on up to headquarters
to be distributed. And I assume that SO Division got a portion of this,

Senator Tower. Did the Army levy a charge to any scientist or orga-
nization that received this toxin?

Dr. Soranrz. I do not quite understand, Senator Tower.

Senator Tower. Did they place any conditions? Did they try to
mandate what the parameters of its use were?

Dr. Smantz. Well, do you mean that they defined who could get it,
or what their qualifications——

Senator Towsr. And what they could use it for.

Dr. Scmantz, Oh, yes. That was my responsibility ; to recommend
to headquarters that these are compefent people to handle this.

Senator Tower. But after it left your hands, you actually had no
control

Dr. Scrantz. That is correct, except T used to check at times. And
often these universities that had investigated it would send me letter
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reports on what they had found out, and often reprints of papers they
had published on the use of the shellfish poison.

Senator Tower. Were there any reports required from the scientists
or the organizations or instifutions to whom this toxin was given?
I notice quite 2 number of foreign establishments—University of Glas-
gow, University of Leeds, Norwegian Defense Research Establish-
ment-—that looks a little ominous—Italy, Japan, and so forth.

Dr. ScuanTz. There was no particular report required.

Senator Towsr. In other words, they did not have to report to you
periodically what they were doing with this stuff ?

Dr. Scaantz. That is correct.

_ Senator Towen. In response to Mr. Smothers’ question earlier, youn
indicated a direct relationship between Public Health and SOD. Now,
could you explain the nature and extent of any agreement or working
procedure between Public Flealth and SQD ¢

Dr. Scmantz. Well, SOD, as T understand it, made the contract
agreement with Public Health Service, and the first one was at the
Taft Center in Cincinnati, to prepare toxin.

Now T had nothing to do with setting up the contract; I do not
Imow how ml_lch money it was and so on. But I was sent to Cincin-
nafi on occasion to help them get the purification procedure under-
way, and I also checked samples of the poison that supposedly were
purlliied. And T checked it to make sure it was up to standards, so to
speak.

Senator Towzr. Thank you, Dr. Schantz.

Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent that a list be placed in the
record of recipients of the toxin.

The Crarrian. Without objection, that will be done. [ Exhibit 11.1]

The Crrammman. Senator Mondale?

Senator Moxpare. Thank you, Mr. Cheirman. T think you testified
earlier, Dr. Schantz, that you had seen orders come down to destroy
toxin in language that was identical to the language appearing in the
National Security Decision Memorandum.

Dr. Scaaxrz. That is correct.

Senator MownpaLe. Was there any doubt in your mind that that
Presidential order of destruction of toxins included shellfish toxin ¢

Dr. Scraxtz, No question whatsoever.

Senator Moxpare. Do you believe there could be any reasonable
dounbt in the mind of a chemist or 2 technician working in this field,
other than the one you had, concerning the applicability of the Presi-
dential order to these shellfish toxins?

Dr. Scrantz, Well, this shellfish toxin is a chemical of high potency,
that is highly lethal, of biological origin, and T do not know how else
you could classify it. It is a biological product.

Senator Monpare. And thus, in your opinion, at that time, when you
saw the Presidential order, there was utterly no doubt in your mind
but that this included shelifish toxins.

Dr. ScEanTz. Absolutely. Yes.

Senator Monvavg. First of all, T would ask the staff to provide Dr.
§chanﬁz with two documents: One dated February 17, 1970, entitled

Special Operations Division’s Toxin Inventory,” and another, dated
February 18, 1970, entitled “Paralytic Shelifish Poison Working
Fund Investigation.”

18ee p. 216.
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As I understand it, Dr. Schantz, at the time these inventories were
prepared, you were still with the Giovernment working on these shell-
fish toxins at Fort Detrick.

Dr. ScuanTz. That is correct.

Senator Monpare. Can you help us understand these two inven-
tories? The first dated February 17, entitled “Special Operations Di-
vision Toxin Inventory” reports to higher authority that only small
quantities of shellfish toxin remain in their inventories. Is that correct ?

Dr. SceanTz. Well, when I asked them for the toxin, at the time the
Division was being dissolved, they presenfed me with 100
milligrams—— )

Senator Moxpare. I'm not trying to get to that, Dr. Schantz. T am
trying to establish that we have inventories prepared only a day apart
which differ dramatically in the amount of shellfish toxin in their
inventories,

Dr. Scrantz. Yes, I see that.

Senator Monpare. The one on the 17th of February reports very
modest quantities remaining, quantities I would think appropriate for
research purposes: 0.2 grams of paralytic shellfish toxin; redried
toxin, .01 grams; shellfish toxin, clam, .01 grams. Then, on the fol-
lowing day, on February 18, there is an inventory, and on top of it
it says “TU.S. Public Health Service, Taft Center, Ohio,” and 1t lists,
on the two pages, a total of 5.9—or 10.9 to 7 grams, which is an enor-
mous quantity of shellfish toxin. Can you help us to understand the
difference between these two inventories?

Dr. Scrantz. I really can’t. T don’t know anything about them.

Senator MonpaLE. You see, what worries me is this: The Defense
Department was ordered to destroy a massive quantity of shellfish
toxin which could be used for offensive purposes under the Presiden-
tial order. They had substantial quantities of this toxin at Fort
Detrick. But when the inventory came forth, it showed that practically
all of that toxin had disappeared somewhere,

Dr. Scaantz. Tt looks that way, yes.

Senator Mowpare. So I am very suspicious that whoever did it,
instead of following a Presidential order, sneaked the stuff out the
back door, and then prepared an inventory for higher authorities
which suggested that it had all been destroyed. But I gather that you
are not in a position to help us understand these inventories.

Dr. ScrzanTz. T cannot explain this at all.

Senator Moxpare. Thank you, Dr. Schantz. Thank you, Mr. Chair-
man.

The Caatrman. Thank you, Senator Mondale. Senator Baker.

Senator Baxsr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Doctor, T really do not know that I can eover any ground that you
have not already covered except to ask you if you could tell me what
sort of recordkeeping you did do. Was there a manufacturing record
ag you formulated a batch of shellfish toxin? Did you make a record
of how much the yield was?

Dr. SceanTtz. Oh yes. That is in our notebooks. It could be located,
Isuppose.

Senator Baxer. Have you tried to locate it2

Dr. Souantz. Well, I haven’t, no.

Senator Baxer. Do you know whether anyone has tried to or not:?
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Dr. Semantz. No, I reallgdon’t.

Senator Baxer. Would that notebook say how much had been manu-
factured in toto by the Department of Defense or the Public Health
Service or by anyone else in Government ¢

Dr. ScEanTz, I imagine that a complete examination of all of the
notes over the years—one could get a good estimate of what actually
was produced.

Now, I know that in 1954, or along in there somewhere, I cannot
pin a specific date to it, but we had about 20 grams.

Senator Baxer. In 1954 ¢

Dr. ScmanTz. About 1954 or 1955, along in there. And this was, as
I mentioned before, passed onto Headquarters for distribution. And
- I retained some for research and some for the Public Health Service.

Senator Baszr. You estimated that about 10 to 15 grams were at
Fort Detrick at one time or another.

Dr. ScmanTz. That is correct.

Senator Baxer. How mnch material did you handle in the course
g}f {gur professional lifetime? Could you give us some estimate of

at?

Dr. Scrawtz. Well, T prepared directly approximately 20 grams. T
was involved in helping, or assisting, Public Health in the preparation
of, I figure, maybe another 10 or 15 grams.

Senator Baxer. Do you know of any records that were ever de-
stroyed in this connection, Doctor

Dr. ScranTz. Well, none of mine were ever destroyed that I know of,
Now, when Detrick was closed, I guess these notes and everything
;irlel%t to Kansas City, we were told—1I know nothing about them after

at.

Senator Bager. So you have no personal knowledge of it, but you
hayve no reason to think that any records were destroyed ?

Dr. Scraxtz. T do not know why they should have been destroyed.

Senator Baker. Do yon know what else was in the cache of material
that was found at the CTA facility in Washington besides the shell-
fish toxin? I remember there was cobra venom and a few other things
there, too.

Dr. Scmantz. Well, I had other toxins on hand which were de-
stroyed.

Senator Baxrr. Do you know the material I am referring to? The
material that was found—what do they call it?

Dr. Scaawrz. You mean the cobra venom? I never worked with
that, and I don’ know.

Senator Baxer. What else did you work with ¢

Dr. Scaantz. Clostridium botulinuwm toxins, staphylococcal entero-
toxins mainly, and of course shellfish poison. .

Senator Baxer. If there are records extant from the Fort Detrick
operation, can you give us any clue as to who has them or where we
might locate them ¢

Dr. ScmaxTz. Well, we were told that after a certain length of time
all reports that we wrote at Detrick went to a depository, I think in
Kansas City. I am not sure about that, but it seems to me that was it.

-Senator Baker. Really, all I'm reaching for is this, Doctor. I want
to know whether or not you have any reason to think that any records
of this program, were ever destroyed.
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Dr. Soxantz. I know of none.

Senator Baxer. Thank you, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Cramuan. Thank you, Senator Baker.

It hardly needs to be stressed that this is a very serious subject,
but Senator Tower asked that I include a lst in the record of all of
those who have received this toxin, presumably for laboratory and
medical purposes. And I have just been looking through the list, and
I find on the second page a listing of someone who is said to have been
associated with the department of pharmacology at Georgetown Uni-
versity Medical School, and his name is Lieutenant James Bond.
[General laughter.]

Dr. Scrarrz. Well, I see this—

Senator Moxpare. Do you notice his zip code number is 20007?
[General laughter.}

Dr. ScranTz. I’'m sorry I missed that.

Senator Mowparz. There is also a Dr. Covert who gets it.

The CratrMaN. Do you know any of these gentlemen? Do you know
James Bond?

a Dr. Scaaxtz. I'm sorry, I do not know any of them. I knew Dr.
overt.

The Cmarrvan, Senator Huddleston ?

Senator Hopprestox. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Since we have
raised a specter of 007, do you have any knowledge or information
about who P600is?

Dr. Scuantz. P00 ? Well, if that was at Fort Detrick, I would be
inclined to say it is a building number.

Senator Huppresrow. Are buildings able to give instructions?

Dr. Scwantz. For authorization to do something with it.

Senator HupprLestoN. From a certain building?

Dr. SceaxNtz. That would be my guess. Now, I did not see anything
with that on it, but we often used that around Detrick. P would be for
a permanent building, and T' was for temporary buildings.

Senator Huppreston. I recall those myself back in my Army days.
Well, does the building P600 identify anything for you? Did that
house——

Dr. Scaantz. I don’t remember.

Senator HuoprestoN. You do not remember?

Dr. Scaantz. No.

Senator Huooreston. Dr. Schantz, was the shellfish toxin stored in
liquid form or powdered form?

Dr. Scuaxtz. You can store it any way. It should be—normally, it
is stored in an acidic solution, and it would be in a solution such as
that. T have no reason to believe that it would not be always stable.

Senator Huppresron. I would like to determine the amount that
would be required to render a lethal dosage to an individual. Would,
for instance, dipping a pen or the point of a dart into this liquid, and
then injecting it into an individual, be enough to kill him ?

Dr. Scmantz. It might be. There are specially-designed things that
hold enough to—that I’'m sure would kill 2 human being.

Senator Huppreston. In your research, did you involve yourseli
with these kinds of delivery svstems?

Dr. Scuantz. No; not at all. But on occastons, SO Division had
showed me some of them.
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Senator Huooreston. We were talking about how a manufacturing
process took place. Can you tell us how many shellfish would be re-
quired to produce, say, 1 gram of toxin?

Dr. Sceantz. I think we said—and I am only making an estimate
now—probably, well, 100 pounds.

Senator Hupprestox. 100 pounds ? How many actual fish would that
be, do you think?

Dr. Scmanrtz, Well, you caught me off guard on that. Xt would be
several thousand shellfish.

Sﬁan%tor Huppreston. Shellfish are not very large, are they, gen-
erally?

Dr. Scaantz. They would weigh, probably—a butter clam, the meat
would weigh 100 grams or so, something like that, which would be a
quarter of a pound.

Senator Hupvresron. What arrangements did you have for securing
these large numbers of shelifish ?

Dr. Scuantz. In securing them ¢

Senator HuppLesTon. Yes.

Dr. Scuawrz. Well, at one time, of course, we worked with people
at the University of California Medical Center in San Francisco, and
they would watch the toxicity of clams or mussels along the coast.
And when the toxicity rose to a good level, about, a dozen of us, mostly
from the University of California Medical Center, would all go out
and, at low tide, collect mussels. And this was our starting material
for isclation.

Senator HupnLesrox. Were there any other institutions you worked
with that would supply you with the—

Dr. ScraxTz. Well, now, one problem was the scarcity of it along
the California coast, and we had heard rumors from the Canadians
that this material, or the butter clams in Alaska, were very toxic at
times. We went up there and worked with the Alaska Experimental
Commission. They were very cooperative in helping us collect clams.
We used their boat, we used their help, and we collected many hun-
dreds of pounds of these clams’ siphons for this purpose.

Senator Huvpreston. What kind of security did you work under at
Fort Detrick?

Dr. Scuanrz. Well, T had a top secret clearance. The project was
classified “secret” in the early stages, and I do not remember the date
that it was declassified. But I think it was along in 1956 or 1957.

Senator Huppreston. It was declassified at that time?

Dr. ScEawrz. Yes, it was declassified to “resiricted,” which meant
that it was not published in the newspapers.

Senator Huppreston. Were you required to report to any individual
on the state of your experimentation in this field ¢

Dr. ScaanTz. A report every quarter of the year.

Senator HuppLrsToN. And to whom did that report go?

Dr. Scuswrz. Now, over the years—I think in the beginning they
went to a Dr. Hill, who was chief of, I think they called it the Basic
Sciences Division then. These were passed on up, of course, to Dr.
Tg_lopert, who was Director at Fort Detrick, and to the commanding
officer.

Senator HuppresTox. I believe you have stated to the committee that
when the Special Operations Division was closing down, you obtained
from its laboratory a small quantity of shellfish toxin.
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Dr. Scuantz. That is correct.

Senator HuooesToN. From whom did you obtain this, and under
whose authority?

Dr. Scaantz. Well, I obtained it from—I do not know who actnally
handed it to me, but I talked to the Director at that time, and his name
was Andy Cowan.

Senator Huppreston. Did you obtain this for a specific purpose?

Dr. Scmantz. Yes. -

Seénator Huppreston. Did you indicate to him what that purpose
was

Dr. Scaantz. Yes. I told him it was for Public Health,

Senator Huppiestox. And you did then turn that over to the FDA,
is that correct?

Dr. Scaawtz. That is correct, and it was used in malking up these
standards for the shellfish poison assay.

Senator HunpreszoN. Do you know whether anybody else in the
world is producing shellfish toxin at this time?

Dr. ScranTz. Not that I know of.

Senator Hunpiestoxn. Dr. Schantz, while you were at Fort Detrick,
were you aware of programs and experimentation in drugs or poisons
that would produce tuberculosis or brucellosis ?

Dr. Scuaxntz. Poisons that would produce these ?

Senator Huppreston. Well, bacteria or whatever that would produce
tuberculosis.

Dr. Scrantz, Well, T know about it. ¥ do not know specifically.

Senator Huppresron. Did you participate in any of those
experiments ?

Dr. SceanTz. Really not, but T knew a2 great deal about them. There
wasa big program on brucellosis.

Senator Huvpresrow. Do you know what the objective was, what
they were secking to accomplish ?

Dr. Scranrtz, Well, at Fort Detrick, we were interested in how you
handle an enemy’s attack with one of these agents, supposing—well,
the brucellosis organism-—there was experimentation going on 1n aero-
solizing these micro-organisms, and we studied symptoms of disease
produced in this manner, and mainly to learn how to combat these if
1t was nsed against us. :

Senator Huppresrow. It was your understanding that the objective
was to develop defenses against the use of this material ¢

Dr, ScmaxnTz. Yes. But to develop a defense, you first of all had fo—
what the agent would do— i

Senator Hupprestox. How it might be used ?

Dr. Sceantz. And X think that was in line with poliey of this coun-
try—defensive,

Senator Huopreston. I believe my time is up. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman,

The Cramman. And I might say, it is still in line with the policy
of the country, because nothing we have undertaken to do in the treaty
deprives us of continuing to develop defensive means to protect against
these poisons.

Dr. ScaanTz. Yes.

The CrarrMax. Senator Mathias?

Senator Marazas. Mr. Chairman, I perhaps, from a parochial point
of view, have had to take notice of the fact that, as Dr. Schantz has
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described the sources of toxic shellfish, he has referred exclusively to
the west coast of the United States, and not to one mussel, one clam,
or one oyster from the Chesapeake Bay. [General laughter.]

Dr. Somaxtz. I must say that——[ General laughter.

Senator Mararas. You are ahead now, Dr. Schantz. Do not——

Dr. Scaaxtz. But in the last 8 or 4 years, along the coast of New
England, there has been considerable trouble in the shellfish industry
with the poison dinoflagellates growing and causing toxic shellfish.
And we have had quite a problem, and the Food and Drug Adminis-
tration is quite involved, and the Iocal food and drug agencies in the
States up along there are very concerned.

Now, in the Chesapeake Bay, we have never discovered any poison
dinoflagellates that I kmow of, so you should feel safe.

Senator MaTaias. Well, we thank you very much for that endorse-
ment, and I am sure that all of the watermen of the Chesapeake Bay
will be very glad to get that assurance.

Dr. Scaantz. I must add, too, that the Food and Drug Adminin
tration is checking those, too.

Senator Matmzas. Dr. Schantz, we all had a chuckle at the expense
of Mr. Bond at the Georgetown School of Pharmacy, but I would like
to make sure that the record is clear with respect to what went on in
the exchanges of scientific knowledge at Fort Detrick. Now, in the
28 years that yvou were at Detrick, did you observe that Detrick was a
very secure Army installation ? Was there a high awareness of security
precautions?

Dr. Scmaxtz. I felt so, yes.

Senator MartHras. There was both an inner and outer fence?

Dr. ScaanTz. Yes.

Senator Marxuas. And very elaborate arrangements when anyone
visited Fort Detrick? Is that not so?

Dr. Scrantz. I thought there was, yes.

Senator Marnras. And yet, at the same time, there was a constant
excléange with medical schools and research institutions, was there
not

Dr. ScmanTz. Well, with shellfish poison.

Senator Marezas. Well, T am talking generally at Fort Detrick.

Dr. Scmawrz. Oh, ves, there was. That is true. There wers many
programs that extended to universities around the country.

Senator Mavrmias. Harvard Medical School ?

Dr. Scrawnrz. That is correct.

Senator Marmras. Baylor in Houston, Tex., other medical institu-
tl:orllls ;;hat are world-famous all sent representatives to Detrick. Is that
right?

Dr. Scuawtz. That is correct, yes.

Senator Maruias. And was there a program at Detrick which en-
couraged the materials for research purposes, bacteriological samples
for example, and other scientific materials?

hDr. Scaantz. Well. I don’t know as there was a special group for
this.

Senator Matrras. I do not mean 2 special group, but did it happen?
What T am asking vou is—

Dr. Scuantz. Yes: it did. T always felt that the Army was very
cooperative with medical institutions around the country, and if we
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had something of value to medicine, that this was commuted to them,
within the limits of security.

Senator Mataras. And this was not limited to scientific institutions
in the United States? In fact, there was an exchange with many insti-
tutions in various parts of the world?

Dr. Scmantz. Well, the only ones—well, yes, of course. Britain,
which has an establishment like ours, and Canadians, for instance,
too; there is close coordination between Canadians, the British labora-
tories, and our own laboratory.

Senator Maraias. And did this exchange of people and materials
result in any scholarly publications which were not classified and which
Weriedtherefore available to the scientific community throughout the
world ¢

Dr. Sceawtz. I would say yes. One example would be that the
Englishman by the name of Dr. Evans was the first to discover the
mechanism of action of shellfish poison. He was at the agricultural
research council at Cambridge.

Senator Marmras. So that what is illustrated in connection with
the exchange of these toxins is not an isolated or an unusual or a unique
example of what was happening at Fort Detrick?

Dr. Scuantz. That is right ; yes.

Senator Marsrias. Thank you very much.

The Crarryaw. Thank you.

Senator Hart?

Senator Hawrr of Colorado. Dr. Schantz, one question. Were you at
Fort Detrick when the Special Operations Division was closed down?

Dr. ScuaNnTzZ. Yes; I was.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Were there discussions among you and
your colleagues in regard to the distribution of the toxins?

Dr. Scuanyz. Well, T had to give a report on what I had on hand
and I suppose that that was for—well, it was for decisions up in
headquaxrters.

- Senator Harr of Colerade. Were you involved in discussions with
the people around you, or that you worked with, about how to avoid
complete destruction of these toxins?

Dr. Scrantz. Well, T had no such authority at all.

Senator Harr of Colorado. It is not a question of your havin
authority, The question is whether there was discussion among you an
your colleagues as to how to avoid destroying these toxins

Dr. ScuawTz. No,

Senator IlarT of Colorado. It is not a question of your having
thought in discussions with staff members that you were involved in
complicated procedures.

Dr. ScaanTtz. Yes.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Did those procedures have to do with
the destruction of these toxins or with the avoidance of the destruc-
tion of these toxins? What were those complicated procedures?

Dr. Scranrtz. Well, T do not exactly know what you mean. The
procedures for destruction were clear enough to me. There is no
question about that. Later they were clarified and did not apply to
materials for research or for public health and so forth and that was
what I meant by complicated.
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Senator Harr of Colorado. Well, did toxins that might have had
destructive, wartime, or offensive capabilities suddenly become be-
nign, medically oriented materials that everyone could reorient for
different research purposes?

Dr. ScmanTz. Yes; that is true.

Senator Hart of Colorado. All of 2 sudden everybody began to
think of other noncombative or nonoffensive purposes that these highly
toxic materials could be used for. Is that not the case?

Dr. Scuantz. I think that is a natural thing to do. But shellfish

ison was set aside for the Public Health Service and the Food and

rug Administration many years before this order was issued.

Senator Harr of Colorado. But materials at Fort Detrick were not
for medical research purposes, This was a Defense Department installa-
tion experimenting with these materials presumably for some activi-
ties that the Department of Defense undertakes. The Department of
Defense is not the Public Health Service. It has a different mandate
I think all would agree.

Dr. Scmantz. Well, now the material T had in Public—at Fort
Dertick was held for the Public Health Service and I was custodian
of this material. They asked that X keep it there, but it was done so
under the auspices of the Public Health Service.

Senator Hart of Colorado. But I think you have testified, just to
clarify the record, that there were discussions of materials, let us say
held by other people with whom you were working.

Dr. SceanTz. Yes.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Materials which might be made avail-
able for nonmilitary purposes and thus avoid the destruction order.

Dr. ScaanTz. Yes, I think that is indicated in these documents that
you handed to me.

Senator Hart of Colorado. That is all, Mr. Chairman.

The Cumamrmar. Thank you, Senator Hart. Senator Schweiker.

Senator ScaweigER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Dr. Schantz, which department were you working with at Fort
Detrick ? Were you in SOD?

Dr. Scaantz. I was in what was called Physical Sciences Division.

Senator ScawrrgEgr. And were you with them most of the 28 years
or all of the 28 years?

Dr. Scaantz. Through the years the name of the Division changed.
1 think it started out as the Basic Sciences Division and there were some
other changes in names, but it ended Physical Sciences Division when
Fort Detrick closed down.

Senator Scawerrer. As I understand it, originally the work that
you did on this area of shellfish poison was primarily with the Physical
Sciences Division and then at some point in time the Special Opera-
tions Division, or SOD, really became the primary interest and Physi-
cal Seciences Division either lost interest or did not pursue it much
further. Is that correct and when did that occur?

Dr. ScaanTz. Generally, sir, that is correct ; yes.

Senator Scewerker. What was the initial purpose of the work when
you first started it there in Physical Sciences as far as shelifish toxin
was concerned ?

Dr. Scuantz. Tt was started off in early discussion right after the
war. The chemical corps was looking for new toxic substances an
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T suggested to them, “Well, why not look at some of the biological
poisons that are produced?” And I suggested this problem with the
shellfish that we might-~maybe we could isolate this, get its structure,
and, from that knowledge, devise new chemical agents.

Senator ScaweIkER. Y ou indicated, I believe, that you were aware
of an inventory of 20 grams in 1954 and your work was affiliated with
that quantity indirectly or directly ?

Dr. ScuanTtz. Yes. Except that I had to turn most of this over to
the headquarters at Fort Detrick.

Senator Scawrker. Meaning SQD ¢

Dr. Scuanrz. No, meaning headquarters, Fort Detrick.

Senator Scuwzerser. Now, of the 20 grams, about how much of that
came from the T7.S. Public Health Service centers, either at Narra-
gansett——

Dr. Sceantz. None of it. That was another preparation.

Senator Scuwrzxer. None came from either the Taft Center or
Rhode Island?

Dr. ScaanTz. Well, the material {rom Taft Center and from Rhode
Island was not included in this 20 grams. It was 10 or 15 grams pre-
pared by them which was passed, as I understand it, directly to SOD.

Senator Sceweiger. Well, did the 20 grams, was that made in-
house by the Fort Detrick people then ¢

Dr. SceanTz. That is correct.

Senator ScEWEIKER. S0 20 grams was made in-house at Fort Det-
rick, about 10 grams came from the U.S. Public Health Service labs?

Dr. Scaantz. I would say that is approximately correct, but I do
not have the exact figures for that.

Senator Scmwriker. Were there any other U.S. Public Health
Service offices involved that you worked with or communicated with
besides those two?

Dr, Scmawrz. Well, there was a Public Health liaison officer at
Fort Detrick.

_Senator ScEwEIER. Any other physical location other than Cin-
cinnati and Narragansett that you tested the material with?

Dr. SceranTz. No; not that X kmow of.

Senator Scmwrrsrr. And the relationship was a contractual re-
lationship between the Army and the Public Health Service and I
believe we cited a $194,000 contract between the Army and the Taft
Center. Is that right?

Dr. Scmawntz. That is what I heard, yes.

Senator Scrwrrmser. Do you have any idea how many grams that
$194,600 would be accountable for or not ¢

Dr. SganTz. I have no idea.

. Senator ScewEemkEr. Now, when the FDA came into it, were they
in any way involved in the part that Fort Detrick was interested in or
the CIA was interested in or were they involved in what phase of it?

Dr. Scaantz. They were only interested in making sure that com-
mercia] shellfish contain no poison.

Senator Scawrrker. Strictly on that basis?

Dr. SceaxTz. That is right, that is as far as T know.

Senator Scawreiker. You have no knowledge of other contracts be-
yond the Taft Center contract or are you saying that is the only one
you know, but there might be others?
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Dr. Scmantz. That is the only one I know of that produced poilson.
Now we had contracts with Northwestern University, for instance, and
the University of California.

Senator ScaweIkEr. For what purpose?

Dr. Scaanrz. To help in developing the purification procedure.

Senator Scawzrrker. So were they then producing the poison toxin?

Dr. SceANTZ. They were not.

Senator Scuwrrrer. The testing and chemical procedures?

Dr. Scuantz. Well, they Werel%eveloping procedures for purifica-
tion with us.

Senator Scaweiker. Purification is 2 bit of a misnomer, it sort of
means how deadly it is, does it not? I mean, we take a contamination,
we try to malke it pure, but we are really talking about how effective or
deadly it is, Is that correct?

Dr. Scuanrz. Essentially, yes, because the more pure you would
have it, the higher the specific potency would be.

Senator ScawrIEER. By 8 rough count of the list that we saw, there
are 184 dispersals of some kind of toxin or poison, and about 63 were
related to shellfish. Does this list show the operations where you were
dispensing these toxins for medical, medicinal, or research purposes?

Dr. Somanrz. Is that from the Department of the Army or from
Fort Detrick?

Senator ScewrIker. Right. And a typical dispersal would amount
to how many milligrams?

_ Dr. Scrantz. Yes, it would be—it could be one milligram or some-
times it was 25, 80, depending upon—

Senator Scawersez. Well, would you give us a rough estimate of
how much toxin was involved in these 63 dispersals?

Dr. Scaantz. Well, if T took an average of 10 milligrams for each
one, I would have 600 milligrams, and that is a little over a half a
gram.

Senator Scewurssr. OK, a little over half a gram total.

Dr. ScmanTz. Yes.

Senator Scuwrrszr. So, in essence, we have a picture where there
are 30 grams U.S. production of which one-half of 1 gram is used for
medical, medicinal, health or environmental research. Is that an ac-
curate proportion ?

Dr. Sonantz. Yes; that was sent out to laboratories not connected
with Fort Detrick or the Public Health Service.

Sgenator ScewrmrgEer. We are not. sure about James Bond though, are
we?

Dr. Sceantz. No.

Senator Scawerker. Incidentally, if you are relieved, he did not get

the shellfish toxin, he got the botulism pills, according to the list any-
way.
_ The other P800 designation, could you tell us who the highest rank-
Ing officer headquartered in P600 was? In other words, you said that
was a building at Fort Detrick, Who would be the highest officer that
was located in building P600 of Fort Detrick ?

Dr. Scuantz. Well, I said that I thought it was a building number.

Senator Scawerser. Were you aware of what safe those toxins were
stored in, or what building, or what vault, those two cans?

Mr. SceanTz. 1 do not krow anything about those two cans.
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Senator ScEwerxer. When you want to get your supply that you dis-
pensed, where did you get it from?

Dr. Sceantz. That I dispensed from my laboratory, where I kept
it.
Senator Scawerker. You kept it in the vault, your own vault?
Dr. Scaantz. Well, I kept it in my laboratery which was locked.
Senator Scaweiker. What was the largest quantity that you would
keep there?

Dr. ScranTtz. Well, I had several grams. I do not remember exact
amounts.

Senator ScrwrIkER. So you are saying you do not know where the
other vault or storage place was located that might have contained
these 11 grams? Would that be correct?

Dr. Scaantz. Noj; I really do not, none whatsoever.

Senator Scaweiser. Using the Public Health Service for this pur-
pose troubles me as a Senator because it looks to me as if we have the
tail wagging the dog. At some point we were doing legitimate research
to protect our people from the red tide and from the contamination
of shellfish poison. But then at some point we decided that it was a
biological weapon or toxic weapon and went all out in this regard.
And I really do have great doubts that we should be using the U.S.
Public Health Service whose function, by my concept as ranking
member of the Health Committee, is to prevent people from getting
poisons and toxins and to prevent the spread of disease instead of
manufacturing it.

Tt is a little bit like saying you are going te stop the plague, but
in stopping the plague they research enough of the plague bacteria
and pass it out to people who can use it to kill other people for the
plague. Does this not trouble you a little bit, this usage, getting away
now from the pure research and the other aspects which nobody is
questioning and, as you have documented it here, probably is a legiti-
mate usage ?

Dr. Scaantz. Well, I do not know why the contracts were estab-
lished with the Public Health Service but I can understand why the
Cincinnati laboratory would be interested in this material and also
the Narragansett laboratory. The laboratory at the Taft Center is in-
volved in the food poisons, and shellfish poison is one of these. The
Narragansett laboratory is a national shellfish laboratory and I can
see their interest in this. And I think that they just felt that here is
a chance to gain some experience in shellfish, poisonous shellfish and
I suppose that the money of the contract looked good to them.

Senator Scawrrger. Well, again I can understand if all of the 30
grams were being used for that purpose but with a half a gram being
used for that and 29.5 being used as an obvious weapon of war, it just
seems to me we sort of have the tail wagging the dog.

Dr. Scmantz. Well, now several grams have gone into Public Health.

Senator Sceaweiker. Well, in addition to the three now, because they
obviously kept some there, did they not keep some of their own labs
for that research at Narragansett?

Dr. Scmaxntz. I imagine they did, yes, but I have furnished and I
have on hand—well let us see—when we were developing the standard
assay for shellfish poison I furnished Public Health a considerable
amount of poison.
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Senator Scawemker. How much ?

Dr. Scmaxtz. Well, it probably tock a gram or two just to develop
this standardized assay and then after that I have to keep up a sup-
ply on hand to put up in these little vials that are sent out to labora-
tories that assay shellfish poison, and so I still have an obligation with
the Food and Drug Administration to have a supply on hand for them,
I am still custodian of the toxin for them and whenever they need these
for distribution in the assay. I prepare the vials for them and I stand-
ardize them and make sure they are what they are supposed to be.

Senator Scawerker. That’s all T have, Mr. Chairman, thank you.

The Cramrmaw. Dr. Schantz, since you are the forernost expert in
the country on this shellfish toxin and have given us the benefit of your
testimony and have responded to the questions that have been asked by
the committee, I think that we are prepared now, on the basis of your
testimony, to reach a commiitee decision with respect te the request
that has been made of us to lift the application of the general ban
against the destruction of documents, substances or materials with
respect to the particular poisons that we have been inquiring about.

And so I have prepared a letter to Mr. Colby and I would like to
read it to the members of the committee and then ask the committee’s
approval. The letter has been prepared for my signature as Chairmar
and for the signature of John Tower as Vice Chairman of the com
mittee and it reads as follows. I ask the attention of the members. I
is dated September 16 addressed to Mr. William E. Colbv and reads as
follows:

Dear Mr. Colby. Last January, when the Select Committee was created,
Senator Mansfield and Senator Scott asked that the Central Intelligence Agency
not destroy any material that would relate to the Committee’s investigation.

The biologieal toxing that are the subject of the Committee’s first publie
hearings are subject to the ban on destruction, The purpose of this letter is to
inform you that at the completion of the Committee’s investigation into the
improper retention by the CIA of these deadly toxins, the Committee votes fo
approve the destruetion of the toxic materials in your possession.

However, before the CIA proceeds to destroy these toxins, we would direct
Fyour attention to the attached testimony. If adegnate safety and seeurity cautions
could be taken, the Committee believes that it might be appropriate for the
CIA to consider donating these toxins, consistent with our trealy obligations to
properly supervised research facilities which can use these poisons for benign
uses, such as curing such debilitating diseases as multiple sclerosis.

It is fitting that ouf of an admitted wrongdoing some benefit might be had. It
is hoped that in this particular instance the Committee and the Executive Branch
can rectify past abuses and reach a mutual solution for the disposal of these
letha! poisons that will be directed toward bettering the lives of our citizens.

. Senator Tower. Mr. Chairman, I move the authorization of the
etter.

The Cramyran. It has been moved that the letter be authorized by
the committee. Is there any discussion ?

Senator Bagzr. Mr. Chairman, I have a question I would like to ask.

The Cratrman. Senator Baker. .

Senator Baxzer. This is the first time I have seen the letter and it
appears to be satisfactory to me. I think I will have no objection to
it; but as a matter of clarification, I take it that the tone of the
letter is that we no longer as a committee have any objection to the
destruction of the material but we invite your attention to its useful-
gtlass for other purposes. We make no effort to direct the Agency to do

at.
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%’he (EHA:Z{ESRMAN TAhat is correct.
enator DAKER. After all that is an executive branch decision
made with the President and by the CIA. But this is our suggestifl)ﬁg.be

The Cramrman. That is correct, Senator. That is exactly what the
letter says; it is the responsibility of the executive branch to malke
the decision. But we suggest that the CIA. and the executive braneh
;z;?sr{r);;ne thﬁsebpossﬂzlq belmgp Einedical and decent uses to which this

could be puf in limit titi

Boison ooy WOuld%e destroyed(.a quantities. The balance, I assume,

Senator Baxer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Coammax, Any further discussion ?

gena,tor Hart?
. ~enator Harr of Colorado. Mr. Chairman, like Senator Baker thi
15 the first indication I have heard of this letter. T for my I?a,n'llf W;ﬁllls
like to withhold a vote on this at the present time, just my own vote.

The Cramrmaw. Very well. The committee will not proceed to a
vote at this moment in view of the objection of Senator Hart. But T
nglt% ;;é{;; ttohlpass the letter down }for the,ex::lmination of each member.

- this morning we might reconsider the i

And we will have furthe%: consult%tion. falding of » voto.

The reason that the Jetter was prepared and presented was in order
to bring an end to the Impasse that has existed for some months. And
I would hope that the committee could reach a vote this morning, The
letter will be made available to all members and we will proceed with
the remamlng witnesses.

I wantto thank you, Dr. Schantz, very much.

Dr. Scraxtz. You are very welcome.

The Cramuaw. For your testimony this morning. And T will call
a 5 minute recess during which I would like to ask Mr. Charles Sen-
fe{)liay if he would come forward and take his position at the witness
able. -

The committee is recessed for 5 minutes.

[ A brief recess was taken.)

The Crarruan. The committee will please come back to order.

Mr. Senseney, would you please take the oath ?

Do you solemnly swear that all the testimony you will give in this
proceeding will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,
so help you God ?

Mr. Sensexzy. I do.

The CEATRMAN. Thank you.

Mr. Sensency, do you have an opening statement you would like
to make at thistime?

TESTIMONY OF CHARLES A. SENSENEY, DEFARTMENT OF DEFENSE
EMPLOYEE, FORMERLY IN THE SPECIAL OPERATIONS DIVISION
AT FORT DETRICK

Mr. Sexseney. Not really. Let us proceed.

The Caammar. All right. Then 1 will ask Mr. Schwarz to commence
the questioning.

Mr. Scewarz. In Februsry 1970, were you employed at Fort
Detrick ?

Mr. Sexsexey. Yes, sir.
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Mr. Scewarz. Had you been there for a while beforehand ?

Mr. SensENEY. Since 1948,

Mr. Scawarz. And you worked in the Biological Warfare Section of
Fort Detrick?

Mr. Senseney. I was hired in the Physical Defense Division in 1948
and transferred to the SO Division in about 1953.

Mr. Scawarz. Do you know a Dr. Nathan Gordon ?

Mr. Sensexney. I do.

Mr. Scuwarz. Have you been made aware of his testimony about
you in this proceeding.

Mr. Sexseney. I read it this morning.

Mr. Scawarz. All right. T will read to you just one of several
answers he gave referring to you and stating:

I got a call from Charlie Senseney. In effect, the nature of the phone call was
that the stocks of the shellfish toxin that they had at the SO Division facility

would be destroyed in the near future, in implementation of the directive telling _

DOD to destroy these materials, and did we want to think in terms of accepting
the particular quantity of material to keep in store at our own CIA storage
laboratory.

Did you make that suggestion to Dr. Gordon ¢

Mr. Se~xseney. I didn’t, but I think it possibly was at a higher level.

Mr. Scawarz. A higher level of what ¢ .

Mr. SnseneY, The Division. I was just an employee in the Division.
I was a member of the Development Branch. I had nothing to do with
policy or making decisions. . .

Mr. Scawarz. Is it your understanding that the suggestion to retain
the material came from the Army or the CIA in the first instance?

Mr. Sexsewzy. I think it would go this way. The materials in the
stockpile were theirs, and the question was what to do with it. So they
were called to see what they wanted to do with what they owned. It was
theirs; they had bought it. .

Mr. Scawarz. And your understanding is that they said—

Mr. SensExeY. It was not offered. It was just—what do we do with
it?
Mr. Scawarz. And your understanding is that someone at the CTA
said, yes, we want it ¢

Mr. SExsExEY. Well, it had to be, I think.

Mr. Scawarz. All right. )

Mr. Sexseney. Let me stress I was in the hardware section and not
the agent section. I do not know really much about the agent part of
this.

Mr. Scewarz. So that makes Dr. Gordon’s testimony—{first, you
deny his testimony, right?

Mr. SevsexEy. I think that he was contacted, but not by me.

Mr. Scawarz. Do you deny his tesiimony, as far as you are con-
cerned ?

Mr. Sexserny. I do.

Mr. Scawarz. All right.

I just have one further question. ) .

Were you aware that the CIA was working with Fort Detrick?

Mr. Sexseney. After a while. Not when I first went with the SO
Division, but it became apparent later. .

Mr. Scawarz. Did the CIA people use a false name to describe
themselves ?
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Mr. Sexsengy. Staff Support Group.

Mr. Sceawarz. And that was a false name ; was it not ?

Mr. Sexseney. And it was also—you asked another question earlier
this morning, at least someone did, P600 was their funding citation.

Mr. Scawarz. P600 was their funding citation? And the Staff Sup-
port Group was a false name? And who was it designed to mislead?

Mr. SensEney. I don’t know.

Mr. Scawarz. Is that a name that sounds like an Army group?

Mr. Senseney. Well, you would have thought so to begin, because the
first two that I was aware of were a colonel in the Air Force and a
colonel in the Army. Tt looked like an Army support group of some
sort at the start.

Mr. Scrwarz. So both the name and the personnel made it look as if
it was an Army group, even though, in faet, it was CTA personnel ?

Mr. Senseney. That’s right. .

Mr. Scawarz. L have nothing further, Mr. Chairman.

The Caameman. Mr. Smothers.

Mr. Smorrers. Mr. Chairman, just one brief line of inquiry.

Mr. Senseney, you indicated that you were in the hardware business.
Was a part of your hardware business the development of a dart
launcher? :

Mr. Senseney. I was the project engineer of the M-1 and following
on micro-organism projectiles and so forth.

Mr. Syoruers. Is this a device that looks roughly like a .45-caliber
pistol with a sight mount at the top ?

Mr. SexseNey. This was a follow-on. It was to replace the M—1 pro-
jectile to go into the Army stockpile. It did look like a .45.

Mr. SmoTuers. Let me then ask you a question regarding your testi-
mony before the members of this stafl on September 9, when you were
asked about that M~1 dart launcher.

Reading from the transcript, Mr. Snider was questioning you:
da?t;q? the CIA people ever receive any of the M—1 dart launchers to fire human

Your respouse:

They had some, but they did not have agents, to my knowledge. They had them
just, for instance, to fire the projectile, the bare projectile, to see whether it could
go through human clothing, that type of thing. I do not recall them ever having
or asking for one that was coated.

Now, by the reference here, the one that was coated, are you talking
about the projectiles that this dart launcher would have fired ?

Mr. Sexseney. Yes.

Mr. SmormEss. Is it then your testimony that the Agency neither
had nor requested from you or from Detrick, to your knowledge,
coated materials for use in this dart Jauncher?

Mr. SexseneY. They had some.

Now, let me say it this way. I do not know how many they took,
but they had some for surveillance purposes. They were going to con-
duct heat, moisture tests, cold tests, and so forth, to see what would
happen to the projectile in its coated state. These were returned.

And what happened was that there was a reaction between the agent
and the metal, to the point that it cemented the projectile inside the
cartridge, and there was no way this could be used at that time.
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Now, this was good information to us, because it told us that we
should change that metal. And we did. We changed it from what it was
originally to platinum. Platinum was something that was—that seemed
to be OK with the use of muscle poison.

Mr. Smorsers. Is it your festimony, then, that the only darts they
had were tested by the Agency and then returned to you?

Mr. Sexsener. That is correct. .

Mr. SmormERs. Is it vour further testimony that they did not sub-
sequently ask you for a stockpile of poison darts?

Mr. Senseney. Not of that type.

Mr. SmorHERS. Well, then, did they have, Mr. Senseney, the where-
withal to utilize this dart launcher against humans? )

Mr. SenseNey. No. They asked for a modification to use against a
dog.

I%'ow, these were actually given to them, and they were actually ex-
pended, because we got all the hardware back. For a dog, the projectile
had to be made many times bigger. It was almost fhe size of a .22
cartridge, but it carried a chemical compound known as 46-40.

Mr. Smoraers. And their interest was in dog incapacitants?

Mr. Senseney. Right. .

Mr. Sarormzrs. T have no further questions, Mr, Chairman. )

The Cmairmax. Were you aware of the amount of shellfish toxin
belonging to the CIA that was in the custody of the Army SODY

Mr. Sewseney. I knew it had to be between, say, 1 and 10 grams,
in that area somewhere.

The Cuatryan. Actually, we are told that it was 5 grams. But when
the laboratory in which it was stored was discovered a few months
ago and opened up and the cache was examined, it turned out that
there was an additional 6 grams, approximately 6 grams. No one has
yet been able to tell us where the additional 6 grams may have come
from. Do you know? )

Mr. SexsexEY. No, I can’t tell you. I did not have access, or I did
not know the record keeping for the agent part of the house.

The Cuamman. T have no further questions. Senator Mondale, do
you have any questions?

Senator Moxpare. Mr. Senseney, what do you donow?

‘Where do you work?

Mr. Sensenry. I work for the Department of Defense. I am now
with Edgewood Arsenal, Director of Engineering Development, Bi-
ological Protection Branch. T am currently on temporary duty in Eng-
Jand, in a collaborative effort with the United Kingdom. )

Senator Monpare. Do you recall any discussions about the disposal
of these shellfish toxins at the time of the Presidential order and the
delivery of these toxins to the CIA warehouses here in Washington?

Mr. Sewsexey. Well, I would look at it this way. We were prepared
to actually destroy everything. However, much of the material that
was stored in the SO Division was being stored there for another
agency. It did not belong to the Department of Defense.

Senator Mowparg. It belonged to the CIA¢

My. Sexseney. That is correct. . )

Senator Moxpare. Now, did you participate in discussions as to
how that should be dealt with?

Mr. SenseENEY. No.
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Senator Mowpare. Did you participate in discussions as to what
should happen to the DOD-owned toxins?

Mr. Sexsexey. Not really. I really do not know what happened.

Senator Monpare. What do you mean by “not really 2 Did you
participate in any discussions, did you listen in on discussions, con-
cerning the disposition of: those toxins?

Mr. Senseney. For instance, Dr. Schantz said he got 100 milligrams.
I did not even know that happened, but it certainly did.

Senator Monpare. Did you participate in or listen in on or were
you aware of any discussions about the dispositions of these toxins,
either those on assignment from the CIA or the toxins, shellfish toxins,
owned by the DOD %

Mr. SenseNey. Well, at that time—1I guess this is getting close to
1970-at that time, there were very few people left in the SO Division.
I was one of them that happened to be there. The Division Chief, Dr.
Cowan, and the agent side of the thing, either Mr. Leonard Thompson
or Mr. Wally Pannier—we were in the midst of an RIF at that time,
so people were coming and going rather quickly. It had to be one
of those two last persons mentioned that were in the agent category or
in the agent area.

And the only thing that I can say is, I just have to suppose that,
having been told to maintain the sort of show and tell display of hard-
ware that we had on sort of stockpile for them, these were not items
that could be used. They were display items like you would see in 2
museum, and they used those to show to the agents as well as to the
FBI, to acquaint them with possible ways that other people could
attack our own people. ,

Senator Moxparr. Now, Mr. Senseney, let me ask the question again,
and I want you to listen very closely.

Did you participate in or listen in on or were you aware of any
discussions about the disposal of these shellfish toxins, either those on
assignment from the CIA or those owned by the DOD!?

Mr. SenseEney. Will you restate your question in the context of
where to who, was I aware—

HSgena.tor Moxpare. Any discussions about from where to whom at
ali?

Mr. Sensexey. Let’s say I knew none of the negotiations, let us say,
between the SO Division and the CIA in their decision to do what
they did. I was told todo certain things that I did.

Senator Moxpare. What were you told to do with the toxins?

Mr. Sexsenzy. I was not told to do anything with the toxins, sir.
I was told to give 2 development display.

Senator Monpazre. I am just talking about the toxins. Did you parti-
cipate in, did you listen in on, or were you aware of any discussions
relating to the disposition of those shellfish toxines, whether on assign-
ment from the CIA. or owned by the DOD %

Mr. SensewEY. Yes.

Senator Mowpare. All right. And what were they?

Mr. Sensenmy. They were told by our division head contacted
through channels, whatever that channel was, what to do with their
stockpile.

Senator Monpare. All right.
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Mr. SensEnEY. And they came back to say they wanted the develop-
ment-type prototypes, plus saving TZ. That’s the only thing in the
stockpile they wanted. )

Senator Moxpace. TZ is shellfish toxin ¢

Mr. SexnseEney. That Is correct. ) .

Senator MonparLe. What was the discussion about TZ toxin or shell-
fish toxin ) )

Mr. SExseNEY. Prepare it for delivery to them. They wanted it back.

Senator MonpaLE. In other words, you were told that an order was
given that the CIA wanted their shellfish toxin back. And did you
participate in preparing the packaging? ,

Mr. SenseNEY. No, I was not in the agent category. I'm scared of
that,

Senator Moxpare. How did you happen to hear about that order,
then ? )

Mr. Senseney. It was only Wally Pannier, Dr. Cowan and myself,
about, in that area at the time. So he just came and fold us both at
the same time what he wanted. There were two things——-

Senator Monpare. Who came and told you that?

Mr. Sexseney. Dr. Cowan. . .

Senator Monpare. Dr, Cowan? He said, get this toxin ready for
shipment back to the CIA? ) ) )

Mr. SExseney. He told that to Mr. Pannier. He did not tell it to
me.

Senator Moxpare. All right. ) ) )

And then what other discussions did you hear concerning the dis-
position of these toxins?

Mr. SewseNey. That is it. )

Senator Monpare. Did you participate in any or hear about any
discussion relating to the DOD-owned shellfish toxin?

Mr. SensExsy. No. I assumed that was taken care of under the nor-
mal destruct order. Anything that belonged to Detrick, we got back
into the channel and got rid of it real quick. That, in turn, was the
hardware. We cut it up with hacksaws and hammered it together, put
it into ovens, and melted it up into a junk heap. )

Senator Monpars. Now, what you are saying, then, is that the only
discussions that you participated in, or had knowledge of, concern-
ing the disposition of these shellfish toxins, whether they were owned
by the CIA or DOD at the time you were at Fort Detrick, was the
single conversation that you testified to, in which you were told that
these CIA toxins were to be packaged for return to the CIA*

Mr. Sexsexey. That’s correct. There was no reason to discuss it.

Senator Monpare. And that came from Mr.

Mr. SexsEney. Tt came from the division head.

Senator Moxparz. Tt came from Mr. Cowan. .

Now, you say you heard no instructions concerning the disposition
of DOD toxins, shellfish toxins. )

Mr. Sexsexey. Well, I am sure Mr. Pannier was told to destroy
them. )

Senator Mowpark. Do you have any knowledge of orders or mstruc-
tions relating to the DOD toxing?

Mr. SensEney. Not directly, no. .

Senator MonNpare. What do you know indirectiy?
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Mr. Sexsexey. Just by association with Mr. Pannier, I know that
he took care of all that, '
Senator Moxpark. And how did he take care of all that!?
L Mr. SewseNey. By destroying it, except what he gave to Dr. Schantz,
ess,
enator Monpare, Gave to who!?
Mr. Sewseney. Dr. Schantz.
Senator Moxpare. He destroyed the other toxins? Do you know that
of your personal knowledge?
1 Mr. Sewseney. No. T have no evidence. I was not there when it was
one.

Senator Mowpare. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The CrammaN. Thank you, Senator Mondale.

Senator Baker is next.

Senator Baxer. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much.

Mr. Senseney, it is my understanding from your testimony that no
one from the CIA ever contacted you about the shellfish toxin.

Mr. Senseney. No.

Senator Baxer. But it is your surmise that the CIA did contact
one of your superiors about it.? .

Mr. Sevseney. I think we probably contacted them because we
wanted to know what to do with it.

Senator Baxer. Who was it that contacted them?

Mr. SensexeY. Somebody higher in the chain, either at the divi-
ston level or a scientific director or commanding officer or someone.

Senator Baxer. T need to do a little better than that. If you do not
know, give me your judgment on who it might have been that was
higher than you in these categories.

Mr. SenseNEy. It was probably our division chief, I would think.

Senator Baxer. Who was that?

Mr. Sexsevey. Dr. Cowan.

Senator Bager. Dr. Cowan. Where is Dr. Cowan now ?

Mr. Sensexey. He works for the University of Maryland, I believe.

Senator Baxer. Have you talked to Dr. Cowan about this subject ?

Mr., Sensexey. No.

Senator Baxkr. Or has he talked to you about it ?

Mr. Sensexey. No.

Senator Baxer. You have no personal knowledge, then, of what
the conversation would have been with the CTA %

Mr. Sensenex. No.

Senator Baxger. Nor whom Dr. Cowan would have called, if in
fact it was Dr. Cowan?

Mr. SExnseney. Not at all.

Senator Baxer. Nor when it occurred ?

But it is your best impression, under the circumstances, and because
of the actions that were taken, that apparently someone superior to
you, probably Dr. Cowan, called the CIA and probably said, what do
you want to do with your toxin ?

Mr. Sexsexzy, Correct.

Senator Baxer. And it is also your surmise that they must have said,
we want it back.

Mr. Sexsexey. I would say that.
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' Senator Baxer. But this is based entirely on what happened, and
i not on your };)91‘3()1'1151%l Imowledge of the conversation ?
. SENSENEY. Lhat 1s true. .

Is\gxastor Bager. According to the information we have from pre-
vious witnesses and other documents, the inventory at Fort Detrick
showed that the CTA had approximately 5 grams of shellfish toxin.
And yet, according to the records we also have, almost 11 grams Wecﬁ‘e
found at the storage cache that the CIA maintains near the Xennedy
Center. Do you know how they came by that extra, approximately 6

grams?
Mr. SexseNEY. No; because I am not aware of the amount that was

in the stockpile.
mg;nator ]%}AKER. So you have no personal knowledge about whether
the 5-gram figure is correct or the 11-gram figure ?

Mr. SensexeY. That is correct. . .

Senator Bager. You did not personally participate in the return of
the toxin to the C%?t ——

. SEnsENEY. That is right. . .

%E;aiof Basxer. Do you %mow anything else about this toxin, any-
thing that I have not asked you about it, that would relate to the
question of how the CIA got it back, on whose order and for what
S N

. SENsENEY. No. )

Senator Baszr. Your principle job with the DOD, I fake it, was to
develop new or exotic devices and weapons; is that correct?

Mr. SENSENEY. 1 was a project engineer for the E-1, which was
type-classified and became the M=1. They were done for the Army.

Senator Baxzer. Were you an Army employee ?

Mr. SensENEY. T am an Army employee. I still am.

Senator Baxer. But in the course of your employment by the Army,
you made your work product and developments available to the CIA,
to the FBT, and to anyone else. .

Mr. Sexsexey. I think the only other ones that possibly looked at
the display was U.8. Customs.

Senator Baxer. Anyone else?

Mr. Senseney. Not to my knowledge. There counld have been.

Senator Baxer. Did you ever have any contact with anyone else
about special devices, anybody at the White House, the IRS, at the
DEA, the DIA, any of these other agencies? There are about 60
agencies of Government that do either intelligence or law enforcement
work.

Mr. SexseEnNEY. I am sure most all of those knew of what we were
doing; yes.

Senator Baxer. Did you have anv other customers ? .

Mr. Sensenzy. To my knowledge our only customer was Special
Forces and the CIA, I guess. ] .

Senator Baxer. Special Forces meaning Special Forces of the
Army?

Mr., Sexsexey. That is correct.

Senator Baxer. And the FBI? )

Mr. Sexsexey. The FBI never used anything. They were only
shown so they could be aware of what might be brought into the
country. .
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Senator Bagzr. I see, they were never a customer in the sense they
never took delivery of any material ?

Mr. Senseney. That is right.

Senator Barrr. Did you describe for us in the previous executive
session some of the exotic devices that you developed and displayed
to your customers.

Mr. Sgnseney. Well, I was project engineer for the M-1, so all of
the missile type, dart type or this would have been from my part. I
know of others but they came under the other four project engineers,
they were road depositors—-

Senator Baxer. What are road depositors?

Mr. Sensengy. A bacteriological aerosol you put on roads, on rail-
road tracks and things like that.

Senator Bager. Who did you give that to?

Mr. Sexsexey. It was not given to anyone. The Army asked for it.
It was type—eclassified for the Army, period.

Senator Bager. Did the Army useit?

Mr. Senseney. Not to my knowledge.

Senator Bagzr. But it was delivered to the Army. It’s an aerosol
that sprays a bacteriological agent on the road or railroad track or
some other place.

Mr. Sensewey. It is a matter of putting the material on the roadway
or in between tracks, just like dumping @ sack of flour.

Senator Bager. Did you ever give that to the CTA.

Mr. Sensenzy. No.

Senator Baxer. Orany of the other agencies?

Mr. Sexseney. They had all of the prints and specifications for
these things but they never asked for them.

Senator BAxzr. king at your previous executive session testi-
mony, apparently you developed for them a fountain pen. What did
the fountain pen do?

Mr, Sensuney, The fountain pen was a variation of an M-1. An
M-1 in itself was a system and it could be fired from anything. Tt
could be put into——

Senator Baxzr. Could it fire a dart or an aerosol or what?

Mr. Sexseney. It was a dart.

Senator Bamer. It fired a dart, 2 starter, were you talking about a
fluorescent light starter?

Mr. SenseNex. That is correct.

Senator Baxsr. What did it do?

Mr. SexsexEy. It put out an aerosol in the room when you put the
switch on.

Senator Baxer. What did that aerosol do?

Mr. SensenEy. It would contaminate anybody in the room.

Senator Baxer. Meaning kill them or disable them?

Mr. Se~nseney. It depends on the agent. If you are using a lethal
agent, it would probably kill. If it was a debilitating thing, it would
just make you sick for awhile.

Senator Barer. Did you give that to the CTA ¢

Mr. Senseney. No.

Senator Baker. Only the Special Forces for the Army?

Mr. Sensexey. The Special Forces did not even want that. [General
laughter.]
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Senator Baxer. Did you feel hurt?

Mr. Sexseney. Well, not really. )

Senator Baxer. OK, what about a cane, a walking cane?

Mr. SenseNgy. Yes; an M-I projectile could be fired from 2 cane,
so an umbrella. . )

o ge?;,tor Baxzr. Also an umbrelle. What about a straight pin?

Mr. SENSENET. S_?aig}_lt pin?
enator Baxer. Yes, sir, .
§Ir. Senseney. We made a straight pin, out at the Branch. I did
not make it, but I know it was made and 1t was used by one Mr. Powers
is U—-2 mission.

Onélena.(gor Bager. As a matter of fact, it was not used by Mr. Powers,
Mr. Sexseney. He did not use it but he had it. Let us put it that way.
Senator BaxEr. And buttons. I noticed in the testimony some refer-

ence to buttons. What kind of buttons are you speaking of? )
Mr. SENsENET. You can make & button from biological material,

compress it in such a way that you could actually put it on your shirt
or a coat, button it up and you could walk into another country with

a starter for coming up with a biological agent. )
Senator Baker. Did you ever do anything about clgaérsg Did you

ever try to impregnate o cigar with a biological agent?

Mr. SexsENEY. I did not; no.

Senator Baxzr, Do you know of any such ?

Mr. SExsENEY. Not really. ) )

Senator Bager. That was not done in your department, then, if
it was done at all? .

Mr. Senseney. No; that would be too easy. I don’t think we would

fooled with that one.

haginator Bager, You don’t think that would have been a good

technique? Well, I don’t mean to press unduly, but of the Iist that

we went into here, did you manufacture or deliver any of these gor
any of the intelligence agencies of the Government at any time?

Mr. SenseNey. No; they were only shown and most of the intelli-
gence groups knew of what we could do and it sort of edified them to
the point that they could observe and be able to see these things if
they were in foreign countries. . )

Senator Baxer, How did you do that? Did you have a case like a
salesman, you opened it up and showed i to them?

Mz, SENseNEY. Just about.

Senator Baxer. Where did you do that ? L

Mr, Sewseney. Mainly it was done in our division, of course.

Senator Baxer. Did you send out invitations or what? .

Mr. Senseney. They usually invited themselves, somehow, I don’t
know how all this worked, but they showed up.

Senator Bager. All rilght.

Mr. Sensexey. And T might add that many of your own members
here, not on this panel, but many of the Members of Congress also
observed these. _ '

Senator Baxzr. Well, you are very generous. None of us saw them;
is that right?

Mr. SexsenEY. I am not sure, I wouldn’t know, but I know many
did.

Senator Bager. I don’t know either.
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Was the toxin program or the chemical-biological agent program
necessary in your judgment, for the utilization of the exotic devices
that you have described to us? Were these poisons from shellfish,
from cobra venom and the like, an adjunct to and a part of these
exotic devices? Your straight pen, your fountain pen, the starter and
the like, did you use these poisons in those devices!

Mr. SexsenEy. Noj not shellfish. X think you have got 2 misnomer
between poison—a biological material itself is not a poison in my
estimation. Yes; shellfish poison is-a poison, shellfish. The others are
biological agents, such as say, anthrax, tuleremia and that type of
thing. The only thing that you mentioned there that could be used
Withdshellﬁsh poison are the dart-type things. The rest used biological
powders.

Senator Baxrr. The last question, and my time has expired, Mr.
Senseney, do you know of any records of this program that have
been destroyed?

Mr. Senseney. I could not tell you whether they have been de-
stroyed or kept intact. I know when the division closed, a lot of stuff
was sent, they told us, to Kansas City.

Senator Bager. If I wanted to find out more about the conversation
with the CIA and the destruction of records, would Dr. Cowan be
the one to talk to?

Mr. SexsenEey. Possibly.,

Senator Baxer. Thank you, sir.

The Caarrman. Thank you, Senator Baker.

Senator Huddleston is next:.

Senator HunprestoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Carrying on the line of questioning by Senator Baker as to the
kind of items you experimented with and developed, would it be
accurate to say that you worked on and experimented with gadgets
for which nobody ever yet has found a use?

Mr. Sexsexney. I think there were some intended uses. For instance,
the Special Forces gave us SDR, Small Development Requirements,
indicating that they had a military requirement to meet a certain
situation.

Senator HuppLeston. Was mostly all of your work then done on

- the basis of these special requirement requests that came either from

the Special Forces or some other source ¢

Mr. Sexgeney. That is true.

Senator Hupprestox. Did these requests come from the CIA. direct-
Ly, to your knowledge ¢ '

Mr. SnseNgy. No; they sort of rode piggyback on most of these.
They sort of rode piggyback on the Army’s development and picked
off what they thought was good for them, I guess.

Senator HuppLestox. But you did not undertake a development or
an experimental program of a particular weapon until you had some
request from the Special Forces to develop a delivery system ¢

Mr. SensexeY. There was one item. It was a hand-held item that
could fire a dart projectile. It was done only for them: no one else.

Senator Hupprsron. You developed that yourself?

Mr. Sexsexney. I had a hand in it. T did not do all of the development.

Senator Huppreston. All right, during the course of your work
there, did you have frequent contact with Dr. Gordon?
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Mr. Sexseney. I would not say it was frequent, but it was periodic;
yes.
Senator HuppLestox. Were some of these contacts by telephone?

Mr. Sexsexer. Usually the telephones came through the Director
and he let us know when they were coming and they would come and
see us.

hSena,vtor Huopreston. But you very seldom talked to him by tele-
one
P Mr. SexseENEY. That is correct.

Senator HuppLesTow. Did you ever talk to him by telephone?

Mr. SExseNEY. I probably did.

Senator HuppLeston. You do not recall any specific instances?

Mr. SensenEY. No. .

Senator Hoppreston. Were there frequent transfers of material be-
tweenﬁDr. Gordon’s office and your office, either the hardware or the
toxin ¢

Mr. Senserey. The only frequent thing that changed hands was the
dog projectile and its loaders, 4640. This was done maybe five or six
in one quantity. And maybe 6 weeks to 6 months later they would
bring those back and ask for five or six more. They would bring them
back expended, that is, they bring all of the hardware except the
projectile, QK ?

Senator Huppresron. Indicating that they have been used ?

Mr. SensENEY. Correct.

Senator Hooprestox. Did they advise you as to what use they were
making of them? )

Mr. Senxseney. Noj; that was one bad part of it. You did not_get
any feedback so you did not know whether your devices worked or
did not work.

Senator Hupprestox. They never advised you of whether or not they
were suceessful ?

Mr. Senseney. That is correct.

Senator HopprLesToN. And no information at all as to how they
were being used ?

Mr. Senseney. No, but I would sayv they would have to be used on
a, dog. You may as well shoot & man if you are going to use something
the size that they were using there.

Senator Huppreston. But it could have been used on a human
being ?

M% Senxsexey. There is no reason why it could not, I guess.

Senator Huoprestox. How much time usually elapsed between the
time you gave them these weapons and the time they brought them
back to you expended ?

Mr. Sensexey. Usually 5 to § weeks.

Senator HuppLesToN. Five to six weeks, and absolutely no report
from them as to what the use was, whether or not they were used,
whether they were efficient, whether they needed some adjustments or
some modification to make them more workable ¢

Mr. SexseneY. No, there really was not much feedback. They would
bring them back but they would not say why they wanted them or
what they used them on.

Senator HuppLeston. You never inquired ¢

Mzr. SexsENeY. No.
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Senator HuppLesTON. You never thought to inquire?

Mr. SenseNEY. I thought of it, but I never did.

Senator HupbrLesToN. Any other type weapons or any other materials
fihat yc;u transferred to them that might have been expended to some

egree?

Mr. SensEnEY. No; they were the only things that they really got
on a regular basis and to my knowledge, used some way.

Senator Hupprestow. Now, you have indicated to us what P600 is
and I think you said it was the funding order. I take it this is the of-
ficial Government document that provides for the funding for a par-
ticular activity. Xs that correct?

Mr. Sexsexry. Well, it identified the working investigation group
or the staff support group, whatever way you want to identify it. P600
was a funding citation.

Senator HuooresTow. All right. Would it be very specific as to what
these funds are to be spent for, the type of development? Would it
indicate who had authority to actually expend these funds?

Mr. Sexsexey. Well, I guess they would have to come down through
our division level there. The stockpile was maintained for them. This
took quite a bit of money, of course. That is their agent stockpile.

Senator Huppreston. The material that was stored for 5 years has
on it, “to be used only at the direction of P600.” Would that order,
P600, give us the information as to what specific individual had the
authority to permit the use of that material?

Mr. SexseEngy. I cannot answer that. I do not think P600 was an
authority. It was just a citation. Thatis all I know it to be.

Senator Huopresrorn. Well, somebody must have thought it was an
authority or they would not have printed on the material that it could
be used only as directed by P600, in my judgment.

Now in the instructions you received from Dr. Cowan to withhold
the destruction, I believe, of both the toxin and the hardware——

Mr. Szwseny. No, not hardware per se. I call them display items.
They are mounted on boards, cutaway models, that sort of thing.

Senator Hupprestor. Prototypes, these were not actual weapons?

Mr. Senseney. They would not even be a prototype really because a
prototype you could actually activate. These were inert type things
that were mounted on display models.

Senator HuppLestow. Just to show what the ltem was, what 1t looked
like, the size of it 2

Mr. Sexsexey. Correct.

Senator Huppreston. Then you have to detail what its capabilities
were. But in these instructions, were they verbal

Mr., SexseneY. Yes.

Senator Huoprestor. He just told you to hold up on it 2

Mr. SENSENEY. Yes.

Senator HovoLeston. He did not say why?

Mzr. SexsEngy. No.

Senator Iuppresron. Did you receive any written instructions?

Mr. Sensenzy. No.

Senator HuppresTon. None whatsoever relating to your responsibil-
ity to dispose of the material that yon had responsibility for?

Mr. Senseney. I got rid of all the hardware per se, yes.

Senator HuppresToN. But not on the basis of a written instruction?
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Mr. Sexseney. No.

Senator Hopprestor. Did you see any instructions on what manner
was to be used, what method was to be used for the destruction of any
of this material ?

Mr. Sewseney. Not really. We had to come up with our own means
of getting rid of the hardware. It was not really very easy. It was much
easter to make these things than it was to get rid of them.

Senator Hupbrzsron. Why was that? Why would it be difficult ?

Mr. SexsexeY. You have got to do a lof of chopping and a lot of
tearing and a lot of heating to get rid of 2l that metal.

Senator HuopLeston. Was there a great bulk of it?

Mr. Sexseney. Well, for instance, we were in the midst of a develop-
ment program with the Army. We had just gotten back 400 or 500
rounds from the Dugway Proving Ground that had to be destroyed.
We had o go out to a contractor and get things back that we were

developing. They had to be destroyed. So, yes, there was quite a bulk .

of material.

Senator HoppLesron. What would the cost be of disposing of that?
Would you have any idea?

Mr. Sensexey. I would not have—I could not even estimate it really.

Senator Hupbresrox. Did you assist in any way in the transfer of
any of this material to the CIA.?

Mr. Sewsexey. The display items I did, yes.

Senator HuppLestox. In what way did you assist?

. Mr. SzwseNEY. They came and picked it up. I helped the guy carry
~it oub and put it in his car,

Senator Huppreston. Who is they?

Mr. SenseNEY. They—Boston.

Senator HupprestoN. And he came in a car, his personal automobile ?

Mr. SensenzY. Correct.

Senator Hupprestox. And you helped him. Did you see any other
material or did you assist in transferring any other material ?

Mr. Senseney. No; that is all T took out.

Senator Huppresron. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Crramman. Senator Mathias?

Senator Marmias. I thank Mr. Senseney for being here, but T think
he has answered all the questions I had in my mind, and T have no
further questions.

The Cramman. Senator Hart?

Senator Hart of Colorado. Mr. Senseney, are you familiar with
so-called vulnerability studies, or experiments conducted by personnel
at Fort Detrick? '

Mr. SexsENEY. Yes sir.

Senator Hart of Colorade. Are you familiar with studies of the
water system at the FDA building here in town ¢

Mr. Sexngeney. I am.

Senator Harr of Colorade. Did you participate in that study?

Mr. Sensexey. I did not participate in it, but I developed an item
that they could tap into the system with,

Senator Hart of Colorado. Would you explain that item ?

Mr. SensENEY. It was a drill-tap-type situation, that you go through
& pipe that would withstand the pressure of the water and be able to
insert dye or material into the water stream.
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Senator Harr of Colorade. Was that instrument used in the vul-
nerability study?

Mr. SensexeY. As far as I know.

Senator Harr of Colorado. You did not actually monitor it, or
participate?

Mr. Sensenex. No.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Did you receive any report on how that
experiment worked out? :

Mr. Senseney. Well, it is pretty evident that the dye got pretty
much throughout the entire water system of the building.

Senator Haxr of Colorade. And to your knowledge, no one at FDA
was aware of this experiment being conducted ?

Mr. Sexsevey. They asked for it to be conducted. Only a very few
people mew it was being conducted, however.

Senator Harr of Colorado. FDA asked for it ?

Mr. SenseENEY. That’s right.

In a lot of the vulnerahility studies we did do, we were requested
to do them.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Y’m not sure you have a copy of this
document before you—I guess you do not, but a June 1, 1969 summary
report conducted by the %peoial Operations Division at Fort Detrick
summarizes that study. And it is my recollection—I will try to find
the specific language—it is my recollection that none of the people
at FIDA were aware of this. I do not think it is a major point.

Mr. SenseNEY. It may not have been.

1 see where we went through (GSA.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Yes. _

Mr. Sexseney. OK. Someone was aware of it; I'm not sure who.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Are you familiar with a so-called vulner-
ability study or experiment on the New York subway system?

Mr. SexseNEY. I participated in that.

Senator Harr of Colorado. To what extent did you participate?

Mr, SenseNeY. I was a sampler.

Senator Harr of Colorado. What does that mean?

Mr. Senseney. I rode & subway and sampled the air. [General
laughter.]

Senator Harr of Colorado. How was the study or experiment con-
ducted ?

Mr. SewsenEY. Well, there was one person that was the operator—if
you want to call it an operator—who rode a certain train, and walking
hetween trains, dropped what Iooked like an erdinary light bulb which
contained biological simulant agent.

And then the next train came by and, of course, it would stir up the
air. So, by driving over it at, say, 60 miles an hour—and this was con-
tinuously done by certain subways, and it went quite well through the
entire subway system, because we started down around 14th Sireet and
sampled up as far as about 58th Street, and there is quite a bif of aero-
sol all along the way.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Just from one light bulb?

Mr. SenseneY. One light bulb.

Senator X arr of Colorado. Were the officials of the city of New York
aware that this study was being conducted ¢

Mr. Sexsexney. I do not believe so.
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Senator Harr of Colorado. And certainly the passengers weren’t.

Mr. Se~sExEY. That is correct.

Senator FLart of Colorado. At whose request were these two studies
conducted ¢

Mr. SEnseNEY. I'm not sure whether it was requested or whether we
did it on our own. There was a special studies group in our branch
that was head of vulnerability studies. . .

Senator Harr of Colorado. You had a special section that did noth-
ing but vulnerability studies?

Mr. SENSENEY. Yes.

They would come up with test plans and so forth.

Senator Hart of Colorado. What other kinds of studies did you con-
duct besides the subways and the FDA building ¢

Mr. Senseney. Well, there have been quite a few.

Senator Harr of Coloradoe. Well, name a few of them.

Mr. SensExey. Well, McGuire Air Force Base, which was a SAC
activity thai—it was requested by the Air Force to see how vulnerable
they were.

Senator Harr of Colorado. To biological attack?

Mr. Sexseney. That’s right. And the Pentagon and the White
House.

@ Seraator Tarr of Colorade. How was the White House study con-
ucted ¢

Mr. SEnsENEY. I do not know that one specifically, because I wasnot
involved. However, I do know that they made—asked them to do cer-
tain things to make the thing so it couldn’t be attacked. They had leaky
filters in the White House.

Senator Harr of Colorado. Now, Mr. Senseney, in the requests that
you received from your superiors to prepare, or participate in, these
studies, was there discussion, to your recollection, of the actual use of
these kinds of capabilities offensively ¢

Mr. SexseNEY. The main thing was to determine the vulnerability of
our country to biological attacl through covert means, and this was
attack against people, crops, animals, things—by things, 1 mean ma-
chinery, airplanes.

Senator Hart of Colorado. But was there discussion of using this
kind of capability against other countries?

Mr. SExsENEY. Not to my knowledge ; no.

Senator Harr of Colorado. I refer to page 14 of the document you
have before you [exhibit 12 *] in the top sentence of that page. It says:

From limited consultation with design engineers it should be possible to develop
simple guidelines for planning and attack on 2 group of people that work in a
building constructed with a circulating, chilled drinking water systewm.

That does not say a defense; it says attack.

Mr. Sexsexey. If you are going to have a defense, you have got to
have an offense, I suppose. I didn’t write this paper.

Senator Harr of Colorado. I understand.

Mr. Se¥seney. I’m not even sure I’ve really ever seen it before.

Senator Hart of Colorado. I understand.

Mr. Sevseney. That could be somebody’s conclusion, you see, not
mine.

7 See p, 240,
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Senator Harr of Colorado. The same kind of language, in stronger
form, is contained in the report on the subway system study or
experiment.

But your testimony is to the effect that these experiments, or your
participation in these experiments, was for defensive purposes only.

Mr. Sensexnzey. That is correct.

Senator Harr of Colorado. And with no discussion of creating a
capabiliby to use against someone else,

Mr. SenseneY. Well, you have to realize that Detricle—the overall
Detrick—was to do things for the Army. That is, in terms of offense.

Senator Harr of Colorado. That is all, Mr. Chairman.

The Cramman. Thank you, Senator Hart.

Senator Schweiker ¢

Senator Scewrerker. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Senseney, I would Ilike to call your attention to a CIA docu-
ment 67 [exhibit 6 *] which basically describes Project MKNAOMI.
or Project P600, whatever you want to call i, which, while funded by
the CIA, was actually run and operated by Fort Detrick. And I would
like to read into the record, at this point, a quote from paragraph 9
of that document:

‘When funds permit, adaptation and testing will be conducted of a new, highly
effective disseminating system which has been demonstrated to be capable of
introducing materials through light clothing, subeutaneously, intramuscularly,
and silently, without pain.

Now, I just have a little trouble, Mr. Senseney, reconciling your
answers in conjunction with this project, when the CTA document
malces clear that one of the very specific purposes of the funding and
the operation was to find a weapon that could penetrate light clothing
subcutaneously, which obviously means through the skin, and intra-
mauscularly, which obviously means through the muscles of a person.

And are you saying that you have absolutely no recollection at all
that tests or programs were not designed to use any of these devices to
permeate clothing on people and not dogs?

Mr, SexseNEY. We put them on mannequins.

Senator Scawerker. What's that ?

Mr, Sexsenzy. We put clothing on mannequins to see whether we
could penetrate it. These were the requirements. You almost read the
exach requirements that the SDR quoted from Special Forces there.

Sentaor Scuwerger. I would not expect you to test them on live
human beings. I would hope you did use mannequins, Mr. Senseney.
‘Wouldn’t that be directed toward people usage though? That is the
point we’re trying to establish.

Mr. Sensexey. That is what Special Forces direction was.

Senator ScEwerser. So it was not solely dogs toward which the
program was directed. If you used mannequins, obvionsly people were
involved.

Mr. SensEneY. Well, you have to look at it this way. The Army pro-
gram wanted this device. The only thing that the CIA asked for was a
dog device. That is the only thing that was delivered to them. It was a
spinoff, of course, from the M~1. The M1 was a lethal weapon, meant
to kill a person, for the Army. It was to be used in Vietnam. It never

1Beep. 204.
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got there because we were not fast enough getting it into the logis-
t1cs system.

Senator Scawerker, ‘What about the device that you made, or
whose development you supervised ? What was the most utilized de-
vice of the ones with which you worked and supervised ¢

Mr. SensEx®Y. By whom ?

-Senator Scrrwerker. The only thing that T know that was really
used was the dog projectile. The other things were in the stockpiles.
I don’t think anyone ever requested them.

Senator Scniwerker. How do you know for certain it was for dogs?

Mr. SewseNey. Well, that is what they asked us to test them against,
They wanted to see whether they could put 2 dog to sleep, and whether
sometime later the dog would come hack and be on its own and look
normal.

Senator ScEWEIKER. Of course, as I recall, that is what they did
with Gary Powers’ drill with shelifish toxin. They tested it on a dog
to see if it would work. So I do not know thaf that at all would
conclude that it was only provided for dogs.

. Of the devices that came through you, which of these were utilized
n any capacity other than for testing?

Mr. Sensexsy. That was the only one that I know of—the dog
projectile. I call it a dog projectile. We were developing it because
the scenario read that they wanted to be able to make entranee into
an area which was patrolled by dogs, leave, the dog come back, and
then no one would ever know they were in the area. So that was the
reason for the dog projectile.

Senator Scuwerker. And how many of these were made ?

Mx. Sexsewey. Well T would say there were probably as many as
50 gt least. They took—

Senator Scawzriker. About 50

Mr. SeNsENEY. Yes.

Senator Scuwsmser. And didn’t you get any reports back from the
field on their effectiveness ?

Mr. Sewseney. No. That is one thing you never get; you never get
the feedback. You did not know what happened.

Senator Scrwriser. 'm puzzled by that. You are the research and
development person; you design the weapon—and T havent seen a
part of the military yet that did not have some feedback on whether
1t was effective in hitting the target or missing it. Ilow do you know
if you are doing things right or wrong ?

" Mtz}' SeNseNEY. We must have been doing right. They kept asking
or it.

Senator Scowerker. Then somebody was using them, I gather. Ts
that correct?

Mr. Sexnsexey. I would assume so. The missile was gone when they
returned the hardware, sir.

Senator ScuwrIker. But you cannot give us any specific evidence
or proof that they were used solely for dogs, from your knowledge, or
from your feedback?

Mr. Sexseney. No. Not at all.

_Senator Scuwriser. You said a moment ago that you aiso dis-
tributed the cans to Mr. Boston at the end of this sheilfish project.

Mr. Sexseney, No cans did I distribute to him. T only gave him the
display models of the prototvpe items.
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Senator ScuwrrgEr. No; I’'m referring to the shellfish toxins.

Mr. Sensener. I did not give him any shellfish toxins.

Senator Scuwerxer. What did you give Mr. Boston?

Mr. Sexseney. All I gave him were display models.

Senator Scaweiker. Of what?

Mr. Sexseney. Of hardware.

Senator Scuwerker. No shellfish toxin? Are you aware that along
with that went the shellfish toxin?

Mzr. Sexsexey. Well, I thought it should be. They had to pick it up
sometime.

Senator Scawrrkrr. In addition to giving it to them, did you give
it to any other sources, any other branches of Government or the
service, or any other parts of the Army ?

Mr. Sexseney. 1 did not give it to anybody, so T really do not know
what the disposition of the material was. I was not in the agent area; I
was only in hardware development. )

Senator Scanwrmser. Did you have a responsibility for cleaning
out the inventory? .

Mr. SexseneY. Only on the hardware side, not on the agent side.

Senator Scuwerker. And where did all of the inventory go?

Mzr. Sexsenzey. I don’t know.

Senator Scuwrrker. Where did the inventory of hardware go?

Mr. SexseneY. All hardware was destroyed, period.

The only thing that was distributed to the CIA were prototypes—
and I would not even call them prototypes, they were display models,
cutaway models. They were mounted on boards, on plaques, that type of
thing,

Se%lator Scewriger. That's all the questions I have, Mr. Chairman.
Thaitk you. .

The Crammman. Thank you, Senator Schweiker. )

I think it ought to be reemphasized that the document from which
you read was a document in which the CIA laid ouf its specifications
for the research work for which the Agency was paying.

Senator Scawrrxrr. And for which purpose, too, Mr. Chairman,
that they mei quarterly to see if their funds were being well spent.

The Cramrman. Right. And thelr specifications with respect to the
particular delivery systems we have been discussing were as follows:

When funds permit, adaptation and testing will be condueted of a new, highly
effective, disseminating system which has been demonstrated to be capable of
introducing materials through light clothing, intramuscularly and silently, with-
out pain.

So I think it is clear that the CIA was interested in the development
of a delivery system that could reach human beings, since not many
dogs wear clothing. And you would agree with that, wouldn’t you?

Mr. SENSENEY. Yes.

The Cramuman. O

Mcr. Schwarz here has one final question and then we will move to
the final witness this morning.

Mr. Scawarz. Along the same line of the chairman’s and Senator
Schweiker’s questions, I assume you agree that spending money in
order to make darts of such a character that they cannot be detected in

an autopsy does not have much to do with.dogs.

Mr. SensENEY. No; that would not have anything to do with dogs.
Mr. Scawarz. All right.

_—




178

The Crarman, Thank you very much.

Senator Baker?

Senator Baxer. Mr. Chairman, Id like to renew my previous request,
I would like very much to talk to Dr. Cowan, who may have been the
contact between the CILA and Fort Detrick on the request for the toxins
and on the recordkeeping. When the time is appropriate, I would like
to mnterview him. And, if it seems pertinent and relevant to our in-
quiry, I would ask that he be called as a witness.

The Crzarman. That will be arranged.

Thank you very much, Mr. Senseney, for your testimony.

Our next, and final, witness is Mr. Robert Andrews. Mr. Andrews,
will you please come forward? Mr. Andrews, will you take the oath?

Do you solemnly swear that all the testimony you will give in this
proceeding will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth, so help you God?

Mr. AxprEws. I do.

The Cmamman. Mr. Smothers will commence the questioning,

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT T. ANDREWS, SENIOR ADVISOR TO THE
GENERAL COUNSEL, OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF DEFENSE

Mr. SmotmERs. Mr. Andrews, you are currently serving as a Senior
Advisor to the General Counsel, Office of the Secretary of Defense. Is
that correct? i

Mr. Axprews. I am.

Mr. Smorsers. Did you have occasion to become familiar with
Defense Department efforts to destroy shellfish toxin ¢

Mr. AxpreEws. Yes.

Mr. Smormers. Would you explain the circumstances of your
familiarity to the committee, please?

Mr. Axprews. By way of background, in June of this year, when
the Defense Department learned of this exercise, we appointed investi-
gators from the Defense Investigative Service to examine witnesses
and review records. In the course of that investigation they uncovered
a number of records which give us some indication of the scope of the
destruction program and the inventory process.

Mr. Smorners. It is that inventory process that I wish to address
now, Mr. Andrews. T believe you have in your possession a copy of a
memorandum dated February 17, 1970, entitled “Special Operations
Division Toxin Inventory” [exhibit 13 L] Mr. Andrews, you have pre-
viously seen. this exhibit, have you not?

Mr. Axprews. I have.

é\lr{; QSMOTHERS. What amount of toxin on hand does this inventory
reflect ?

Mr. Awprews. It reflects somewhat over 2 grams.

Mr. Smorarrs. Was this the inventory prepared at Fort Detrick?

Mr. AxprEws. It was.

. Mr. SmormErs. Was this inventory prepared pursuant to discus-
stons between Defense and Fort Detrick personnel requiring them to
inventory the material on hand and to ind%cate which material should
be e1ther retained or disposed of by destruction?
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Mr. AnprEws. Yes, there is actually & directive issued January 9,
1970, to the six Fort Detrick laboratories requesting a complete inven-
tory of biological agents and munitions, and the February 17, 1970,
inventory is the first step in that process.

Mr. Smormrrs. Was the spirit of this directive to identify any toxin
which may have been. in possession of Defense facilities and to be
the groundwork for a basis for destruction or retention decisions?

Mr. AxpreEws. Initially the directive was devoted to biological agents.
Subsequently there are messages requiring inclusion of toxins in the
inventory process.

Mr. Smormers. So that shellfish toxin would have been reported
pursuant to this directive ?

Mr. Axprews. That is correct.

Mr. Smoraers. Now, looking at the February 17, 1970, inventory,
I ask you whether that inventory or any other inventory of which you
have knowledge reflected an amount of shellfish toxin of 11 grams or
more in the possession of the Department of Defense?

Mr. Aworews. It does not.

Mr. Saormzers. In your opinion, would some accounting for 11 grams
of shellfish toxin have been called for by the Director?

Mr. AxprEws. I would say that inasmuch as the original directive
was issued in January and then later amended, that it should have
been reported.

Mr. SmormErs. Mr. Smothers, do your records reveal any Defense
guidance for the disposition of shellfish toxin or other substances that
were distributed outside of the Department of Defense, any guidance
regarding how a determination was to be made on disposition, how
accounting was to be handled, or any guidance at all on that subject
from Defense?

Mr. Axprews. We find no such records.

I might add to the committee that in the process of checking over
our records we located 104 boxes of records in the Suitland, Md., reposi-
tory. Four of these boxes were identified as coming from the Speciul
Operations Division; 13 more boxes referred to the demilitarization
program. We obtained this information from the inventory list, and
our investigators did examine 17 boxes to determine to what extent
records still were available to us.

Mr. SmoraErrs. Mr, Chairman, I have no further questions of this
witness.

The Cmamymaw. Do I understand, Mr. Andrews, that the DOD in-
ventory that was supplied at the time that the President’s orders to
destroy these toxins were issued, that your records do not show any
inventory in which about 11 gprams of shellfish toxin appears?

Mr. Axprews. No. I think there isa——

The CaamrMan. Well, we know there is about 11 grams in the posses-
sion of the Defense Department. Why does not any inventory show
the existence of that position which the President had ordered to be
destroyed ? .

Mr. Axorews. Well, I think there is a question of dates, and I thinlk
it is very important. On January 9 the first directive was issued ask-
ing for an inventory of biological agents and munitions, and then on
February 14 the Presidential order was handed down. Now, on Feb-
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ruary 17, apparently the first invento: ris
submitted to higher headquarters on thgsg;%l?o rere completed snd
o tThI’;eCC]_i.E:IRMAN. And that was afier the toxin had been slipped back

Mr. Awprews. That is correct. Your records indicate that on Febru-'

ary 16 there was then an unsigned memorandum containing the bot.
tom line, Mr. Karamessines; on February 17 our people We%t on recE-
ord with a report. ¥t is entirely possible that the toxins made a trans.
fer somewhere between the 16th and the 17th, probably the 16th be-
cause the 17th, if they were still in the Defense Department. posses-
sion, they should have been reported.

The Cuammax. I would have to agree to that. I think that must
have been what happened. But, it seems very strange to me that the
Inventory presented by the Defense Department should be made 1 day
aftﬁr tljfse forb1dIden toxins had been slipped back to the CTA.

r. A¥prEws. I must ini i
unusual. o say, 2s & lawyer examining a case, I find it very

The Crarraraw. Since the testimony shows that the CIA. could lay
legal claim only to 5 grams of this and witnesses have testified that the
CIA agreed to talke repossession of its 5 grams, can you account for
why nearly 11 grams turned up in the CTA laboratory ¢
. Mr. Axprews. I was not on the scene, and I cannot explain it. That
1s one version that the CTA witnesses and others have made.

I think you should bear in mind, however, that the containers con-
tamning the 11 grams also contained a notation P600.

.- The Caammarx. What did that mean ?

~ Mr. Axorews. I provided the Committee this morning with a state-

ment as to what it does mean. It is not very sexv, not very much a

James Bond matter. The Inspector General’s Office, Department of

the Army has confirmed that P800 stood for & research and develop-

ment account number. Fort Detrick used this designation to describe

the working funds used by the Special Overations Division at Fort

Detrick which had been supplied by the CIA.

tioihe CHAIRM.SN. ]t)aoeg _thattlrlnianﬁ thfen, accorc}ilirig to your interpreta-
or vour understanding, that a 1

flon or youL g. of 1t, the whole 11 grams, belonged

Mr. Axprews. That is a reasonable inference. .

The Caamrman, Your inference runs contrary to previous testimony.

Mr. Awprews. You asked for my opinion, and I do suggest that the
P800 appears on both containers.

The Cmamman. And the reasonable inference to be drawn from
that was that the whole 11 grams. not just 5 grams, belonged to the
CIA, and that amount was returned to them ?

Mr. Axprews. That is the way I would read it.

The CuAmrMAN. Thank you.

Are there further questions of this witness?

Senator Tower?

Senator Towrr. Mr. Andrews, was DOD aware of the transfer of
shelifish toxin to more than 60 individual institutions, some located
in foreign countries, including the defense establishments of some for-
elpn countries?

Mr. Anprews. This is 2 matter that we discovered during the course
of the investization, althoush the extent of this dissemination just
came to our attention when the committee advised us.

c et
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Senator Tower. From where did the authority for that dissemina-
tion come ?

Mzx. Axprews. I do not know of any express authority. As I under-
stand it, the scientific community has a way of exchanging its speci-
mens, and there is, apparently, quite an interchange,

Senator Tower. Are you suggesting this is something that was left
to the arbitrary will and discretion of perhaps a field-grade officer
or civil servant

Mr. Axprews. I do not have the answer as to where the level of au-
thority resides. I could obtain that for the record.

Senator Towzsr. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.

The Cumamrman. Senator Mathias?

Senator Marmras. Mr. Andrews, are you aware of the procedures
that were established at Fort Detrick, and I assume at other Defense
installations, for the destruction of toxins, toxic material of all kinds?

Mr. ANDREWS. Yes.

Senator MaTr1as. Could you describe those procedures?

Mr. AnprEws. Well, there are really two kinds of material. There
is the demilitarization program, which has been referred to here
earlier in your hearings, which was conducted at Pine Bluff Arsenal.
We have various documented records on that. However, the amounts of
the disposal of the toxins in the laboratory is a matter that we have
found no records of, and we do know, for example, that one of the early
inventories shows that certain toxins were to be retained for defensive
research purposes, and that certain other amounts were to be de-
stroyed. The exact amount that was used in this case I do not know.

I did ask our investigators to check with the experts as to how this
particular toxin could be destroyed, and I was told that any bunsen
burner properly applied for the right period of time would destroy
the toxin,

Senator MaTrias. Now, with regard to the procedures that were es-
tablished, was this by word of mouth, or were there carefully orga-
nized procedures and publication of orders which defailed them ?

Mr. Awprews. Yes, Senator Mathias.

I think it might be well to go over some of the major actions that
were taken by the Defense Department. Following the President’s
announcement on November 25, the Assistant Secretary of Defense for
International Security Affairs issued a memorandum on November
28 ammouncing the President’s determination. On December 17, 1969,
the Secretary of Defense issued a memorandum assigning responsibili-
ties for implementing each of the President’s decisions. On January 7,
1970, an ad hoc task force on inventory mafters was established.
On January 9 the first orders were issued to make 2 complete inventory
of bhiological weapons. Following the President’s Valentine's Day
order, as you referred to it, on February 14, the first of the inventory
reports was prepared and submitted to the Director of the Commodity
Development Engineering Laboratories on February 18, On February
17, a Department of the Armv messase was sent to Fort Detrick and
the Army Materiel Command requiring the inclusion of bulk toxins
in demilitarization plans of biological stockpiles.

. On February 20, the NSDM-44 was issued regarding the destruc-
tion of toxin agents and weapons. On February 28, this order was re-
layed to the immediate offices in the Department of Defense concerned
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with such matters. On March 18, 1970, the Assistant Scientific Director
of Defense and Engineering referred to the plans for the inventory of
toxin materials and directed disposal of all excess materials using
standard laboratory procedures.

On June 15, a White House memorandum was sent to the Secretary
of Defense requesting his recommendations for the destruction of
biological agents and weapons and toxic agents and weapons. On July
6, 1970, the Secretary of Defense reported to the President, submitting
his recommendations for carrying out the demilitarization program.
On September 3, 1970, there was a White House memorandum to the
Secretary of Defense directing an environmental impact staternent in
connection with the Pine Bluff project. '

On December 15, 1970, there was & White House memorandum sent
to the Secretary of Defense announcing the President’s appproval of
the detailed plan. On November 10, 1972, the Assistant Chief of Staff
for Force Development, Department of the Army, provided the Un-
dersecretary of the Army with a report announcing the completion
of the destruction of the entire U.S. stockpile, and also indicated, in-
cidentally, at a cost of $15 million.

On January 25, 1973, the National Security Council- Undersecre-
tary’s committee provided the President a memorandum reporting its
review on the U.S. chemical warfare and biological program, which
had been laid on them by NSDM--35.

Senator Maraias. Now, Mr. Andrews, can you tell us what happened
to those materials that you mentioned which were retained for defense
ix;'sseagrch? Did they go to Dugway, or did they go to some other labora-

Ty ¢

Mr. A~xprews, We have just made a complete inventory of all of
our facilities, and we have received reports from the Army, Navy,
and Air Force. The only facility that now has any toxins for defensive
research purposes is the Edgewood Arsenal.

Senator Matr1as. Nothing at Dugway ¢

Mr. Awprews. There is nothing at Dugway ; no, sir.

. Senator Matmias. One final question. We have discussed several
times during the hearings the materials that were sent out from Fort
Detrick for research purposes to seientists in various parts of the
world and all over the United States. Is it your understanding that
this was a common practice at Fort Detrick? .

Mr. Axprews. Based on the testimony today, it appears that it was.

Senator Matazas. I am asking if you have any imipendent knowl-
edge or any records which would mdicate it.

Mr. ANDREW‘S. In the course of our talking Lo a2 number of people
we learned this is a rather common practice in the scientific com-
munity.

Senator MaTrras. And it was not confined to shellfish toxin ¢

Mr. Anprews. No, sir, It applied to many items.

Senator Matmuas. It applied to many items that were under study
at Fort Detrick. Of course, when this pattern or practice of moving
materials of this nature was established, that made it much easier
actually o handle, disburse, and dispense these materials, because
1t was a recognized course of action. Is that not true?

Mr. Avporews. Yes. sir, that is correct.

Senator Matrias. That is all, Mr, Chairman.
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The Cramrman. Thank you very much.

Senator Huddleston?

Senator HupprLesron. Mr. Andrews, I think you mentioned that
the estimated cost of disposing of these materials was $15 million.

Mr. ANDrREWS. Yes, sir.

Senator HuppLesToxn. In your investigation, did you get any indi-
cation as to whether the suggestion or idea that the CIA. would take
possession of its stock and it would be stored away originated with the
CIA or with the Special Operations Division there at Fort Detrick?

Mr. Axprews. We received conflicting reports on that and I think
the confusion as to what happened continues. I would be reluctant
to speculate as to just how it happened. )

Senator Huppreston. Would you say that there is a tendency within
the Army and maybe within other agencies of Government to treat
requests from the CIA. differently than you would treat requests from
other agencies or other departments?

Mr. Axprews. I have been the recipient of very few CIA requests
until recently. They are not known for their loquaciousness. Since
the investigation has been conduected, I must say, they have been most
helpful and there has been a full and frank exchange, I think, between
this committee, between the CIA, and between the Defense Depart-
ment. But T have some hesitancy In answering your question, because
I just do not have enough experience as to what the response has been
to CIA requests. I think the Pentagon is a pretty big department and T
do not think we are easily impressed.

Senator Hupprnesron. What do you think of the testimony by Mr.
Senseney that while he had questions about not getting any feedback
from the use of material that he had developed, he was never com-
pelled to ask those questions. Is this typical of desling with the CIA
on the part of the Army?

Mr. Axprews. I do not know whether it 1s typical of the Army. I
think the CIA has in the past conducted its operations in such a way
that there be a minimal amount of information flow back from them.
I think thisis consistent with their strategy.

Senator HuppresTow. So that was to be expected. And even though
a person may have questions, even though the request may be some-
what strange, the general procedure would be jusl to carry it out
without going beyond the order itself?

Mr. Anprews. I can assure you in the Defense Department that
we have examined very carefully into our working relationships with
all Government agencies. We have reviewed this extensively in terms
of detailing of people to ue and detailing of people to the other
agencies, and I think that we are very aware of our responsibilities.

Senator Huppreston. This review and this examination has been
recent.

; Mr, Axprews. It has been before this particular investigation broke
orth.

Senator Houppreston. There was no hestitancy on the part of the
Army to accept, for instance, a false name to identify CIA participa-
tion? Bven on this particular project that we are talking about they
were identified as being an officer support group.

Mr. Axprews. That 1s my understanding as it existed in 1970.
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Senator Hunpreston. And this was no problem for the Arm:
this particular division even though m&Iz)ly of them knew thya.,tori;hfgr
were in fact dealing with the CIA ¢ y

Mr. ANDREWS: As the CIA reported to you, this was a most com-
partmented project, even under CIA standards. And in the course of
our investigation we had a great deal of difficulty defining who the
players were and where they belonged. So T can well understand the
lack of certainty by the Detrick people as to who they were talking to

Senator Hupouesrow. But this was accepted practice? Tt was not
great concern of theirs apparently. ’

Mr. Axprews. I would just have to fudge that apparently it was an
accepted practice because it continued during that period.

Senator Huvpreston. They were operating in a highly sensitive
a highly secret, highly classified area, one demanding great securit—y’
and yef they were dealing with people who were there wunder false
credentials, so to speak, and this was acceptable to them.

Mr. Awprews. T understand that is the nature of some of the op-
eras,tmn%) -

cnator Huppreston. Thank you, sir. Thank you, Mr. i

The Cramemax. Senator Schweiker? you, ir. Chatoman.

Senator Scmwerker. Thank you. Mr. Chairman.

First of all, did you find any of the records of contracts besides the
one of the $194,000 from Army to the Taft Center?
foyéieﬁﬁfiggﬁwt% IGhave 111’0t _;%at, but T have 1aid on the requirement

ctor Geners, 1t i
o s P s office to develop any additional informa-
thSen:a,tor Scaweiker. The other can or 1id label would indicate that
ere 1s some arrangement. because it said on the label of the second
ggrlll O‘Ez;oﬂ]n;xg F?I?(?{; Invesg)gai&iron”. which would indicate that would
! nclattre that vour bookkeepin, tem just i ig-
ingl memo. Would that be correct orpnof ?sys Just duoted tn the orlg

Mr. Axorews. I would assume so; ves.

Senator Scmwerser. All right, now vou said a moment ago that
basically, Mr. Andrews, this transfer might have taken place on the
16th or 17th of February and that is why it did not show up #

Mr. Anprews. That is one possibility and T might add this and this
mght help the committee, although it mayv only comnound the con-
fusion. The memorandum which you have identified, the so-called
unsigned Karamessines memo vou have identified as being written
on February 16. When we obtained our copy of that from the CIA
it did not contain a date on it. Perhans you gof another cony. So we
;ﬂ;&;‘g rig i;,]llqe Saj?k}‘) so to spga,k, as to when the memo was written. Ag-

at Februa is Tig is yes;

Ehat 1t homaned (e lgh} is right, then mv answer to you is yes;
posrins?}bfor SCHWEtUI\;ER. }I)\'}”ow}rl, the inventorv that von tnok and the re-
ows, was taken by the Arm ' i [

N A tak sir.y y on February 17, is that correct?

Senator ScEweker. The other dav at the committes hearing, we
looked at this nicture of the Jabels together. and the can label shows
an_inventory date of February 18, 1970. Now that would certainly
indicate to me that somebody missed = day in inventory and it was
mventoried a day after the other materials and probably in building
202 in that same vault. So it would indicate to me that the material

s
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probably did not leave Fort Detrick at that point since the inventory
date wasa day after the inventory.

Mr. Axprews. Senator Schweiker, I had never seen that picture
until the other day. I did not realize there was a February 18 date
on it.

Senator ScuwrIger. Al right.

M. Axorews. I would agree that that just adds to the confusion
agzain.

gSenafcor Scrrwriker. The other thing that adds to the confusion is
that the Army has an annual report dated June 1969 in which they
show an inventory of their stock items, and there is 5.193 grams on
the Army’s own inventory at that point. This is not 3 grams or 2.8
ams, but the exact amount of one of these cans. So I would hope

that in your ensuing investigation you would take into account this

sumamary report, the working fund investigation of some 5.19 grams.
Can you shed any light on that?

M. Axprews. Let me consult with the investigator to try to shed
some light on this.

Wo have noted that the figure in the 1969 report which you have
just referred to also is the same figure that appears on the Karames-
sines unsigned memorandum. Now, we do not know the answer but
there is the possibility that the Karamessines memorandum merely
took the 1969 inventory report and put it in their memorandum. I am
sure that the stockpile probably changed, may have changed, during
the course of that period of time.

Senator Scewemker. That might also indicate that only 5.19 was
in fact, the CTIA quantity. I think you can read that meaning two
ways. Tt could indicate that that was the CIA amount and we still
have not accounted for the other 6 grams, although I agree that is
just speculation.

Mr. Axprews. I will admit that we have generally had people refer
to the CIA. stockpile. They have not referred to it as the CIA stock-
piles, plural.

Senator Scawerker. You have, as T understand it, an ongoing -
vestigation in this matter, is that correct

Mr. AnprEWs. Yes, we have.

Senator ScEwEIKER. I see also on the same cans that the inventory
date is in a personal handwriting and it seems to me that one of your
obvious checks is to find out who it was that inventoried both cans
on February 18 and why he or she did not, in fact, put it on the 17th
list and why he or she did not report it upon the chain of command,
Whoever wrote that invenfory date in personal handwriting
would obviously know why the material was not disposed of in the
proper channels. So I would like to suggest, for your investigation,
that a check be run of who with that handwriting was in the lab and
had access to the vault, because that person could certainly shed an
awful lot of light on what happened in this regard.

Mr. AxprEWs. Senator Schweiker, we would be very happy to work
with the committee staff in developing any further facts that will be
of assistance to this committee. .

Senator Scawriker. Allegedly only two or three people had access
to the safe, so it would not be very hard to find out whose handwrit-
ing it was.
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That is all T have, Mr. Chairman, thank you.

The Cramman. Thank you, Senator Schweiker.

I want. to say that since this discovery the Defense Department has
been very cooperative, as indeed the CTA has been, in trying to piece
together what happened. And we will pursue these lines of mvestiga-
tion through the stafl in hopes that we might complete the picture.
And T want to thank you and others in the Defense Department for
the cooperation that you have extended to the committee.

Senator Huopreston. Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask for one
clarification that I think cught to be on the record.

The Casmryman. Senator Huddleston ?

Senator Huppresron. Mr. Andrews, you referred to your receiving
the Karamessines unsigned memorandum and I presume you meant
that you received it during the course of your current investigation,
and not back in 1970 at the time it was purportedly wriiten.

Mr. AnpreEws. That is correct. This is a very new ballgame for us,

Senator Huppugstown. I think that ought to be made clear.

The Crammaw. X thank the Senator for clarifying that item.

Mr. Axorews. On the part of the Department of Defense, I want
to say that I think this committee has operated in a very responsible
manner and the Department of Defense,li hope, has been very respon-
sive to your needs.

The Crarraar. Thank you very much.

Now, earlier today I read info the record a letter by which the
Committee would waive the ban that presently prevents the executive
branch from disposing of these toxins. Members of the committee have
suggested some changes which have been incorporated in the text of
the letter, and I would like to read the revised letter and bring it to
the vote of the committee.

As revised, the letter reads:

Dear Mr. Colby:

Last January when the Senate Select Commitiee was created, Senator Mans-
field and Senator Seoti asked that the Central Intelligence Agency not destroy
any material that would relate to the committee’s investigation. The toxins that
are the subject of the committee’s first public hearivgs are subject to the ban
on destruetion,

_The purpose of this letter is to inform you that at the completion of the com-
mibtee’s investigation into the jmproper retention by the CIA of the deadly toxins,
the committee voted to waive further interest in these toxic materials. However,
before the CTA proceeds to destroy these toxins, we would direct your attention
to the attached testimony.

If adequate safety and security cautions comid be taken, and if it is consistent

with our treaty obligations, the Committee believes that it might be appropriate
for the CIA to consider donating these toxins fo properly supervised research
facilities which can use these poisons for benign uses such as curing such debili-
tating diseases as multiple sclerosis.
. It is fitting ihat ont of an admified wrongdoing, some benefit might be had. It
is hoped that in this particular instance the Committee and the Executive Branch
reach a mutual solution for disposal of these lethal poisons that wil be directed
toward bettering the lives of our citizens.

Senator Tower. Mr. Chairman, I move that the committee waive
further interest in the toxic materials and that the letter be anthorized

The Craxrmax. Ts there any objection ?

[ No response.]

The Crarmmay. T would ask for the vote of the committee. Those in
Tavor of the motion, please indicate by raising your right hand.

187 i

[Show 0% hands.% vor Baker by p
L OWER. Denator Baker by proxy., ;
%i%agliz\mmm Other members have indicated that they contur

with this vote and it is therefore the unanimous decision of the com-
mittee. The letter will be signed. Doyou have a pen, Senator?

T would like to conclude the hearing this morning by noting that
the committee’s investigation into the 11 grams of shellfish toxin may
have reminded some of H. G. Welles’ comment on the American novel-
ist Henry James. He described him as a hippopotamus rolling a pea.
However, a more discerning look into the CLA vault of poisons opened
this week brings to light a series of problems which go far beyond
this single cage. ) ) _ ]

Like other examples discovered in previous executive sessions, and
which continue to emerge from the ongoing investigation of the com-
mittee, the case of the shellfish toxin illustrates how elusive the chain
of command can be in the intelligence community. It underscores
dramatically the necessity for tighter internal controls for bebter
recordkeeping, for greater understanding of code words, compart-
mentation and the whole range of secrecy requirements. Above all, 14
emphasizes the necessity for improved mechanisms of accountability,
all the way from the White House to the outer branches of the intelli-
gence establishment. . . .

The dilemmas which have surfaced in this week of hearings repre-
sent, in miniature those which will confront us throughout these pro-
ceedings. Their resolution, will surely test the ingenuity of those en-
gaged in this undertaking. Qur success will require diligent research,
persistent investigation, a series of intensive hearings and. the most
careful study and reflection. This is our mandate and this is our

urpose. ]
P Tge hearings will now stand adjourned subject to the call of the

Chair. ] )
[Whereupon, at 1 p.m., the committee adjourned, subject to the call

of the Chair.]
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HEARINGS EXHIBITS !

ExHmIT 1

Atiechment D

UENORANDUM FOR: Director of Central Intellizence

GUBSECT :  Contingency Plan for Stocitpile of
Blologica) Varfare Agents

1. ©n 25 Bovember 13838, President Hiron ordered ihe"
Department of Lofense o rocommend nlsns for the disposal
ol exlsting stocks of bacteriologicsl weppons. {On 14
#ebruarky 19790, he included fll foxin wespons.)

2. On 13 Javnunry 1970, the Speclal Cperstions Division
of Fort DIetrick, Maryland prepared a roesuestesd cgent inven-
tory, lesy toxins, snd gubmitted it {0 ihe Scieutiic
Director, Fort Detrdick, 7This inventqry ¥as a requared input
to ossist tho Commanding Officer, Ft. Detrlek lo prepere
B Comprehensive plon Zar demilitearizstion on site of nll
biological sgepiz/munitions which mye stockpiled in support
of operatiornal plenos.

3. Under nn ¢sinblished nxreement with {he Department
of the Army, the CIA has a limited auantiiy of biolezicnl
reetts and toxins atored sng weintniped by the 0 Dividion
a1 Ft. feirick. Thi= gtockpile did not appear on the inven—
tory list. The agents ond toxins are:

Agents;
1. weilius anthraels (anthrax) — 100 rrems
2, Pasteurella tularensis {(tulsremiz) -~ %9 grams

3. Verezuelsn Equine Encephrlicmyelitis virum
(cncephalitin) -~ 20 urams

4. Coceidicides immiiis {(valley Iover) =~ 20 zrops
3. Drucells suals (brucellosisg) -~ 2 to 3 grans

8, DBrucells wmelitensis (brucellosig) « 2 Lo 3
[ =113 A =

RFT ! P’ﬁ)ﬁ%- Lycobreterium tuberculosis (tuberculosis) -
} 5 prams *
AMIG 28 197n ’

LA

—
! Under eriteria determined by the Committee, in consultation with the White House, the Department

efense and the Central Intelligence Agency, teriain materials have been deleted from those doecn-
ments, some of which were nrevionely Aloooifiad bn onatuan® 7 ¢ - ¢ b
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Salmonelln typhimurium (food polsoning) -
10 grams-

Salmonella typhimurium (chlormne reqibtant)
(food poisoning) -~ 3 grams

Variola Virus {(smallpox) - 30 grams

Toxins:

1.

8,

Staphylococeal Enterctoxin (food poisoning) -
10 pgrams

Clostridium botulinum Type A {(lethal food
poisoning) - 5 grams

IParalytic Shellfish Poison - 5.193 grows

Bungarus Candidis Venom {(Krait) (lethal snake
venon) - 2 grams

Microcystls zeruginosa toxin (intestinal flu) -

25 myg
Toxiferine (paralytic effect) -~ 100 mg

This stocxpile capability plus some research effort in
delivery systems is funded at $75,000 per annun.

4. In the event the decisicen is mnde by the Depariment
of Defense to dispose of existing stocks of bacteriological
weapons, 1t is possible that the CIA's stockplle, even
though in RE&ED quantities and unliisted, will be destroyed.

5. If the Director wishes to continue this specianl
capabliity, it is recommended that if the above DOD declsion
is made, the existing agency stockpile at 80 Division, Fi.
Detrick be transierred to the Huntingdon Resesrch Center,
Becton—DiChlnson Lompany, Bezltimore, karyland. Arrwn"ements
‘have been made for this contingency and zssurances have been
given by the potentizl conirasctor to store snd maintain the
egeney's stockplle nt 2 cost no greater than $75,000 per

annum.

“ROM
G 131975

LA

Thomas II. Karamessines
Deputy Director for Plans

PRI
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SUBJECT: Contingency :*lun for Stockplle ol
Blological Yarfare Agents

TSD: wjc (16 February 1970)

Distribution:
Orig - Addressgsee
I = /T30
1 - C/18D/CB




ExHIBIT 2

INVENTORY OF LETHAL AND INCAPACITATING AGENTS
FOUND AT A GIA BUILDING (excerpted
’ from CIA Inventorv)
Material Class Quantity Characteristics Dose

EETHAL AGENTS:

Saxitoxin " Lethal 11.405 gr* Highly lethal nerve
(shellfish toxin. Attacks eardio-
toxin) vascular, respiratory,

nervous, and muscle sys-
tems. Death in seconds.

Cobra wvenom Lethal 8 mg. Lethal nerve toxin; at- 7 g,
tacks nervous system.
‘ Fzench com- Lethal 1.83 gr. Highly lethal less than ot
pound .1 omg., o
. b
Aconitum Lethal 2 gr. Lethal in overdose 20-40 ml.
Ferox ex-
Eract
Aconitine Lethal .5 oz, Lethal
Vitxate
F-270 Lethal 1l ce
Colchigine Lethal 8 gr, Lethal in overdase; 7 mg.

death via muscular
paralysis and respira-
tory fatlure.

Strychnine Lethal 5 gr. Lethal; attacks neuro-
musculary system.

*10.927 gr. of the total were trasferrad from.Ft. Detrick to a CIA Building sometime in

ebruary : the remaindexw { ThLoXimatal a EV1igl ean rvere Q
Feb 1970 h ind a taly .5 or. h r u e
d sty b delivered to the

i o = e . i s i DR

TIYERTIORY {Con'r.)

Material Class Quantity Charagteristics Rose

LETHAL AGENTS:
Cyanide -
piils Lethal 10 pills Lezhal. Blocks 1 pir:
| S e
FIsH TOXIN Lethal 3 ceo. Highly Toxic less than 1 mg.
‘B HARDWARE;

36/06 micro-

missle cars- Incapacitate
ridges (con- degs for 4-6 hours.
taining dog Lethal Lethal in man
tranquilizer) Incap. 38

=

[fo]
E-4540 Inecap. o

Lethal 10 oval
capsitles Dog incapacitant 100-360 mg
fLethal in man {dog)
{same doses lethal
in man}

Z-1 dart Incap. Dog incapacitant
layneher with
nissles
(zongaining E- Lethal 10| 3ws/ Lathal in man "
i540) dart)
4 pistols
~2 dart launchers range
~1 .22 cal: with range
dart firing attach-
ment

~1 micromissie ranga




' INVENTORY (con't.}

MHaterial Class Quanglty Characteristics Dose

IMCAPACTITANTS:

BZ Incap. 16 1bs. Incapacitant which
Lethal can also be lethal
Blocks nerve ragponses
in sentral and autononmic
nervous gystcems

Carbachol Incap. 1 kg. Causes f{lushing, colic, .25 mg
diarrhea, salivatian,
nauses
EA 3167 Incap. 200 mg. Similar to BZ onset
Lethal of effects longer anad

effects last longer.

E& 3442 Incap. & gr. similar to BEZ effects
last shorter time

SALMOKELLA Incap. 50 mg Intestinal inflammacion
a) 8. enteri- Lethal and dysentery micrograms
ditis
) abortus Incap.
Lethal 48 mg. Causes abortion in animals
TACRIN Incap. 123 gr. Causes nausea and vomitiag
HALOTHANE Inecap. 19 bottles @
125 cc each  Anesthetie with less odor
N “‘;':?F.‘.-'i’r:': 't~—"—: . than etheror chioroform
L] -
INVENTORY (con't.)} . L
Material Class Quantity Characteristics bose
Mephenesin Incap. y oz, Muscle relaxant
2-1 pyrolo Incap. i0 gr. Causes temporary
’ amnesia
Hycscine Incap. Blocks autonmic

nervous system reactions

.
.

M-216 Incap. 15 gr. Produces paralysis
Desmebthoxy
Resperpine Fncap. 100 tablets Lowers blood pressure
. 1 mg/tablet Overdose causes savere .25-.5 mg
mental depression
5-241 Incap. 1 gr. BZ-like action
Ovabin Incap. 11 gr. . Cardiac stimulant .3-.5 mg

even more potent than
Digitoxin~~faster
onset, shorter duration
IV only

5-341 Incap. 1 gr. BZ~1ike only more effective

F6I

G61




INVENTORY {con't.) -

Material Class Quantity Characteristics Dose
INCAPACITANTS:
BZ HCL inecap. 20 gr. Same ag Bi--water
Lethal soluble form

COGENTIN Incap. 26 tablets . wide range of debilitative,.5-.6 mgz

s . ¢ 2mg. each physiological effects
ERGOTRATE incap. 10 gr. Oxyftoxie. Used in
MALCATE . Obstetriecs to promote

uterine contractions

COLCHICINE Incap.

Lethal 8 gr. Incapacltant. Overdoes 1 mg. 7=y
leads to death vila para- . [«
lysis and resplratory lethal dose-~7 mg
failre

DIGITOXIN Incap. 5 gr. Heart stimpulant. Overdose 1.2-1.5 mg
can result in death
CINCHONINE Incap. 2 gr Antimalarial., OQOverdose
leads to severe cardiac
convulsions, nausea, and
vomiting
DEHYDROACETIC .
ACID incap. X ogr. Impairs kidney function
and causes vomiting
and convulsions
s i it et N . ——
L]
INVENTORY (con't.) - -
Material Class Quantity Characteristics Dose
. .
S 340 Incap. 1 gr. BZ-like
Pi . aa ‘ =
negg{clldlne Incap. 10 gr. Causes disorienta- ~
Lethal tion. High dosage
leads to convulsions
. and death
Tetrol Incap. 50 mg narcotic
Neurokinin Incap. 50 ml

Produces severe pain
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EXHIBIT 3
18 Febimary 1970

PARALYTIC SHELLYISI FOISON -
WORKIGG FUiD IMVESTIGATIONS

Scfe Bi72C3, Room 202

W.5.PLILS, , Talt Center, Cinelunatl, Chio, product as Lollows:

GROUT 1 - 1OT8 5, 6, & 7 - See Hotebook CDAGGO, page 149.

Vial 1 47
Virl 2 65
Vial i 210
Yinl 4 L2325
Vial 5 L2727
Viel 6 TG
Vigl 7 L2030
Vial & 248
Vial 3 .186
visiia o

LoTAL 2.2m)

" GROUP 2 - Lo 10

Visl 1 L2 pn
Vial 2 A3 e
Vial 3 ack T
Vial 4 L1683
Yinl 5 ALS
¥izl ¢ LAED g
¥ial 7 2182 g
Visl 8 173 e
TUTAL 1,55 gus

CROYE 3 - 107 2

Vinl 1 149
Vial 2 LG
Vial o 209
Vial 4 230
Viel 5 Y

TOTAL  1.033

GROUP & -~ LOT 9

Yial 1 161

v
E]
m
[
iRy
sl
g
L
i

19
]
["ITI
Lm

5

g

G

TOTALS added:

e
pr)
oy

=3

[T Ty I

Hortheast Shellfish Sanitatifon Center, U.5.7.1.8

product ax follows:

Bateh VIia
Bagelh VILX
Tiateh IX
Doteh X & XI
Latch XY Supplement
Natch 31
Lateh V & VI1b
Patch VI
Bateh JII
TOTAL

200.3 mg

PARALYTIC SHELLYISIE POISON -
WORKING FUND INVESTIGATIONS

Safe B172C3, Room 202

0.490
0.530
0.554
1.23%

L5
.

o
[t}
~

l‘

Ll so il R I )

© 190 mg of liquid material fairnished b
product). Sece Netebook CD44G3, page

199

13 February 1970

-+ Narregansett, R, X.,

-

TOXIFERINE DYCILORIDE

-,

R PR

-

th

¥. Working Funds {probably Edgewsod
148,
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EXHIBIT 4
FOR MAMEBEDIATE RELEASS NOVERDELR 25, 1950

Offite of the while Flouze Freas Secretary
i 1 ko e 0 08 B e 4 oA B 1 g S8y o B0 e o R e o 8 ke e e e
. . . :

) . TH‘:‘ ST BOUST .
STATEMENT RBY THE FRIE EEJ.)‘“T\J' T

. . - R B

Soon a{tex t'\’:_'.n;r; office I directsd a com-:-vh«n:: o study of our chemical and
biolegicsl dafonse phlicics end pmﬁram.,. Thest kad becn 1o such reviaw in
sever fficon yravs, Leo a rocult, ohiectives and policies in this field were

progTams ,..-_clu::n dc,‘.’inﬁ&ion and diyection,

Under the ._u‘.p-ccs of the National Szeurily Gouncil, the Depariments of Slate
and Defense, the Arms Control and Disarmarasnt Agency, the Olfice of Scien:
and .r.cch"nloj:y, fho Intellizonce Commmunily zad cther ""”‘11510 woiked elozel
together on' this shudy for qvcr sl morithe, ch" gcrva yment eiforts wene
afded by contributions from the seiepfific commmuily through the Pr csitgntis
Scientiiic Advisory Gommittee, >

Thic siedy Tae now boen complc.r.d 12
Nationsl 5 ::cugcz.ty Couneil, I = Row X

ons talion on the hasd

of this review, e : '
Ghenical Warfaze Program ) o

. H
43 & our chemicel warfare pxo;_, 2, Hhe Unifed States
TR o S ortmre of ; .
ovo tire Realfivms its oft-repocted reaunciztion of the fivst use
: of lcd 2l chamical wenpons, o .

- ™o . P " s s
D 0 D .- == Bxtends this reawnciztion to the fHrst ure of incapoeitating

chemicals,

v £

ith fhuse decis
ce il conse
pro..:\..;l" ar frst vge
:::[ Batterioles: sienl kY
the

003, the -“.c‘:nwi:-.;‘:::.n_.x a will selenit fo the
L)

o to ratifie The u..z:: o 1=:~c:o:.:-‘

and oy

the wae S Do o =

Atlachment 1

Yinlopicel Rase

o T

1)"cc1s;'-dcrc:1 by il

i

sonrrm -

al wetpons hove wassive, vhoreddctable and poténtially Gneon:
. ics and impair Lhc hc:*.l hol

Jialeg
conzequences, They meay produce global epidem
fulure generaiions, I have thoerefoze decided thats

- - .. PR T SV aganlme,
and wuspons, and all afher methods of bislogient wariaze,

!
b
'
—- Phe U,5, shall rensunce e use of Jothal ¥ologicl agents i
e el
A
- The T.5. vnll confina its biolegical rescoreh to delensive
. measures cueh a6 xmmuu..::;‘lw'l and safety measures.

~~ The DOD haz been asked to raalie recommendations as to B
the dispasal of weisiing stocks of baclciz.clo,_,- :’-J- NFROPONT.
In the spirit of these t."c:'-.sio—ns, the Un- ed Sintes ascociates itself with the
pnn':mleb and objectives of the United Kirgdors Droft Convention which w UUl.ﬂ
ban the use of onlaﬂxc._.l rontheds of warinre, Weo will sock, however, to
elarily specific provisions of the dyalt to assure that necessary safegusyds

aroincluded,

. L ~

Iaither our association with tho Cum'c::tvc-v nes the lm? txn;_,r of our pragr‘.m ]
research il Ieave vs vulnzrable te surprise by an suziny who does not obsez-
these rational restraints, Our in tellirence comrnunity will continue to watch
carefuily the natuze zmc} exient of the biclegical programs of cthiors,

These important decisions, which have beon announced today, have been t"'tc'at
2s an indtdative toward pease, Monidnd air zdy carries in its ¢wn hands too
many of the seads of its own destruction, Dy the examples we st today, we
hope to contritute to an a.‘:aospncxc of pratn ;u:.rl undersianding bc.‘..wefn\ miion
2nd among men. : - . .

JECENEn Rom

RT3

bop




202

ExmBrir 5

IO RELAALY AT G0 1 M, BET
Qifice of i \"h'l K
(NRey

FLERULIY 14, 1970

s Sacrelary

Floxid, } -

- On Novarsher 25, 1969, the President renovrced ol offensive preparations
for and any vse by the Uniied Sintes of biclepicnl or Yacteriolugient
and woipo . r. Sinte ihat decizion, »4the droeilon of the Prosidens, a
corprebensive review of United States policy and milits
toxing hus been in progress,

s
NS

Toxins ure chemical cubstances, noi living oryps ni smis, and are so reghvded
by the U, N, Sccratary Genesal g and The W ortd Iieakth Orgamization. Althergh
the effects of some texing are commmonly dercvibed as di o, they ore not
capable of reproducing themsidlvesd and arve not transmissible from cue porson
to another.

Eowever, the productien of tuxing in any significant grantily w
facilities similer (o those needed for the produciioa of biologicrl
the United States continved fo operaic sueh fmcilitics, it weuld ba cmf:\cxl\. for
others to know vhicther they '\n'c*‘e being used to provvee only toxing but not
biciogical egents. Mozcower, though tosias of tic type uscinl for wmilita y
purpeses conld conecivibly be produced by ehemical snylhesis in the fnlure,
the end producis would be the stme and their offects would Lo indistinguishable
from toxins produecd by brcte criological or othier biclogical processes,
Accordingly, the President has gqcmc.\ thots

- The United S\.: te
2nd the wae

reporaces offensive preparations for
fare:

io xing as a melhod of dar

b r r . . ’ v
i The United Staies will confine ite milifary programs

Fra
for toxinz, whether produced by bacterielogical or any
R oihier biclogicul method or by ¢hemicz] vynthesis, to
. research for defenzive purposcs anly, such 25 o
,] t} LJ improve ques of inrnunization and medicdl therapy.

The President Las fnrl‘n-r Girectod e destyuction of 211 exis
and af 11 on Lo of tening Lhich are noet yeq

prosvews Doy delonaive wviong: ¢ aly,

o toxin weopons
vedd for o vevepveh

Attachment 2

FY progrius concurniuy

s

203

lete vl
iy cither huclerviedap?
e of i)r(-r.ucu‘!;;

v nu need fo c,\'-----m- aly fo L rapnlde of

’
slogizelly in grant

s il

’L}N-r(.t-.\“r nlae ol n-. gical agenis,

cdre in odoerd
atut,  Thege deodnivae
e of ke
hotie of

These decizisns hove heen nlan with foll confideaee
with the overall secarity J'cql'u:r-nw g of {ae United &
2lon vader)ing the United Stoies svpport fur the priteinle
United Binplot: Draft Convention for e Proliibition of Izl

ant obioe
epizol A

The United Stetez Jm-\c{: that other nations will Jollow ¢ur exavople w

zul and Loxin weapons, . .

1o beib biolos

3 3 FIyos N isl ven e

The renuncintion of toxin weapons is ‘mor'hr_r gigmificant step, which we are

r ] - - - . 4 3 [T0d

- willing to take wnilaterally, fo bring abowt arms coutrol and o inexeasc Lhe
prospacis of peace.
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EXHiBrr 6 :

Ly

25 atoner JUGT

o Chkal, W

T LRIAQAT: Fundiog, Uojostlvag, tudd Accorolizhisacs

e (he Tusic omml crvendhiusng I
Yaoas Loern CAINEALSNY, b 590,000 1L th
Lo yuwr Dor sy rd lige dnvestirations 4
ayomd these ralleipated. Cuonle
CFE 1065 $I10,G00 fn FY 2967,
1s 475,000,

LRl WL Lig

Do

: SRRV
S tero HLU,G3SU Iy

) allobeenl o By

2o Oh e

fa Fo provide for o covert Sunsovt i
Opereblonal reguiresenga.

2 b el elondesnlne
L. o ntoditpile Sevepely Incapaclbiting ol Lot
Tor the nneelile wwa of Sop.
€. T madainin ia operatlonal mandlvesn seoelyd
dicny sor the dissenlaatica of Blologicel md ehoniesl

saboericls

ds Yo provius for the requirsd survalllames wasiiag, werreddng,

el evaluation of Ld3 and fboms Iy griap L] Uel] wen el

« dnloeks md complaie sredictabilty of resulis to b cirechod undor
oseracional coudlticns.

L o

ol Gonds: e Dave o el wlcasaly el o ueridng
2 Lull rapnz of Ialowrsilion on techn ul,
ond el bios sudinbls to mesd onbicia
el aion by, ond D aediviby hos Laen
end Sz surrently held eb un abgolutn basic tuspart e
is orlenbed 6 malntenones of o staie of orerntienal aeudine
Zelucted materials and menng Tor thelr delivery, Tz euzront reorsam

o tunded yprovideg o Teservolr of reseacch mod develagasent ccr:r_r»:‘f:cuc-:yz
FRop -

,

T

o

H

gt

realagk erops and caunsing severe orop 303% have besn
fevnlusted under fisld corlitions. Thls wuns oeo « n
/zmtlcn of a requirzment whick later develoged lut uzd swbseonently

r!'. ol

.
Y

AM2L-

rd o Lhe wwewds of the Clondasiline

i avalinbls bo 1%
Army funds avillablo 1%,
rh o peeserye o enswdllLky
e Rlomdestine Servlew
‘eenrsn, unee dispersed,

1 Zor viavlllby ol o
fen ragquized, ilone of the
sourde oad can enly W prodused In
aoiltiy exisbing dn Fove Dedrick,

A oxlng ope eld in o
111 Le anyuhene e : .
rroved Sinbiliby ond rasiss ;i 5 53 vainra

roical rmbeclalds and whieh con bR Lncerpom
Ircludz aloute Tragtle devices srd o

H 1 gy ey 3t Sy oraul g

e, reritdicadly Lo assure reliabildsy @ e e e : 3

to ""‘ce-r‘.::tln thelr 2{l2ctivenesa amd suliebillly of losmilug od coatlng
R neir a{lzetl

nICCCEERI, oz ke many deliversr systomg Bell

atndds

nio fhe Inunchoers, =
fo curplaes and rliled; add onkleson @l 1
Viarlous configersiions ore Leloyg wppreded as wark of nproluch
namnb progyet. -

G. # nondiscerndble mlerveiolacenlabor has Laon
especially for use by the Clondesting Saivices ond b ;
suscrasiully. The dlzseminabiug device L neouexbe ob
230 Toub ond hws o very low nound Jevel. A very
(+015 inoh dlameter) corxying o .5 nmm losd siml cor Loz,
in o ocolse=Tree dlsseminator bas Deen devaliped. To2aks harra
Iooven 1ty feasibllity and practioality for wsz ol n %o 50-_9;;:1-..
Furiher Lmprovesenis must be carxiod oub Taiore we 4l hate o resdye
To=g0 syston.

rlng used

To Three ceibods and systems Tor eprrying oub . eurerh

corubped just prior to putting into nction,
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24 L N -
e In nnkicdpution of a nture need forinfocraiisa o
wahs »‘-)_t,j..;}': @ (:.:cmili.b;r, 3 atudy o the vilaesiblity of ol
sy&tems VO eoverd athack and daveloment of o usihad o "~.1J.""‘f it suen
23 aLbnell vl conduciod. The :‘.ki’"a""“‘dr £y
m.sl revralaaiod LO"“""..}' aslidedng the Uaw Pork Gl o
Trial pedel. Srovrided dafsvumcion oo o
ecentrakhlons of nr_,.m._.afﬂs saish ruem ohiud
Czaas of csmasalng Hhs Unsab of infectian to s
study yravlied o 1:1 el wetlel and Informatlen o4 .
ard ebhods of dalivery whlch could Te used oifens)

LTI

Q. Lo i.r'_" 1o 57 1965 i3 Ledng restricted o maiuber:
hiokoel L._‘! steckoliz and of on ogerakional ;‘:whr'-*;s o
Alussminntion '“f'-hﬂ':\‘ Sor ciwalsad zad biokacical
voarying reaeiions aed nebivities. Taher
clapy will be cordvebed of n new, ni
A hich fuws Beda deivopsieatad o be caomd
ataricls through .,.“hc clotiring suscuinnecyaly,
gllently withoud valn,

PR “‘QM..._‘:,*, und

Chlaf
- oan/adologiesl Noench

Dlsbributlon;
1~ /frsn
1 - Chrono

S A ——

i
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EXHIBIT 7

NATIONAL SECURITY COUNCIL
WASHINGTON, 1 C. 20506

November 25, 1969

ot .

Mational Security Decision Memorandum 35

TO: The Vice President

The Secretary of State

The Sceretary of Defense

The Director, Central Intelligence Agency

The Directar, Arms Control and Disarmament Apency

The Director, Qffice of Emergency Preparcdness

The Dircctor, Office of Seience and Technolopy
SUBJECT: United States Policy on Chemical Warfare Program
and Bacteriological/Biclogical Research Program

Following consideration by the Nationzl Security Council, the President
has decided that:

1. The ¢crm Chemical and Biclogical Warfare (CBW) will no longer
be used. The refercuce henceforth should be to the two categories
separately -~ The Chemical Warfare Program and The Biological
Research Program.

2. With respect to Chaermical Warfare:

-~ a. The objective of the U. 8. program will be to deter the use
of chemical weapons by other nafions and fo provide a
retaliatory capability if deterrence f{ails.

. b The renunciation of the first use of lethal chemical weapons
is reaffirmed.
c. This renunciation is hereby applied to incapacitating
chemical weapons as well,
d. This renunciation does not apply to the use of riot control

agents or herbicides., A special NSDM en auLhorlzauon\for[-

their use will be issued. l;: : oo
PR LI 1 . N

BT SR U]

Nse
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The Seerctary of Defense, in cooperation with the
Director of the QOffice of Science and Technology, shall
continue to develop and improve controls and safety
measures in all Chemical Warfare programs.

The Under Sceretaries Committee shall conduct an annual
review of United States Chemical Warlare programs and
public information policy, and will make recommendations
to the President.

With respect to m.unnnHmoHommnPH\mmoHomwan programs:

Aa.

b.

Ce

c.

The United States will renounce the use of lethal micthods
of bacteriological/biological warfare.

The United States will similarly renounce the use of all,
other methods of bacteriolegical/biclogical warfure {for
example, incapacitating agents).

The United States Lbacteriological/biological proegrams

will be confined to rescarclh and development [or defensive -
purposes (Lmmunization, salety mcasurcs, cf ceteral.

This does not preclude rescarch into these oflfensive

aspects of bacteriological/biolopical agents necessary

to determine what deflensive measures arec required.

The Sccrelary of Defense will submit recommnendations
about the disposal of existing stocks of bacteriological/
Liological weapons.

The United States shall associate itsclf with the

principles and objectives of the Draft Convention
Prohibiting the Use of Biological Mothods of Warlare
presented by the United Kingdom at the Eighteen-Nation
Disarmament Conference in Geneva, on 26 August 1969,
Recommendation as to association with specific pro-

visions of the Draft Convention should be prepared by

the Sceretary of State and the Director of the Arms

Contrel and Disarmament Agency, in coordination with
olher interested agencies, for the President's considcration.

209

f. The Seerctary of Defense, in conjunclion with the
Dirvector of the Office of Science and Technology, shall
continue to develop controls and safety measures in all
bacteriolegical/biological programs.,

The Under Sceretaries Gommiitee shall conduct an
annual review of United States Baclericlogical/Biological
Research Programs and public information policy, and
will make recommendations to the President.

-

/ } \ .
\_.fl.r. — kx. e ll...ln....l.l.li.-
Henry &, Kissinger \..q
b
cc: Chairman, Joint Chiels of Staff
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EXHIBIT 8

NATIONAL SRCURITY COUNCIL
WASHINGTON, 11 €. 20508

February 20, 1970

o -

Naliona) Sceuritly Decision Memorandum 44

TO: The Vice President
The Secretlary of Statle
The SBccretary of Defense
The Director, Central Intelligence Agoency
The Nireclor, Arms Conlrol and Disarmamenl Agency
The Director, Office of Emergency Preparcdness
The Direclor, Office of Scicnce and Technology

SUBJECT: Uniled States Policy on Toxing

Following & review of United States mil tary programs for loxins,
the President has decided {hat:

1. Thec United Si.n(-cs_ \jrxll renounce the production for operational
purposes, stockpiling and use in retaliation of toxins produced
TS I deiioionical & a3 3
ajthor By beutes J.U;vg,).lg.ul o biolegical processes or by chemianl
. synthesis,

Z,  The United States military program for loxins will he confined
to reseaxch and development for defensive pﬁrpcsus only.

3. The Seerctary of Defense will subimit recommendafions concern-
ing the disposal of cxisting stocks of {oxin weapons and/or
agents.  These recommendations should accompany the recom-
111(:11(1:11.1'0115 pursuant {o National Security Decision Memorandum 35
regarding the disposal of bacteriological/biological weapaus.

4. The Under Scerclavies Gommitlee's nmaunl xovime of Uniled
Slates chemical warfare programs and public inflormalion
policy, as dirccted by National Security Decision Memorandum 35
will include review of Uniled States military toxins programs. .

J‘-’" \
P .
./g__.- s /I’ ,/' e N
lNlenry A Rissingoer 3 .y
Cobar

cc: Chairman, Joinl Chicfs of Swlf

e

o -
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EXHIBIT 2

Protocol for the P’rohibition of the Use in War
of Asphyxiating, Poisonous or Other Gases,
and of Bacteriological Methods of Warfare

Kigeed ul Genera June 1708025
Fnivred inlo foree Feliraary 8, 18338

The undorsigoed plenlpoteatinries, in the naue of their respeelive Govern-
HUN B .

Whorens the nse in wir of wsphysinting, poisouous or othee gises, nl of alt
annbegiits Haguddes, mnterlals or deviees, as bean fustly cotderned by the generut
opinfon of the eivltized world ;

Wherens the probilition of sich use has lnen deciured in Freaties to which
{he majority of Towers of {he world are Parthes ;and

Ao the end thal Chig proldbition shall be universally aeveptenl as g et of
tnternatiound Law, binding alike the consclenee aind the practice of uitious

Breclure: .

That ihe High Confeacling Parties, 2o far ax they are nol already I'iirties
to I'resdlox proh§biling sael aee, neeept Lheir prohiliif i agree (v exfuml {his
prolibition (o the nse of bacteriologlen) wetbols of warfaie il agree (o
B Do 5 between thenmselves aecording to the ters of thig deetaetion,

The High Contrneting Parties will exert overy effort (o botiaee other Stafes
o seveite (0 the present Pritaeol. Such aeeeesion Will be wolified to the Govern-
ment of the Fronel Hepublie, and by (e latter to all signadory and sgeeeditg
Powers, and will fuke offeet on (he dale of the notitention by The Government
of The Freneh Repuhblice,

Phe prosent Urotocol, of which the Freacl sl Bnglish texts are heth
wnthontie, sl be e ifled ng sonn s possihle, 11 shall bene fonday™s dafe,

The ralittentions of (he present Profocol shall be addreessed to e Government
of the Frenel Repablie, which will tf oner nofify the deposit of stiel ratifieption
fo mtely af Lhe xignfory and neeeding Powers.

The it eitments of rafitication of and seeession Lo the present Protocel wil
cemtin deposited I Qe arehives of (he Govermpent of (e Frenel Repabilie,

The present Protoed] will eonte info Foree for ench signatory Power s from
e alite o déposil of its entifention, amd, fram that mament, eaeh Power will be
bl s resals of her powers whicl bave already deposifed theie ratilieations,

In wiiniss wnneeor the Plenipeleatineies e signied the present Proloesl,

g ad teneva oo single copa, the 2evendeentl day of Juue, Oine Thonstee]
N Thidred sl Pwenty-Flve, ’

i
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ExurBIT 10

Convention on the Prohibition of the Develop-
ment, Production and Stockpiling of Bacterio-
logical (Biological) and Toxin Weapons and
on Their Destruction

Stgned at Washington, London. Mazcaw April 19, 1972

The Stares Parties to thix Convention, -

Determined to act with 2 view to nchieving effective progress towards genera
and complete disarmament, ineluding the prohibition and elimination of all types
of weapons of mass destruction, and convinced that the prokibitinn of the
development, production aud stockpiling of chemical and baeteriological (bio-
logieal) weapons and their eliminatinn, through effective measures, will facilitate
the achievement of general and complete disarmament under strict and effective
international control. -

Recognizing the important significance of the Protocol for the Irohibition of
the Use in War of Asphrxiating, Poizonons ov Other Gases. and of Bacterio-
logieal Methods of Warfare: signed at Geneva on June 17, 1925, and conscious
alsn of the contribution which the szid Protocol Las alreads made, and continues
to make. to mitignting the horrors of war, '

Renffirming their adherence to the principles and objectives of that Protocol

" and calting upon all States to comply strietly with them,

Reealling that the General Assembly of the United Nations has repeatedly
cnn_demned all actions eontrary to the principles and objectives of the Geneva
Protocol of June 17. 1925,

Desiring ta contribute to the strengthening of coufidence hetweesn penples and
the geperat improvement of the international atmosphere.

Desiring also to contrihute to the realization of the purposes and prineiples
of the Charter of the United Natinns,

Convineed of the Importance sud urgeney of eliminating from the preenals
of States, through effective mensures. such dangerous weapnns of mass destruc-
tinn -m those using chemical or bacreriological (biolozieal) aoents,

Recognizing that an agreement on the prohibition of bacterinlogical (binlogical)
and toxin weapons represents g first possible step towards the achiévement of
agreement on effective mensures alse fot the prohibition of the develapment,
production and stoekpiling of chemical weapons, and determined to continue
negotiatinns to that end.

Determined, for the sake of #11 mankind. to exclude completely the possibility
of bacterinlogical (binlngical) agents and toxins being used as weapons.

Convinced that such use would be repugnant to the conscience of mankind
and that no effort shonld Le spared to minimize this risic.

Have agreed as follows -

113
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)Article I

Eacli State Party to this Convention undertakes never in any cireumstances
to develop, produce, stockpile or otherwise acquire or retain:

(1) Microbial or other biological agents. or toxins whatever their origin or
method of production, of types and in quantities that have no justitivation for
prophytactic. protective or other peaceful purposes;

(2) ‘Weapong, enquipment or means of delivery designed to use such wgengs or
toxins for hastile purposes ur in armed conflict,

Article IT

Each $tate DParty to this Convention undertzkes to destroy, ot to divert ro
peaceful purpuses, as.soon as possible but not later than aine mpnrlm after
the entry into force of the Convenrion. all agents. toxing, weapons, equipment
and means of delivery specified in arricle I of the Convention, which are in its
posseszion or under its jurizdietion or control In-implementing the provisions
of this article all necessary safety precautions shall be observed to protect pop-

- ulations and the environment.

Article TIL

Each State Party to this Convention undertakes not to transfer to any
recipient whatsoever, directly or indirectly, and not in aay way to asyist,
encourage, or indnee any State, group of States or international arganizatinns to
manufactuce or otherwise sequice any of the agents, toxins, Weds s« (litraent
or means of delivery specified in articte I of the Convention,

Article IV

Eatch State Pacty to this Convention shall, in aceordance with ifs coustifniinmal
processes, take any necessary meastres to prolibit and prevent the developinent,
production.- stockpiling, acquisition or retention of the agvut.-:.,‘ toxine, weapons,
equiptment and means of delivery specified in article I of the Convention, witha
the territory of such State, under its jurisdictivn or under its control anywher.,

Article V

The States Parties to this Convention undertake to consuit one another snd o
conperite in solving any problems which may arise in relation to the vlgectiv
of. or in the application of the provisivns,of, the Convention. Uon=uitation and
cooperation pursuant to thix articte may alse be undertaken through appropriate
international procedures within the framework of the Tnited Nations amd
aceordance with its Charter. .
Article VI :

(1) Any State Party to this Convention which finds that any ather State Party
is acting in breach of obligations deriving from the provisions of the Convention
may lodge a complaint with the Security Council of the United Natinns. Such 2
complaint should inctude zll possible evidence confirming it's validity, as well
as a request for its consideration by the Security Conneil.

(2) Each State Party to this Conveution undertakes to cooperate in carryinz
out any investigation which the Seeurity Council may initiate, in acecordance with
the provisions of the Charter of the United Nations, on the basis of the com-
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plaint re..«ved by the Council. The Security Courncil shall iaform the States
-Parties to the Conventton of the results of the investigation.

Article VII

Each State Party to this Convention undertakes to provide or support assisg-
auce, in accordance with the United Nations Charter, to any Party to the Con-
ventivn which o requests, if the Security Council decides that saeh rarts has
been exposed to danger as a result of violation of the Convention.

Article VIIT

Nothing in this Convention shall be interpreted as in any way limiting or
detracting {rom ihe oblizations assumed by any Sfate under the Protnco! for the
Probibition of the Use in War of Asphyxiating, Poisonous or Other Gases. and
of Bacteriological Methads of Warfarve, sipned at Geneva on June 17, 1925,

Article IX

Each State Party to this Convention affirms the recognized objective of
effective prolibition of chemical weapons and, to this end, undertakes to continue
negotiations in good faith with a view to reaching early agresment on effective
measures for the prohibition of their development, production and stockpiling
and for their destruction, and on appropriate mersures concerning equipment and
menns of deliverr specifically designed for the production or use of chemieal
agents for weapons purposes,

Article X

(1) The States Parties to this Convention undertake to facilitate, and have
the right to participate in, the fullest possible exchange of equipment, materials
and sefentific and technolngical informarion for the use of bacteriologieal (bio-
logical) agents and toxins for peaceful purposes. Parties to the Convention in
& position to do so shall also cooperate in eontributing individuwally or together
with other States or international organizations to the further development and
appliceation of scientific discoveries in the field of bacteriology (biology) for
prevention of disease, or for other peaceful TIrpOses,

{2) This Convention shall be implemented in a mwanner desiguned to avoid

hampering the economic or technolngical development of States Parties to the

- Convention or intersational esoperation in the field of peaceful bacterinlogical

(biolugical) activities, including the international exchange of bacterinlogical

{hinlogical} agents and tp:cins and equipment for the processing, use or produc-

tion of bacteriological (binlogicall agents and toxins for peaceful purposes in
acenrdance with the provisions of the Convention.

Article XI

Any State Party may propose amendments to this Convention. Amendments
shall enter into foree for each State Party accepting the amendments upon
thelr acceptance by a majority of the States Prrties to the Convention and
thercaiter for each remaining State Party on the date of acceptance by it

Article XIT

Five renrs after tlie entrr into force of this Convention, or earlier if it is
requested by a majority of Parties te the Convention by submitting a proposal
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to this effect to the Depositary Governments, a conference of Stateg Parties to
the Convention shall be held at Geneva, Switzerlund, to review the operation of
the Convention, with 2 view to assuriuy that the purposes of the preamble and
the provisions of the Convention. including the provisions copeerning negotiations
on chemical weapons, are being realized. Such review shall take into aceount
any new scientific and technological developments relevant to the Convention.

-

Article XIIT
(1) This Convention shall be of unlimited duration.

{2) Each State Party to this Copvention shall in exercising its national
sovereignty have the right to withdraw from the Convention if it decides that
extraardicary events, related to the sabject matter of the Convention. have
jeopardized the supreme interests of is conntry. If shall give notice of such
withdrawal to all other States Parties to the Convention amd te the Trited
Nations Security Council three mouthy in advance. Such notice shall ineclude
a statement of the extraordinary events it regards as having jeopardized Its
supreme interests. ’

Article XIV

{1) This Convention shall be open to all States for signature. Any State
which does not sign the Convention before its entry into force in accordance
with paragraph (3) of this Article miay accede fo it at any time.

{2} This Convention shall be subject to ratification by Signatory States.
Instruments of ratification and instruments of accession shull be deposited
with the Governments of the TUnited States of America. the Unirsd Ringdon
of Gregt Britain and Northern Ireland and the Union of Boviet Socializt
Republics, which are hereby designated the Depositary Governments.

(3) This Convention shall enter into force after the deposit of instruments
of ratification by twenty-two Governments, including the Governmentr desiz-
nated as Depositaries of the Convention.

(4) For States whose instruments of ratificatinn or actession are Jdeposited
subsequent to the entry into force of thix Convention, it shail enter into furce
on the date of the deposit of their instruments of ratification or accession.

{3) The Depositary Governments shall promptly inform all signatory and
acceding States of the date of each sizgnature, the date of deposit of each instru-
ment of ratification or of aceession and the date of the eniry inte force of this
Conventiozn, and of the receipt of other notices. )

(6} This Convention shall be registered by the Depesitury ffovernments pur-
suant to Article 102 of the Charter of the Unifed Nations.

Article XV : !

Thiz Counvention, the English, Russian, French. Spanish and Chinese texts
of which are equally avthentic, shall be deposited in the archives of the De-
positary Governments. Duly certificd copies of the Convention shall he trang.
mitted by the Depositary Governments to the Governmenty of the signatory and
acceding States. '
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ExmiBiT 11

Dr. William T. Boaver

Department of Pharmacology

Cornell University Medical College
1300 York Avenue

New York, Hew York

Mr. William Beck
Northwest Shelllish Laboratory
Gig Harbor, Washington

Dr. William H. Beers
The Rockefeller University
New York, New York 10021

Dr. Merlin S. Bergdoll
Food Rescarch Institute
University of Wisconsin
Hadison, Wisconsin 53706+

* Dr. Alan W. Bernheimer

Newr York University Schoa! of Medicine
Department of ‘Microbiclogy ’
550 First Avenue

New York, New York

Pr. Martin E. Bernstein

Indiana University Hedical Center
1100 West Michigan Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46207

Dr. John A. Bevan
Department of Pharmacolagy
School of Medicine
University of Cafifornia
Los Angeles, California

bOr. B. Beys

Faculty of Medicine & Pharmacology
School of Public Health
University of Brusseals

Brussels 1, Belgium

Bolulinum Toxin

o

Shellfish Poison

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B
Staph Ent A

Staph Ent 8

Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Peison

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B

£ et AR S S

e

&

217

br. Mordecai P. Blausledin

Department of Physiolegy & Biophysics
Washington University Schoul of Hedicine
660 $. Euclid Avenue

S$t. Louis, Missouri 63110

Dr. Peter Bonventure
Radioisotope Labocatory
Cincinnati General Hospital
Cincinnati, Ohio

l.t. James C. Bond

. Department of Pharmacology

Georgetown University Medical School
Washingten, D.C. 20007

Dr. Herbert L. Borison
Department of Pharmacology
Dartmouth Medical Schooi
Hanover, New Hampshire

Dr. Daniel Boroff

Albert Einstein. institute

York & Tabor Roads

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19120
( Al '}_) Hep e i T i A R I{

Dr. Thomas Brfatkowski

Section of Neurobiclogy & Behavior
Langmuir Laboratory

Cornell University

lthaca, New York 14850

Pr. David K. Brooks
Baylor University College of Medicine
Texas Medical Center

Houston, Texas 77025

pr. Clarence A. Broomfield
Edgewood Arsenal, Maryland

Prof. 5. O. Burton
[mstitute of Marine Science
University of Alaska
College, Alaska

Botulinum Toxin

v

Staph Ent B

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B

Shelifish Poison

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Shelifish Poison

Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Poison
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Hr. Thomas Burton

Depariment ol Health, Educalion and Welfare
Fooud & Orug Adwinistration

1521 W. Pico Boulevard

Los Angeles, California 90015

Dr. Frank G. Carpenter

University of Alabama Medical Cunter
Medical Cellege and School of Dentistry
Birmingham, Alabama 35233

- Dr. C. Jelieff Carr

Chief, Scientific Analysis Branch
Life Sciences Division .

Dffice of the Chief of Research and Development

Washington, D.C. 2031C

Dr. Ezra Casman
Food & Druy Administration
U.5. Public Health Service
Washington, 0.C.

Dr. Stephen 5. Chen
Department of Physioloay
The University of Wisconsin
Madison, Wisconsin 53706

Dr. Michael Cherington

Division of Neurology

University of Colorado Medical Center
4200 East Ninth Avenue

Benver, Colorado 80220

Dr. William Chesbre
Department of Hicrobiology
University of tew Hampshire

Durham, New Hampshire 03824

Dr. Scott V. Cobert
Bactericlogy Department
Albany Medical College
Albany, HNew York "

Shel1fish Poison

rr

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent A

Botul inum Toxin

219

James E. Corrigan

35 Butler Street

pDivision of Natural Sciences
St. Francis College
Brooklyn, New York

Ethel Cosmos

[nstitute for Muscle Discases, Inc.
Division of Cell Bioloyy

New York, Hew York 10021

\

Or. Frederick Coulston

Institute of Experimental Pathoiogy
and Toxicology

Albany Medical College

Albany, Hew York 12208

Dr. Scotli Covett
Department of Microbiology
albany Medical College
Albany, New York 12208

pr. John T. Cronin
Professor of Chemistry
Division of Mathematics &
Physical Science
Southwestern State College
Weatherford, Oklahoma

pr. William J. Crowley, Jr.

Department of Neurology

University of Virginia School
of Medicine

Charlottesvilie, Virginia 22901

Dr. Don Das Gupta
Food Research Institute
University of Wisconsin
Hadison, Wisconsin 53706

Shelllish Poison

et

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Shel1fish Paison

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin
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Dr. Gary Davis

National Institute of Henlal Health

Division of Special Hental Health
Rescarch, IR

Laboratory of Neuropharmacology

Saint Elizabeths Hospita!

WAW Building

Washington, D.C. 20032

Col. lrvin Davis

USAF School aof Acrospace Medicine
Chief, Biosciences Division

Brooks Afr Force Base, Texas 78235

Br. W. W. Dawson

Departmert of Ophthalmology
University of Florida
Gainesville, Florida 32601

Dr. C. B. Denny

Assistant Chie{, Bacteriology

National! Canners Association, Washington
Rescarch Laboratory,

1133 20th Street, N.W.

Washinglon, D.C.

Marjorie L. Dewey

Chief Toxicologist ',
Diablo Laboratories
Berkeley Research Center
Berkeley, Californis

pr. N. Dickie

Department of Mational Health & Welfare
foad & Orug Dircctorate

Tunney's Pasture

Ottawa, Ontario, Gamada

Dr. V. R. Dowell
National Communicable Discase Center
Atlanta, Georgie

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Eni B

Botulinuw Toxin

Staph Ent B

Shelifish Poison

Batulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin
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Dr. Danicl B. Drachman
Deparlment of Hearology
New England Ceuter Hospital
Boston, Maossachuselts

br. James L. Duncan
Department of Microbiology
Horthwestern University
Chicago, 1ilinois 60611

Dr. Ralph V. Dykes

Scripps Institution of Oceanography
University of California, $an Diego
P.0. Box 109

La Jolla, Califernia 92037

Dr. Gary Dyksira

Departmant of Healih, Education & We!fare
Food & Drug Administration

1560 East Jefferson Avenue

Detroit, Michigan L8207

Dr. Arthur Eberstein

Mew York Universily Medical Center

Institute of Physical Medicine &
Rehabilitation

L00 East 34th Strect

New York, New York

Prof. Roger Eckert

.Department of Zoology

Syracuse University
Syracuse, New York

Dr. Seymour Ehrenpresis
Department of Pharmacology
Gedrgetown Madical School
Washington, D.C.

Br. Richard Ehrlich

[T Research Institute -
10 Wesl 35th Strect
Chicago, 1liinois

Botulinem Tuxin

Staph Ent G

Sheliflfish Poison

Shellfish Poisan

Shallfish Poison

Shel1Fish Poison

Bolulinum Toxin

Staph'Ent B
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Dr. C. Enqgel

Central Institute for Hulrilion
and Fuod Rescarch T.H.Q.

Uitrechlscwey 48

Zeist, The Netherlands

Dr. Martin H. Evans

Institute of Animal Physiology
Babraham

Cambridge, Engiand

tir. Oouglas A. Ewald
Department of Zoology
University of California
Barkeley, California 94720

Prof. Maurice B. Feinslein
Down State tedical Coenter
State Universily of New York
Department of Pharmacology
450 Clarkson Avenue
Brook!iyn, Hew York 11203

fr. William A Felsing, Jr.

Chief, Field Opcration Section

Shellfish Sanilation Branch

Department of Health, Education & Welfare
Washington, D.C.

Dr. John A. Findlay

Department of Chemistry

University of New Brunswick
Fredericton, New Brunswick, Canada

Dr. Robert B. Fornay

bDepartment of Toxicology

indiana University.Medical Center
Indianapolis, Indiana

Prof. Frederick A Fuheman .

Fleischmann Laboratories of the
Medical Sciences .

Stanford University School of Medicine

Palo Alto, California 9430k

Staph EnL B

Shellfish Paoison

Botulinum Toxin

.

Shelllish Poison

Shelflish Poison

$hellfish Poison

Shelifish Poison

Shellfish Poison

i .n.:'k)“
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fr. Conslanting Genigeorgis
Department of Epidemiolegy &

Preventlive Modicing
University of Calilornia
School of Veterinary Medicine
Davis, Califoraia

Or. Joseph F. Gennare, Jr.

The J. Hillis Miiler Health Center
University of Florida

Gainesville, Florida

Elmer George, Jr., Director
Laboratory Building

State Foocd Laboratory

Department of Agriculture & Markets
1220 Washington Avenue

Albany, HNew York 12226

Pr. Julia Gerwing
Yniversity of Brilish Columbia
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada

Or. Richard J. Gilbert

Food Hygiene Labaratory

Central Public Health Laboratory
Colindale Avenue

London WW 9, England

Prof. A. Giovanardi
Instituto Di lgicne Delia
Universita Di Milano
University of Milan, ltaly

Dr. N. Grecz

LT Research Institute
10 West 35th Street
Chicago, [1linois

A. E. Greenberg

Chief, Sanitation & Radiation Laboratory

2151 Berkeley VWay
Berkeley, California

Staph EnL B

.
-
or

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B

Batutinum Toxin

Staph Ent A

Shellfish Poison

Botulinuem Toxin

Shellfish Poison




Dr. Harry Grundfest

Collegr of Physicians & Surgeons

of Colunbia Universily
Department of Meurology
Laboratory of Neuophysiology
New York, New York 10032

Dr. 5. Hagiwara - .
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Scripps Institution of Oceanography

P. 0.  Box 109
La Joila, California 92037

Or. H. E. Hall

Robert A. Taft Sanftary Engineering Center

U. S. Public Health Service
4676 Colunbia Parkway
Cincinnati, Ohio 45226

Dr. D..L. Hammerman

The Brookiyn Center
Long Island University
Brooklyn, Hew York 11204

Or. William K. Harrell

Chief, Microbiclogical Reagents Unit

Comnunicable Disecase Center
Atlanta, Georgia 30333

br. Koroku Hashimoto
Department of Pharmacology
Faculty of Medicine
University of Tohoku
Sendai, Japan

Br. Ervin J. Hawrylewicz
JIT Research Institute
10 West 35th Street
Chicago, !llinpis 60616

Dr. James L., Haynes

Litton Systems, Inc.
Applied Science Division
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55413

Shellfish

s

Shellfish

Staph Ent

Staph Ent

Staph Ent

Shellfish

Botul inum

Botulinum

Poison

Puiscn

B

Poison

Toxin

Toxin

Dr. Richard Henderson
Depariment of Chemislry
Sterfing Chemistry Laboratory
Yale Universily

225 Prospect Street

New Haven, Connecticut 06520

br. Edward J. Herbst
Spalding Life Sciences Bldg.
Depatrtment of Biochemistiry
University of New Hampshire
Durham, New Hampshire 03824

Dr. T. Herskovic
Section of Gastreenterology

New Haven, Connecticut 06510

De. John Heuser
Laboratory of Neuropathology &
Neuroanatomical Sciences

Diseases & Sircke
Bethesda, Maryland 20014

Dr. Bertil Hitle
The Rockefeiler Instilute
New York, New York 10021

Dr. Tarl R. Honig
Department of Physioleogy

University of Rochester Medical Center

Rochester, New York

Prof. A. B. Hope

The Flinders University of South Austraiia

School of Biological Sciences
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‘Yale*University School of Medicine

-National Institute of Neurolegicai

Bedford Park, South Australia 5042

John Y. Humber
Natiomal Canners Association
Washington, D. ¢. 20036

Shellfish Poison

nr

Shellfish Poison

Staph Ent B

Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Poison

Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Poison

Staph Ent A
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Dr. §. lrani

Department of Hulrilion and Food Scicnces

Massachusells Institute of Technoltogy
Cambridge, Massachusells

Dr. Bernard Jandorf
CREL
Edgewood Arsenal, Maryland

Or. James M. Jaoy ,
Departuent of Biclogy
Wayne State University
Detroit, Michigan k8202

Dr. Donald J. Jenden

Department of Pharmacology

Unhiversity of California Center for
the Health Services

Los Angeles, Calilornia 90024

Dr. Wayne 1. Jensen

U.5. Bept. of Interior Fish & Wildlife
Service :

P.0. Box 459

Bear River Rescarch Station

Brigham City, Utah

Dr. Francois Jobin

Laborateire de rechefches cliniques
et Service d'Hematologic

Hospifal du Saint-Sacrement

Quebee, Canada

Dr. Howaré M. Johnson
Milk & Food Sanitaltion Research Branch
Division of Microbiology

Department of Health, Education & Welfare

- 1090 Tusculum Avenue
Cincinnati, Ohio 45226

Mr. W. G, Jowetl

TICP, Sub-yroup E

Defence Standards Laboratories
P.0. Box S50

Ascot Vaie, 3032

Victoria, Australia

Staph Ent B

o
3

.t

Shellfish Poison

Staph Ent B
Staph EnL A

BoLulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxia .

Shellfish Poison

Staph Ent B

Shellfish Poison

Dr. C. Y. Kao

Depariment of Pharmacology
State University of Hew York
Brooklyn, New York

Dr. Toshikaru Kawabata .
Department of Food Control
Hational ipstitule of Health
284 Kamiosaki-Chojomard
Shinagawa-Ku, Tokyo, Japan

LCOR John C. Keescy

Naval Medical Research Institlute
Naticnal Naval Hedical Center -

Bethesda, Maryland 2004

Dr. T. H. Kent

Walter Reed Institute
Walter Reod Medical Center
Washinglon, D.C.

Maurice E. King

TIT Research Institute
10 West 35th Streect
Chicago, 11linois

Dr. €. P. Kraalz

Pepartment of Pharmacology

The Jeffersan Medical Gollege
of Philadeiphia

1025 Walnut Street

Philadeiphia, Pennsylvania

br. Richard E., Kreig, Jr.

USAF School of Aerospace Medicine
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Brooks Air Force Base, Texas 78235

Dr. K. Krnjevic

MeGill University
Department of Physiology
Montreal, Quebec, Canada

Shellfish Paigon

wr

i

Shelifish Poison

Shellfish Poiseon

Staph Ent B

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent 8
Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Poison
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Dr. Francis A. Kulyna

Department of Physioiogy

Medieal College of South Carolina
80 Barre Stirecet

Charieston, South Carelina 29401

A. Lachanse

Department of Industry & Commerce
Division of Fisheries

Parliament Building

Quebec City, Canada

Prof. Harbans Lal
Department of Pharmacology
University of Kansas
School of Pharmacy
Lawrence, Kansas

Dr. Carl Lamanna

Deputy Chief & Scientific Advisor

Life Sciences Division

QOffice of the Chief of Research
and Development °

Army Research OfFice

Washington, D.C. 20310

Or. R. V.Lechowich
Department of Food Science
Michigan State University
East Lansing, Michigan 48823

-Br. Chen-Yuan Lec

National Taiwan University
Departmtne of Pharmacology
Coilege of Medicine
Taipei,.Taiwan

Dr. J. 5. Lee

Department of Food Science & Technology
Oregon State University

Corvallis, Oregon 97331 -

Boluiinum Toxin

-

e

Shelifish Poison

Staph Ent B |

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxon

o g,

Shellfish Poison
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Dr. Keith H. Loewis

Direcltor. Oflice ol Foods & Nulrition
Scicnces

Food and Druy Adminislration

Room 6001 - FOB & Bldg.

200 C Street, S$.W.

Washington, D.C. 20204

Dr. Martin Lipkin

Department of Medicine

Corneil University Medical Eolleqc
First Avenue & Twenty-Sixth Slreet
New York, New York 10016

Mr. Alfred R. Loeblich T1I

Scripps Inslitution of Occanography
Deparimenl of Marine Biology
Universily ol California

LaJolla, California

Dr. Gertrude D. Maengwyn-Davies
Department of Pharmacoliogy
Georgetown Universily
Washington, D.L. 20007

Dr. Dean . Harlin
Department of Chemistry
Universilty of South Florida
Tampa Campus

Tampa, Florida 33620

Dr. Richard L. Masland

Department of Neurology

College of Physicians & Surgecns of
Columbia University

New York, New York 10032

Dr. William 0. HeClure
Department of Chemistry & Chemical Engineering
Biochemistry Division

University of lilinois
Urbana, 1llinois 61801

Shelllish Poison
Batulinum Toxin

o

BoLulipum Toxin

Culture - Gonyaulax
catenella

Botulinum Toxin

Shelifish Puison

CBotul inum Texin

Botulinum Toxin
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Ted McConald

Departwent of Dniomoloyy
University of California
Riverside, Calilornia 92502

Dr. Robert Mclsaac

Department of Pharmacolbgy

State UniversiLty of New York at Buffale
122 Capen Hall

Buffalo, New York

Prof. A. |. McMullen

State University of New York at Buffalo
Center for Theoretical Biology

4248 Ridge Lea Road

Amherst, New Yorik 14226

Mr. John T. Meacham
Food & Druy Administration
Public Health Service
. 850 Third Avenue
Brooklyn, New York 11232

Dr. Ernest A. Meyer

Department of Bacteriology
University of Oregon Medical Schooi
3181 S.W. Sam Jackson Park Road
Portland, Oregon

bDr. Paul Middaugh

Bacteriology Department

Coliege of Agriculture and
Biological Sciences

South Dakota State University

Brookings, South Dakota 57006

Dr. Robert Miller
Departiment of Zoology
The University,
Glasgow, England W.2

Dr. Lioyd HMoss
Stanford Research Institute
Menlo Park, California

Botul inum Tuxin

e
-

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Poison

Botul inum Toxin

Staph Ent B

Shellfish Poison

Botulinwm Toxin

231

Dr. Toshiv Harahashi

Duke University Medical Center

Depariment of Physiclogy &
Pharmacology

Durham, Neorth Carclina

Or. K. V. Hatarajan

Douglas Marine Station
Institlute ol Marine Science
P.Q. Box 349

Douglas, Alaska 99824

Prof. C. L. Cakley
Department of Bacteriology
University of Loeods

School of Hedicine

Leeds 2, England

Dr. Torstein Oflebro

The Veterinary College of Horway
Institute for Food Hygiene

Oslo 4, Norway

Dr. A. C. Baird-Parker

Unilevar Research Laboratory
Colworih House . .
Shornbrovk, Bedford, England

Dr. Rodney L. Parsons

Department of Physiology & Biophysics
The University of VYermont

College of Medicine

Burlinglon, Vermont 05401

Prof, Anne L. Pates

Department of Biglogical Sciences
The Florida State University
Tallahassee, Florida

Dr. Charles S. Petty

Maryland Medical-Legal Foundation, inc.
700 Fleet Street

Baltimere, Maryland

shellfish Poison

.

Shellfish Poison

Botul inum Toxin

Shel1fish Poison

Staph Ent B

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin




Dr. Jolm J. Powers

Food Sci¢nces Laboratory
University of Georgia
Athens, Georgia 30601

_br. Venkstray G. Prabhu

Department of Physiology & Pharmacology |

Chicago College of Osteopalhy
1122 East 53rd Streoct
Chicago, [llinois 606IS

Dr. Benjamin H. Pringle

Mortheast Shellfish Poison Laboratories

Haragansett, Rhode istand

Dr. John Van Prohaska
Department of Surgery
950 East 59Lh Street
Chicago, lilinois:

bDr. M. Purko

National Dairy Pruducts Corp.
Fundamgntal Rescarch Laboratory
Research & Development Division
Glenview, Illinois

Prof. Loyd Y. Quinn
Department of Bacteriology
lowa State University of

Science & Technology
Ames, towa 50010

Dr. James J. Rahal
i71 Harrison Avenue
Boston, Massachusetts 02111

De. K. R. Rao

Department of Ophthalmology
University Hospital

The University of lowa

lowa City, lowa 52240

E. J. Ratajak
Charles Pfizer Medical Research
Laboratorics

Groton, Connecticut

Staph Ent B

av
3
n?

Botulinum Toxin

Shelllish Poison

Staph Ent B

Sheltfish Poison

Bolulinum Toxin

Staph Ent &

‘Botu!inum Toxin

Staph Ent B

.

A

233

Dr. Sammy H. Ray

- Marine Labwyatory

Texas A & M Universily
Galveston, Texas 77550

pr. €. B. Read

Sanitary Enginccring Center
U.5. Public Health Service
L4676 Columbia Parkway
Cincinnati, Ohia

Gustavo de! Real .
Escuela Nacional de Sanidad
Ciudad Universitaria
Madrid, Spain

Dr. Horace Rees
Dugway Proving Ground
Dugway, UtLah 8LQ22

Dr. Edward Reich .
Rockefeller University
66th Streel & York Road
New York, New York

Pr. J. F. Reilly

Division of Pharmacology
Bureau of Scientiflic Rescarch
Food & Drug Administration
Washington, D.C.

Mr. Mack Richards .
Department of Sca & Shore Fishéries
State of Main

Fisheries Resecarch.Station

West Boothbay Harbor, Maine 04574

Pr. Hans Ricmann

pepartment of Pubiic Heallh
School of Veterinary Medicine
Agricultural Experiment Station
University of Catifornia

Davis, California

Shelllish Poisan

Staph Ent B

Shelilish Poison

BoLulinum Toxin
Shelltfish Poison

Shellfish Poison

Shellfish Poison

Shellfish Poison

Botulinum Toxin




234

Dr. Willis Riesen
IIT Resenrrch Institute
10 West 35th Stireet
Chicago, Illinois

Or. J. Murdoch Ritchie

Professor of Pharmacolngy

Albert Einstein College of Medicine
Hew York, New York 104bH|

Dr. John W. Ritter
18534 55th Avenue, N.E.
Seattlie, Washidgton 98155

Dr. Martin Rizack
The Rockefeller University
New York, New York 10021

Dr. Joseph D. Rebinson
Department of Pharmacology
State University of New York
Upstate Medical Center

766 Vrving Avenue

Syracuse, New York 13210

_ Dr. James R. Reoney
Agricuttural Experiment Station

University of Kentucky

Lexington, Keatucky L0506

Dr. Robert E. Rose
Millipore Corporation
Bedford, Massachusetts 01730

Dr. Findlay E. Russell

University of Southern California
Laboratory of Ncurological Research
'Los Angeles County Hospital

Box 323, 1200 MNorth State Street
Los Angeles, California 90033

Botulipum Toxin

" . '
.

o’

Botulinum Texin

Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Poison

Botulinum Toxin

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B

Shellfish Poison

! bt

235

Or. Waltnr W. Sadier
Oepat (et of Public Health
University of California

Davis, California

Or. Bernard P. Salalsky

Department of Pharmacelogy

Coilege of Medicine

University of Illinois at Lhe
Medical Center

Chicago, 111inois

Dr. J. P. Schmidt

Box 438

School of Acrospace Medicine
Brooks Air Force Baso

San Antonio, Texas 78235

" Maj. Daniel Sheahan

Department of Experimental Pathology
Walter Reed Army institute of Research
Walter Recd Army Mcdical Center
Washington, B.C. 20012 :

Dr. Michagl Sheff

Penngylvania Hospital

Avyer Cliaical Laboratory
Eighth & Spruce Streels
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

"Or. 6. M. Shutl

Charles P{izer & Company, Inc.
Eastern Point Road
Groton, Connecticut

Dr. Lance Simpson

New York State Psychiatric lnstitute
722 West 168th Strect

New York, New York 10032

Pr. John M. Slack

Department of. Microbiolegy

West Virginia University Medical Center
Morgantown, West Virginia

e
= -

Staph Ent B
Botul inum Toxin

o
R
r

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B

Staph Ent B

Botuiinum Toxin

Staph EniL B

Botuelinum Toxin

Rotul inum Toxin

—




236

Pr. Alfred A. Smilh .

Department of Ancsthesiology &
Pharmacology

New York Medical Collcqe

New York, New York 10029

Frof. Thomas Smyth, Jr.

Department of Entomoloyy

The Pennsylvania State University
17 Frear Laboratory

Universitly Park, Pennsylvania 16802

Dr. Arporna Sribhibfadh
University of Washington
College of Fisheries
Seattle, Washington

br. Richard A, Steinhardt
Department of Zoology
Umiversity of California
Berkeley, California 94720

bDr. A. H. Stock :
Department of Microbiology
School of Medicine
University of Pittsburgh
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

Kazunobu Sugawara

Pharmaceutical Institute

Tohoky University School of Medicine
Kitayobancho '

Sendal, Japan

Br. H. Sugiyoma .
Food Rescarch Institute
University of Wisconsin
Hadison, Wisconsin 53706

Dr. George B. Sumyk
1IT Research institute
"10 West 35th Street
Chicago, Iliinois

Botulinum Toxin

s

. Botulinum Toxin

Shellfish Paison

Shellfish Poiscn

Bolulinum Toxin

Shellfish Poison

Staph En( B
Botulinum Toxin

Staph Ent B

-

237

Dr. Alan B. Tennant
Bacterinlogical Labarateries
Laboratory of Hygicne

Ottawa 3, Ontariv, Canada

Br. Frederick P. Thurberg
Department of Zoclogy
University of Noew Hampshire
Durham, New Hampshire 03824

Dr. John C. Tomiinson

Herry Ford Hospilal

Section on Cardinvascular Research
2799 West Grand Boulevard

Detroit, Michigan 48202

br. B. T. Tuzar

Microbiolugical Rescarch £stablishment
Portoen Down, Salisbury

Wiltshire, England

Mr. Warren Tse -
Department of Physiology
The University of Wisconsin
Madison, Wisconsin 53706

Mr. Claude Turgyecon

Pepartment of Industry & Commerce
Parliament Buildings

Quebec City, Canada

. Pr. Richard Tyler

Peter Bent Brigham Hospital
Neurology Division

Department of Medicine

Boston, Massachusetts

Dr. Dennis W. Watson
Bepartment of Microbiology
1060 Mayo Memorial Building
University of Minnesota
Minneapolis, Mianesota 55455

Shellfish Poison

.t
.r

Sheilfish‘Poison

Botulinum Toxin

Shelllish Poison

Botulinum Toxin

Shelifish Poison

BoLulinum Toxin

Staph Ent A




238

Dr. Homar W. Walker

jowa State University of Science &
Technology

Department of Uairy & Fuod Industry

Ames, |owa 50010

Dr. Dean D. Walt
Midwest Rescarch Inslitule
Kansas Cily, Missouri 64110

Prof. E. D. Weinberg
Department of Microbiology
Indiana University
Bioomington, Indiana 47401

Br. Hemry Wills
Albany Hodical Colleqe
Albany, New York 12208

bDr. John F. Winn

Chief, Biological Reagenis Section
Communicable Disease Center
Atlants, Georgia 30333

Dr. Ben Wilson

Vanderbilt University

School of Medicine

Department of Biochemisiry
Nashville, Tennessee .3771/%1%

Dr. A. J. Vood

Biochemistry & Bacteriology Departmenis

University of Vicloria
Victoria, British Columbia

Dr. Margy Woodburn

Foods & Hulrition Department
Oregon State University
School of Home Economics
Corvallis, Oregon 97331

Dr. Robevt D. Yates

Department of Analomy

University of Texas Medical Branch
Galveston, Texas 77550

Botulinum Toxin

-

Shelllish Poison

Staph Ent B

Botulinum Toxin

Staph Enl B

Staph Enl B

. Botulinum Toxin
Shellfish Poison

shellfish Poisen

Staph Ent B
Staph Ent A

Botul inum Toxin

239

Or. Sumner Zacks

Ayer Clinical Laboratory
Penn Huspital

8th & Spruce Strects
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Botulinum Toxin




240 241

Exmerr 12 [DELETED]

SUMMARY NEpORT

WORKING FUND INVESTICATIONS ()

JUNE 1968 - JUNE 1969

VYI. (S) WATER §781

I=tEst

cnerel Sarvieces Administration and Fori Detriek enpered inlg |
zrative project to investigate the vulnerability of drinking
water in fudergl buildings to covert biolugical attack,

s The noture of the test and a svmaary of resulls ave pro nled here
¥

beczuse of refat.d interest to Working Fund Investiguiions, xUent jon
ef the study could produce relinement: in test havdiire aod cnhangoed
. 1 June 1969 . predictability of rese resules,

{B) After consultation with design cagineers in Pablic Buildings Serviee,
which is a rart of GSA, tlie Food and Drug Adminisiralion i lding in
ashingron, D, C., was selected for investigativu. fhe enpducers assurod

that the drinking water system is typical of thar installed in wodory
tistoried structures. '

e distribution of chilled anw:szm water in the Fha ::mhgw::
six {loers ahove ground, a bascment and a subbasement,  Loeated
ubbasenent is a chilled water eank of zbout 100 gallens, ‘The

1alds an cstimated 60 gallons, bringing the systot {ulal (o

Special Operatiens Division

" e . . - S roughly 160 zallons. & bump operates cont inuously cireulating chiilled
CORPIODITY DEVELORNENT AND rzmszrszn TABORATORLES water ftom this tank to 35 drinking fountains on Lthe eight levels in
Fart Detrick the building by a Piping network that includes three risers and Live
Frederick, Maryland 21701 ! H g E 3

return {ines.
H

RECEN .~
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1
1
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{CY  Two temis vere laoned and eareiel ol {0 the BDA Tnii bl g s
Mirst vas n charactesization oy fawiliavimation tesl. To thie Loy,
AT willilitera ol coliphage T-3 was introduced dntn the oli [led waper
Lank in the subbazeseat,  The eownt was 2.4 ¥ 1010 wirLielesfml | oy g
total of 30% % 2.4 = 1010 = 7.3 % 1012 particies. Thirtven and four-
Lenglis wrams of poditm thinnul fate dn 50 wl ol waler veve added (o
remnde available chlovioe that wonld bave quickly killed the coliphape
organisot.  Samples ol waler woere callected al several Tountaine at
pericdye intervals, Heeoveries In samples eolleetod e [
were wniFapsly wore Lhan L x 100 gaciiclesfml,  Neeoveric peap ] o
colleeted thie seemml hour wvere greator than 1 ox 109 pariie? !,
Trsts for available chlorine beoawe pasitive two hours afler stant of
test amd the coliphage recoveries quickly dropped te zervo.

L hons

(€)  The second Lest was & ginmlated eovert test.  The eoliphase wns
introduced jnlo the system by a back-pressiwe tochnispe al a drinking
Tonntain,  This is the Lechnique a sabotear mipght use, RKeither the

i lding eccupants nor operating personnel were advised that surh a
tesl was planatd, We were not challenged «Mid apparcatly uvndeteeled,
{€)  The pressurized tank wsed to introduce agient warerials contained
400 milliliters of T-3 caliphage, count 1.5 x 1010 argavisns/yram, and
15 prams of sadivm Lhiosollate pentahydyate in 150 wi of witer, The
tota] nupher of coliphage parlicles was 400 x 1.5 x 1010 g 6 = 1012,
Beeause ol losses inherent in the sismlated cavert dllack, hu inctease
in number of coliphaje pavticles was planned; but owing te Tillvations
perfovwed as o salely measuve, the connl lutd decrensed and Teowev
organisms were used in challenging the system, rather than su {nereaso,
One-hall hour after introducing the agent material, recoveries of 1 » (00
amd B x 105 particlesfml were obtained. Two hoers nfier stary of LoeL,
the andlysis Tor avajlable chlorine was posilive. Living eoliphage
erganisms were killed gquickly,

{¢) We ave now jv the process of evaluating the risk il 2 patlhiogen
had been used, To do this, information is nceded en compalibility of
sodiom thiosullate and pathogen, infecLivity or Lexicily of pathogen
By Uhe oral voute, resistance of paLthagens to avaitable chlorine, and
on case al producing pathogens in high concentration inm the laboratory,
Er iz appatent that'n nuwber of pathegenic organlsws and roxing are
available to Lhe sabolenr in planning an attack against a sclected
group of favget personmel.

(€) A therough stady {3 being conducted Lo assemble all available
data from which oral dose of agents can be duerived.

R ) -
Sep /_/?Gf}f

< 975
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, §U should be -
lop gimpde geldelines Lor planuini an etlack on o
copie that work in a building constructed with a cirealating
ting waler systowm,  The giidelines would indicate b moch
vt and how much sodivm thiosulfate to tse in a gpreific
yeto=gel information $n fuur catepories T8 all the

. dabor of fTountaias in building

prezivate total floor area sad type of nctivity, .
roxitate nomber of employves,

. dsvailable chloring content of water supply at time of attack.

ather and clinate in the target area may necd to be considered jn a
Zic sitvation.

[DELETED]
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BExmerr 13

. 17 February' 1670,
Speeial Operntions Diviaion ! l

Toxin Inventory 1

Quantity

‘Stovage Area Recommondat {on
0,2 grams Safe Tm 223/12 ., Retain
.01 groma Bafe Rm 223471412 Retakn
0.01 grana * §Afe Tm 2234/1412 “ Re
N R Retafn
12-65 grams Deep Freeze Rm 223/1412  Digposa
250 ml Refer Rm 223A/1412 ; Digposa
+3 grems Deep Fredaze Rm 223/1412 Rorain
20,0 grama Am 223071412 '.’Re:ain
2,057 wpe Bafa 1720371412 E Retain
. . R
!
' 1 .
i
Y 'J_LOLULL‘" B
PECEASSIFY on.._f .4:‘ &. i
Clegsified byoon.. E? ' s
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APPENDIX

CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY
WasHincTon,D.C, 20505

16 September 1575

The Honorable Frank Church, Chairman

Select Committee to Study Governmental Operations
With Respect to Intelligence Activities

United States Senate

Washington, D. C. 20510

Dear Mr. Chairman:

At the preceedings of your Committee on the morning
of 16 September 1975 I may have conveyed an impression
which I did not intend. If by chance you or other members
of the Committee got a similar impression, it is important
that I clarify the record now, since it might affect your
line of questioning of future witnesses,

When I was being questioned as to the destruction of
certain CIA records I was thinking of the question in its
broadest context; namely, drugs, bacteriological agents
and chemical agents. I thus answered that there were
indicdtions of record destruction in November 1972,

I realize that most listemers might have inferred that
I was indicating that records relating to the CIA/Ft. Detrick
relationship, in particular, records relating to Project
MKNAOMI, were destroyed. The facts are these: vrecords
relatlng to CIA's drug program in general were destroyed in
January 1973, but there is no evidence, that records of
Project MKNAOMI or of the CIA/Ft. Detrick relationship were
destroyed, other than possibly as included in the general
group in January 1973. I would appreciate it if you would
advise the other members of the Committee to this effect.

I also referred mistakenly to a memorandum between former
DCT Helms and Dr. Gottliel regarding the destruction of records.
This was based on a misunderstanding which occurred during
my hurried consultation with Dr. Stevens. We have no knowledge
of any such memorandum.

Sincerely,
weew v (i
TP B { -
i ad —
[i T ! W. E. Colby
o Director ooy
GEF 16 VN ;g, f““
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